
 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

Children and Young People’s Strategic Partnership 
Board  

 
 
MONDAY, 10TH DECEMBER, 2007 at 18:30 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD 
GREEN, N22 8LE. 
 
MEMBERS: Councillor Liz Santry (Chair), Councillor George Meehan, Councillor Nilgun 
Canver, Dr Ita O’Donovan, Councillor Emma Jones, Sharon Shoesmith, Sue Baker, Pam 
Constantinides, Tracey Baldwin, Helen Brown, Claire Panniker, Jane Lithgow, David Sloman, 
Maria Collins, Jim Shepley, Naeem Sheik, Lenny Kinnear, Yolande Burgess, Christine 
Cocker, Cathy Walsh, Beverley Johnson, Andy Kilpatrick, Margaret Sumner, Commander 
Simon O’Brien, Sean Walker, Jean Croot, Youth Councillor Shayan Mofitzadeh, Youth 
Councillor Adam Jogee 
 
AGENDA 
 
 
1. WELCOME, APOLOGIES AND INTRODUCTIONS    
 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 Members to declare any interests in respect to items on the agenda. 

 
3. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of any urgent items of business. (Late items will 

be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will be dealt with 
under Item 12 below).   
 

4. MINUTES  (PAGES 1 - 10)  
 
 To approve the minutes of the Children and Young People’s Strategic Partnership 

Board meeting held on 8 October 2007.  
 

STRATEGIC FOCUS ITEM:    
 
6. PRIMARY CARE TRUST -CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S HEALTH 

SERVICE COMMISSIONING: PRIORITIES FOR SERVICE DEVELOPMENT  
(PAGES 11 - 56)  

 

  

for children & young people 



 

2 

MONITORING ITEMS:    
 
8. LOCAL AREA AGREEMENT (LAA) DEVELOPMENT  (PAGES 57 - 92)  
 
9. MONITORING OF CHANGING LIVES AND THE LAA  (PAGES 93 - 140)  
 
10. NEETS: UPDATE ON PROGRESS AND KEY ACTIONS  (PAGES 141 - 146)  
 
BUSINESS ITEMS:    
 
12. REPORT BACK FORM CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE'S ADVISORY BOARD    
 
 A verbal update will be provided.  

 
13. THREE MINUTE UPDATE    
 
 Each sector of the Partnership will be invited to give a three minute oral update on the 

most prevalent issues coming from the respective sectors. Longer items will need to 
be submitted as a short paper to be tabled for noting at the meeting.   
 

14. ANY OTHER BUSINESS    
 
15. ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 To consider any new items of urgent business admitted under Item 2 above.  

 
16. PROPOSED DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS    
 
 The following dates are proposed: 

 

• 5 February 2008, 6.30pm 

• 1 April 2008, 6.30pm 

• 6 May 2008, 6.30pm  
 

17. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS    
 
 Partners should submit proposed agenda items for the next meeting (5 February 

2008) to Patricia Walker, Policy and Performance Manager, no later than 21 January 
2008.  
 
patricia.walker@haringey.gov.uk   
 
 

18. ITEMS CURRENTLY SUGGESTED FOR THE NEXT MEETING    
 



 

3 

 The following item has been suggested as a Strategic Focus Item for the next 
meeting: 
 

• Mental Health 
 

 
Yuniea Semambo  
Head of Member Services  
5th Floor 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Xanthe Barker  
Principal Support Officer 
Tel: 020 8489 2957 
Fax: 020 8489 2660 
Email: xanthe.barker@haringey.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP 
BOARD (HSP) 
MONDAY, 8 OCTOBER 2007 

 
Present: Councillor Liz Santry (Chair), Councillor George Meehan, Dr Ita 

O’Donovan, Councillor Emma Jones, Sharon Shoesmith, Pam 
Constantinides, Lenny Kinnear, Yolande Burgess, Andy Kilpatrick, 
Margaret Sumner, Jean Croot, Wayne Mawson, Gerry Taylor, Vicky 
Hobart, Stanley Hui, Niels Gedge,  

 
In 
Attendance: 

Michelle Alexander, Phil Di’leo, Jamie Robinson, Patricia Walker, Clarie 
Wright 

 

MINUTE 
NO. 

 
SUBJECT/DECISION 

ACTON 
BY 

 
OBCB19.
 

WELCOME, APOLOGIES AND INTRODUCTIONS  

 Apologies for absence were received from the following: 
 
Sue Baker 
Councillor Nilgun Canver 
Maria Collins 
Paul Head 
Simon O’Brien   -Wayne Mawson substituted  
Jim Shepley    -Niels Gedge substituted 
 
 

 
 

OBCB20.
 

URGENT BUSINESS  

 No items of urgent business were received.  
 

 
 

OBCB21.
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 No declarations of interest were made.  
 

 
 

OBCB22.
 

MINUTES  

 RESOLVED:  
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 9 July 2007, be confirmed as a 
correct record of the meeting, subject to the inclusion of Gerry Taylor 
being listed as a full member of the Board.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
XB 

OBCB23.
 

HARINGEY HEALTH REPORT 2006  

 The Board received presentations on the Children and Young People’s 
aspects the Haringey Health Report 2006. 
 
Haringey Health Report 2006 
 
It was noted that changes in the age, ethnicity and size of the population 
affected the way in which services were delivered. Although progress 

 
 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP 
BOARD (HSP) 
MONDAY, 8 OCTOBER 2007 

 

was being made in responding to these changing needs there was a lot 
of work to do in terms of analysing the future needs of these groups.  
 
There were certain areas such as Infant Mortality and Life Expectancy 
where there were significant variances in different areas of the Borough 
and it was recognised that this needed to be addressed. Measures to 
address this were being considered.  
 
The new GP’s contract included new methods of measuring 
performance and it was anticipated that these would enable a more 
sophisticated level of analysis. There were a number of 
recommendations that had been set out in the report:  
 

• Planning to respond to population growth 

• Action to address premature mortality in the Borough 

• Prioritisation of medical and other health resources to reduce 
deaths in adults under sixty-five and those living in North East 
Tottenham 

• Measures to change shopping, eating and cooking habits of 
Haringey families 

• Further investigation of variances in the quality of care and 
improvement in care delivery where appropriate 

• Ensuring the resource allocation to GP practices was based on 
need and invested to improve the quality and outcomes of care 
delivery  

    
It was noted that the PCT and partners had worked with partners to form 
the new Well Being Strategic Framework, which aimed to promote a 
healthier Haringey by improving well-being and tackling inequalities.  
 
Under the Well-Being Framework the Board was the lead group for 
tackling the following areas: 
 

• Infant Mortality 

• Teenage Pregnancy 

• Smoking –in pregnancy and in homes  

• Sexual Health –Chlamydia screening 

• Physical Activity –in schools 

• Food and Nutrition –school dinners 

• Young Carers 
  
It was noted that there had been discussion with the various Theme 
Boards and that a Seminar had taken place on 5 October to discuss the 
Framework, which was due to be adopted by the Health and Well-Being 
Strategic Partnership Board on 22 October.  
 
In response to queries as to how the effectiveness of the Framework 
would be measured; the Board was advised that the Framework had 
been built upon existing strategies such as the Sustainable Community 
Strategy and LAA targets. By using these as a basis it was envisaged 
that the effectiveness of the Framework could be measured against 

Page 2



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP 
BOARD (HSP) 
MONDAY, 8 OCTOBER 2007 

 

existing performance indicators.    
 
It was noted that the transitional period from childhood to adulthood was 
an area where there was often a gap in service provision and that this 
should be addressed within the Framework particularly the problems 
highlighted in the NEETS targets.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To note the presentation.  
 
 

OBCB24.
 

HARINGEY'S STRATEGIC FRAMEWORK FOR IMPROVING WELL-
BEING: 2007-10 

 

 This presentation was given as part of the previous item.  
 

 
 

OBCB25.
 

PRIMARY CARE STRATEGY: DOES THE STRATEGY ADEQUATELY 
ADDRESS THE NEEDS OF CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE? 

 

 The Board received a presentation on the Primary Care Strategy.  
 
The new Primary Care Strategy had been formed in order to address 
variances and provide consistency across the services that were 
provided to patients and to improve the patient experience by better 
integrating services management resources of resources.  
 
Following consultation with the public three key priorities had been 
identified: 
 

• Provision of quick and convenient access to primary care 

• Continuity of relationships 

• Care closer to home    
 
It was noted that under the new Super Health Centre Model a range of 
services would be brought together in one site. This approach was 
intended to make it easier for people to access services without having 
to go to hospital or other specialist centres.  
 
The Board discussed the likely impact that the new Strategy and Health 
Centre Model would have upon children and young people.  In response 
to a query as to whether consultation had been carried out with children 
and young people in order to gauge their views on these proposals, it 
was noted that the PCT intended to visit schools during the consultation 
process.  
 
The Chair suggested that the Youth Council would provide a useful 
forum for consulting young people as it met on a regular basis.  
 
The Board was advised that to date there had been no consultation with 
young people with regard to how the new Super Health Centres should 
be designed in order to meet their needs. However, it was acknowledged 
that specific areas of the Centre would need to be designed with children 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PCT 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP 
BOARD (HSP) 
MONDAY, 8 OCTOBER 2007 

 

and young people in mind and after consultation with them. 
 
It was noted that some young people may wish to access services 
independently of their parents and that services should be made 
accessible for young people wishing to do this.  
 
The Leader expressed concern that an opportunity for greater 
partnership working was not being fully utilised within the proposals; it 
was noted that no reference was made to the inclusion of social workers 
or other partners within the Centres.  
 
The Board was advised that partnership working was an important part 
of the Strategy and that this would be developed further later on the 
process.  
 
The Chair thanked Vicky Hobart and Gerry Taylor for the presentations 
that were given.    
 
RESOLVED:   
 

i. To note the presentations on the Children and Young People’s 
aspects of the Haringey Health Report 2006 and Primary Care 
Strategy. 

 
ii. That a set of performance indicators should be drawn up to 

enable to Board to monitor the progress on a regular basis.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PCT 

OBCB26.
 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS AND LOCAL AREA AGREEMENT  

 The Board considered a report that set out the key performance 
indicators for Changing Lives during August 2007 and further information 
on the new LAA targets. A presentation was also given on the GSCE 
results and results at Key Stages 2 and 3 for 2007.  
 
It was noted that GCSE results achieved at A* to C grade in Haringey for 
2007 had improved by 5.3% against the previous year and were now on 
target to meet the national average for 2008.  
 
The Board noted that progress had been made in the results achieved at 
Key Stages 2 and 3 by Looked After Children and that attendance 
figures for both Primary and Secondary Schools were now moving 
towards the national average.  
 
The Board placed on record its congratulations to schools in the 
Borough on the results achieved during the last academic year.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To note the presentation. 
 

 
 

Page 4



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP 
BOARD (HSP) 
MONDAY, 8 OCTOBER 2007 

 

 
 

OBCB27.
 

CHANGING LIVES: MULTI AGENCY PLANS FOR CROSS CUTTING 
AREAS 

 

 The Board considered a report that included details of each of the Action 
Plans for the ten cross cutting areas identified in the Changing Lives 
Programme for 2007/08. These areas had been framed within multi-
agency plans as part of a planned transition to achieving a more cross-
cutting form of planning, with aligned and shared budgets.  
 
The Board was advised that the report included details of the NEET 
targets and set out the responsibility of each partner for achieving these. 
Included within the report was also a block on the pooled resources that 
would be used to raise standards at Key Stage 2.  
 
It was noted that an Action Plan for tackling bullying and street crime 
was being compiled and that this would be examined at the next Youth 
Summit. The Board was advised that eventually budget streams would 
be pooled and that a monitoring and evaluation process would be 
established. 
 
The Leader expressed concern that the Performance Indicators had not 
been fully discussed and expressed concern that NEET targets were not 
being met.  
 
The Board was advised that the comparisons drawn with other Boroughs 
in North London were not helpful as the Borough was very different in its 
make up and this accounted for many of the difficulties the Borough 
faced in meetings its NEET targets.  
 
The Chair noted that this was an area of concern and suggested that a 
report outlining the key actions being taken to address areas where 
performance was poor in relation to the NEET targets over the next six 
to nine months, should be considered by the Board at its next meeting.  
   
RESOLVED: 
 

i. To note the Action Plans.     
 

ii. That a report be brought to the Boards next meeting outlining the 
progress the key actions that were being taken to address the 
NEET targets over the next six to nine months.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LK 

OBCB28.
 

DISABILITY: THE IMPACT OF COUNCIL SERVICES ON CHILDREN 
WITH DISABILITIES 

 

 The Board received a presentation on the Cross Cutting Plans for 
Improving the Life Chances of Children with Disabilities. 
 
It was noted that a Panel had been convened, which was comprised of 
partners and parent representatives, to look at transitional arrangements 
for children with a Statement of Special Needs. This had been set up in 

 
 

Page 5



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP 
BOARD (HSP) 
MONDAY, 8 OCTOBER 2007 

 

order to improve the tracking and monitoring of children moving from the 
responsibility of one organisation to another and to ensure that their 
transition plans were satisfactory.  
 
As individuals often had several plans in place it was work was being 
carried out to identify how these could be streamlined. New performance 
indicators in relation to the time taken to produce plans were also in 
place and these specified that plans should be produced within twenty-
six weeks.  
 
A Family Support Panel had also been established to look at families 
requiring respite. The success of families applying for respite currently 
often depended on the case put forward by the family and the families 
articulacy in expressing this. There was a need to ensure that there was 
consistency and that families applying respite were considered on the 
merits of their case rather than the strength of argument put forward. 
Neighbouring Boroughs were also being consulted to address concerns 
expressed by parents over consistency of approach.  
 
Work was being carried out with the Child Development Centre to 
improve the integration of services and carry out forward planning for 
children with a diagnosis that meant long term care was required. Within 
this the long term needs of the family were also considered.  
 
A central database was also being created that would include details 
currently held on the Disability Register. Ways of engaging parents were 
being identified and one possibility included producing a card that would 
identify them as having a child on the Register. At present large 
documents setting out the child’s needs often had to be presented by 
parents to demonstrate entitlement when travelling or when seeking 
other concessions. 
 
It was noted that work was being done to provide better continuity for 
children throughout their lives and better support for parents.  
 
As part of providing better integrated services eight parents had been 
appointed as ‘critical friends’ to work as a group to provide feedback to 
the Council on the services provided.  
 
On behalf of the Board the Chair congratulated the Service on the 
progress that had been made in relation to the integration of services 
and the work that had been done with parents to improve outcomes for 
children.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To note the report.  
  
 
 
 

Page 6



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP 
BOARD (HSP) 
MONDAY, 8 OCTOBER 2007 

 

 
OBCB29.
 

THREE MINUTE UPDATE  

 The Board was provided with a brief update from each of the partners.  
 
Police 
 
The Board was advised that work continued to be done with schools to  
reduce crime perpetrated against and by young people. Two areas 
where particular emphasis was being placed were in reducing instances 
of mobile phone theft and knife crime.  
 
Successful work had also been done in identifying youngsters involved 
in car crime and reducing levels of car crime.  
 
Intelligence has been gathered regarding a planned shooting and 
preventative action had been taken to avoid this. This issue was ongoing 
and continued to be monitored and the necessary actions taken.  
 
PCT 
 
Discussed previously. 
 
HAVCO 
 
The Community Engagement Plan was underway and representatives 
would be elected in February 2008. 
 
The Chair noted that this would be the last meeting that Stanley Hui 
attended as he was leaving HAVCO in November and thanked him for 
his work on behalf of the Board and wished him well in his future career.  
 
Community Safety 
 
It was noted that a post had been created in the Victim Support Service 
to deal specifically with youth crime. In addition to this there had been 
discussion with partners regarding plans to provide each school in the 
Borough with a grant of £1500 to fund ‘Value Life’ activities, which would 
be determined by young people.  
 
Following discussion it was noted that the Secretary of State had 
indicated that £60M would be allocated for Youth Work in London and 
that the Mayor for London’s Office would be issuing guidance on the 
criteria for obtaining this.  
 
The Board discussed progress in relation to the Northumberland Park 
initiative and the importance of ensuring that partners worked together to 
make certain that this moved forward was reiterated. It was noted that a 
meeting had taken place between representatives of the partners 
leading on this and that difficulties over the exchange of personal 
information had been discussed.  

 
 

Page 7



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP 
BOARD (HSP) 
MONDAY, 8 OCTOBER 2007 

 

 
RESOLVED: 
 
To note that updates given.   
 
 
 
 
 

OBCB30.
 

DRAFT REVISED TERMS OF REFERENCE  

 The Board considered a revised terms of reference that had been 
amended to take account of recent developments in the Sustainable 
Community Strategy, the Local Area Agreement and the CYPSP 
arrangements for Governance, consultation and participation.  
 
The Board was advised that the diagram included within the Terms of 
Reference had been amended to reflect the Children’s Trust Board 
arrangements that came into force in 2008 and that requirements of this 
were now met. An Advisory Group, bringing together the Chairs of 
forums and local partnership boards with representatives of key 
agencies in the Children’s Trust arrangements had also been set up to 
take a strategic overview of progress.  
 
It was suggested that the membership of the TPCT should be amended 
to replace Director Strategy, Performance and Children's Services and   
North Central London Partnership for Health with Executive Director.  
 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That, subject to amendment to title of the PCT representative, the Terms 
of Reference be approved.  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PW/SS 

 

OBCB31.
 

ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

 No items were raised.  
 

 
 

OBCB32.
 

ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

 No items of urgent business were raised.  
 

 
 

OBCB33.
 

PROPOSED DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  

 The dates listed below for future meetings were noted: 
 
10 December 2007, 6.30pm 

 
 

Page 8



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP 
BOARD (HSP) 
MONDAY, 8 OCTOBER 2007 

 

5 February 2008, 6.30pm 
1 April 2008, 6.30pm 
6 May 2008, 6.30pm 
 
 
 

OBCB34.
 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  

 Board members were asked to submit any proposed agenda items to 
Patricia Walker, Policy and Programme Manager, by 27 November 
2007. 
 
patricia.walker@haringey.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 

OBCB35.
 

PROPOSED AGENDA ITEMS FOR THE NEXT MEETING  

 The dates list below were noted: 
 
10 December, 6.30pm 
5 February, 6.30pm 
1 April, 6.30pm 
6 May, 6.30pm  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Liz Santry 
 
Chair 
 
 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM    
  
 

MEETING 
 

Children and Young People's Strategic Partnership Board 
10 December 2007 

 
  

TITLE 
Primary Care Trust - children and young people’s health service’s 

commissioning:  priorities for service development 
 
 

 

SUMMARY 
 
The strategy sets out the framework within which children and young people’s health 
services will be commissioned in Haringey.  It focuses on the core components of a 
comprehensive children and young people’s health service, but excludes very specialist 
Tier 4 services, Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) and maternity 
services, which will be covered elsewhere.   
 
It poses a number of questions for consultation around the health priorities and 
commissioning of future health services for children and young people.   
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the CYPSP consider the possible priorities and consultation questions for future 
service development and commissioning in children’s health services  
 

LEAD OFFICER(S) 
 
Gerry Taylor – Director of Strategic Commissioning (Acting), Haringey Teaching primary 
Care Trust 
 
 

 

for children & young people 

Agenda Item 6Page 11



2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S  

HEALTH SERVICES 
 COMMISSIONING STRATEGY 

2007 - 2010 

 

DRAFT 

Page 12



3 

 

INDEX 

 
           PAGE 
1. INTRODUCTION       3 
2. VISION         3 
3. KEY DOCUMENTS       4 
4. WHY PRODUCE A STRATEGY     5 
5. CONTEXT         8 
6. CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE IN HARINGEY 10 
7. CURRENT PROVISION      18 
8. PARTNERSHIP CONTEXT      20 
9. SERVICE DELIVERY MODEL     21 
10. COMMUNITY HEALTH SERVICES  

– CHILDREN’S NETWORKS     25 
11. GPS AND PRIMARY CARE      31 
12. SPECIALIST CHILD HEALTH SERVICES   33 
13. HOSPITAL BASED URGENT CARE    36 
14. BARNET, ENFIELD AND HARINGEY CLINICAL  
 STRATEGY        38 
15.  CONSULTATION       39 
 
Appendix 
A.  The Haringey ECM:CfC Programme    40 
B.  The Haringey Children and Young People’s Plan  42 
C.  National Service Framework Standards   44 
D.  The Child Health Promotion Programme   46 

Page 13



4 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
The purpose of this strategy is to set out the framework within which children and 
young people’s health services will be commissioned in Haringey.  It has been 
informed by the Haringey Teaching Primary Care Trust (HTPCT) Commissioning 
Intentions for 2007/2008, the HTPCT Primary Care Strategy, the Barnet, Enfield, and 
Haringey Clinical Strategy, and the various work streams developed through the 
Children and Young People’s Strategic Partnership and the implementation of the 
Every Child Matters: Change for Children Programme, and the North Central London 
Children’s and Young People’s Partnership for Health. 
 
The strategy will focus on the core components of a comprehensive children and 
young people’s health service, but will exclude very specialist Tier 4 services, Child 
and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) and maternity services, which will be 
covered elsewhere.   
 
 

 

2. VISION 
 
 

‘We want every child and young person in Haringey to be  
happy, healthy and safe with a bright future’ 

   (Changing Lives – The Haringey children and young people’s plan) 
 
 

Year on year improvement in health outcomes is key to ensuring that children and 
young people in Haringey are able to enjoy a bright future.  Healthy lifestyles, 
delivering effective health services, addressing inequality and disadvantage, and 
education and social care, all play a vital role in promoting and protecting children and 
young people’s health.  
 
There is much that is very good about health services for children and young people in 
Haringey, including a high quality and dedicated workforce, but delivering year on 
year improvement in outcomes will only happen if we all seize the opportunity to 
respond positively to the challenges and opportunities facing the NHS. 
 
The key is to ensure that health services are developed and delivered in partnership 
with children, young people and their families, in a coherent way, with effective co-
ordination, and good multi agency working across different tiers of provision, and 
transition points in a child and young person’s life. 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 14



5 

3. KEY DOCUMENTS  
 
National 
• The Every Child Matters Green Paper (DfES, 2003) 
• The Children Act (HMSO, 2004) 
• The National Service Framework for Children, Young People and Maternity Services 

(DoH & DfES, 2004) 
• Tackling Health Inequalities: A Programme of Action (The Wanless Report DoH, 2003) 
• Choosing Health - The Public Health White Paper (DoH, 2005) 
• The Our Health, Our Care, Our Say: A New Direction for Community Services White 

Paper (2006) 
• Direction of Travel for Urgent Care: a discussion document (DoH, 2006) 
• The Youth Matters Green Paper (DfES, 2006) 
• Commissioning a Patient Led NHS (DoH, 2005) 
 
 
 
 
Local 
• Healthy Start Healthy Futures – A discussion document (NCL SHA, 2003) 
• HTPCT Draft Commissioning Intentions for 2007/2008 
• Barnet Enfield and Haringey Clinical Strategy (2007) 
• Developing world class primary care in Haringey: A consultation document (June 

2007) 
• Show me the way to stay home – A GOSH discussion document (2006) 
• The Haringey Local Delivery Plan  
• Changing Lives – The Haringey Children and Young People’s Plan (2006-9) 
• Growing Up in Haringey – The Annual Public Health Report (HTPCT, 2005) 
• Knowing our Children and Young People: Planning for their Futures – The joint needs 

assessment (2006) 
• The Life Expectancy Action Plan (2006) 
• The Infant Mortality Action Plan (2007) 
• The Teenage Pregnancy Action Plan (2006-2007) 
• Haringey Sexual Health Strategy and Action Plan (2005-2007) 
• The Draft Obesity Strategy (2007-2010) 
• The Asthma Care Pathway (2007) 
 
 

Page 15



6 

 

4. WHY PRODUCE A STRATEGY? 
 
4.1 Every Child Matters: Change for Children (ECM:CfC) is a national programme developed in response to 

the issues raised by the report into the death of Victoria Climbié (2003), which emphasized the need for 
effective and accessible multi agency services focused around the needs of children, young people and 
families. It is expected that the ECM:CfC programme will deliver improved outcomes for children and 
young people and that  PCTs, NHS Trusts, and other agencies working with children and young people, 
will work in partnership with Local Authorities to ensure successful implementation.   

 
4.2 In addition, to the changes being driven by the ECM:CfC programme, there are other considerations for 

health services.  The provision of health care for children and young people has to keep up with the 
rapid rate of change in clinical practice that has occurred as a result of medical and technological 
advances, and the changing pattern of ‘illness’ in children and young people: 

• There has been a substantial reduction in acute illnesses such as severe infections, which used to be a 
common reason for admission to hospital. 

• More care can be provided on an outpatient or ambulatory care basis, and where admission to hospital 
is necessary, the average length of stay has shortened. 

• New developments also mean that many conditions can now be treated more successfully than 
previously, and more children with chronic illness and with disability are surviving compared with 10-15 
years ago. This places new demands on health services with the need for ongoing support to children 
and their families in the community and at home. 

 
4.3 These changes need to be seen in the context of shortages in critical trained staff groups such as neonatal nurses, children’s 

community nurses, and possibly in future, paediatricians.  The European Working Time Directive and revised GP and Consultants 
contracts, also have implications for how services are organized.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



7 

 

 
4.4 In consultation events carried out locally, and nationally for policy documents such as 

the National Service Framework, the message from children, young people and 
families is: 

  
 “It is better for children to be at home than in hospital” 
  “families want rapid, local access to services when their child is ill” 
 “parents and children and young people accept the need to travel for very specialised care but want 

local access when they are concerned their child is ill” 

 
 Improving how we involve children, young people and families in the way services are 

developed and delivered is a priority for HTPCT. How do you think we can achieve this? 

 

 
 
4.5 There are several key policy documents, which also need to be considered: 
 
i Tackling health inequalities: a programme for action (Department of Health 2003), sets out how 

tackling health inequalities in childhood is the most cost-effective way of reducing health inequalities in 
childhood and later life.  Supporting parents and carers to give children and young people the best start 
in life, and breaking inter-generational cycles of poor health, is key to achieving national targets to 
reduce inequalities in life expectancy and mortality. 

 
ii The Public Health White Paper Choosing Health (Department of Health, 2005) focuses on choice and 

ensuring that services are available to all groups including those who have found it difficult to access 
services in the past.  Specific priorities for action include:  

 
• Reducing the number of people who smoke 
• Reducing obesity and improving diet and nutrition 
• Increasing exercise 
• Encouraging and supporting sensible drinking 
• Improving sexual health 
• Improving mental health 
 
iii The National Service Framework for Children, Young People and Maternity Services (Department of 

Health, 2004), is a ten year, multi agency programme intended to stimulate long term and sustained 
improvement in children’s health.  It in effect defines the child health component of the Every Child 
Matters: Change for Children (ECM:CfC) Programme, whilst at the same time establishing standards for 
children’s health services across all tiers from universal to specialist services. 

 
 
 
 
iv Supporting People with Long Term Conditions: An NHS and social model to support local innovation 

and integration; (Department of Health 2005), looks at the management of long term conditions, and 
identifies 3 levels of intervention: supported self care; disease specific management and finally case 
management.   

Page 17



8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
v The White Paper ‘Our health, our 

care, our say: a new direction for community services (Department of Health, 2006), which looks at 
community health and social care services for all age groups, has a number of key themes:  
• Enabling health, independence and well being 
• Better access to General Practice and community services 
• The provision of care closer to home – including the development of community hospitals 
• The development of integrated services around the individual – including those who have 

difficulty accessing care 
• Support for people with long term needs 
• Ensuring that the needs and wishes of patients are reflected in the way services are developed. 

Page 18



9 

 
vi Direction of Travel for Urgent Care: a discussion document (Department of Health, October 2006), is 

currently out for consultation, and examines how urgent and emergency services might be developed in 

future.  The document considers the full range of responses - from telephone advice and reassurance to 

self care, through to face to face consultation with a clinician or deployment of a crisis team or 

admission to hospital in an emergency requiring specialised facilities – with the emphasis, where 

feasible, on care close to home. 

 
vii The acutely or critically sick or injured child in the district general hospital: A team response 

(Department of Health, 2006).  The report examines the competencies required in the identification and 
care of the critically sick child and focuses on team working, networks and pathways from presentation 
to paediatric intensive care.  Emphasis is placed on the importance of training and maintaining the 
necessary skills across all tiers of provision. 

 
 
 

5.  CONTEXT 
 

5.1 In Haringey there is a well established ECM:CfC programme led by the Children and 
Young People’s Partnership Board (CYPSPB) and progress is described in more detail 
in Appendix A.   The twenty priorities of Changing Lives – the Haringey children and 
young people’s plan are listed in Appendix B.  Developing joint commissioning 
arrangements will be a priority in 2007/2008. 

 
5.2 The ECM:CfC programme is being implemented in the context of a NHS reform programme, which aims 

to give patients greater choice and more say in how services are delivered, through the development of 
more effective commissioning arrangements, with an emphasis on plurality of provision from a range of 
providers, and the need to consider decommissioning services where quality, outcomes and value for 
money cannot be evidenced.  With the exception of very specialist services responsibility for the 
commissioning of health services has passed to primary care and in Haringey, the HTPCTs four Practice 
Based Commissioning (PBC) collaboratives are now well established and beginning to deliver changes to 
care pathways and reduced reliance on hospital based outpatient services.   

 
5.3 Whilst the initial focus has been on provision for adult and older people, the rationale for change 

applies equally to services for children and young people.  As PBC becomes more established it is 
expected that the scale and impact of changes to the way services are delivered will increase, and close 
ties will need to be developed between the PBC collaboratives and the Haringey ECM:CfC programme to 
ensure that the commissioning of health services for children and young people takes place in the 
context of the development of Children’s Trust arrangements and the joint priorities agreed in the 
integrated Children and Young People’s Plan (Appendix B). 

 

5.4 The financial context of the TPCT is outlined in the Draft Commissioning Intentions.  
The TPCT’s underlying financial position has improved over the past year such that we 
expect to be entering 2007/8 in a healthy financial position.  However, there continue 
to be a number of pressures on the TPCT’s finances and choices about investment and 
disinvestment will need to be made to ensure that the TPCT maintains financial 
balance on an ongoing basis.  The TPCT will continue to focus on developing 
community and primary care led care pathways that aim to reduce reliance on 

Page 19



10 

secondary care services and support the release of resources into interventions 
focused on prevention and early intervention. 

 
5.5 In commissioning health services for children and young people the Haringey TPCT will be looking to: 
 
i Reduce Inequalities and ensure that the chances of good health and good outcomes are the same for 

all Haringey children irrespective of gender, ethnicity or socio-economic circumstances.  
 
ii Commission needs based services, with priority given to improving health outcomes in areas which 

have a particular impact in Haringey, either in terms of numbers affected, severity of disease or 
disability and/or those diseases or disabilities that have higher prevalence in Haringey compared with 
national and London averages.  

 
iii  Commission services based on evidence of effectiveness, including cost effectiveness. This will include 

use of the National Service Framework for Children, Young People and Maternity Services (NSF), NICE 
guidance, and best available national evidence, and where appropriate services, which have been 
demonstrated not to work, will be decommissioned.   

 
iv Focus on prevention and early identification and intervention and ensuring that children and young 

people in Haringey have the best start in life.  The TPCT is working closely with the London Borough of 
Haringey and other partners to refocus provision on community based multi-agency services that are 
focused on prevention, and early identification and intervention.   

 
v  Ensure national targets and local priorities are delivered  
 
vi Commission expected outcomes from services that are developed in response to patient feedback.  

Specifications for the commissioning of children’s health services will increasingly detail expected 
outcomes and measures of quality of care.  All providers will be expected to demonstrate that they 
actively seek patient feedback about the services they provide and how they respond to this feedback.  

Page 20



11 

 

6. CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE IN HARINGEY 

 
A growing population of children and young people 
Haringey has over 224,000 people living in 11.5 square miles.  Overall the Haringey 
population is younger than the national average and approximately a quarter of the 
population, or 53,258 children and young people, are aged under 20, 17,175 (7.7%) 
are aged under 5, and 3,752 (1.7%) are aged under 1. The relatively young nature of 
Haringey’s population compared to England and Wales is demonstrated in Figure 1. 
 

Figure 1 Population pyramid for Haringey under 25’s (Census 2001) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The number of young children in Haringey is growing (See Figure 2), and over the 
next five years the GLA estimates that there will be an extra 2,300 under 10’s living in 
Haringey.  However it is expected that the number of children and young people in 
the 10-19 age groups will decrease.   

 

Figure 2: Population change amongst the under 20’s 2007 - 2011 

 2007 2011 
Extra 

Children % increase 

00-01 3,752 3,893 141 3.80 

01-04 13,423 13,973 550 4.10 

05-09 12,399 14,090 1691 13.64 

10-14 11,686 11,067 -619 -5.30 

15-19 11,999 11,118 -881 -7.34 

Under 20 53,259 54,141 882 1.66 

 
 
 
 

Page 21



12 

Almost three-quarters of Haringey’s children and young people come from ethnic 
minority communities.  They speak 190 languages between them.  The age profile of 
different ethnic groups will change over the medium term, and the number of children 
with mixed ethnic heritage is expected to increase. 
 

Children and young people vulnerable to poor health 
Substantial numbers of children and young people in Haringey live in families or 
households that are vulnerable to poor health.  As measured by the Income 
Deprivation Affecting Children Index (Indices of Multiple Deprivation, 2004), there are 
more children in the East of the borough experiencing poor socio-economic 
circumstances than in the West.  The Index suggests that in some areas of the East, 
90% of children are affected by income deprivation, while in the West the majority of 
areas have less than 5% of children living in poverty.   
 

Figure 3 Percentage of Children Experiencing Income Deprivation by ward 

 
Source: Indices of Multiple Deprivation, 2004 
 

Whilst homeless families are no longer accommodated in Bed and Breakfast 
accommodation, substantial numbers of families with children remain in temporary 
accommodation.  High numbers of refugees and asylum seekers have been recorded, 
including children with and without carers.  In June 2005, Haringey Council were 
supporting 445 children aged under 18 seeking asylum as part of a family and a 
further 357 unaccompanied asylum-seeking children. Looked after children are 
another group with additional health needs and in July 2005 there were 506 being 
looked after by Haringey Council. 
 

Page 22



13 

 
Children and young people with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities 
There are 1,270 children and young people in Haringey with statements of Special 
Educational Needs. This represents 2.9% of the school population and is in line with 
the England and London average.  As a result of Haringey’s very clear inclusion policy, 
61.3% attend mainstream schools which is above the London average and most of 
our statistical neighbours.  However national figures indicate that as many as 20% of 
children and young people are registered as having Special Educational Needs, but 
without a statement. 
 
There were 521 children and young people with disabilities on the voluntary register 
with Haringey Council as of August 2005.  A disproportionately high number of 
children and young people on the register were of primary school age and from black 
ethnic groups.  
 
Waiting times for access to speech and language therapy and occupational therapy for 
this group of children remain very long.  The wait for speech and language therapy for 
school aged children in mainstream schools is projected to increase as caseloads are 
full and there is minimal capacity to take new children onto the caseload from the 
waiting list. 
 
Waiting times in mainstream schools - January 2007 
SLT  Number of children waiting    200 
  Average wait from referral to treatment  36 weeks 
  (Projected to increase to 60 weeks by July 2007) 
 
OT  Number of children waiting    210 

Average wait from referral to treatment  78 weeks 
 
This group of children are high users of health, education and social services and 
would benefit from the further development of ‘one stop shop’ multi-
agency/integrated provision.   
 
Young carers 
Many young carers take on the kind of responsibility that an adult assumes in looking 
after an ill or disabled member of their family. This often limits their personal, social 
and educational opportunities. Census data suggest that 723 children and young 
people in Haringey are providing care to members of their family.  
 

Infant mortality and life expectancy 
Children in Haringey experience inequalities in infant mortality and life expectancy.  
For example a girl growing up in an affluent ward can expect to live 5 years longer 
than a girl growing up in a deprived Haringey ward.  For boys the difference is 8 
years.  The rate of infant deaths remains high in Haringey at 7.7 deaths per 1000 live 
births, compared to 5.0 per 1000 for England as a whole.  There were 4,047 live 
births in 2005, of which 323 children (8.4%) had a low birth weight and 36 (0.9%) 
had a very low birth rate.  The proportion of children with a low birth weight has 
remained fairly constant for a number of years although there has been a significant 

Page 23



14 

reduction in children born with a very low birth weight.  Low birth weight is strongly 
associated with death in infancy and adverse health outcomes in later life. 
 
Helping women to quit smoking before or during pregnancy, and early booking for 
maternity care are key ways to reduce poor infant health and mortality.  Many 
screening tests and assessments should be carried out before the 16th week, and 
anecdotal evidence from the North Middlesex University Hospital NHS Trust suggests 
that the numbers of women booking late for maternity care, or who are unbooked on 
admission is a cause for concern.  A study of women at the Whittington Hospital NHS 
Trust in 2003, found that only 51% of women had booked for antenatal care before 
16 weeks.  Breastfeeding also improves infant health outcomes, and has a range of 
longer-term health benefits to the mother and child. 
 
Childhood immunisations 
As with many other London boroughs that use the Child Health Surveillance System 
(CHIA), the TPCT has been unable to provide up to date immunisation rates to the 
Health Protection Agency due to problems with the CHIA system. This is an ongoing 
problem, which remains outside of the control of the TPCT due to the nature of the 
centralised commissioning of IT systems in the NHS. The latest immunisation figures 
are presented in the 2005 Annual Public Health Report and these will be updated as 
soon as the information is available. (See Figure 4) 
 
 

Figure4: Immunisation coverage  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

There is reason to believe that the immunisation rates in Haringey have fallen even 
further (Haringey and London immunisation rates are lower than national rates and 
targets), as a similarly affected neighbouring PCT has conducted an audit to estimate 
uptake rates and these have fallen significantly. 
 
Children and young people with long term conditions 
Over 2,230 (4.5%) dependent children and young people in Haringey aged under 18 
were reported to have a limiting long-term illness in the last Census (2001). Data is 
not currently available on the prevalence of particular conditions amongst children in 
Haringey, but should become available as GPs develop disease registers in their 
practices.  Children with long term conditions and their carers may require tailored 
support to enable them to treat or manage their condition thereby avoiding 

Page 24



15 

deterioration in their health and well-being and the need for admission to hospital. 
Support is also required to meet their emotional, developmental and educational 
needs.  Primary care services play a very important role in helping children and 
families to manage conditions such as asthma, diabetes, epilepsy, sickle cell and 
thalasaemia, which with infections and accident and injuries, were the cause of a 
significant number of admissions/emergency admissions to hospital amongst under 
18s in Haringey. 
 

Attendance at Accident and Emergency departments and acute admissions 
Between April 2003 and March 2006 there were 13,826 admissions to hospital 
amongst children under 20 years of age.  Equal proportions were for Elective and 
emergency episodes of care.  Much of this treatment was provided at the North 
Middlesex University Hospital (NMUH) and the Whittington Hospital NHS Trusts. 
 
In 05/06 there were 16,140 attendances by children and young people aged under 19 
at NMUH and 6,236 at the Whittington.   
 
Further work needs to be done to improve the data available on children and young 
people aged 0-19 use of health services – numbers, trends, cause, outcome and so 
on.  However we know that for all age groups there is concern about the relatively 
high rates of attendance at A&E Departments, and numbers of emergency admissions, 
compared with other boroughs.  In addition there have been a number of breaches of 
the A&E waiting time target at NMUH, where children have either been kept waiting to 
see a non paediatric specialist in the main A&E department, or have been kept in the 
paediatric A&E department for assessment whilst a diagnosis is made, rather than 
make an unnecessary admission.  Also there is concern about the greater than 
expected length of stay in hospital for some paediatric cases at the NMUH and the 
Whittington, and further work is necessary to understand cause and possible 
resolution.   
 

Healthy lifestyles 
The behaviours and lifestyles of children, young people and families will impact on 
their health throughout their lives.  
 
Smoking is a major contributor to poor health outcomes, and differences in smoking 
prevalence between different socio-economic and ethnic groups is a major 
determinant of health inequalities.  Worryingly there has been an increase in the 
proportion of women who smoke in recent years, and it is estimated that over 5,000 
young people smoke in Haringey.  The smoking cessation service provides cost-
effective support to help people quit smoking, and is available to young people 
although uptake is currently poor.  It is hoped that the ban on smoking in public 
places will help young people not to start smoking, and increase their incentive to 
quit. 
 

As part of a joint national campaign between the Department of Health and the 
Department of Education, every borough across the country is required to annually 
collect height and weight data of all children in maintained schools.  School nurses 
across Haringey visited every primary school during the 2006 summer term to collect 

Page 25



16 

information from all children in Year R (4-5 year olds) and Year 6 (10-11 year olds). In 
2006 average figures across Haringey indicate 15 % of children were obese and a 
further 15% overweight.  The rates of obesity and therefore risk to health were 
greater in the east of the borough, and were noticeably different between children 
from different ethnic groups. 

 

Figure 5 Percentage of children in Reception and Year 6 who are overweight or obese 
in 2006 
  Year R   Year 6  
 Girls Boys  Girls Boys Total 
Overweight 13% 12% 13% 14% 16% 15% 
Obese 9% 13% 11% 20% 23% 22% 
Total 22% 25% 24% 35% 39% 37% 

 

 

H arring ay

N orthu m b erlan d P ark

To ttenh am  Ha le
B ruce G ro ve

S even S isters

Alexandra

B ou nd s G reen

Crou ch  En d

F ortis G reen

H igh gate

H ornseyM usw ell H ill

N oe l Park

St An n's

S tro ud  G reen

To tten ham  G reen

W est G reen

W h ite  Hart L an e

W oo ds ide

P ercentage O bese

15.6  to  20 .8   (3)
11.3  to  15 .6   (3)

9.8  to  11 .3   (5)
7.2  to  9 .8   (4)
4.3  to  7 .2   (4)

Percentage o f obese reception  c lass children   by w ard  - June O 6

 
 

Nearly 14,000 5-15 year olds are not meeting the recommended guidelines for 
physical activity.  Care pathways for children and young people whose weight puts 
them at risk are being developed, and interventions must be put in place to help all 
children and young people maintain a healthy weight through a balanced diet and 
physically active life. 
 
Oral health 
At September 2005, 63% of under-18s in Haringey were registered with a dentist 
which compares well with national figures (62%) and is much better than London as a 
whole (52.7%). One third of 5 year olds in Haringey had experienced dental decay as 
of 2003, fewer than the UK average of nearly 40%. However, inequalities in oral 
health are evident when comparing different schools, with the average level of tooth 
decay being nearly four times higher in some schools than the Haringey average. 
 
Sexual health 

Page 26



17 

Surveys suggest that young people are becoming sexually active at an earlier age.  
Young people who are becoming sexually active may be particularly vulnerable to 
sexual ill health, including unwanted pregnancy or abortion, and exposure to sexually 
transmitted infections (STIs) and HIV.  Nearly one in ten young people tested through 
the local screening programme have chlamydia infection and there are targets to 
increase the number of young people accepting testing and treatment through this 
programme.  In 2005 there were 1,134 attendances at the sexual health service at St 
Ann’s ..Improving the sexual health of young people is a key national and local 
priority.   
 
Teenage pregnancy 
Pregnancy in adolescence increases the risk of poor health and poor social outcomes 
for both mother and baby. In Haringey the rate of teenage conceptions is above the 
national average and steadily increased during the 1990s.  However recent data 
suggests that the teenage pregnancy rate in Haringey is starting to fall. In 2005 the 
rate was 62.5 per 1,000 compared to a rate of 68.6 in 2004. However the rates 
remain above those for both England (46.9) and London (59.7) The conception rate 
for under 16s has remained fairly static at 14.5 per 1000 in 2002 compared to 7.9 for 
England and Wales. 
 
Mental health 
Ten percent of children between the ages 5 -15 have diagnosable mental health 
problems (Office for National Statistics).  In Haringey this would account for nearly 
4,500 children and is borne out by the increasing demand for Child and Adolescent 
Mental Health Services. 
 
Mortality 
Death rates for children have been relatively high in recent years, 42 in 2005, 31 of 
whom were infants, with 11 deaths recorded between the ages 1-14, most of whom 
were boys. (See Figure 6)   

 

Figure 6: Cause of death amongst Under 20’s (2005) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mental & 

behavioural (1)
Nervous 

system (1)

Blood disorder (1)

Infectious and 

parisitic (2)

External causes 

(3)

Cancer (3)

Under 1 year (21)

Page 27



18 

 

Our health improvement priorities are to: 

 
Reduce health inequalities, including the gap in life expectancy between Haringey and England, and 
between deprived and affluent parts of the borough.  To be monitored through changes in the all cause 
mortality rate. 
 
Reduce infant mortality: 
• Increase the number of new mothers known to have initiated breastfeeding.  LDP Target is 

77.05%. 
• Reduce the number of women known to have been smokers at time of delivery.  LDP Target is 

6.02%. 
• Increase the number of women booking early for antenatal care, preferably at 8-10 weeks. 
• Reduce the number of women booking late, or not booking at all for antenatal care. 
 
Increase the uptake of childhood immunisations – National target: 95% uptake 
 
Reduce childhood obesity.  National target is to halt the increase in obesity amongst children under 11 
years old by 2010. 
 
Promote healthier lifestyles to children, young people and parents including: 
• Increase the % of CYP eating at least five portions of fruit and  vegetables per day 
• Increase the % of CYP achieving the minimum level of physical activity of one hour per day 
• Reduce the number of people that smoke, and protect children from the harmful effects of 

environmental tobacco smoke 
• Reduce the incidence of alcohol and substance misuse 
 
Reduce teenage conception rates and increase the number of young people aged 15 – 24 accepting 
chlamydia screening at least once per year, as part of a broader aim to improve sexual health 
 
Improve mental health, through initiatives to promote mental health and better access to services 
 
Improve services for vulnerable children and young people – including children and young people with 
disabilities 
 
Improve support for young carers 
 

Do you agree with our priorities? 
 

 

Page 28



19 

 

7. CURRENT PROVISION 
 
Children and young people are frequent users of all types of healthcare compared to 
adults, and in the NSF it is estimated that whilst ‘80% of all episodes of illness are 
managed by parents without reference to the professional health care system … in a 
typical year, a pre school child will see a general practitioner about six times, while a 
child of school age will go two or three times; up to half of infants aged under twelve 
month and one quarter of older children will attend an accident and emergency 
department.  In any year, one in eleven children will be referred to a hospital 
outpatients clinic, and one in ten to fifteen will be admitted to hospital.’   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The four tiers of health care provision are typically represented by a triangle, such as 

that shown above, and in Haringey: 
• There are 60 GP practices 
• Community children’s health services are provided by Haringey TPCT.  There 

are four teams: early years (health visitors and therapists); schools (school 
nurses and therapists); specialist child health services (consultant 
paediatricians, therapists, and health visitor); and the safeguarding team which 
provides advice, supervision, training and support for all HTPCT staff and 
independent practitioners on child protection, looked after children, 
homelessness and domestic violence issues. 

• Most midwifery services are provided by NMUH and the Whittington Hosptial 
 

• Paediatric provision at the North Middlesex University Hospital (NMUH) is 
provided by the Great Ormond Street Hospital for Children (GOSH) at NMUH as 
part of the partnership described in section 8.3 

• Most acute/secondary care services for children are provided by NMUH, and the 
Whittington Hospital.  Provision at both includes: Walk In Centre; A&E 

Primary care 
GP/HV/SN/PN 
Pharmacist 
NHS Direct 
Walk In Centre 

Intermediate/Ambulatory Care 
Assessment and Treatment Services 
Therapy services 
Children’s Community Nursing service  

Specialist care (2°) 
Paediatric A&E 
& inpatient admission  

Very specialist care (3°) 

Very specialist services including  
PICU  

1 

2 

3 

4 

Page 29



20 

Department; in patient and out patient general paediatric provision; and non 
paediatric specialities, such as orthopaedics, that may be accessed by children. 

• NMUH, has a separate paediatric A&E Department, which is open from 7.30am 
to 8.00pm, although assessments stop at 6.00pm.  The Whittington Hospital 
has a separate area for children in the main A&E Department. 

• There is a Haringey Children’s Community Nursing and Complex Care Team, 
based at NMUH, who provide community nursing services to children and 
young people across Haringey.  This includes anything from wound care or 
removal of sutures to the case management of children and young people with 
long term conditions.  Specialist Nurses in Asthma, Diabetes, and Sickle Cell 
disease are attached to the team.  There is a well established Children’s 
Community Nursing Network across North London.   

• Acute/secondary care services for Haringey children and young people is also 
provided by other providers, sometimes as part of managed network type 
agreements.  For example out patient ENT cases are seen at NMUH and the 
Whittington, but day/inpatient care is provided by the Chase Farm Hospital and 
the Royal Free Hospital respectively. 

• Great Ormond Street Hospital for Children NHS Trust is the main provider of 
very specialist services 

• Palliative care services are provided by the Lifeforce Team, a multi-disciplinary 
team, which covers Camden, Islington and Haringey, and can draw on 
specialist advice from Great Ormond Street Hospital for Children. 

• The TPCT commissions support for young carers from the National Children’s 
Home 

 
As noted in section 6, we need to know more about how Haringey children and young 
people use our health services and improving our information base will be a priority 
for 2007/2008. 

 
 

Page 30



21 

 

8. PARTNERSHIP CONTEXT 
 
8.1 The TPCT is committed to working with partners to deliver services that are well 

integrated both horizontally, that is with the local authority children’s services building 
on the vision set out in the ECM:CfC programme and vertically – i.e. across primary, 
community, secondary and tertiary children’s health services through the North 
Central Sector Children’s Partnership for Health.   

 
8.2 The Every Child Matters: Change for Children Programme 

 The TPCT will continue to work with Haringey Council to develop integrated 
commissioning and provider models for the benefit of children, young people and 
families in Haringey, through the ECM:CfC programme described in Appendix A.  The 
twenty priorities of Changing Lives – the Haringey children and young people’s plan 
are listed in Appendix B. 

 
8.3 The Children and Young People’s Partnership for Health (CYPPH) 

 Managed Clinical Networks (MCN) are defined as "Linked groups of health 
professionals from primary, secondary and tertiary care, working in a co-ordinated 
manner, unconstrained by existing professional and Trust/Health Authority 
boundaries, to ensure equitable provision of high quality and clinically effective 
services."  (NHS Neonatal Service Website).  The National Service Framework cites 
Managed Clinical Networks as being key to driving up the quality of care in the NHS, 
and the CYPPH (GOSH Partnership) is a developing example of such network, which 
has been established between Great Ormond Street Hospital for Children, the North 
Middlesex University Hospital, Haringey Teaching Primary Care Trust, and the 
Whittington Hospital, to address the sustainability of children's health services in North 
Central London, and improve their quality through integration and standardisation.   

 
Through the Partnership all specialist paediatric staff at the North Middlesex Hospital, and the TPCT’s 
paediatric medical staff, are employed by Great Ormond Street.  Following extensive consultation with 
staff and partners, the TPCT and Great Ormond Street Hospital for Children (GOSH) Board’s have given 
in principle approval to the extension of the partnership with GOSH to include all children’s services 
currently employed by Haringey TPCT.  It is anticipated that the transfer of staff will take place from 
April 2008, with a shadow period commencing October 2007.  It should be emphasised that the TPCT is 
committed to continued close joint working with Haringey Council services and the further development 
of aligned and integrated models of service based in the community, with the partnership with GOSH 
ensuring that developments are underpinned by strong NHS clinical, professional and organisational 
support structures.  
 

For 2007/2008, the CYPPH (GOSH Partnership) have agreed to prioritise work on care pathways for 
children with long term conditions, including complex care needs, and Accident and Emergency (A&E) 
provision.  This will support the need to refocus provision from inpatient and acute hospital based care, 
to care closer to home in the community.   

 
 

Page 31



22 

9. SERVICE DELIVERY MODEL 
 
9.1 The service delivery model for children and young people’s health services is evolving 

in response to the drivers for change described earlier in this document, requiring 
innovation and flexibility, from both the providers and the commissioners of services.  
It is expected that all children and young people’s health services will be developed 
and delivered, in accordance with the standards defined by the National Service 
Framework for Children, Young People and Maternity Services, as part of the ECM:CfC 
programme described above.  Standards One to Five are applicable to all children (and 
cover health promotion, supporting parents, child-focussed services, growing-up and 
safeguarding children) and thereafter there are specific standards for the ill child, the 
child in hospital, disabled children, children with mental health problems and maternity 
services (See Appendix C).  . 

 
9.2 The diagram on p22, has been adapted from diagrams included in the GOSH discussion document 

Show me the way to stay home, and illustrates the proposed service delivery model.   Successful 
implementation is dependant on the development of community and primary care led pathways that 
aim to reduce reliance on secondary care services and support the release of resources into 
interventions focused on prevention and early identification and intervention.  
• Prevention and early identification and intervention is fundamental to the successful 

implementation of the ECM: CfC Programme, and the TPCT expects all providers to work with 
the Haringey Council to develop integrated services around the needs of the child, young 
person and family. To include implementation of the Common Assessment Framework and 
work on joint protocols and pathways into services(Appendix A). 

• A care pathway for asthma, has been developed through the CYPPH (GOSH PARTNERSHIP), 
and the TPCT expects to see providers collaborate on the development and implementation of 
similar pathways for other conditions including diabetes, sickle cell, and epilepsy, to make the 
best use of the improved access to primary care planned in the TPCT’s primary care strategy. 

 
9.2 Other key aims of the model are to: 

• Reduce inequalities in health, through the development of services focused on 
prevention and early identification and intervention, and delivery of the Child 
Health Promotion Programme, with particular emphasis given to improving 
outcomes for vulnerable groups of children.   

Page 32



23 

SPECIALIST CHILD HEALTH CENTRE 

• Neuro-developmental assessments 
• Safeguarding children responsibilities 
• Looked After Children 
• Population Health 

 
 
 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 
 

CHILD HEALTH 

PROMOTION 
PROGRAMME 

(Inc Ante Natal 
Care) 

 
MINOR AILMENTS 

SERIOUS ACUTE 
ILLNESS 

 

LONG TERM 

CONDITIONS 

CHILD AND 

ADOLESCENT 

MENTAL 
HEALTH 
SERVICES 

 

NEW 

PRESENTATIONS 

 
 
 
 

HOSPITAL 

 

OUT-
PATIENT 
CARE 

IN-PATIENT CARE – PLANNED AND UNPLANNED 

Children with 

Additional 
Needs  

Integrated 
Team 

Long Term 

Conditions – One 

Stop Shop 

CCN & 
Complex 

Care Team 

CAMHS 
User forum  

Out patients 

HOSPITAL 

URGENT CARE 

GP 

UNIVERSAL AND TARGETED 

COMMUNITY CHILD HEALTH 

SERVICES  

SELF 
REFERRAL 

Rapid 

Response 

Outpatients 
Department 

Day 

Assessment 

Unit 

Paediatric 

A&E 
 

Minor Injuries Unit 

Page 33



24 

 
• Where possible, to provide services in or close to home, or in other locations 

convenient to the child, young person and family.  To include improved access 
to primary care, delivery of the health component of the core offer to children’s 
centers and extended schools, and the extension of specialist community child 
health services to include ‘one stop shop’ provision for long term conditions, 
with possibly an adjacent minor injuries unit.   

• Ensure that the need for urgent specialist care is identified promptly in the 
community by appropriately trained and skilled staff, with rapid transfer to an 
acute hospital with a range of services available to assess and diagnose the 
child or young person’s condition.  Provision to include a day assessment unit 
and consultant led rapid response outpatients clinics. 

• Develop multi-agency/integrated provision for children with additional needs – 
to include children with disabilities  

 
The different elements of the proposed model are described in subsequent sections. 
 
9.2  For consideration by all providers 

In addition to Standards for Better Health, there are a number of issues that the TPCT 
expects all providers to fully address: 
 

i A focus on children, young peoples and families – services to ensure that children, 
young people and families are actively involved in their treatment and care, there is 
more opportunity for them to be involved in the way services are designed and 
developed.   

 
ii Equitable provision – services to have policies and procedures in place to ensure that 

service provision is equitable, regardless of gender, ethnicity or socio-economic 
circumstance.  These should be audited regularly for effectiveness and updated 
accordingly. 

 
iii Timely access – services to meet access targets, including the NHS Improvement Plan 

(June 2004) commitment that ‘By 2008 no one will wait longer than 18 weeks from GP 
referral to hospital treatment’. 

 
iv Safeguarding children  - providers to ensure that services meet the requirements for 

effective child protection, and that all staff working with children and young people 
understand their roles and responsibilities regarding safeguarding and promoting the 
welfare of children and young people, receive regular training, and are updated, 
supported and supervised appropriately. 

 
v Clinical Governance and a safe culture – services should have clinical governance 

systems in place which focus on children and young people and include arrangements 
for: safeguarding (see above); the use of evidence based practice developed in 
accordance with the NSF, NICE guidelines and so on; clinical audit; effective 
prescribing and referrals, and continuing professional development. 
 

Page 34



25 

vi Age appropriate provision – services should be age appropriate, reflecting the fact that children and 
young people have different needs to adults, and that requirements change as children and young 
people grow.  Wherever possible children and young people should be treated in child and/or 
adolescent friendly facilities away from adult provision.  Appointment systems should be designed to 
minimise disruption and the amount of time children and young people will be away from school.   

 
vii Transition between services – services to have procedures and protocols in place to 

ensure that the transition between services, for example early years to schools or 
young people’s to adult services, is as seamless as possible.  This requires an agreed 
procedure which ensures forward planning, close co-operation between staff of both 
services, shared information and the involvement of the child or young person, and 
their parent or carer if appropriate. 

 
viii Partnership working – where appropriate, services to engage in the ECM:CfC and 

CYPPH (GOSH) partnerships, and to have protocols and procedures in place to ensure 
that organisational boundaries do not become a barrier to ensuring that children, 
young people and families receive the best possible health care.  These should be 
audited regularly for effectiveness and updated accordingly. 

 
ix A skilled and dedicated workforce – all staff treating or caring for children and young 

people should have appropriate training, which is updated regularly, with opportunity 
to refresh or learn new skills.  Training should cover both the technical and clinical 
skills, and the personal and communication skills necessary to treat children and 
young people properly, as well as opportunity for leadership development.  
Recruitment and retention policies should be in place. 

 
x Confidentiality and information sharing – all staff to follow the multi agency protocols 

that have been developed, to ensure that children and young people’s confidentiality 
and rights are respected, but that where necessary information is appropriately 
disclosed to other professionals/agencies without consent.   

 

 
Are there other priority issues for all services that should be highlighted? 
 

 

Page 35



26 

 

10. COMMUNITY HEALTH SERVICES - CHILDREN’S NETWORKS 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
10.1  Health Improvement 

Through the Haringey Strategic Partnership and the ECM:CfC programme, the TPCT is 
working with Haringey Council and other partners to reduce inequalities and improve 
the health of children and young people in Haringey.   
 
The Child Health Promotion Programme (CHPP) described in Standard 1 of the National Service 
Framework (See Appendix C), provides a framework to ensure the promotion of health and well being 
of individual babies, children, young people and families.  The CHPP is a multi agency programme for 
children age 0-19, to be delivered as part of the ECM:CfC programme, which replaces the medical 
model of screening for disorders in childhood, in favour of more emphasis on health promotion, primary 
prevention, and active early intervention targeted at those children who are most vulnerable and most 
at risk.  Health Visitors in Haringey have led the work to implement the programme in Haringey, and 
the TPCT is now looking to providers to extend the programme to all children and young people under 
19.   

 
It is envisaged that the CHHP will be implemented in the context of a broader 
programme to improve the health of the community through awareness raising, health 
promotion and education, and improved access to service provision.  There are 
strategies, work programmes and/or plans attached to each of the health 
improvement priorities identified in section 6, for example the infant mortality action 
plan, the teenage pregnancy action plan and the obesity strategy, which complement 
the priorities in Changing Lives – The Haringey children and young people’s plan, and 
the TPCT expects all providers to make the appropriate and agreed contribution, to 
ensure that outcomes are improved for children, young people in Haringey. 

CHILD HEALTH 

PROMOTION 
PROGRAMME 

(Inc Ante Natal 
Care) 

UNIVERSAL AND TARGETED 

COMMUNITY CHILD HEALTH 

SERVICES  

Delivering integrated services  

in three children’s networks. 

‘The team around the child 

North 

South West  

Page 36



27 

 
Priorities include: 
• To develop a multi-agency plan to encourage women to book early for pregnancy, preferably at 

8-10 weeks of pregnancy to give them time to plan their pregnancy effectively and consider 
early screening options. 

• Implementation of NICE guidance on postnatal care, to include the development of UNICEF 
baby-friendly standards in maternity and postnatal services. 

• Multi-agency action to increase the uptake of childhood immunisations  
• Development and implementation of infant feeding guidelines, led by the Infant Feeding Co-

coordinator. 
• Expand monitoring systems to include breastfeeding maintenance and smoking status 

throughout pregnancy and amongst households with children. 
• Development of an obesity reduction strategy, and integrated care pathways for children and 

adults.  To include family based interventions for children who are overweight/obese and their 
parents 

• Reduce the number of people that smoke, and protect children from the harmful effects of 
environmental tobacco smoke 

• Reduce teenage conception rates and increase the number of young people aged 15 – 24 
accepting chlamydia screening at least once per year, as part of a broader aim to improve 
sexual health 

• The continued implementation of the Healthy Schools Programme.  This is a 
priority for the CYPSP (LBH Partnership), and is stretch target in the Local Area 
Agreement. 

• Develop a strategy for suicide prevention in Haringey focusing on promotion of mental well-
being, reducing the risks of suicide amongst key high-risk groups, and reducing the availability 
of suicide methods 

 
10.2 Supporting parents or carers and self care 

Supporting parents or carers to care for their children, whether through universal 
programmes to provide them with information and equip them with basic parenting 
skills, or through more specialist programmes to help when problems arise, or are 
likely to do so, is a key priority for both the NSF and the ECM:CfC programme.  There 
is a wide range of provision in Haringey, and the TPCT will work with Haringey 
Council’s Children and Young People’s Service, who have the lead in this area, to 
develop a parenting support strategy to further improve provision. 
 
More specifically for health services, it has been estimated that 80% of all episodes of 
illness are managed by parents and carers without reference to the professional health 
care system, and ensuring that parents, carers and indeed children and young people 
feel confident and assured in this role, is fundamental to plans to improve provision 
for children and young people with long term conditions and complex needs, and 
should be a priority for all health services. 
 

10.3 Universal and targeted community child health services 
 
The TPCTs early years and schools services provide community health services to Haringey’s children 
and young people: 
 
The Early Years Service – is a multi-disciplinary team with health visitors, RGNs, nursery nurses, 
speech and language therapists, physiotherapists and occupational therapists, providing universal and 
targeted services to children under 5 and their families in a range of locations (73 nursery classes, 10 
children’s centres, community clinics and health centres and 4 specialist resource bases for children 
with additional needs) within the Borough.  The health visiting service is currently implementing the 

Page 37



28 

Child Health Promotion Programme described in section 9.3, and is, moving towards services that are 
targeted on the most vulnerable children, whilst ensuring that all children receive a core child health 
service.   
 

The Schools Service – is a multi-disciplinary team of school nurses and speech and language 
therapists, physiotherapists and occupational therapists, who work with children and young people in 
mainstream, special schools, and specialist units/resource bases, (73 infant and junior schools, 11 
secondary, 5 special schools and 4 specialist resource bases) within the Borough.   The service has well 
established links with local schools and Haringey Council’s children and young people’s service. 

 
There is a strong history of partnership working in Haringey, and both services are moving further 
towards an integrated model of multi-agency working as part of the developing ECM;CfC programme.  
Health visitors have worked in teams with corporate case loads based on Network Learning Community 
geographical areas since April 2006, and other services are in the process of aligning themselves to 
Children’s Network areas. 

 
Safeguarding service – The Safeguarding Team is led by a nurse consultant, provides advice, supervision, training 
and support for all TPCT staff and independent practitioners on child protection, looked after children, 

homelessness and domestic violence issues.  Proposals for co-location with LBH colleagues are currently in 

development  

 

Children’s networks 
 

 
 

The map above shows the three Children’s Network areas which have been developed as the delivery 
model for multi agency provision for children and young people to enable services to be delivered closer 
to children and families and facilitate the development of the ‘team around the child approach’ 
advocated by Every Child Matters.  The networks will bring together different groups of professionals 
working with children and young people and families within the same geographical area, and enable 
• A core range of services to be available to all children and young people and families in 

response to local need  
• More co-ordinated and effective assessments 
• A greater focus on prevention and early intervention, with a greater targeting and 

concentration of resources towards those children and families who are most vulnerable and 
most at risk. 

• The development of multi-agency pathways that facilitate access to specialist provision 
• A strong focus on safeguarding 

Page 38



29 

• Better information sharing, both within and between agencies 
 

It is envisaged that where feasible universal and targeted child health services, including midwifery 
services and early years and schools service described above, will be aligned to the networks.  Services 
will be delivered from a range of settings, including the child or young person’s home, children’s 
centres, schools, special schools, extended schools, health centres, and there will need to be close 
collaboration with GP practices, to ensure that there is a multi-agency approach to driving up the 
quality of services and improving outcomes for children, young people and families.   
 
Working with the local population, needs will be assessed, and services planned, delivered, and possibly 
joint commissioned on a multi-agency network basis.  In addition key aspects of the Every Child Matters 
agenda will be implemented through Children’s Network model, for example, the Common Assessment 
Framework, the lead professional, information-sharing, and work force development.   

 

Children’s Centres 
Children’s Centres are viewed as key to, improving outcomes for all children under 5, and closing the 
gap between those with the poorest outcomes and the rest, and so far 10 Children’s Centres have been 
designated in Haringey with a further 8 planned as part of phase 2 which finishes in April 2008.  The 
Core Offer defines the multi-agency services that are to be available from children’s centres, or where 
space is at premium, at their satellite centres, which may include for example the local health centre.  
Core offer provision includes: 

• Antenatal advice and support for parents/carers 
• Delivery of the Child Health Promotion Programme – see Appendix D 
• Information and guidance on breast feeding, hygiene, nutrition and safety. 
• Promoting positive mental health and emotional well being, including identification, support and 

care for those suffering from maternal depression, ante-natally and post-natally. 

• Speech and language therapy for children with communication difficulties & 
autistic spectrum disorders, and other specialist support. 

• Support for healthy lifestyles. 
• Help in stopping smoking 

• Early identification of children with special needs and disabilities with inclusive services and 
support for their families 

• Consultation and information sharing with parents/carers, including fathers, on what services 
are needed, and systems to get user feedback on services. 

 
Health services are working closely with children’s centres to ensure that the core offer is met, and that 
services reflect the needs of the local population.  However the TPCT has identified peri-natal and 
infant mental health services as a priority for future investment. 

 

Extended Schools 
Schools are the universal service that has the most contact with school-age children as well as frequent 
and close contact with their families.  Addressing health needs through extended schools delivers 
benefits by: 
• Improving pupils’ attendance 
• Removing barriers to learning through earlier intervention 
• Reaching hard-to-access communities 
• Improving take up of preventative health services 
• Tackling inequalities 
• Targeting previously unmet health need 
 
The core offer for extended services to be offered in and around schools includes parenting support, 
and swift and easy referral to a wide range of specialist support services (including services which may 
be delivered by health professionals on the school site).  The Healthy Schools programme provides a 
sound basis for developing this work. 

 

Page 39



30 

TPCT school services already work in Haringey schools, as established members of the school team, 
offering a range of provision including: a joint speech, language and communication service for children 
and young people with speech, language and communication disorders, participation in PHSE (Personal, 
Health and Social Education) programmes; immunisations; and targeted services for children with 
specific health issues e.g. enuresis, epilepsy and a range of other therapy services for children with 
complex needs. 
 
Focussing on early identification and intervention, clear pathways and protocols will need to be 
developed to ensure good access to specialist provision from schools to for example the Specialist Child 
Health Service; CAMHS; the Sexual Health Service and so on.  In consultation with children and young 
people, consideration will also be given to offering additional services from the school site.   
 

Page 40



31 

 

11.  GPS AND PRIMARY CARE  
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

This section should be read in conjunction with the TPCT’s primary care strategy ‘Developing world 
class primary care in Haringey: A consultation document’ (June 2007).  
 
Most health service contacts for children are with GPs and the primary care team, who have a key role 
in improving the health and well being of children, young people and families in their area. 
 
The TPCT has a responsibility to ensure that Haringey’s children, young people and families have 
access to high quality primary care services, and the development of community and primary care led 
pathways that reduce reliance on secondary care services are a priority.  Primary care is the ideal 
setting for the treatment of minor ailments, and the identification of more serious problems, which 
require treatment and care in collaboration with other providers, or in the case of serious acute illness, 
referral on. 

 
Both the NSF and the report on ‘the acutely or critically sick child in the district general hospital’, 
highlight the importance of ensuring that primary care practitioners are given the opportunity to 
maintain the skills and competencies required in the assessment and identification of the acutely or 
critically sick child.  Working with GPs and other health professionals, the Managed Clinical Network 
being developed through the CYPPH (GOSH PARTNERSHIP), will improve access to opportunities for 
continuing professional development, and support the development of community and primary care led 
pathways into other services. 
 
Given the high level of transience in the population the TPCT, will work with primary care providers to 
ensure that all children, young, people and families have access to primary care services, and are 
registered with a GP practice.  Improving access to primary care services is one of the cornerstones of 
the primary care strategy, which proposes to develop a number of super health centres/polyclinics that 
will deliver an enhanced range of services in a primary care setting in the community. 
 

CHILD HEALTH 

PROMOTION 
PROGRAMME 

(Inc Ante Natal 
Care) 

MINOR AILMENTS 
 

SERIOUS ACUTE 
ILLNESS 

 

LONG TERM 

CONDITIONS 

CHILD AND 

ADOLESCENT 
MENTAL 

HEALTH 
SERVICES 

NON ACUTE - NEW 

PRESENTATIONS  

Headaches, skin 

GP 

Page 41



32 

The National Service Framework also highlights other areas where primary care provider involvement is 
key: 
• Encouraging pregnant women to book early for antenatal, preferably at 8-10 weeks of 

pregnancy to give them time to plan their pregnancy effectively and consider early screening 
options. 

• Delivery of part of the Child Health Promotion Programme, which can be provided as an 
additional service under the GMS contract. 

• Early identification and intervention, and appropriate referral on, where there are problems with 
a child’s development 

• Early identification and intervention, and appropriate referral on where there is concern about 
parenting capacity, non attendance for an appointment, or suspected non-accidental injury, 
abuse, or neglect.  

• Optimizing the use of secondary care through good quality referrals and discharge planning, 
with emphasis placed on ‘enhanced self care and improving the management of long term 
conditions’ in primary care.  To include care planning for children and young people with more 
complex needs. 

• Enabling young people to avoid unwanted pregnancy and sexually transmitted infections 
• Identifying children and young people with mental health problems, and considering whether 

those with less serious problems could be treated in primary care or other non specialist 
settings. 

 
GPs and primary care providers in Haringey are organised into four practice based commissioning 
collaboratives, with named Health Visitors providing the key link across to the multi-disciplinary/multi-
agency teams being developed in the three children’s network areas for children aged 0-5.  Urgent 
consideration needs to be given to developing links between the collaboratives and network teams for 
older children and young people, and to ensuring that there is good communication when planning and 
commissioning services.   

 

 
Are there other issues relating to primary health care for children, young people and families, 

which should be considered as a priority here? 

 

 
 

Page 42



33 

SPECIALIST CHILD HEALTH CENTRE 
• Neuro-developmental assessments 
• Safeguarding children responsibilities 
• Looked After Children 
• Population Health 
• SEN 

 

 

12.   SPECIALIST COMMUNITY CHILD HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12.1 The specialist child health service is a multi-disciplinary team, offering a range of specialist services for 
babies, children and young people aged 0 to 19 with additional and complex health needs.   
 
Services provided: 
• Multi-Disciplinary Assessments for children with developmental difficulties or disabilities for 

example: learning difficulties; cerebral palsy; Down syndrome; ADHD, and Autistic Spectrum 
Disorders. 

• Specialist paediatric clinics including infectious diseases (at North Middlesex University 
Hospitals) 

• Specialist immunization and advice 
• Medicals for children who may have special educational needs and those who are looked after 

by the Local Authority 
• Medicals for Child Protection 
• Specialist services including, Speech and Language Therapy, Physiotherapy, Occupational 

Therapy, Dietetics, Clinical Psychology and Health Visiting. 
 

In the context of the ECM:CfC programme, the specialist community health service will provide as much 
care as possible in children’s homes, nurseries and schools but some specialist assessment & treatment 
facilities are also required.   

 
12.2 The service is currently based in the Child Development Centre on the St Ann’s site, but the premises 

are not ‘fit for purpose’ and a new site is being sought as a priority.   
 

Ideally the new premises will be suitable for an extended team, and for example: 
• The CYPSP (LBH PARTNERSHIP) is looking at models of integrated provision for children with 

additional needs, including children with disabilities, and this thinking will need to consider/be 
incorporated into the future service model for specialist child health services.  To include mental 
health provision and the need to identify long term accommodation for CAMHS. 

Children with 
Disabilities 
Integrated Team 

Long Term 
Conditions – One 
Stop Shop 

Children’s 
Community Nursing 
and Complex Care 
Team  

CAMHS 

Outpatients 
 

User forum, self 
help groups and 
resource centre. 

Minor injuries unit 

Page 43



34 

• The TPCT wishes to review the current provision of specialist child health services in community 
and hospital settings, with a view to offering more services from the specialist child health 
centre in a community setting.  Particular priority will be given to the management of long term 
conditions, but there may be other relatively minor conditions, for example skin lesions, 
currently managed through paediatric outpatients, which could be managed in the community 
by GPs, or GPs with a special interest, working alongside specialists from secondary care. 

• The Haringey Children’s Community Nursing and Complex Care Team, which is based at NMUH, 
will be strengthened and become more of a community resource working closely with parents 
and carers, primary care teams, the TPCT’s community health services, and Haringey Council’s 
Children and Young People’s Service.   

• The recent discussion document looking at the provision of urgent care, considers a full range 
of responses from telephone advice and self care, to deployment of a crisis team, to admission 
to a specialist hospital.  An element of this tiered response might include community based 
provision of a minor injuries, which could be based alongside the Specialist Child Health Centre.  

• Children, young people and families will be actively involved in the development any new 
premises and the services it contains, which should also be a resource centre to supports self 
management and active involvement in treatment and care. 

 

12.3  Long term conditions and complex health needs 

The TPCT believes there is much we can do to improve and streamline the care that children and young 
people with long term conditions and complex health needs such as asthma, diabetes, complex 
developmental disorders/syndromes, cerebral palsy and muscular dystrophy.   
 
The model for supporting children and young people with long term conditions and complex health 
needs described in section 4.4 iii will be implemented through the CYPPH (GOSH PARTNERSHIP) 
Managed Clinical Network bringing together primary care, the children’s community nursing and 
complex care team, community specialist child health services, and specialists from the acute sector.   

 
 

 
 

Care, treatment and support will be provided in a range of settings, home, children’s 
centre, school, GP surgery, the specialist child health centre, and secondary and 
tertiary care.  The routine management of long term conditions will be delivered in the 

Page 44



35 

community with case management arrangements put in place for more complex 
cases.  The specialist child health centre will be the hub of provision, providing access 
to ‘one-stop shop’ multi disciplinary/agency services - paediatricians, therapists 
(speech and language therapists, physiotherapists, occupational therapists, and 
dieticians), community nurses, social workers and so on - and access to facilities to 
support both self management and professional development.  Where acute admission 
to hospital is required it should be for as short a time as possible, with aftercare and 
support being provided by services in the community.   
 

As part of the CYPPH (GOSH Partnership), the Asthma collaborative has developed a care pathway that 
will be used as a pilot to test out new ways of working across professional and organisational 
boundaries.  Work on pathways for Diabetes, Epilepsy and Sickle Cell disease is underway.   

 
Increasingly it is possible for children and young people with very 
complex health needs, including those requiring long term ventilatory 
support, to be cared for at home, enabling them to attend schools and 
participate in community activities.  Care for this group of children and 
young people could be improved through better co-ordination of services, 
and in addition there other issues which need to be considered: 
• Packages of nursing care are currently purchased from an agency, but there is a shortage of 

suitably qualified and experienced nursing and care staff, and the TPCT wishes to explore 
directly employing care staff, or commissioning provision from another NHS Trust. 

• The Joint Area Review raised concerns about access to Occupational Therapy services and 
equipment, which are being addressed, but the growing number of children with very complex 
health needs will have implications for therapy services in future. 

 
 

 
What services would you like to see offered from a specialist children health centre in the 
community? 

 
 
 

 

Page 45



36 

13. HOSPITAL BASED URGENT CARE  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Where possible children, young people and families want to receive treatment and care as close to 
home as possible, but accept the need to travel for specialist services when necessary.  The  TPCT 
wishes to develop a network of provision that ensures that children and young people receive 
assessment and treatment in the most appropriate place, and where this is away from home, that they 
returned home with the appropriate support as soon as possible.  Emphasis to be given to ensuring that 
all health professionals who work with children and young people, are appropriately trained and are 
able to maintain their skills through a sufficient level of ongoing experience.  This must include training 
in paediatric emergencies, although the aim will be to ensure effective triage and transfer to the 
appropriate care setting, with access to the expertise and equipment appropriate to the child or young 
person’s condition. 

 
As has been discussed previously primary care is the ideal setting for the treatment of minor ailments, 
and the identification of more serious problems, which require treatment and care in collaboration with 
other providers, or in the case of serious acute illness, referral on.  In the model proposed urgent 
specialist care would be provided by the Acute Trusts, NMUH and the Whittington, with a range of 
provision available including paediatric A&E, a day assessment unit to allow longer for the child or 
young person to be observed and assessed, and rapid response outpatient clinics providing access to 
urgent advice from a Consultant in non emergency situations within 48 hours.   

 

What do you think of the proposed model? 

SERIOUS ACUTE 
ILLNESS 

HOSPITAL 

BASED URGENT 

CARE 

SELF 
REFERRAL 

Rapid 
Response 

Outpatients 
Department 

Day 

Assessment 
Unit 

Paediatric 

A&E 

 

IN-PATIENT CARE – PLANNED AND 
UNPLANNED 

 
 
 
 

Hospital 

Based 

Out-Patient 
Care 

Page 46



37 

 

 
 
 

14. BARNET, ENFIELD AND HARINGEY CLINICAL STRATEGY 
There has been significant strategic discussion across the whole of the North Central 
London sector (comprising Barnet Enfield Haringey Camden and Islington PCTs) about 
the possible reconfiguration of acute paediatric services across the sector, which has 
been driven by the change factors described in section 4. 
 
More recently the focus has been on acute hospital services provided at Chase Farm 
Hospital, Barnet Hospital and the North Middlesex University Hospital (NMUH).  Two 
main proposals for reorganising hospital care at these three hospitals are currently out 
for consultation.  In summary: 
 
1. Inpatient services for women and children and obstetrician-led maternity services based at 

Barnet and North Middlesex.  Planned and emergency services separated with Barnet and North 
Middlesex providing major emergency services, urgent care centres for non life-threatening 
conditions and day surgery.  Chase Farm would provide planned inpatient surgery and an 
urgent care centre, with consultant-led paediatric and older people’s assessment units. 

 
2. All inpatient and major emergency services centralised at Barnet and North Middlesex.  Chase 

Farm becoming a Community Hospital providing day surgery, outpatient clinics, GP services, 
community-based nurse and therapy services, routine diagnostic services such as pathology 
and simple imaging and an urgent care centre as in option 1.  A midwife-led birthing unit could 
also be located at Chase Farm Hospital. 

 
Please visit the following website for more information: http://www.behfuture.nhs.uk/ 

 
 
It is anticipated that the proposed changes will have minimal impact on the Whittington. 

 

Page 47



38 

 

15 CONSULTATION 
 

The initial consultation period ran from 9th July to 14th September 2007, but has been extended to 31st 
December 2007, to allow for more views to be obtained on the proposed framework for commissioning 
health services for children and young people in Haringey. 

 
Comments, or requests for further information or attendance at relevant meetings, should be sent to: 
 
Gerry Taylor 
Acting Director of Strategic Commissioning 
Block B1, St Ann’s Hospital 
St Ann’s Rd 
London 
N15 3TH 
 
Email: gerry.taylor@haringey.nhs.uk 
 
OR 
 
Claire Wright 
Head of Strategic Commissioning – Children and Young People’ Services 
Block G1, St Ann’s Hospital  
St Ann’s Rd 
London 
N15 3TH 
 
Email: claire.wright@haringey.nhs.uk 
 
 

 
 

Page 48



39 

Appendix A 
 

THE HARINGEY EVERY CHILD MATTERS: CHANGE FOR CHILDREN PROGRAMME 

 
The key elements of the Every Child Matters programme are illustrated by the diagram 
below. 
 
 

 
 

Child-centred, outcome led vision 

The twenty priorities identified in ‘Changing Lives’ the Children and Young People’s Plan (see Appendix B) were 
informed by a series of consultation events with children, young people and other stakeholders, and were the 
subject of a public consultation.  Ongoing mechanisms to enable children, young people and their families to 
participate in the development of the ECM:CfC programme are in place. 
 

Integrated front line delivery 

Three children’s networks have been established – North, South and West Haringey, and the networks will be 
the delivery model for integrated services, which will enable community based services, which are more geared 
to prevention, to be delivered closer to the child.  Children’s Centres are key to, improving outcomes for all 
children under 5, and closing the gap between those with the poorest outcomes and the rest. and so far 10 
Children’s Centres have been designated in Haringey with a further 8 planned as part of phase 2.  Work on 
extended schools is progressing.  Developing integrated services for Children with Additional Needs has been 
identified as a priority for the partnership. 
 

Integrated processes 

A draft protocol has been developed to underpin information sharing between services and work is underway to 
look at a common database.  From 1st January 2007, the Common Assessment Framework, will be rolled out 

Page 49



40 

across Haringey starting with Health Visiting and Schools referrals into Speech and Language Therapy and 
education support services such as the Educational Psychology Service and the Behaviour Improvement 
Programme.  Panels will be established in each network area, to look at cases where multi agency input is 
required, and extension to other services will be accompanied by appropriate preparation and training.  Work 
on developing the role of the lead professional is being carried out alongside Common Assessment Framework 
implementation. 
 

Integrated strategy 

A joint needs assessment ‘Knowing Our Children and Young People – planning for their futures’ has been 
developed and will be updated annually.  The outcomes of the needs assessment informed the priorities 
identified in ‘Changing Lives’, which are underpinned by the need to refocus services on early idenification and 
intervention, with priority given to improving outocmes for vulnerable children and young people.  A joint 
commissioning group has been established and developing joint performance management and commissioning 
arrangements will be a priority for 2007/2008.   
 
Inter–agency governance 
Inter-agency governance structures have been agreed by the partnership. 

Page 50



41 

Appendix B 
 

CHANGING LIVES – THE HARINGEY CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S 

PLAN 

 
Summary of priorities 
 
Priority one – We will improve outcomes for vulnerable children and young people through implementing 
strategies that will ensure earlier intervention. 
 
Priority two – We will continue to improve life changes for looked after children and care leavers. 
 
Priority three – We will improve outcomes for children and young people with disabilities. 
 
Priority four – We will reduce the number of stillbirths and babies who die before their first birthday. 
 
Priority five – We will promote healthier lifestyles to children, young people and parents. 
 
Priority six – We will prevent young people from developing mental health problems by strengthening their 
emotional well-being and self-esteem and improve services to those who have mental health needs. 
 
Priority seven – We will work with young people to reduce teenage conception rates in Haringey as part of a 
broader aim to improve sexual health. 
 
Priority eight – We will reduce the incidence of specific dangers affecting some of all children and young 
people in the community in partnership with parents and the wider community and through the implementation 
of the Pan-London child protection procedures. 
 
Priority nine – We will renew our efforts to reduce bullying, discriminatory incidents and the gang culture in 
line with what young people have told us is most important to them. 
 
Priority ten – We will create more safe places for children to play and for young people to go to through 
working with partners from Haringey Council, the police and the voluntary sector. 
 
Priority eleven – We will reduce the number of children and young people who are involved in crime or 
become victims of crime. 
 
Priority twelve – We will further improve the quality of early years education. 
 
Priority thirteen – We will enable children and young people to enjoy wider opportunities through a broad 
curriculum and out-of-school learning activities. 
 
Priority fourteen – We will improve attendance and raise standards of achievement for all children and young 
people reflected across all sections of our community. 
 
Priority fifteen – We will empower children and young people to have a more effective voice in decision-
making. 
 
Priority sixteen – We will ensure that children and young people living in Haringey are given wider 
opportunities to broaden their experiences to be creative, and equip them to live in a global society. 
 
Priority seventeen – We will work together to give a more positive profile to children and young people 
drawing attention to their positive contributions, reinforcing rights and responsibilities for children and future 
adults, and celebrating their achievements. 
 

Page 51



42 

Priority eighteen – We will improve access to services for young people and parents that support them to be 
more economically active. 
 
Priority nineteen – We will reduce the number of young people between the ages of 16 and 19 who are not 
in education, employment or training, especially those looked after by the local authority. 
 
Priority twenty – We will improve the percentage of young people at age 19 qualified to Level 2 and Level 3. 

 
 

Page 52



43 

Appendix C 
 

NATIONAL SERVICE FRAMEWORK FOR CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND 
MATERNITY SERVICES 
 

PART I 
Standard 1: Promoting Health and Well-being, Identifying Needs and Intervening Early  

The health and well-being of all children and young people is promoted and delivered 

through a co-ordinated programme of action, including prevention and early intervention 

wherever possible, to ensure long term gain, led by the NHS in partnership with local 

authorities. 

 

Standard 2: Supporting parents or carers 
Parents or carers are enabled to receive the information, services and support which will help 
them to care for their children and equip them with the skills they need to ensure that their 
children have optimum life chances and are healthy and safe. 
 

Standard 3: Child, Young Person and Family-Centred Services  

Children and young people and families receive high quality services which are coordinated 

around their individual and family needs and take account of their views. 

 

Standard 4: Growing Up into Adulthood 

All young people have access to age-appropriate services which are responsive to their 

specific needs as they grow into adulthood. 

 

Standard 5: 
Safeguarding and Promoting the Welfare of Children and Young People 

All agencies work to prevent children suffering harm and to promote their welfare, provide them with the 
services they require to address their identified needs and safeguard children who are being or who are likely to 
be harmed. 
 

PART II 
Standard 6: Children and Young People who are Ill    

All children and young people who are ill, or thought to be ill, or injured will have timely access to appropriate 
advice and to effective services which address their health, social, educational and emotional needs throughout 
the period of their illness. 
 

Standard 7: Children in Hospital       

Children and young people receive high quality, evidence-based hospital care, developed through clinical 
governance and delivered in appropriate settings. 
 

Page 53



44 

Standard 8: Disabled Children and Young People and Those with Complex Health Needs 
Children and young people who are disabled or who have complex health needs receive co-ordinated, high 
quality child and family-centred services which are based on assessed needs, which promote social inclusion 
and, where possible, which enable them and their families to live ordinary lives. 
 

 
Standard 9: The Mental Health and Psychological Well-being of Children and Young People 

All children and young people, from birth to their eighteenth birthday, who have mental 

health problems and disorders have access to timely, integrated, high quality 

multidisciplinary mental health services to ensure effective assessment, treatment and 

support, for them, and their families. 

 
Standard 10: Medicines Management for Children 

Children, young people, their parents or carers, and health care professionals in all settings 

make decisions about medicines based on sound information about risk and benefit. They 

have access to safe and effective medicines that are prescribed on the basis of the best 

available evidence. 

 

PART III 
Standard 11: Maternity Services 

Women have easy access to supportive, high quality maternity services, designed around their individual needs 
and those of their babies. 
 

Page 54



45 

          Appendix D 

 

OVERVIEW OF THE CHILD HEALTH PROMOTION PROGRAMME 

This table sets out health promotion services that will be offered to all pregnant women and children and for 
which there is evidence of effectiveness.  Services may change a new evidence emerges, particularly in the area 
of adolescent health, and in response to new health concerns (including priorities that may be identified in the 
White Paper on public health). 
 

Age Intervention 

Ante-natal Ante-natal screening and a preliminary assessment of child and family 
needs.  Provide advice on breast-feeding and general health and well-being, 
including health eating and smoking cessation where appropriate.  
Arrangements are put in place, including sharing of information, to ensure a 
smooth transition from the midwifery to health visiting service. 

Soon after birth General physical examination with particular emphasis on eyes, heart and 
hips.  Administration of vitamin K (if parents choose vitamin K drops, these 
are administered during the first week after birth).  BCG is offered to babies 
who are more likely to come into contact with someone who has TB.  The 
first dose of Hepatitis B vaccine is give to babies whose mothers or close 
family have been infected with Hepatitis B. 

5-6 days old Blood spot test for hypothyroidism and phenylketonuria.  Screening for sickle 
cell disease and cystic fibrosis is also being implemented.  See  
www.newbornscreening-bloodspot.org.uk 

Within 1st month of 
life 

Newborn hearing screen now being rolled out to all areas.  If Hepatitis B 
vaccine has been given soon after birth, the second dose is given. 

New birth visit 
(usually around 12 
days) 

Home visit by the midwife or health visitor to assess the child and family 
health needs, including identification of mental health needs.  Distribution of 
‘Birth to Five’ guide and the Personal Child Health Record if not already 
given out ante-natally.  Information/support to parents on key health issues 
to be available (e.g. support for breastfeeding, advice on establishing a 
routine etc). 

6 – 8 weeks General physical examination with particular emphasis on eyes, heart and 
hips.  First set of immunisations against polio.  Review of general progress 
and delivery of key messages about parenting and health promotion.  
Identification of post-natal depression or other mental health needs.   
 
If Hepatitis B vaccine has been given after birth, the third dose is given at 8 
weeks. 

3 months Second set of immunisations against polio, diphtheria, tetanus, whooping 
cough, Hib, and Meningitis C.  Review of general progress and deliver of key 
messages about parenting and health promotion, including weaning. 

 
4 months Third set of immunisations against polio, diphtheria, tetanus, whooping 

cough, Hib and Meningitis C. 
 
Opportunity to give health promotion and advice to parents and to ask about 
parents’ concerns. 

By the 1st birthday Systematic assessment of the child’s physical, emotional and social 
development and family needs by the health visiting team.  This will include 
actions to address the needs identified and agree future contact with 
service. 

Around 13 months Immunisation against measles, mumps and rubella (MMR).  Review of 
general progress and health promotion and other advice to parents.  If 
Hepatitis B vaccine has been given soon after birth a booster dose and blood 
test are given. 

2 – 3 years The health visiting team is responsible for reviewing a child’s progress and 

Page 55



46 

ensuring that health and developmental needs are being addressed.  The 
health visitor will exercise professional judgement and agree with the parent 
how this review is carried out.  It could be done through early years 
providers or the general practice or by offering a contact in the clinic, home, 
by post, telephone or email etc.  Use is made of other contacts with the 
primary care team (e.g. immunisations, visits to the general practitioner 
etc.) 

3 – 5 years Immunisation against measles, mumps, rubella (MMR) and polio and 
diphtheria, tetanus and whooping cough.  Review of general progress and 
delivery of key messages about parenting and health promotion. 

4 – 5 years A review at school entry provides an opportunity to check that: 
immunisations are up-to-date, children have access to primary and dental 
care, appropriate interventions are available for any physical, developmental 
or emotional problems that had previously been missed or not addressed, to 
provide children, parents and school staff with information about specific 
health issues, to check the child’s height and weight (from which the Body 
Mass Index can be derived for use as a public health indicator), and to 
administer the sweep test of hearing. 
 
National orthoptist-led programme for pre-school vision screening to be 
introduced. 
 
Foundation Stage Profile – Assessment by the teacher to include a child’s: 
 
>Personal, Social and emotional development 
>Communication, language and literacy 
>Physical development and 
>Creative development 

 
 

Ongoing 
support at 
primary and 
secondary 
schools 

Access to school nurse at open sessions/drop-in and clinics by parents, 
teachers or through self-referral.  Provision for referral to specialists for 
children causing concern.  Children and young people with medical needs 
and disabilities may receive nursing care within the school environment 
according to their needs. 

Secondary School The Heaf test is carried out between 10 to 14 years, and BCG 
vaccine given to those requiring it.  Tetanus, diphtheria and 
polio vaccines are given between 13 to 18 years.  Check over 
immunisations are up to date 

 
 

Key to relevant records 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

NHS Care Record Service 

Personal Child Health Record 

This schedule is underpinned by a health promotion programme, based on best 
available evidence, that focuses on priority issues such as healthy eating, 
physical activity, safety, smoking, sexual health and mental health and is 
delivered by all practitioners who come into contact with children and young 
people, and in all settings used by this age group. 

Page 56



1 

   
 
 
 
 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM    
  
 
MEETING 
 

Children and Young People's Strategic Partnership Board 
10 December  2007 

 
  
TITLE 
 

Local Area Agreement (LAA) Development  
 

SUMMARY 
 
This paper sets describes some of the new guidance issued by Government in relation to 
new local area agreements (LAA), national indicators and funding following the 2007 
comprehensive spending review.   
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the CYPSP note the implications for the future development of LAA. 
 
That the CYPS consider and comment on the proposals on LAA priorities in relation to 
children and young people in the light of the new guidance and national indicator set.  
 
That the CYPSP consider whether any local targets are required for  monitoring the 
delivery of Changing Lives and services for children and young people.  
 
 
LEAD OFFICER(S) 
 
Sharon Shoesmith, 
Director  
The Children and Young People’s Service, Haringey Council 
 
 

 
 

for children & young people 

Agenda Item 8Page 57



2 

 
1. Current situation 2007/08  
 
1.1 The Local Area Agreement (LAA) was agreed with GOL (Government 
Office for London) last March.  The overall strategic lead for the LAA is 
provided by the Haringey Strategic Partnership.  As part of the arrangement 
theme boards have been designated to lead on one of the LAA blocks.  The 
CYPSP has the lead for the children and young people’s block. 
 
1.2 As part of this the CYPSP undertakes the monitoring of the 
performance indicators for the children and young people’s block.  These are 
included in the key performance indicators presented to each meeting of the 
CYPSP and the thrice yearly monitoring of Changing Lives.   
 
1.3 The Government also compulsorily pooled some grants under the LAA 
heading.  For children and young people’s services these are shown in the 
following table.    
 
Funding stream  Amount 2007/08 
Children’s Services Grant £1,910,362 
KS3 Behaviour and Attendance £68,300 
KS3 Central Coordination £158,048 
Primary Strategy central Coordination £161,880 

Neighbourhood Renewal Fund (NRF) £1,100,000 
Positive Activities for Young People £457,581 
School Travel Advisers £25,000 
School Development Grant (LA 
retained element only) 

£1,985,414 

Publicising Positive Activities £457,581 
School Improvement Partners £80,397 

Neighbourhood Support Fund £46,712 
 
There was also an option for the CYPSP to align funds to support the delivery 
of some of targets in the LAA.  The Board agreed to align the following funds.   
 
Locally Aligned Amount 2007/08 
Teenage Pregnancy Grant £183,000 
Pump Priming (for stretch targets) £240,000 (total over 3 

years) 
PCT Healthy Schools £100,000 
Sexual Health  £40,000 

Reducing NEET (LSC Funding) £3,300,000 
Increasing Level 2 at 19 (LSC 
Funding) 

£2,000,000 

TOTAL £5,863,000 
 
These funds include the pump priming money awarded by Government for the 
stretch targets.   
 

Page 58



3 

2. Developments for 2008/09 and beyond 
 
2.1 In recent months the Government has announced  

• that it will be re-negotiating new LAAs with each local authority and 
strategic partnership to come into force during 2008/09.   

• new funding arrangements under the Comprehensive Spending Review 
(CSR07)   

• a new national set of 198 national indicators   
 
 
3 New LAAs 
 
3.1 The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 has 
placed a duty on local authorities to prepare the LAA and a duty on named 
partners to co-operate in setting targets.  Once targets are set the local 
authority and those named partners with responsibility for delivering targets 
will have a duty to take them into account.   
 
3.2 The Government is asking for a maximum of 35 targets to be included 
in the LAA, these will be agreed with GOL and finally signed off be the 
Secretary of State.  These will be know as designated targets.  Only 
indicators from the national indicator set (NIS) can be used to set these 
targets.   
 
3.3 Targets must reflect the priorities for the local area.  These priorities 
must be supported by a narrative that is being termed ‘the story of the place’.  
In most cases it is expected that this will be drawn from the Sustainable 
Community Strategy and supporting evidence.  It is suggested that the 
CYPSP can contribute towards the story of the place in respect of children 
and young people through Changing Lives and Knowing Our Children (the 
needs assessment which supports Changing Lives).   
 
3.4 In addition the Children and Young People’s Service and partners in 
the CYPSP will need to agree targets for 16 statutory targets.  Because of 
their separate legal status1 they cannot be LAA targets but are part of the 
overall local performance framework.  
 
3.5 If there are any local priorities which are not covered by the 35 
designated targets then local authorities and partners need to decide whether 
additional targets should be included.  If they are central Government will be 
interested in them to help contextualise the LAA as a whole but will have no 
part in their negotiation or monitoring.  Any such targets will be know as local 
targets.   
 
 

                                                      
1
 Section 102 Education Act 2005 and section 1 Childcare Act 2006 

Page 59



4 

4 Funding  
 
4.1 As part of the CSR07 the Government announced funding 
arrangements for 2008/09 onwards which it hopes will support the delivery of 
LAAs and the local and national priorities.  At least £5 billion nationally of 
former specific grant and LAA ring-fenced grant will be delivered in the form of 
general grants which are not ring-fenced, to be know as Revenue Support 
Grant and Area-Based Grant.  From 2008 these general grants will be 
allocated on a three year basis.  The Government intention in providing 
funding through non ring fenced grants is to enable increased flexibility over 
the use of resources, giving councils greater flexibility to manage financial 
pressures and focus funding on the priorities of their communities - taking 
local spending decisions in line with the new performance framework.  
 
4.2 Operational guidance just issued states that partnerships will want to 
consider how they will resource delivery of the priorities and that individual 
partners may wish to pool their mainstream resources where this is possible.  
Draft statutory guidance for the Local Government and Public Involvement in 
Health Act 2007 (due for publication end November) will emphasise the need 
for co-operation including the possibility of shared commissioning.    
 
4.3 The list of funds currently proposed for inclusion in the Revenue 
Support Grant and the Area Based Grant is given below.  All funds currently 
used to deliver services for children and young people are highlighted in red.  
Items highlighted in green are funds delivering services some of which may 
be used by children and young people.   
 
CSR07: Grants to be delivered via Revenue Support Grant 
 
Access and Systems Capacity 
Delayed Discharges 
Children's Services 
Waste Performance and Efficiency 
 
CSR07: Grants to be delivered via Area Based Grant 
 
A comprehensive list will be published at the time of the provisional local 
government finance settlement. However, Area Based Grant will include, as a 
minimum, the following grants. In addition, the Department of Communities 
and Local Government (CLG)  aim’s to include the Supporting People 
programme grant from 2009/10, dependent on pilots in 2008/09 not raising 
serious concerns, and DCSF aim to include Contact Point (formerly Sharing 
IS Index) from 2010/11. 
 
14-19 Flexible Funding Pot      DSCF 
Adult Social Care Workforce (formerly HRDS and NTS)  DH 
Aggregates Levy Sustainability Fund     Defra 
Care Matters White Paper       DCSF 
Carers          DH 
Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services    DH 

Page 60



5 

Children's Social Care Workforce (formerly HRDS and NTS)  DCSF 
Children's Fund        DCSF 
Choice Advisers        DCSF 
Cohesion         CLG 
Connexions         DCSF 
Crime Reduction, Drugs Strategy and Anti Social Behaviour  HO 
Detrunking         DfT 
Education Health Partnerships      DCSF 
Extended Rights to Free Transport     DCSF 
Extended Schools Start Up Costs     DCSF 
Local Enterprise Growth Initiative      CLG 
Local Involvement Networks       DH 
Mental Capacity Act and Independent Mental Capacity Advocate Service  DH 
Mental Health         DH 
Positive Activities for Young People      DCSF 
Preserved Rights         DH 
Secondary National Strategy – Behaviour and Attendance  DCSF 
Secondary National Strategy – Central Coordination   DCSF 
Preventing Extremism       CLG 
Primary National Strategy – Central Coordination   DCSF 
Respect         HO 
Road Safety Grant        DfT 
Rural Bus Subsidy        DfT 
School Development Grant (Local Authority element)   DCSF 
School Improvement Partners      DCSF 
School Intervention Grant       DCSF 
School Travel Advisers       DCSF  
Sea Fisheries Committee       Defra 
Stronger Safer Communities Fund     CLG 
Supporting People Administration     CLG 
Sustainable Travel General Duty      DCSF 
Teenage Pregnancy        DCSF 
Working Neighbourhoods Fund (replaces Neighbourhood Renewal Fund) 
CLG 
 
4.4 The CYPSP will note that funding for services for children and young 
people make up a large proportion of the list of Area Based Grant.   
 
 
5 National Indicator Set 

5.1 The new national indicator set was published by the Department for 
Communities and Local Government in October.  It contains 198 indicators, a 
reduction from approximately 1,200 that existed previously.  These indicators 
are all related to either (or both) national public service agreements (PSA) or 
departmental strategic objectives (DSO)  The PSAs and DSOs sum up the 
Governments national priorities and the strategic objectives of Government 
Ministries.  
 

Page 61



6 

5.2 As noted in 3.2 above only indicators form this list can be used to set 
targets for the 35 priorities in the new LAA.  However central Government will 
monitor progress towards meeting the national priorities using data collected 
on all 198.   
 
5.3 Central Government acknowledges that this set is not the only one, but 
that other public sector partners have their own performance frameworks.  
The Government will be working towards aligning these frameworks and 
ensuring that common indicators are included where possible.   
 
5.4 Appendix 1 lists all the national indicators that are the responsibility of 
the DCSF or are the responsibility of other Government Ministries but appear 
to concern children and young people (i.e. knife and gun crime, domestic 
violence, drugs and alcohol)  
 
5.5 The Government has committed to continuing the stretch targets and 
related pump priming and performance reward grant.   
 
 
6 Next Steps 
 
6.1 The Haringey Strategic Partnership had already considered a possible 
list of 35 targets for Haringey’s new LAA and a copy of this list is attached at 
appendix 2.  This will be reviewed in the light of the new guidance and 
national indicator set.   
 
6.2 HSP Theme Boards, including the CYPSP, are being asked to review 
the priorities and indicators in their area as their contribution to refining and 
developing the Haringey Partnership’s final list of a maximum of 35 priorities.  
 
6.3 The other immediate task is the preparation of Haringey’s ‘story of the 
place’ to support the selection of the 35 targets.  This will be drawn up be an 
editorial group with members from the main partners.  It must be completed 
before Christmas.   
 
6.4 A first draft LAA must be with GOL in late January, and a further draft 
in the Spring.   
 
 
7. Recommendations 
 
7.1 That the CYPSP note the implications for the future development of 
LAA. 
 
7.2 That the CYPS consider and comment on the proposed list of LAA 
priorities in relation to children and young people in the light of the new 
guidance and national indicator set.  
 

Page 62



7 

7.3 That the CYPSP consider whether any local targets are required for  
monitoring the delivery of Changing Lives and services for children and young 
people.  
 
 
 
APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 National Indicator Set published October 2007  
Appendix 2 Haringey Strategic Partnership – Proposed LAA Target Areas 
for 2008/09 
 
 
 
 
s:\cs\dirf\allf\delivery and performance\cypsp\supporting material\2007\laa dec07.doc 

Page 63



8 

APPENDIX 1    

 

The New Performance Framework for Local Authorities & 
Local Authority Partnerships:  The Single Set of National 
Indicators 
 
Published by Department for Communities and Local 
Government October 2007  
 

• Council and partners (through) HSP must agree up to 35 priorities for their local area with 
GOL.   

• These priorities will then be measured using indicators from the national indicator set for 
which targets will be set and agreed with GOL.   

• For the children and young people’s service there are an additional 16 statutory indicators 
in the national set for which targets will be set.  They all relate to education outcomes.  

• For all the other indicators there will be no set targets, though information on them will still 
be collected and reported to Government. 

 
Green – the 16 statutory targets 
 

Safer communities 
 
 Indicator PSA / DSO Reported to 

CYPSP   

NI 19 Rate of proven re-offending by young offenders PSA 23  

NI 22 Perceptions of parents taking responsibility for the 
behaviour of their children in the area 

HO DSO  

NI 23 Perceptions that people in the area treat one 
another with respect and dignity  

HO DSO  

NI 28 Serious knife crime rate HO DSO  

NI 29 Gun crime rate PSA 23  

NI 32 Repeat incidents of domestic violence PSA 23  

NI 34 Domestic violence – murder PSA 23  

NI 38 Drug-related (Class A) offending rate PSA 25  
NI 39 Alcohol-harm related hospital admission rates PSA 25  

NI 40 Drug users in effective treatment PSA 25  

NI 41 Perceptions of drunk or rowdy behaviour as a 
problem  

PSA 25  

NI 42 Perceptions of drug use or drug dealing as a 
problem  

PSA 25  

NI 43 Young people within the Youth Justice System 
receiving a conviction in court who are sentenced to 
custody 

MoJ DSO  

NI 44 Ethnic composition of offenders on Youth Justice 
System disposals 

MoJ DSO  

NI 45 Young offenders engagement in suitable education, 
employment or training 

MoJ DSO Reported to 
CYPS every 
meeting 

NI 46 Young offenders access to suitable accommodation MoJ DSO  

NI 48 Children killed or seriously injured in road traffic 
accidents 

DfT DSO (CL)P8.2 
local PI 
reported 3 x 
per year.  
School 
travel plans 
mandatory 

Page 64



9 

 Indicator PSA / DSO Reported to 
CYPSP   

target 07/08 
LAA, 
reported to 
each 
meeting.  

 
 

Children & Young People:  Be healthy 
 
 Indicator PSA / DSO Reported to 

CYPSP   

NI 50  Emotional health of children  PSA 12  

NI 51 Effectiveness of child and adolescent mental health 
(CAMHs) services 

DCSF DSO 3 x year 
progress 
towards 
CAMHS 
[1043SC/PAF 
A70] 

NI 52 Take up of school lunches PSA 12  

NI 53 Prevalence of breastfeeding at 6 – 8 weeks from 
birth 

PSA 12 Every 
meeting 
[(CL)P4.1c 
plus update 
on progress 3 
x year] 
Optional 
target in 
07/08 LAA 

NI 54 Services for disabled children   

NI 55 Obesity among primary school age children in 
Reception Year 

DCSF DSO  

NI 56 Obesity among primary school age children in Year 
6 

DCSF DSO  

NI 57 Children and young people’s participation in high-
quality PE and sport 

DCSF DSO  

NI 58 Emotional and behavioural health of children in 
care  

DCSF DSO  

 
 

Children & Young People:  Stay Safe 
 
 Indicator PSA / DSO Reported to 

CYPSP   

NI 59  Initial assessments for children’s social care 
carried out within 7 working days of referral 

DCSF DSO Every meeting 
[2020SC/1704] 
Optional target in 
07/08 LAA 

NI 60 Core assessments for children’s social care that 
were carried out within 35 working days of their 
commencement 

DCSF DSO Every meeting 
[2022SC/PAFC64] 

NI 61 Stability of looked after children adopted 
following an agency decision that the child 
should be placed for adoption 

DCSF DSO No. adopted / 
subject to SGO 
every meeting 
[2059SC/PAFC23]  
Optional target in 
07/08 LAA 

NI 62 Stability of placements of looked after children: DCSF DSO 3+ moves 

Page 65



10 

 Indicator PSA / DSO Reported to 
CYPSP   

number of moves reported each 
meeting 
[2043SC/PAF A1] 

NI 63 Stability of placements of looked after children: 
length of placement   

DCSF DSO 3 x year 
[2065SC/PAF 
D78] 

NI 64 Child protection plans lasting 2 years or more DCSF DSO 3 x year 
[2036SC/PAF 
C21] 

NI 65 Children becoming the subject of a Child 
Protection Plan for a second or subsequent 
time 

DCSF DSO 3 x year 
[2028SC/PAF A3] 

NI 66 Looked after children cases which were 
reviewed within required timescales 

DCSF DSO 3 x year 
[2064SC/PAF68] 

NI 67 Child protection cases which were reviewed 
within required timescales 

DCSF DSO Every meeting 
[2034SC] 

NI 68 Referrals to children’s social care going on to 
initial assessment 

DCSF DSO 3 x year 
[2017SC/CH143] 

NI 69 Children who have experienced bullying DCSF DSO  

NI 70 Hospital admissions caused by unintentional 
and deliberate injuries to children and young 
people 

DCSF DSO  

NI 71 Children who have run away from home/care 
overnight 

DCSF DSO  

 
 

Children & Young People:  Enjoy and Achieve 
 
 Indicator PSA / DSO Reported to 

CYPSP   

NI 72  Achievement of at least 78 points across the 
Early Years Foundation Stage with at least 6 in 
each of the scales in Personal Social and 
Emotional Development and Communication, 
Language and Literacy 

PSA 10 Every meeting. 
Score of 6 or 
more on PSED & 
CLL [FSP] 

NI 73 Achievement at level 4 or above in both 
English and Maths at Key Stage 2 (Threshold) 

PSA 10 Every meeting, 
but English & 
maths reported as 
separate subjects 
[3005OF/BV41 & 
3006OF/BV40] 

NI 74 Achievement at level 5 or above in both 
English and Maths at Key Stage 3 (Threshold) 

PSA 10 Every meeting, 
but English & 
maths reported as 
separate subjects 
[3009OF/BV181A 
& 
3010OF/BV181B] 

NI 75 Achievement of 5 or more A*-C grades at 
GCSE or equivalent including English and 
Maths (Threshold) 

PSA 10 Yes 

NI 76 Achievement at level 4 or above in both 
English and Maths at KS2 (Floor) 

DCSF DSO English and 
maths reported 
separately 
Optional target in 
07/08 LAA 

Page 66



11 

 Indicator PSA / DSO Reported to 
CYPSP   

NI 77 Achievement at level 5 or above in both 
English and Maths at KS3 (Floor) 

DCSF DSO English and 
maths reported 
separately 

NI 78 Achievement of 5 or more A*-C grades at 
GCSE and equivalent including GCSEs in 
English and Maths (Floor) 

PSA 10 Yes 

NI 79 Achievement of a Level 2 qualification by the 
age of 19 

PSA 10 Every meeting 
[AEW(CL)P20.1] 
Stretch target in 
07/08 LAA 

NI 80 Achievement of a Level 3 qualification by the 
age of 19 

PSA 10 Every meeting 
[AEW(CL)P20.1] 

NI 81 Inequality gap in the achievement of a Level 3 
qualification by the age of 19 

DCSF DSO  

NI 82 Inequality gap in the achievement of a Level 2 
qualification by the age of 19 

DCSF DSO  

Ni 83 Achievement at level 5 or above in Science at 
Key Stage 3 

DCSF DSO At each meeting 
[3011OF/BV181C] 

NI 84 Achievement of 2 or more A*-C grades in 
Science GCSEs or equivalent 

DCSF DSO  

NI 85 Post-16 participation in physical sciences (A 
Level Physics, Chemistry and Maths) 

DCSF DSO  

NI 86 Secondary schools judged as having good or 
outstanding standards of behaviour 

DCSF DSO  

NI 87 Secondary school persistent absence rate DCSF DSO % half days 
missed reported 
each meeting 
[LPSA2] & % fixed 
term exclusions 3 
x year [3092DE] 

NI 88 Number of Extended Schools DCSF DSO  

NI 89 Number of schools in special measures DCSF DSO 3 x year 
% in special 
measures 
[3087OF] 

NI 90 Take up of 14-19 learning diplomas DCSF DSO  

NI 91 Participation of 17 year-olds in education or 
training 

DCSF DSO  

NI 92 Narrowing the gap between the lowest 
achieving 20% in the Early Years Foundation 
Stage Profile and the rest 

PSA 11  

NI 93 Progression by 2 levels in English between 
Key Stage 1 and Key Stage 2 

PSA 11  

NI 94 Progression by 2 levels in Maths between Key 
Stage 1 and Key Stage 2 

PSA 11  

NI 95 Progression by 2 levels in English between 
Key Stage 2 and Key Stage 3 

PSA 11  

NI 96 Progression by 2 levels in Maths between Key 
Stage 2 and Key Stage 3 

PSA 11  

NI 97 Progression by 2 levels in English between 
Key Stage 3 and Key Stage 4 

PSA 11  

NI 98 Progression by 2 levels in Maths between Key 
Stage 3 and Key Stage 4 

PSA 11  

NI 99 Children in care reaching level 4 in English at 
Key Stage 2 

PSA 11  

NI 100 Children in care reaching level 4 in Maths at 
Key Stage 2 

PSA 11  

Page 67



12 

 Indicator PSA / DSO Reported to 
CYPSP   

NI 101 Children in care achieving 5 A*-C GCSEs (or 
equivalent) at Key Stage 4 (including English 
and Maths) 

PSA 11  

NI 102 Achievement gap between pupils eligible for 
free school meals and their peers achieving 
the expected level at Key Stages 2 and 4 

PSA 11  

NI 103 Special Educational Needs – statements 
issued within 26 weeks 

DCSF DSO % completed in 
18 weeks 
reported at each 
meeting 
[3070AC/43a&b] 

NI 104 The Special Educational Needs (SEN)/non-
SEN gap – achieving Key Stage 2 English and 
Maths threshold 

DCSF DSO  

NI 105 The Special Educational Needs (SEN)/non-
SEN gap – achieving 5 A*-C GCSE inc. 
English and Maths 

DCSF DSO  

NI 106 Young people from low income backgrounds 
progressing to higher education 

PSA 11  

NI 107 Key Stage 2 attainment for Black and minority 
ethnic groups 

DCSF DSO  

NI 108 Key Stage 4 attainment for Black and minority 
ethnic groups 

DCSF DSO  

NI 109 Number of Sure Start Children’s Centres DCSF DSO  

 
 

Children & Young People:  Make a Positive Contribution 
 
 Indicator PSA / DSO Reported to 

CYPSP   

NI 110  Young people’s participation in positive activities PSA 14 Participation 
in youth 
service at 
each 
meeting 
from Oct 07 

NI 111 First time entrants to the Youth Justice System 
aged 10 – 17 

PSA 14 Reported at 
each 
meeting as 
from 
October 07 

NI 112 Under 18 conception rate PSA 14 Reported at 
each 
meeting 
[1047SC] 
Mandatory 
target in 
07/08 LAA 

NI 113 Prevalence of Chlamydia in under 20 year olds DCSF DSO Optional 
target in 
07/08 LAA 

NI 114 Rate of permanent exclusions from school DCSF DSO % half days 
missed 
reported 
each 
meeting 

Page 68



13 

 Indicator PSA / DSO Reported to 
CYPSP   

NI 115 Substance misuse by young people PSA 14  

 
 

Children & Young People:  Economic Well being 
 
 Indicator PSA / DSO Reported to 

CYPSP   

NI 116  Proportion of children in poverty PSA 9  

NI 117 16 to 18 year olds who are not in education, 
training or employment (NEET 

PSA 14 Stretch 
target 
Reported at 
each 
meeting 

NI 118 Take up of formal childcare by low-income working 
families 

DWP DSO  

 
 

Adult Health and Well Being 
 
 Indicator PSA / DSO Reported to 

CYPSP   

NI 126 Early access for women to maternity services PSA 19  

 
 

Tackling Exclusion and Promoting Equality 
 
 Indicator PSA / DSO Reported to 

CYPSP   

NI 147 Care leavers in suitable accommodation PSA 16 3 x year  
[5037SC] 

NI  148 Care leavers in employment, education or training PSA 16 3 x year 
[5922SC/PA
FA4]] 

 
 

Environmental Sustainability 
 
 Indicator PSA / DSO Reported to 

CYPSP   

NI 198 Children travelling to school – mode of travel 
usually used 

DfT DSO School 
travel plans 
reported at 
each 
meeting.  
Mandatory 
indicator in 
07/08 LAA 

 
 

Page 69



14 

Public Service Agreements and Departmental Strategic 
Objectives to which the indicators relate 
 
Red = national indicators that are (or appear to be) related to children and young people’s 
services 
Green – the 16 statutory targets 

 
PSA or DSO (DSO = departmental strategic objective) 

 
National indicator 
number 

PSA 9 Halve the number of children in poverty by 2010-11, 
on the way to eradicating child poverty by 2020 

NI 116 

PSA 10 Raise the educational achievement of all children 
and young people  

NI 72, NI 73, NI 74, 
NI 75, NI 78, NI 79, 
NI 80 

PSA 11 Narrow the gap in educational achievement between 
children from low income and disadvantaged backgrounds 
and their peers 

NI 92, NI 93, NI 94, 
NI 95, NI 96, NI 97, 
NI 98, NI 99, NI 100, 
NI 101, NI 102, NI 
106 

PSA 12 Improve the health and well-being of children and 
young people  

NI 50, NI 52, NI 53, 
NI 54 

PSA 14 Increase the number of children and young people 
on the path to success 

NI 110, NI 111, NI 
112, NI 115, NI 117 

PSA 16 Increase the proportion of socially excluded adults in 
settled accommodation and employment, education or 
training 

NI 143, NI 144, NI 
145, NI 146, NI 147, 
NI 148, NI 149, NI 
150 

PSA 23 Make communities safer  NI 15, NI 16, NI 17, 
NI18, NI 19, NI 21, 
NI 26, NI 29, NI 31, 
NI 32, NI 34 

PSA 25 Reduce the harm caused by alcohol and drugs  NI 20, NI 38, NI 39, 
NI 40, NI 41, NI 42 

DCSF DSO Secure the well-being and health of children and 
young people  

NI 51, NI 55, NI 56, 
NI 57, NI 58 

DCSF DSO Close the gap in educational achievement for 
children from disadvantaged backgrounds 

NI 76, NI 77, NI 83, 
NI 84, NI 86, NI 87, 
NI 88, NI 89 

DCSF DSO Safeguard the young and vulnerable  NI 59, NI 60, NI 61, 
NI 62, NI 63, NI 64, 
NI 65, NI 66, NI 67, 
NI 68, NI 69, NI 70, 
NI 71 

DCSF DSO Achieve world class standards in education  NI 81, NI 82, NI 103, 
NI 104, NI 105, NI 
107, NI 108, NI 109 

DCSF DSO Ensure young people are participating and 
achieving their potential to 18 and beyond 

NI 85, NI 90, NI 91 

DCSF DSO Keep children and young people on the path to 
success  

NI 113, NI 114 

DfT DSO To strengthen the safety and security of transport  NI 47, NI 48 
HO DSO Help people feel secure in their homes and local 
communities  

NI 22, NI 23, NI 24, 
NI 27 

Page 70



15 

PSA or DSO (DSO = departmental strategic objective) 

 
National indicator 
number 

HO DSO Cut crime, especially violent, drug and alcohol 
related crime  

NI 28, NI 30, NI 33 

MoJ DSO Support the efficient and effective delivery of 
justice  

NI 43, NI 44, NI 45, 
NI 46 

 
 

Current key performance indicators reported to each CYPSP 
meeting but not in new national indicator set. 
 
Indicator Comment 

Infant mortality - smoking during pregnancy  [(CL)P4.1b] 
Optional target in 
2007/08 LAA 

Schools receiving Healthy Schools status [(CL) 5.3] Stretch target in LAA 

No. of children on the CPR [2023sc]  
No. of children looked after [2042sc]  

School travel plans completed  
Mandatory target in 
2007/08 LAA 

% Children looked after for 12 months or more achieving 
5+GCSE’s A*-C 

Optional target in 
2007/08 LAA 

% Children looked after for 12 months or more achieving 
5+GCSE’s A*-G 

Optional target in 
2007/08 LAA 

% of LAC aged 16+ who left care in the year with 1+ GSCE 
at grades A*-G  
KS1 Reading Level 2+  
KS1 Writing Level 2+  
KS1 Maths Level 2+  
KS2 Science Level 4+  
KS2 English Level 5+ Mandatory target in 

2007/08 LAA for 
schools in NRF area 

KS2 Maths Level 5+ Mandatory target in 
2007/08 LAA for 
schools in NRF area 

% achieving 5+ A* - C  
% achieving 1+ A* - G  
% half days missed - absence in secondary schools 

 
% half days missed - absence in primary schools  
Schools with 6th forms:  Avg point score of students entered 
for GCE/VCE A/AS  

 
 
 

Page 71



16 

APPENDIX 2  
 

Haringey Strategic Partnership – Proposed LAA Target Areas for 2008/09 
 
No. 

T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
 

B
o

a
rd

 

Haringey Target/ 
Priority  

Indicator Performance  Rationale Sustainable 
Community 

Strategy 
Priority 

GOL priorities for 
London 

1 

A
ll
 

Community 
Cohesion 

%of people who feel that their 
local area is a place where 
people from different 
backgrounds get on well 
together  

77% felt that their local 
area is a place where 
people from different 
backgrounds get on 
well together of which a 
fifth (19%) say they 
definitely agree. This is 
just about average for 
London 78% inner & 
74% outer London. 

Haringey is a multi-
cultural borough with 
many diverse 
communities,  
Community cohesion is 
a priority in our 
Community Strategy. 

People at the 
heart of change 

Community 
Cohesion  

2 

A
ll
 

Empower local 
people to have a 
greater choice and 
influence over local 
decision making & 
a greater role in 
public service 
delivery 

%of residents expressing 
satisfaction with the local 
area as a place to live 

61% are satisfied with 
their local area as a 
place to live including 1 
in 10 who say they are 
very satisfied (10%) but 
1 in 5 say they are 
dissatisfied & a similar 
proportion are neutral. 
Lower than that 
recorded in outer 
London boroughs 
(66%) & across London 
as a whole (68%) 

We want people to 
receive high quality, 
customer focused & 
accessible services that 
give value for money, 
respond to people's 
need & meet their 
aspirations.   Involving 
customers improves 
services & strengthens 
the bias for active 
citizenship & civic 
pride. 

People & 
customer 
focused 

Social Inclusion 

3 

A
ll
 

Increased 
participation 

Increased resident 
participation & involvement. 
 
The number of volunteers 
provided as part of day 
opportunities. 

Our tracker survey 
identified that 33% of 
residents are satisfied 
with the opportunities 
for participation in local 
decision making 
compared with 32% 
outer London & 27% 

Creating opportunities 
for civic engagement & 
volunteering is a priority 
in our Community 
Strategy,  It is key in 
our aim of tackling 
social isolation & 
exclusion.  Partners 

People & 
customer 
focused 

Social Inclusion 

P
a

g
e
 7

2



17 

No. 

T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
 

B
o

a
rd

 

Haringey Target/ 
Priority  

Indicator Performance  Rationale Sustainable 
Community 

Strategy 
Priority 

GOL priorities for 
London 

inner London.  41% 
agreed that they could 
influence decisions 
affecting their local 
area, slightly below the 
outer London average 
of 42%. 

identified this as a key 
area. 

4 

B
e
tt

e
r 

P
la

c
e
s
 

A cleaner 
environment 

BV199- reducing litter & 
detritus on relevant land 
BV89 Satisfaction with street 
cleanliness (survey) 

Levels of satisfaction at 
49% are below national 
levels.BV199 
cleanliness has 
improved significantly 
in 2007/08 to around 
17%, now above 
average but still well 
below national top 
quartile of 7% & 
London top quartile 
15%  

One of  our residents 
top concerns & LAA 
Stretch target in 3 
super output areas.  
This is a key priority in 
our community 
strategy. 

People at the 
heart of change 

Sustainability- CO2 
emissions, refuse 
& recycling 

5 

B
e
tt

e
r 

P
la

c
e
s
 

A greener 
environment 

Increase in the number of 
green flag award parks & 
green space & public 
satisfaction (LAA stretch 
target) 

We want our 
performance to remain 
at high levels & to 
ensure that access to 
good quality green 
space is available to all. 

Protecting & enhancing 
our open space 
creating parks & open 
space which people 
respect & enjoy is a key 
commitment in 
Haringey's Community 
Strategy 

People at the 
heart of change 

Sustainability- CO2 
emissions, refuse 
& recycling 

6 

B
e
tt

e
r 

P
la

c
e
s
 

Increase 
environmental 
sustainability 

Proportion of waste going to 
landfill. 
 
BV82 %of household waste 
recycled or composted 
 
Energy efficiency of buildings 
across partner agencies 
 

Performance on 
recycling has improved 
with 19% (above 
London average) of 
household waste 
recycled (& 4% 
composted) in 2006/07 
exceeding our statutory 
target. 

Reducing the borough's 
environmental footprint 
& tackling climate 
change is a key priority 
within our Community 
Strategy as well as a 
national priority. 

An 
environmentally 
sustainable 
future 

Sustainability- CO2 
emissions, refuse 
& recycling 

P
a
g
e
 7

3



18 

No. 

T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
 

B
o

a
rd

 

Haringey Target/ 
Priority  

Indicator Performance  Rationale Sustainable 
Community 

Strategy 
Priority 

GOL priorities for 
London 

Renewable sourcing 
7 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 &
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

's
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 

Ensure that young 
people known to 
the YOS, their 
parents/carers 
receive a parenting 
intervention  
 
Links to 
Changing Lives 
priority 11 

20% Assessment & a 
minimum of two structured 
sessions. 

61% of residents think 
that parents not taking 
responsibility for the 
behaviour of their 
children is a fairly or 
very big problem 
(worse than London 
average) 

Same as the new YJB 
target which the YOS 
will be measured on & 
highlights the need to 
enable parents to take 
a greater role in being 
responsible for the 
children’s behaviour. 
Because it covers all 
young people known to 
the YOS, it covers 
those children & young 
people at the beginning 
of offending & therefore 
plays an important role 
in stopping this 
behaviour before it 
becomes entrenched.  
Fits in with Respect 
Task Force’s focus on 
parents as key to 
reduce children & 
young people’s anti-
social behaviour.   

Safer for all Improving life 
chances for young 
people 
Social inclusion 
Children & young 
people 

8 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 &
 Y

o
u

n
g

 
P

e
o

p
le

's
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

Improve child 
health 
 
Links to 
Changing Lives 
priority 4 

Reducing the rate of infant 
mortality with particular 
emphasis on reducing the 
proportion of expectant & new 
mothers who report smoking, 
increasing breastfeeding 
initiation & booking early for 
ante natal care 

8.1 deaths of infants < 
one per 1,000 in the 
period 2003-2005.  The 
highest rate in 
London.Good progress 
on smoking cessation, 
breastfeeding initiation 
but smoking in 
pregnancy has 
worsened & is below 
target. 

Priority for CAPPS.  
Haringey Infant 
Mortality Action Plan 
agreed by Board.  
Targets on smoking 
during pregnancy & 
breast feeding reported 
to each CYPSP 
meeting.  

Healthier people 
with a better 
quality of life  

Health 
Children & young 
people 
Improving life 
chances for young 
people 

P
a

g
e
 7

4



19 

No. 

T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
 

B
o

a
rd

 

Haringey Target/ 
Priority  

Indicator Performance  Rationale Sustainable 
Community 

Strategy 
Priority 

GOL priorities for 
London 

9 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 &
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

's
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 

Reduce Teenage 
Pregnancy 
 
Links to 
Changing Lives 
priority 7 

Reduce the under –18 
conception rate by 50% as 
part of a broader strategy to 
improve sexual health (SPA) 

Conception rate of 67.5 
per 1,000 under 18's 
compared with an 
average of 47.9 for 
London & 41.6 for 
England Latest figure 
61.8 
 
The teenage 
conception rate 
decreased throughout 
2004 to 2006 following 
implementation of the 
teenage pregnancy 
strategy & 4YP 
programme.  
Achievement of future 
targets remains 
challenging as the 
teenage conception 
rate was on a steep 
upward trajectory when 
the targets were set. 

Conception rates are 
comparably high in 
Haringey, reduction in 
teenage pregnancy is 
both a priority for HSP 
& GOL, 
 
Priority for CYPSP.  
Targets on numbers of 
conceptions reported to 
each CYPSP meeting. 
 
Teenage pregnancy 
has a major impact on 
the health, well-being & 
life chances of young 
people & families, 
contributing to health & 
other inequalities.  
Reducing teenage 
pregnancy is a priority 
in the Children's Plan,  

Healthier people 
with a better 
quality of life  

Health 
Children & young 
people 
Improving life 
chances for young 
people 

10 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 &
 Y

o
u

n
g

 
P

e
o

p
le

's
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

Improve access to 
services for young 
people & parents 
that support them 
to be more 
economically 
active. 
 
Links to 
Changing Lives 
priority 18 

    Government priorities 
include encouraging 
people into work.  
Initiatives such as 
extended schools, 
increase in provision of 
childcare & benefits 
such as WAFT are 
encouraged to support 
parents in working/ 
returning to work.  

Economic vitality 
& prosperity 
shared by all 

Child poverty 
Improving chances 
for young people 

11 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 

Reduce childhood 
obesity 

Halting the rise in childhood 
obesity 

Stretch target on 
Healthy Schools. Good 

Obesity increases risk 
of an individual 

Healthier people 
& a better quality 

Improving life 
chances for young 

P
a
g
e
 7

5



20 

No. 

T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
 

B
o

a
rd

 

Haringey Target/ 
Priority  

Indicator Performance  Rationale Sustainable 
Community 

Strategy 
Priority 

GOL priorities for 
London 

 
Links to 
Changing Lives 
priority 5 

progress made over 
2006/07. Currently 
have 21 schools that 
have achieved healthy 
schools status. 

experiencing poor 
health & well-being.    
Preventing obesity by 
increasing physical 
activity & balanced 
diets requires action 
across the partnership.  
Initial data suggests 
that childhood obesity 
is a priority in Haringey 
(11% of reception 
children & 22% of year 
6 children being obese 
in 2006), obesity being 
more prevalent 
amongst children living 
in deprived areas & 
from particular BMS 
communities. 

of life people 
Health 
Children & Young 
People 

12 

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 B

o
a
rd

/ 
C

h
il
d

re
n

 &
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

's
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 Reduce the 
number of young 
people between 
the ages of 16 & 
19 who are not in 
education, 
employment or 
training, especially 
those looked after 
by the local 
authority. 
 
Links to 
Changing Lives 
priority 19 

Reducing 16-18 year olds not 
in education, employment & 
training (NEETs) 
 
Targets on % Children looked 
after (LAC) for 12 months or 
more achieving 5+GCSE’s 
A*-C; % LAC for 12 months 
or more achieving 5+GCSE’s 
A*-G & % of LAC aged 16+ 
who left care in the year with 
1+ GCSE at grades A*-G 
reported regularly to CYPSP.  
Annual statistical return to 
DCSF includes information on 
number of LAC for a year or 
more not in education, 

Haringey’s NEETs at 
July 2007 are 13.2%. 
Haringey’s NEETs are 
considerably higher 
than those in 
comparator boroughs. 
Extracts from NEET 
data reported by 
neighbouring boroughs 
in June '07 are Barnet 
4.2%, Enfield 6.9% & 
Waltham Forest 6.3%. 

NEETS is major priority 
for Haringey, where 
rates remain above 
national averages.  
Future life chances for 
young people not 
employed or in 
education / training are 
poor, as are those of 
any of their children 
when they become 
parents.  Government 
wants to see improved 
educational attainment 
rates for all young 
people & especially 
those who are LAC, 

Economic vitality 
& prosperity 
shared by all 

Child poverty 
Improving chances 
for young people 

P
a

g
e
 7

6



21 

No. 

T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
 

B
o

a
rd

 

Haringey Target/ 
Priority  

Indicator Performance  Rationale Sustainable 
Community 

Strategy 
Priority 

GOL priorities for 
London 

employment or training.  supported by Every 
Child Matters 
programme & 
legislation such as the 
Children Act 1989 & 
Children Leaving Care 
Act 2001 
Council has 
responsibility as 
corporate parent to 
LAC.  

13 

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 B

o
a
rd

 

Reduce 
Worklessness 

Increasing the overall 
employment rate of the 
working age 
population.Reducing the 
benefit claim rate amongst 
people claiming Job Seekers 
Allowance, Incapacity Benefit 
& Income Support who also 
live in the wards identified as 
having the worst labour 
market position. 

Haringey’s employment 
rate at 66.2% (05/06) is 
slightly below the 
London average of 
68.6% (middle quartile) 
& the England average 
of 74.4% but has 
increased by 4.2 
%points over the past 
year.  Although recent 
Labour Force survey 
results have shown a 
real leap forward in this 
area from 63.1% in 
Quarter 3 2005 to 
72.9% in Quarter 1 
2007, we need to 
understand if this 
improvement is real & 
what the contributory 
factors are. 

These are the three 
main benefits in relation 
to worklessness & will 
provide a sharper focus 
than concentrating on 
working age benefits as 
a whole, which include 
benefits, such as 
Carers Allowance, 
where increasing the 
take up could be seen 
as a positive outcome.  
Together, Job Seekers 
Allowance, Incapacity 
Benefits & Income 
Support make up 92 
per cent of the working 
age benefit caseload in 
Haringey. 

Economic vitality 
& prosperity 
shared by all 

Worklessness is a 
GOL priority for 
London with 
employment & 
enterprise as a 
target area for 
Haringey.  Also 
identified as a 
priority in the 
Haringey 
Community 
Strategy. 

14 

E
n

te
rp

ri
s

e
 

Maximising Income Increasing the number of in-
work families claiming 
Working Families Tax Credit 
& Child Tax Credit. 

The take up of Working 
Families Tax Credit & 
Child Tax Credit in 
London is the lowest in 

The take up of Working 
Families Tax Credit & 
Child Tax Credit in 
London is the lowest in 

Economic vitality 
& prosperity 
shared by all 

Worklessness is a 
GOL priority for 
London with 
employment & 

P
a
g
e
 7

7



22 

No. 

T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
 

B
o

a
rd

 

Haringey Target/ 
Priority  

Indicator Performance  Rationale Sustainable 
Community 

Strategy 
Priority 

GOL priorities for 
London 

the country.  The take 
up in Haringey is even 
lower.  Promoting the 
take-up of this benefit 
will incentivise work & 
help those on low 
earnings to lift 
themselves further 
away from poverty. 

the country.  The take 
up in Haringey is even 
lower.  Promoting the 
take-up of this benefit 
will incentivise work & 
help those on low 
earnings to lift 
themselves further 
away from poverty. 

enterprise as a 
target area for 
Haringey.   

15 

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o

a
rd

 Increasing 
economic vitality 

Increasing the number of 
newly registered VAT 
enterprises.Increasing the 
self employment rate. 

This is not generally 
seen as an area of poor 
comparative 
performance. Self 
Employment at 20.5% 
was top quartile & 
business start ups per 
10,000 at 46.9 was 
middle quartile. 

HSP priority  Economic vitality 
& prosperity 
shared by all 

Worklessness is a 
GOL priority for 
London with 
employment & 
enterprise as a 
target area for 
Haringey.   

16 

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 B

o
a
rd

 

Increase the 
number of 
unemployed 
people assisted in 
their skills 
development  

Number of adults gaining 
basic skills; adults achieving 
a Skills for Life qualification & 
entered employment, adults 
achieving a Skills for Life 
qualification at entry Levels 1-
3 or above & entered 
employment, adults achieving 
a level one qualification (not 
Skills for Life) & entered 
employment, adults achieving 
a Skills for Life qualification at 
entry levels 1-3 or above in 
the workplace. 
 
Number of adults who are 
supported in a achieving at 
least a full first level two 

  40% of Haringey 
residents have Level 1 
or below skills & low 
skills are recognised as 
a significant barrier to 
sustainable 
employment.  With the 
growing knowledge 
economy people with 
low or no skills need to 
up skill to gain 
employment. 

Economic vitality 
& prosperity 
shared by all 

Worklessness is a 
GOL priority for 
London with 
employment & 
enterprise as a 
target area for 
Haringey.   

P
a

g
e
 7

8



23 

No. 

T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
 

B
o

a
rd

 

Haringey Target/ 
Priority  

Indicator Performance  Rationale Sustainable 
Community 

Strategy 
Priority 

GOL priorities for 
London 

qualification or equivalent; 
adults achieving a full level 
two qualification & entered 
employment, adults achieving 
a full first level two 
qualification & entered 
employment, adults achieving 
a full first level two or level 
three qualification in the 
workplace. 

17 

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 H
o

u
s

in
g

 B
o

a
rd

 

Increase Housing 
Supply 

50% of all additional housing 
to be affordable, this includes 
all additional housing not just 
that secured through planning 
obligationsAverage time 
taken to re-let an available 
local authority permanent 
dwelling Progress against 
statutory housing targets 
(New builds, conversions & 
voids) 

Average re-let times 
2006/07 37 days, at 
June 2008 36.2 days. 
This is below average 
& bottom quartile 
performance for 
London. 

Haringey has high 
levels of housing need 
& homelessness & 
tackling housing need 
is a key priority in our 
sustainable community 
strategy. The needs of 
our communities should 
be at the heart of 
decision making.  We 
want to see clear 
benefits resulting from 
development & 
regeneration. We will 
continue to increase 
the availability of 
affordable housing & 
decent housing & foster 
the development of 
sustainable mixed 
communities. Haringey 
has high levels of 
overcrowding & we will 
need larger size 
properties to address 
this need, 

People at the 
heart of change 

Social Inclusion 

P
a
g
e
 7

9



24 

No. 

T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
 

B
o

a
rd

 

Haringey Target/ 
Priority  

Indicator Performance  Rationale Sustainable 
Community 

Strategy 
Priority 

GOL priorities for 
London 

18 

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 H
o

u
s

in
g

 B
o

a
rd

 

Increase Decent 
Homes 

BV184 %of Local Authority 
homes classified as non 
decent. 
 
Achieve decent homes 
standard for all social housing 
 

42.58% of LA homes 
non-decent at 1 April 
2007 (bottom quartile) 

Haringey’s most 
disadvantaged groups 
are not benefiting as 
they should from health 
improvements.  Wider 
factors such as sub 
standard or inadequate 
housing have negative 
impacts upon health.  It 
is a key priority in our 
community strategy to 
both meet the decent 
homes standard & to 
improve the borough's 
housing stock in 
general, especially for 
our most vulnerable 
households. 

Healthier People 
with a better 
quality of life 

Community 
Cohesion & 
Immigration 
Social Inclusion 

19 

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 H
o

u
s

in
g

 
B

o
a
rd

 

Reducing 
Households in 
Temporary 
accommodation 

Reduction in the number of 
households in temporary 
accommodation & prevent 
homelessness in a 
sustainable way for 
households approaching the 
local authority with a housing 
issue 

Current number of 
households in 
temporary 
accommodation is 
5,500 

The reduction of 
temporary 
accommodation is a 
government target & it 
is a key priority in our 
community strategy to 
increase the levels of 
safe, settled & 
affordable housing. 

Healthier People 
with a better 
quality of life 

People in 
temporary 
accommodation 

20 

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 H
o

u
s

in
g

 
B

o
a
rd

 

Ensure that 
vulnerable people 
have decent, 
energy efficient 
homes 

Improve living conditions for 
vulnerable people ensuring 
that housing is made decent, 
energy efficient & safe (LAA 
Target) 

The proportion of local 
authority homes which 
were non decent at 1st 
April is 42.58% 

It is a key priority for 
the Haringey Strategic 
Partnership to improve 
wellbeing & assist 
people to remain safe, 
warm & independent in 
their own home. 
Ensuring that our 
homes are energy 

Healthier people 
& a better quality 
of life 
 
Environmentally 
sustainable 
future 

Social inclusion 

P
a

g
e
 8

0



25 

No. 

T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
 

B
o

a
rd

 

Haringey Target/ 
Priority  

Indicator Performance  Rationale Sustainable 
Community 

Strategy 
Priority 

GOL priorities for 
London 

efficient & that people 
have access to 
affordable warmth are 
also key priorities.  

21 

S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

 

Increase victim 
support 
 
Links to 
Changing Lives 
priority 11. 

An increase in the uptake of 
victim support services by 
children & young people.  

TBA If children & young 
people who are victims 
of youth crime are not 
supported & assisted to 
recover from this, some 
young people are at 
high risk of becoming 
young offenders 
themselves. To stop 
this cycle we need to 
put protective 
measures in place – 
hence the important of 
this target. This links 
very well to the Met-
wide Operation Curb, to 
the prevention of 
serious youth crime, & 
to reduce the number 
of young people joining 
gangs. Piorities for the 
Police. YOS will work 
closely with Victim 
Support to ensure all 
children & young 
people who are a victim 
of youth crime are 
offered a service that is 
safe & confidential.   

Be Safer for all Respect/ Cohesion 
Improving life 
chances for young 
people 
Social inclusion 
(including 
resettlement of 
offenders) 

P
a
g
e
 8

1



26 

No. 

T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
 

B
o

a
rd

 

Haringey Target/ 
Priority  

Indicator Performance  Rationale Sustainable 
Community 

Strategy 
Priority 

GOL priorities for 
London 

22 

S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

 

Reduce drug 
related crime 

X (Number) of Problem Drug 
Users (PDUs) to be housed in 
Supported Housing schemes 
X (Number) of PDUs to be 
placed in HfH tenancies 
X (Number) of PDUs to be 
housed via DAAT Rent 
Deposit scheme  
X (Number) of PDUs entering 
ETE (Kinesis, CONEL, 
Progress 2 Work, etc) 

People using or dealing 
drugs is a significant 
concern for over a 
quarter of residents as 
are teenagers hanging 
around on the streets. 

Covers drugs & 
alcohol; ‘support’ part 
also covers assistance 
to gain employment.  
Housing & employment 
appear to be the two 
most important 
strengthening factors 
that enable 
rehabilitation to be 
successful. Economic 
Regeneration & 
regional partners 
developing a project re 
families into work; this 
will improve cross-
cutting work to 
implement a multi-
systemic approach 
including housing, 
treatment, skills, 
employment etc.  
Supporting People 
agree stable housing is 
crucial to this group of 
people, to enable the 
support/wrap around 
services including 
treatment, health, skills/ 
employment etc. Issue 
for Haringey in 
providing effective wrap 
around support service 
to ex offenders & 
substance misusers & 
unless this is done the 

Safer for all 
Healthier people 
with a better 
quality of life. 

Improving life 
chances for young 
people 
Community 
cohesion  
Social inclusion 

P
a

g
e
 8

2



27 

No. 

T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
 

B
o

a
rd

 

Haringey Target/ 
Priority  

Indicator Performance  Rationale Sustainable 
Community 

Strategy 
Priority 

GOL priorities for 
London 

social inclusion, 
community cohesion, 
crime agenda cannot 
be addressed. London 
Resettlement Strategy 
work will help support 
this target, & 
Government’s new 
Draft Drugs Strategy. 
This is cross-
partnership target that 
covers more than one 
strand in LAA. 

23 

S
a
fe r Reduce Domestic 

Violence: 
Reduce repeat 
victimisationReduce 

Repeat domestic 
violence victimisation - 

Haringey has had 
several homicides 

Safer for 
allHealthier 

Improving life 
chances for young 

P
a
g
e
 8

3



28 

No. 

T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
 

B
o

a
rd

 

Haringey Target/ 
Priority  

Indicator Performance  Rationale Sustainable 
Community 

Strategy 
Priority 

GOL priorities for 
London 

homicides caused by 
DVIncrease reporting of DV 

as at 06/07 was 201 
incidents. There were 
2139 incidents of DV 
which resulted in 
sanctioned detections 

through DV over past 
year or so & these 
cause considerable 
trauma for children & 
the extended family – 
effects on health 

people with a 
better quality of 
life. 

people 
Community 
cohesionSocial 
inclusion Violence 
against the person 

24 

S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

 

Reduce harm 
caused  by illegal 
drugs 

Increase the participation of 
problem drug users in drug 
treatment programme by 
100% by 2008 (from a 1998 
baseline) & increase year on 
year the proportion of users 
successfully sustaining or 
completing treatment 
programmes 

 49% of residents 
considered people 
using or dealing drugs 
a very or fairly big 
problem.  The 06/07 
target of 1,343 problem 
drug users in treatment  
was achieved & 68% 
were retained in 
treatment for 12 wks + 
close to 70% target.   
Target of 75% set for 
2007/08. 

People using or dealing 
drugs is a significant 
concern for over a 
quarter of residents. 

Safer  for all  Health 
Social inclusion 
Improving life 
chances for young 
people 

25 

S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

 

Reduce premature 
deaths from 
accidents & injuries 
(focus on children 
& young people 
under 25) 
 
Links to 
Changing Lives 
priority 8. 

Reduce number of people 
killed or seriously injured in 
Great Britain in road 
accidents by 40% & number 
of children killed or seriously 
injured by 50%, by 2010 
(compared with average for 
1994-98), tackling the 
significantly higher incidence 
in disadvantaged 
communities (PSA 5) 
 Decrease the number of 
accidental dwelling fires (sub-
target of Decent Homes 
Outcome) (LAA Target) 
 
Increase domestic fire safety 

117 people killed or 
seriously injured in 
2006 up from 94 in 
2005 but a reduction on 
the 131 in 2004. 3 year 
average of 114 for 
2004-06 shows positive 
trajectory. 19 children 
killed or seriously 
injured in 2004, 15 in 
2005 & 16 in 2006 
average nationally 22. 
Satisfactory progress 
being made in this area 
& on track to meet 
Mayor of London's 
tougher targets. 

Road safety is an on-
going priority with a 
special focus from the 
Mayor’s Road Safety 
Plan aimed at reducing 
casualties by 50% by 
2010.  

Safer for all Improving life 
chances for young 
people 
Health 
Children & Young 
People 

P
a

g
e
 8

4



29 

No. 

T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
 

B
o

a
rd

 

Haringey Target/ 
Priority  

Indicator Performance  Rationale Sustainable 
Community 

Strategy 
Priority 

GOL priorities for 
London 

& reduce arson (LAA Target) 
 
School Travel Plans 

26 

S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

 

Reduce overall 
crime 
 
Links to 
Changing Lives 
priority 11 

Overall Crime rateReducing 
the proportion of young 
offenders & prolific & other 
priority young offenders who 
re-offend.Reduce knife, gun & 
gang crime committed by 
young people  

Reduction of 10.6% in 
British Crime Survey 
comparator crimes in 
06/07. 5% reduction in 
burglary, 6% in 
personal robbery, 15% 
in Assaults & 10.7% in 
Vehicle Crime. 
However Haringey 
remains a high crime 
area & stats per 1,000 
households are much 
higher than Engl& NRF 
LA averages Burglaries 
28.2 Eng Avg 13.8 NRF 
LAs Avg 19.3Robberies 
9 Eng Avg 1.9 & NRF 
LAs Avg 3.4Vehicle 
Crimes 22.3 Eng Avg 
13.5 & NRF LAs Avg 
17.959.2% young 
offenders re-offending 
in 2006/07 

Crime has been 
steadily decreasing in 
Haringey but it still 
remains a key concern 
for our residents & the 
reduction of crime is a 
priority in the 
Community Strategy.    

Safer for all Violence against 
the person 

27 

S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

 Reduce the 
number of first time 
entrants to the 
youth justice 
system  
 
Links to 
Changing Lives 
priority 11 

(YJB will provide % or 
numbers) 
 
Identifying children & young 
people at risk of offending or 
involvement in anti-social 
behaviour, completing 
assessments & effective 
interventions to reduce the 
risks & strengthen the 

  Plays important role in 
youth crime prevention 
– pulling children & 
young people away 
from offending 
behaviour at an early 
stage when this is more 
likely to be successful – 
with the support of the 
partners. Very 

Safer for all Improving life 
chances for young 
people 
Community 
cohesion  
Social inclusion 
(including 
resettlement of 
offenders) 

P
a
g
e
 8

5



30 

No. 

T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
 

B
o

a
rd

 

Haringey Target/ 
Priority  

Indicator Performance  Rationale Sustainable 
Community 

Strategy 
Priority 

GOL priorities for 
London 

protective factors. important for 
Government, our SCEB 
partnership, local 
residents & businesses. 
It also lessens the need 
for the higher cost (to 
agencies + to victims), 
resource-intensive 
services for the more 
serious young 
offenders.  We would 
look to refer young 
people receiving 
reprimands for 
interventions, & 
encourage Safer 
Neighbourhood Police 
teams & Safer Schools 
Police Officers to refer 
more children & young 
people for interventions 
– would need a criteria 
for both of these.  

28 

W
e
ll
-B

e
in

g
 

Reduce alcohol 
related harms 
across health & 
crime. 

Actual targets to be 
developed – according to 
both local & national alcohol 
strategies 

  Alcohol misuse is a 
strong factor in health 
inequalities & a driver 
for certain key priority 
crimes (ASB, Violent 
crime, Domestic 
Violence etc). It is also 
a factor in harm to 
children – both through 
parents abusing alcohol 
(CP issues) & young 
people binge drinking – 
affecting mental & 

Safer for 
allHealthier 
people with a 
better quality of 
life. 

Health 
Violence against 
the person 
Improving life 
chances for young 
people 

P
a

g
e
 8

6



31 

No. 

T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
 

B
o

a
rd

 

Haringey Target/ 
Priority  

Indicator Performance  Rationale Sustainable 
Community 

Strategy 
Priority 

GOL priorities for 
London 

physical health plus 
educational attainment. 
Alcohol abuse also 
results in 
unemployment, loss of 
family & general 
economic problems – 
leads to social 
exclusion & damages 
the wider area 
economic development. 
Street drinkers & young 
people abusing alcohol 
rapidly bring an area 
into disrepute & the 
resultant anti-social 
behaviour encourages 
low level of crime to 
take hold. 

29 

W
e
ll
b

e
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

Increase 
opportunities for 
people to live 
independently 

Older people helped to live at 
home per 1,000 population 
aged 65 or over (PAF C32) 
 
Adults & older people 
receiving direct payments at 
31 March per 100,000 
population aged 18 or over 
(age standardised) (PAF 
C51) 
 
%of items & equipment & 
adaptations delivered within 7 
working days (social services) 
(PAF D54) 
 
Number of older people 

Paf C32  93.1 Band 4 
good but trend currently 
moving in wrong 
direction 
Paf C51 138 Band 4 
good, target of 150 for 
March 2008  
Paf D54 88.4% Band 5, 
target of 90% for 
2007/08 

The White Papers 
Modernising Social 
Services, Valuing 
People & Our Health, 
Our Care, Our Say set 
out the Government's 
aims to promote the 
independence & social 
participation of users of 
social care services. 
Supporting people in 
their own homes is a 
key part of this agenda.  

Healthier people 
with a better 
quality of life 

Health 
Social inclusion 

P
a
g
e
 8

7



32 

No. 

T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
 

B
o

a
rd

 

Haringey Target/ 
Priority  

Indicator Performance  Rationale Sustainable 
Community 

Strategy 
Priority 

GOL priorities for 
London 

attending day opportunities 
programmes 

30 

W
e
ll
b

e
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

Reduce physical 
inactivity 

Increase the proportion of 
adults taking part in sport & 
recreational physical activity 
for 30 minutes on at least 3 
days a week by 4%, from 
22.9% to 26.9% (LAA 
Target)Reduce premature 
mortality with specific 
emphasis on circulatory 
disease & cancer (FL) 
increasing male life 
expectancy 

  The Choosing Health 
White Paper & other 
research identify the 
relationship between 
reducing physical 
inactivity & ill health & 
premature mortality. 
Haringey’s Life 
Expectancy Action Plan 
has highlighted that 
within Haringey, an 
estimated 78% of  
adults are insufficiently 
active.  

Healthier people 
& a better quality 
of life 

Health 

31 

W
e
ll
b

e
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

Reduce the 
number of people 
who smoke, and 
the number of 
people exposed to 
second-hand 
smoke 

 Increase the number of 
smokers who set a quit date 
& successfully quit & four 
weeks follow up with NHS 
stop-smoking services (LDP) 
 
 Achieve 150 additional 
quitters from N17 
(Tottenham) between 2007/8 
& 2009/10 (LAA Target) 
 
Reduce premature mortality 
with specific emphasis on 
circulatory disease & cancer 
(FL) increasing male life 
expectancy 

Mortality rates for 
cancer (122.1) & 
circulatory diseases 
(114.1) are above the 
average for London 
(116.9 & 96.8) & 
England (119 & 90.5).  

The Choosing Health 
White Paper & other 
research identify the 
relationship between 
smoking & ill health & 
premature mortality. 
Furthermore,  
Haringey’s Life 
Expectancy Action Plan 
states that lower life 
expectancy for men & 
women in Haringey 
compared to England & 
Wales is statistically 
significant. 

Healthier people 
& a better quality 
of life 

Health 

32 

W
e
ll
b

e
in

g
 Reduce premature 

mortality 
TBC- possibly combining all 
age all cause mortality, CVD 
& cancer mortality. 

Life expectancy is 
lower in Haringey 
compared to both 

Analysis for Haringey’s 
Life Expectancy Action 
Plan suggests that 

Healthier people 
with a better 
quality of life 

Health 

P
a

g
e
 8

8



33 

No. 

T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
 

B
o

a
rd

 

Haringey Target/ 
Priority  

Indicator Performance  Rationale Sustainable 
Community 

Strategy 
Priority 

GOL priorities for 
London 

England & Wales 
particularly for males 
where at least 3 years 
below the average for 
London & up to 10 
years lower in particular 
wards. 

lower life expectancy 
for men in Haringey 
compared to England & 
Wales is statistically 
significant, & that the 
gap in male life 
expectancy for men in 
deprived compared to 
affluent wards is nearly 
8 years.  The action 
plan sets out 
interventions across the 
partnership that will 
contribute to reducing 
this gap.  Key priority in 
the Well-Being 
Strategic Framework. 

33 

W
e
ll
b

e
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
  

Provide support for 
unpaid carers, 
including preparing 
for when they are 
no longer able to 
care  

Increase breaks for 
CarersIncrease the number of 
carers receiving a specific 
carer’s service as a %of 
clients receiving community 
based services (PAF C62) 

PAF C62 6.8% 2006/07 
below IPF neighbours 
average of 13% & 
England average of 
11%. July 07 year 
projection to 9.4%, 
below target but in 
band 4 (good).  This is 
an improvement on 
06/07. 

Under the Carers’ 
(Recognition & 
Services) Act 1995, 
Carers’ & Disabled 
Children Act 2000 & 
Work & Families Act 
2006, carers have a 
right to support with 
their education, leisure, 
training & employment 
needs as well as 
support to enable their 
caring role. 

Healthier people 
with a better 
quality of life  

Health 

34 

W
e
ll
b

e
in

g
 

P
a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
  Develop housing 

related support 
services for 
vulnerable people 

Increase the proportion of 
vulnerable single people 
supported to live 
independently who as a result 
do not need to be accepted 
as homeless . 

  This is one of the 
specific objectives of 
the Supporting People 
Programme.    

Healthier people 
with a better 
quality of life 

Social Inclusion 

P
a
g
e
 8

9



34 

No. 

T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
 

B
o

a
rd

 

Haringey Target/ 
Priority  

Indicator Performance  Rationale Sustainable 
Community 

Strategy 
Priority 

GOL priorities for 
London 

 
Reduce housing related 
delayed discharges from 
hospital as part of joint Mental 
Health Strategy & for older 
people & all vulnerable 
groups 

35 

W
e
ll
b

e
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
/C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 
P

e
o

p
le

's
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 

Improve  sexual 
health 
 
Links to 
Changing Lives 
priority 7 

Increase access to GUM 
services so that 100% of 
patients are offered an 
appointment within 48 hours 
of contacting the service by 
March 2008 (LDP) 
 
Increase the number of NHS 
funded terminations of 
pregnancy undertaken at up 
to & including nine completed 
weeks gestation (LDP) 
 
Increase the uptake of 
Chlamydia screening 
amongst young people aged 
15-24 years to ensure that 
over 4760 young people of 
this age group accept the 
offer of a test in 2007/8 (LDP) 

Increase the uptake of 
Chlamydia screening 
amongst sexually 
active 15-24 year olds - 
06/07 out-turn 600. 

Adoption of safer 
sexual practices & 
access to effective 
sexual health services 
can prevent unwanted 
pregnancy & sexually 
transmitted infections, 
& improve health & 
well-being.  Much of 
this work takes place 
outside traditional 
health care settings 
e.g. in schools & 
community settings.   

Healthier people 
& a better quality 
of life 

Improving life 
chances for young 
people 
Health 
Children & Young 
People 

36 

W
e
ll
b

e
in

g
 

P
a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
/C

h
il
d

re
n

 

Protect children & 
adults by 
increasing 
immunisation rates 
 
Links to 
Changing Lives 
priority 5 

Increase uptake of the 
childhood immunisation 
schedule. Increase the 
uptake of flu immunisation 
amongst individuals aged 
over 65 years to 70%.  

  Immunisation is cost-
effective way of 
protecting individuals 
from infectious 
diseases.  IT problems 
with the child health 
surveillance system, & 
parental concerns over 
the publicised link 

Healthier people 
& a better quality 
of life 

Health 

P
a

g
e
 9

0



35 

No. 

T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
 

B
o

a
rd

 

Haringey Target/ 
Priority  

Indicator Performance  Rationale Sustainable 
Community 

Strategy 
Priority 

GOL priorities for 
London 

between MMR & 
autism, may have 
resulted in a fall in 
immunisation uptake 
leaving a large number 
of children at risk of 
avoidable but 
potentially serious 
diseases.   Increasing 
uptake will require 
action across the 
partnership e.g. in 
collaboration with 
children's & adult's 
services. 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 9

1



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM    
  

 
MEETING 
 

Children and Young People's Strategic Partnership Board 
10 December 2007 

 
  
TITLE 

Monitoring of Changing Lives and the LAA 
 

 
SUMMARY 
 
Attached are the key performance indicators for Changing Lives for October 2007.   
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the CYPS review and comment on the key performance indicators 
 
 
LEAD OFFICER(S) 
 
Sharon Shoesmith,  
Director  
The Children & Young People’s Service 
 
 
 
 
Monitoring of Changing Lives  
 
1 Key Performance Indicators 
 
1.1 Attached at appendix 1 is the summary of key performance indicators (PI) for 
Changing Lives.  Only two indicators are at red. 
 
1.2 The number of children on the child protection register is red, and was also red at 
the time of the last report to the CYPSP, but it is reducing.  In August there were 213 

for children & young people 

Agenda Item 9Page 93



2 

children on the register (43.5 per 10,000 children) and in October there are 193 (39.4 per 
10,000 children).  However this is still above the target of 149 (30 per 10,000 children).   
 
1.3 The percentage of young people with closed disposal episodes who are in 
education, training or education (ETE) is also red as it is below the target of 73.6%.  This is 
the first time it has been included in the table of key performance indicators.  At the last 
meeting it was put forward as a suggested addition to the key indicator set.  At that time 
the percentage of young people with closed disposal episodes who were ETE was also 
69.1%.  So there is no change this time.   
 
1.4 All other RAG ratings in the key indicators remain the same, though there have 
been some changes in the figures since August.  Children looked after have shown an 
increase in the percentages achieving 5+GCSE’s at A*-G (from 21% to 27.5%) and is still 
well above the London average.  There has also been an increase in those leaving care 
with 1+ GCSE at A*-G (from 40% to 43%), though this is still below the London average.   
 
1.5 The percentage NEET is showing a decrease since the last report to CYPSP  (from 
13.2% to 10.8%).  A separate report on NEETS will be made to the December meeting of 
the CYPSP.   
 
 
2 Changing Lives Performance Monitoring Document  
 
2.1 This document contains a wider range of performance indicators and updates on 
progress with the priorities in Changing Lives.    
 
2.2 The current edition represents the mid year update.  Five of these performance 
indicators are showing red.  One of these six is the child protection indicator mentioned in 
1.2 above.  Others include the percentage of children looked after who missed 25 days 
schooling and the % with final warnings and convictions.  In both cases the current figures 
are showing an increase on the 2005/06 outcome and are above the average for 
Haringey’s statistical neighbour group.  The stability of placements, as measured by being 
in the same placement over 2 years or more, is also showing red.  The figure was above 
that of our statistical neighbours, but has dropped back recently and is still below the 
target.  Finally although the percentage of children looked after 5 or more  GCSEs at A*-C 
or a GNVQ is above the national average and lat year’s outturn it still below the target.   
 
 
3 Funding 
 
3.1 The LAA funding steams which were pooled by Government include some grants 
which will end in March 2008.  The Neighbourhood Regeneration Fund (NRF) and the 
Neighbourhood Support Fund (NSF) are both in their final year so the future of 
programmes currently supported by these funds will need consideration.  Government 
funding proposals for next year include a new grant called ‘working neighbourhoods fund’.  
However the criteria for this grant have not been announced so it is unclear whether any of 
the existing programmes will be eligible fro funding through this grant.  
 
3.2 For services for children and young people the projects affected are as follows:   

Page 94



3 

 
Project Title HSP approved 

expenditure 
2007/08 

Project Management 
Lead  Agency 

Fundin
g 
stream 

Improving Literacy £119,900 Haringey Council, 
Children & Young 
People's Service 

NRF 

Parental Involvement £141,950 Haringey Council, 
Children & Young 
People's Service 

NRF 

Youth Inclusion and Support Panel 
(YISP) 

£72,750 Metropolitan Police & 
Haringey Council, 
Community Safety 
Team 

NRF 

Young Persons and Ethnic Minority 
Dev Project 

£38,759 Haringey Victim 
Support (external 
agency) 

NRF 

Reparation Project £42,750 Haringey Council, 
Youth Offending 
Service 

NRF 

Creating Opportunities for Better 
Living/Breakfast Clubs 

£114,650 Haringey Council, 
Voluntary & 
Community Sector 
Team 

NRF 

Teenage Pregnancy, Sexual Health  
& Parental Support  

£102,750 Haringey Council, 
Children & Young 
People's Service 

NRF 

4YP and Family Planning Nurse £64,250 Haringey Teaching 
Primary Care Trust  

NRF 

Youth Offending Service £292,000 Haringey Council, 
Youth Offending 
Service 

NRF 

Positive Futures £87,750 Haringey Council, 
Children & Young 
People's Service 

NRF 

YOS Parenting Worker £42,750 Haringey Council, 
Youth Offending 
Service  

NRF 

Support to Supplementary and 
Community Schools 

£12,750 Haringey Council, 
Children & Young 
People's Service  

NRF 

Exposure  £28,225 Haringey Council, 
Children & Young 
People's Service 

NSF 

 
 
3.3 The Council’s  Policy, Performance, Partnerships and Communications Service are 
currently collecting together information on all the programmes affected to get an overview 
of the situation.  Further developments are unclear at this stage 
 
 
 
s:\cs\dirf\allf\delivery and performance\cypsp\supporting material\2007\summaryofkeyperformanceindicators-
coverdec07v21.doc 
 

Page 95



4 

APPENDIX 1 - MANAGEMENT INDICATORS FOR THE CHILDREN’S SERVICE 
A Summary of Key Indicators for Children’s Social Care October 07 
  

Ref 
 
Description 

SN  
2006/07 

YTD 
Outturn 
(end Oct) 

07/08 
Target 

R 
A 
G 

1 Be Healthy 
1047SC/ 
LAA* 

Number of Conceptions amongst 15-17 year olds 
per 1000 population 
 

SN 05  

59 

National 

05 41.1 

 

2005 

data  

62.5 

 
2002-04 
Baseline 

72.9 

 
A 
é 

 
A 

2 Be Healthy 
(CL)P4.1b&
c/ LAA* 

Infant Mortality (measured quarterly) 
- smoking during pregnancy 

- breast feeding  

 Quarter 2 
6.7% 

 87.9% 

07/08  
5% 

81% G 

B
E

 H
E

A
L

T
H

Y
 

3 Be Healthy 
(CL)5.3 

 
Schools receiving Healthy Schools status 

 
 

 
21 

 

 
47  

60% Dec07 
(Dec 07)  

 
A 

4 Stay Safe 
2020sc  

% of initial assessments completed in timescale 68% 91% 78% G 
é 

5 Stay Safe 
2022sc 

% of core assessments completed in timescale 79% 83% 74% G
é 

6 Stay Safe 
2023sc 

 
Number of Children on the CPR (Figure in 
brackets relates to rate per 10,000 population) 

 
 

(34) 

 
193 

(39.4) 

 
149 
(30) 

 
R 
ê   

7 Stay Safe 
2034sc 

% of Children on the CPR reviewed in timescale 99.8% 100% 100% G 
è 

8 Stay Safe 
2042sc 

Number of Children Looked After (LAC) (Figure in 
brackets relates to rate per 10,000 population) 

(95.9) 421 
(86) 

422 
(85) 

G 
é 

9 Stay Safe 
2043sc 

% of LAC with 3+ placements in the year 12% 16% 2% A
è 

10 Stay Safe 
2059sc 

Adoptions/Special Guardianship Orders (figure in 
brackets relates to the proportion of those looked 
after for 6 months or more) 

 
 

(7.8%) 

 
20 

(6.3%) 

 
24 

(7%) 

 
G 
é 

11 Stay Safe/ 
LAA* 

School Travel Plans completed (including 
independent schools) 

 
 

82 STP 
(86%) 

86 STP 
(90%) 

A 
 

12  Number of first time entrants to the youth justice 
system. 

 139 (Apr-
Sep 07) 

428 G 

S
T

A
Y

 S
A

F
E

 

13  Percentage of young people with closed disposal 
episodes in ETE 

 69.1% 
(Apr-Sep 

07) 

73.6% R 

14 Enjoy & 
Achieve 
3070AC/43
a 

BV 43a – Percentage of SEN Statements 
completed in 18 weeks (excluding exceptions) 

100% 
(2005/6) 

100% 
End Sep 

99% G 
è 

15 Enjoy & 
Achieve 
3070AC/43
b 

BV 43b – Percentage of SEN Statements 
completed in 18 weeks 

89% 
(2005/6) 

93% 
End Sep 

85% G 
é 

16 Enjoy and 
Achieve / 
LAA 

% Children looked after for 12 months or more 
achieving 5+GCSE’s A*-C 

13% 
London 

27.5% 21% 
2006 

G 
é 

17 Enjoy and 
Achieve/ 
LAA 

% Children looked after for 12 months or more 
achieving 5+GCSE’s A*-G 

 
42% 

London 
 

 
50% 

 

 
50% 
2006 

 

 
G 
é E

N
J
O

Y
 &

 A
C

H
IE

V
E

 

18 Enjoy & 
Achieve 
3072sc 

% of LAC aged 16+ who left care in the year with 
1+ GSCE at grades A*-G 

53% 43% 55% A 
è 

19  Participation of young people in the youth service  1,790 
(Oct) 

15%  
(2,865) 

 

M
P

C
 

20  Young people achieving an accredited outcome  681 (Oct) 30% 
(860) 

 

A E

20 AEW 
(CL)P19.2 

Not in Education, Employment or Training 
(NEETs) 

National  
10.3% 

10.8% 
Oct 

12.3% A  

*The Local Area Agreement (LAA) is part of a Government 10 year strategy to build a new relationship between central and 
local government. This includes mandatory outcomes, optional outcomes and stretch targets. 

è = in line with 06/07 outturn; é= improvement on 06/07 outturn; ê = decline from 06/07 outturn 
R = target not likely to be achieved; A = to keep under close review; G = target achieved/exceeded 

Page 96



5 

PAF/ 
BV/ 

Description National Haringey Haringey Haringey Haringey Haringey R 
A 
G 

Local 
Ref 

Years are expressed 
as academic years  

2006  2006 2007 
Prov. 

Target 
2006 

Target 
2007 

Prov. 
Target 
2008 

 

FSP % of children scoring 
6 or more in all PSED 

scales 

71 63 66 Not set 68 70  
A 

FSP % of children scoring 
6 or more in all CLL 

scales 

48 41 45 Not set 44 48  
G 

3002OF KS1 Reading Level 2+ 84% 78% 81% 79% 80% 82% G 

3003OF KS1 Writing Level 2+ 81% 74% 76% 76% 77% 78% A 

3004OF KS1 Maths Level 2+ 90% 87% 88% 88% 88% 89% G 

3005OF/B
V41/ LAA 

KS2 English Level 4+ 79% 75% 76% 75% 76% 78% G 

3006OF/B
V40/ LAA 

KS2 Maths Level 4+ 76% 70% 73% 75% 75% 76% A 

3007OF/ 
LAA 

KS2 Science Level 4+ 87% 79% 83% 80% 82% 83% G 

BV194a KS2 English Level 5+ 32% 30% 29% 29% 31% 32% G 

BV194b KS2 Maths Level 5+ 33% 28% 29% 29% 31% 32% A 

3008OF Value Added Measure 
KS1 to KS2 

99.8 100.0 100.04    G 

3009OF/B
V181A 

KS3 English Level 5+ 73% 61% 66% 65% 67% 72% A 

3010OF/B
V181B 

KS3 Maths Level 5+ 77% 64% 66% 65%  68% 70% A 

3011OF/B
V181C 

KS3 Science Level 5+ 72% 56% 61% 60% 63% 65% A 

3012OF Value Added Measure 
KS2 to KS3 

99.8 99.5     A 

3013OF/B
V38 /LAA 

% achieving 5+ A* - C  59% 52% 57% 53% 57% 59% G 

 % achieving 5+ A* - C 
(inc Eng and maths) 

46% 34% 38% Not set 41% 44% A 

3014OF/L
AA 

% achieving 1+ A* - G 98% 95.0% 96.0% 96.0% 96.0% 96.5% A 

3017OF Value Added Measure 
KS2 to 
GCSE/Equivalent 

1000.6 1011.2     G 

3018OF Value Added Measure 
KS3 to 
GCSE/Equivalent 

1000.8 1001.4     G 

Local 
indicators 
LPSA 2 

% half days missed - 
absence in secondary 
schools 

7.92% 8.24% 7.8% 8.60% 8.40% 7.7% G 

Local 
indicators 
LPSA 2 

% half days missed - 
absence in primary 
schools 

5.76% 6.63% 5.7% 5.80% 5.60% 5.4% A 

E
N

J
O

Y
 A

N
D

 A
C

H
IE

V
E

 
 

5OF Schools with 6th form:  
Avg point score of 
students entered for 
GCE/VCE A/AS 

721.5 566.2 
(new points 

system) 

588 580 590 600 A 

% 19 year olds qualified 
to Level 2- LAA indicator 

71 62 Not avail 
until Mar 08 

60 65 68 A AEW 
(CL)P20.1 

% 19 year olds qualified 
to Level 3 

47 43 Not avail 
until Mar 08 

42 45 47 A 

Page 97



6 

 

Page 98



S
N

 -
 H

a
ri

n
g

e
y
's

 S
ta

ti
s
ti

c
a
l 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rs

L
e
w

is
h
a
m

L
a
m

b
e
th

H
a
c
k
n
e
y

W
a
lt
h
a
m

 F
o
re

s
t

S
o
u
th

w
a
rk

Is
lin

g
to

n

H
a
m

m
e
rs

m
it
h
 a

n
d
 F

u
lh

a
m

W
a
n
d
s
w

o
rt

h

G
re

e
n
w

ic
h

C
ro

yd
o
n

R
E

D
T

a
rg

e
t 

N
o

t 
M

e
t/

A
c
ti
o

n
 N

o
t 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

d

A
M

B
E

R
T

o
 B

e
 K

e
p

t 
U

n
d

e
r 

C
lo

s
e

 R
e

v
ie

w

G
R

E
E

N
T

a
rg

e
t 

M
e

t/
A

c
ti
o

n
 A

c
h

ie
v
e

d

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

u
p

d
a

te
d

 3
 x

 p
e

r 
y
e

a
r:

  
fi
rs

t 
re

v
ie

w
 i
n

 s
u

m
m

e
r;

 m
id

 y
e

a
r 

re
v
ie

w
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r,

 e
n

d
 o

f 
y
e

a
r 

re
v
ie

w
 A

p
ri
l.
  

C
H

A
N

G
IN

G
 L

IV
E

S
H

a
ri

n
g

e
y
's

 C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
's

 P
la

n
 2

0
0

6
-0

9

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 D

o
c
u

m
e
n

t 
2
0
0
7
/0

8

U
P

D
A

T
E

D
  

2
1
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7

E
:\

m
o
d
e
rn

g
o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g
e
n
d
a
It

e
m

D
o
c
s
\5

\3
\9

\A
I0

0
0
0
9
9
3
5
\C

o
p
y
o
fC

Y
P

P
2
0
0
7
0
8
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
d
e
c
0
7
2
0
.x

ls

Page 99



T
h

e
 C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
: 

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g

V
U

L
N

E
R

A
B

L
E

 C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
 &

 Y
O

U
N

G
 P

E
O

P
L

E
 -

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 1

-3
O

U
T

C
O

M
E

 L
E

A
D

: 
C

E
C

IL
IA

 H
IT

C
H

E
N

R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

(C
L

)P
1

.1

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 t
h

re
e

 C
h

ild
re

n
's

 N
e

tw
o

rk
s
 

to
 c

o
n

s
o

lid
a

te
 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e

 m
u

lt
i-

a
g

e
n

c
y
 

te
a

m
s
, 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 B

o
a

rd
s
 

a
n

d
 j
o

in
 u

p
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 C

N
s
 t
o

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
.

J
a

n
 D

o
u
s
t

T
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

s
 h

a
v
e
 m

e
t 
o
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S

o
u
th

 a
n
d
 N

o
rt

h
 a

re
a
s
 a

n
d
 

a
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i
s
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 W

e
s
t 
in

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

 F
u
rt

h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 

p
la

c
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 
th

e
s
e
 b

o
a
rd

s
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 

p
ro

p
e
rl
y
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

s
 a

n
d
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
lit

y
. 
T

h
e
 m

u
lt
i-

d
is

c
ip

lin
a
ry

 t
e
a
m

s
 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 C

N
 a

re
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 

re
g
u
la

rl
y
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 w

ill
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

in
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

a
n
d
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 a

 m
o
re

 

p
ro

m
in

e
n
t 
ro

le
 i
n
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 t
e
a
m

 a
ro

u
n
d
 t
h
e
 't

e
a
m

 

a
ro

u
n
d
 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
'.

P
la

n
n
in

g
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
fo

r 
m

u
lt
i-
d
is

c
ip

lin
a
ry

 w
o
rk

in
g
 t
o
 a

 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

le
v
e
l.
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 p
la

c
e
 t
h
e
 m

u
lt
i-
d
is

c
ip

lin
a
ry

 t
e
a
m

s
 m

u
c
h
 c

lo
s
e
r 

to
 t
h
e
 

re
fe

rr
a
l 
;p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
c
is

io
n
-m

a
k
in

g
 f
o
r 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 t
h
e
 't

e
a
m

 a
ro

u
n
d
 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
'. 

D
e
ta

ile
d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 i
s
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

a
n
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t
h
a
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

s
 l
o
c
a
lit

y
-b

a
s
e
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

a
n
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 m

u
lt
i-
d
is

c
ip

lin
a
ry

 t
e
a
m

 b
a
s
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 f
a
c
ili

ta
te

 m
u
c
h
 c

lo
s
e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
e
a
m

s
.

(C
L

)P
1

.2

E
v
a

lu
a

te
 t
h

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

N
's

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

a
c
ti
o

n
 r

e
s
e

a
rc

h
, 
a

d
ju

s
ti
n

g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 a
s
 

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 l
o

c
a

l 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

n
d

 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t
o

 i
n

fo
rm

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
J
a

n
 D

o
u
s
t

M
id

d
le

s
e
x
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 a

n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
. 
F

o
c
u
s
 g

ro
u
p
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 

th
re

e
 l
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 i
n
v
o
lv

in
g
 a

 b
ro

a
d
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 i
s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
is

 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 t
e
rm

. 
H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
a
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

re
s
e
a
rc

h
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 
le

d
 b

y
 N

F
E

R
, 
fo

c
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
T

h
re

e
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 g
ro

u
p
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 t
h
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 -

 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
, 
c
h
ild

re
n
 

w
it
h
 A

S
D

 a
n
d
 n

o
n
-a

tt
e
n
d
e
e
s
 a

t 
K

S
3
. 
T

h
is

 r
e
s
e
a
rc

h
 i
s
 a

t 
th

e
 s

ta
g
e
 o

f 

c
o
lle

c
ti
n
g
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 e

a
c
h
 L

A
 o

n
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 g

ro
u
p
s
.

F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g

ro
u
p
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

is
s
e
m

in
a
te

d
 b

a
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

, 
to

 t
h
e
 c

o
re

 t
e
a
m

 a
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 t
e
a
m

. 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o

f 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

 a
n
d
 t
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

c
o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 p
o
lic

ie
s
, 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 t
h
a
t 
u
n
d
e
rp

in
 

m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
. 
T

h
e
 L

A
R

C
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 i
s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
s
 

a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
 a

 g
ro

u
p
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
ild

re
n
, 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 k

e
y
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 g

ro
u
p
s
. 
T

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

is
s
e
m

in
a
te

d
 

v
ia

 a
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 a

ll 
o
f 
th

e
 L

A
s
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
in

te
g
ra

te
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
.

(C
L

)P
1

.3

C
o

n
s
o

lid
a

te
 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 1

0
 

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 C
e

n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 P

h
a

s
e

 T
w

o
 

C
e

n
tr

e
s
 a

ll 
w

it
h

 r
o

b
u

s
t 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 f
u

n
d

in
g

.
R

o
s
 C

o
o

k
e

O
u
r 

1
0
 P

h
a
s
e
 O

n
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

re
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 ‘C

o
re

 O
ff
e
r’
 o

f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
. 
D

a
ta

 i
s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 l
o
c
a
lly

 a
n
d
 f
e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 s

e
lf
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
fo

rm
s
 t
h
e
ir
 s

e
lf
-e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
rm

s
 (

S
E

F
s
).

 L
A

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 
S

E
F

s
 a

re
 t
h
e
n
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 

in
fo

rm
  
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 f
o
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

O
c
to

b
e
r/

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r.

 P
h
a
s
e
 T

w
o
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

re
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 

d
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
. 
S

o
m

e
 a

re
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 e

a
rl
y
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

re
 

b
e
g
in

n
in

g
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
. 
W

o
rk

 i
s
 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 b

u
ild

 a
 

ro
b
u
s
t 
a
n
d
 o

p
e
n
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
o
rm

u
la

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
.

W
e
 a

re
 h

o
ld

in
g
 a

 J
o
b
s
 a

n
d
 C

a
re

e
r 

F
a
ir
 a

t 
B

ro
a
d
w

a
te

r 
F

a
rm

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
- 

o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 p

a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 e

s
ta

te
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 

th
e
m

 t
o
 s

ta
rt

 l
o
o
k
in

g
 f
o
r 

w
o
rk

. 
In

 c
o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 O

p
e
n
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
, 
w

e
 h

o
ld

 

e
v
e
n
ts

 i
n
 C

h
ild

re
n
s
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
n
g
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 p

u
b
lic

 t
o
 f
in

d
 o

u
t 

m
o
re

 a
b
o
u
t 
th

e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 f
ro

m
 h

o
m

e
. 
W

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 J

C
+

  
to

 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
 f
o
r 

“W
o
rk

 F
o
c
u
s
e
d
 I
n
te

rv
ie

w
s
” 

to
 b

e
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 C
h
ild

re
n
s
 

C
e
n
tr

e
s
. 
T

h
is

 w
a
y
 a

 L
o
n
e
 P

a
re

n
t 
c
a
n
 h

a
v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 f
o
rm

a
l 
q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 

in
 a

 m
o
re

 c
o
m

fo
rt

a
b
le

 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
ra

th
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
m

 h
a
v
in

g
 t
o
 t
ra

v
e
l 
to

 a
 

J
o
b
 C

e
n
tr

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 
T

h
e
 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
 h

e
lp

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 a

c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 

c
o
rr

e
c
t 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 c
o
u
p
le

d
 w

it
h
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
y
 c

o
u
ld

 l
o
o
k
 f
o
r 

w
o
rk

 i
f 
th

e
y
 

fe
e
l 
th

e
y
 a

re
 r

e
a
d
y
.

(C
L

)P
1

.4

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

b
u

ild
 u

p
o

n
 e

a
rl

y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 f

a
m

ily
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t
h

a
t 
in

c
lu

d
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

le
v
e

ls
 o

r 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
. 

J
a

n
 D

o
u
s
t

T
h
e
 F

a
m

ily
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 W
o
rk

e
r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
, 
fu

n
d
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 D

S
G

 i
s
 n

o
w

 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 a

 t
e
a
m

 o
f 
1
1
 F

S
W

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
ru

it
e
d
 c

e
n
tr

a
lly

 a
n
d
 

a
llo

c
a
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 3

 l
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
N

L
C

s
 a

re
 s

e
lf
-

m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 t
h
a
t 
d
e
liv

e
r 

fa
m

ily
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

, 
a
ls

o
 d

ra
w

in
g
 o

n
 D

S
G

 

fu
n
d
in

g
. 
3
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 t
o
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
te

 a
ll 

o
f 
th

is
 w

o
rk

 

a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 t
o
 b

ri
n
g
 t
h
is

 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 t
e
a
m

 o
f 
F

S
W

s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

fr
o
m

 C
h
ild

re
n
's

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
. 
A

ll 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
d
u
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

in
it
ia

l 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 a

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

S
o
m

e
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 a

n
d
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 F

S
W

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

h
o
lid

a
y
 -

 t
h
is

 w
ill

 p
ro

c
e
e
d
 a

t 
a
 

p
a
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 t
e
rm

.

M
o
d
e
ls

 f
o
r 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l-
b
a
s
e
d
 f
a
m

ily
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 h
a
v
e
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 

a
g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 a

re
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
in

 e
a
c
h
 N

L
C

. 
F

S
W

s
 b

a
s
e
d
 i
n
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 

C
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 

a
n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 v

is
it
o
rs

. 
R

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 t
o
 a

ll 
c
a
te

g
o
ri
e
s
 o

f 
F

S
W

s
 a

re
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

a
re

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 o

n
 a

n
 N

L
C

 b
a
s
is

. 
M

o
n
th

ly
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 

v
ia

 e
a
c
h
 N

L
C

 a
n
d
 a

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 d
u
ri
n
g
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r.

 

D
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 v

ia
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
d
 h

e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
rs

 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 N

L
C

 o
n
 t
h
e
 

fu
tu

re
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

is
 w

o
rk

 p
o
s
t 
A

u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
8
.

L
E

A
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 O
N

E
 –

 W
e
 w

il
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ti
n

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 

th
a
t 

w
il
l 
e
n

s
u

e
 e

a
rl

ie
r 

in
te

rv
e
n

ti
o

n
. 
S

p
e
c
if

ic
a
ll
y
 w

e
 w

il
l:

Page 100



R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

L
E

A
D

(C
L

)P
1

.5

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 l
o

n
g

e
r-

te
rm

 m
o

d
e

l 
fo

r 
e

a
rl

y
 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 p
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t
h

a
t 
ta

c
k
le

s
 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 

c
h

ild
 p

o
v
e

rt
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
d

 r
e

d
u

c
e

s
 t
h

e
 

n
e

e
d

 f
o

r 
m

o
re

 s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s

J
a

n
 D

o
u
s
t

T
h
is

 a
re

a
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
in

 e
a
c
h
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 

n
e
tw

o
rk

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 a
lig

n
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 
M

o
d
e
ls

 a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 t
h
e
n
 b

e
 c

ir
c
u
la

te
d
 

fo
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

m
o
n
g
s
t 
a
ll 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 a
n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 d
u
ri
n
g
 p

e
ri
o
d
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

0
7
-J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
0
8
.

T
h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 t
h
e
e
 h

e
a
d
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
's

 n
e
tw

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
r.

 A
 d

ra
ft
 m

o
d
e
l 
fo

r 
a
 p

re
v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 s

tr
a
ty

, 

c
lo

s
e
ly

 a
lig

n
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C

N
 m

o
d
e
l 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 i
s
 

n
o
w

 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t
h
is

 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
, 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 s

ta
tu

tu
to

ry
, 
v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e
e
rs

. 
A

 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e

v
e
n
t 
in

v
o
lv

in
g
 w

id
e
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
o
f 
th

e
s
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
e
rs

 

w
a
s
 h

e
ld

 o
n
 1

5
th

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 a

 v
is

io
n
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 c

ir
c
u
la

te
d
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t 
4
 w

e
e
k
s
.T

h
is

 w
ill

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 d

e
fe

v
o
p
in

g
 t
h
e
 

p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 c

le
a
rl
y
 d

e
fi
n
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 
u
n
iv

e
rs

a
l,
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 a

n
d
 

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
is

 m
o
d
e
l.

(C
L

)P
1

.6

Im
p

ro
v
e

 m
u

lt
i-

a
g

e
n

c
y
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

fo
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
h

a
t 
im

p
ro

v
e

s
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

s
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
.

C
la

ir
e

 

W
ri
g
h
t

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 g

o
o
d
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
is

 t
a
rg

e
t,
 a

n
d
 a

 j
o
in

t 
p
ro

je
c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
r 

is
 i
n
 p

o
s
t,
 a

  
jo

in
t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
, 

a
n
d
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 t
o
 d

e
fi
n
e
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

 a
n
d
 w

o
rk

 p
la

n
s
 f
o
r 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
: 

C
A

M
H

S
; 
S

u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 M

is
u
s
e
, 
C

h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
N

e
e
d
s
, 
T

e
e
n
a
g
e
 

P
re

g
n
a
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 S

e
x
u
a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
.

W
o
rk

 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 a

s
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

, 
a
n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
re

 

a
b
o
u
t 
to

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

.

(C
L

)P
1

.7

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 C

A
F

 a
n

d
 s

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
, 
th

e
 l
e

a
d

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
ro

le
, 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 t
o

 s
h

a
re

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 t
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 

th
e

 g
o

o
d

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

A
lis

o
n
 

B
o

th
a

m
/C

liv

e
 P

re
e

c
e

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d
 a

n
d
 n

o
w

 h
a
v
e
 o

n
e
 p

o
in

t 
o
f 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

. 
C

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 o

n
 t
ra

c
k
 t
o
 e

x
c
e
e
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C

IN
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 a

 d
ir
e
c
t 
lin

k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
s
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 

p
a
n
e
l 
w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 h
a
v
in

g
 a

 l
ia

is
o
n
 r

o
le

. 

W
o
rk

 h
a
s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
e
d
 w

e
ll 

in
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 C

A
F

 a
n
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

.

In
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

A
F

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
g
o
o
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 C

A
F

 r
e
fe

rr
a
ls

 i
s
 s

te
a
d
ily

 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 H
e
a
d
s
 a

n
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 P
a
n
e
l.
 T

h
e
 C

A
F

 m
e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
 

s
p
e
e
d
ily

 t
o
 r

e
q
u
e
s
ts

 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 w

e
 a

re
 n

o
w

 i
n
 a

 p
o
s
it
io

n
 t
o
 a

llo
c
a
te

 

F
a
m

ily
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 f
o
r 

e
a
rl
y
 y

e
a
rs

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 C

A
F

. 
T

h
is

 m
e
a
n
s
 

th
a
t 
e
a
rl
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 f
a
c
ili

ta
te

d
 a

n
d
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
. 
 A

s
s
e
s
s
o
rs

 a
n
d
 r

e
fe

rr
e
rs

 u
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 C

A
F

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 w

e
ll 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 H
e
a
d
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 p

a
n
e
ls

. 
P

a
n
e
l 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 u
n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
O

c
to

b
e
r.

P
a
n
e
l 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 r

e
m

a
in

 i
n
 l
a
rg

e
 p

a
rt

 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
, 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

ir
c
u
la

te
d
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

d
ri
v
e
 u

p
 t
h
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 p
u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 

c
h
ild

re
n
.

A
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e

v
e
n
t 
w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

th
a
t 
w

ill
 i
n
fo

rm
 L

e
a
d
 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
G

u
id

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

o
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 c

a
n
 b

e
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 –
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
.

(C
L

)P
2

.1

M
a

in
ta

in
 t
h

is
 s

tr
o

n
g

 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 c
a

re
 -

 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 a
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 m
u

lt
i-

a
g

e
n

c
y
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 w
it
h

 a
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

fo
c
u

s
 o

n
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
in

g
 t
h

e
 c

h
ild

re
n

, 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 

c
a

re
rs

 t
h

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
 t
o

 d
ri

v
e

 g
re

a
te

r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

.
M

a
ri
o

n
 

W
h
e

e
le

r

F
ir
s
t 
ro

u
n
d
 o

f 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 c
ro

s
s
 c

u
tt
in

g
 m

u
lt
i 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 h

a
p
p
e
n
in

g
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 S

p
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 S

u
m

m
e
r.

 B
id

 

fo
r 

M
e
n
to

ri
n
g
 p

ilo
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 w

a
s
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
a
n
d
 M

e
n
to

ri
n
g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

0
7
. 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
m

e
d
 a

u
d
it
s
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 

c
a
re

 c
a
s
e
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 w

it
h
 g

o
o
d
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

's
 v

ie
w

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 b
y
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

. 
W

o
rk

 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 c

h
ild

 h
e
a
lt
h
 s

u
rv

e
ill

a
n
c
e
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
. 
P

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 

s
ta

b
ili

ty
 R

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 f
o
s
te

r 
c
a
re

rs
 a

re
 

a
tt
e
n
d
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 g

ro
u
p
s

M
e
n
to

ri
n
g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 -

m
e
n
to

rs
 a

n
d
 m

e
n
te

e
s
 

m
a
tc

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
, 
w

o
rk

 o
n
 P

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 
s
ta

b
ili

ty
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
, 
C

h
ild

re
n
 

in
 C

a
re

 T
a
s
k
 G

ro
u
p
 w

ill
 s

ta
rt

 w
o
rk

 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 a

n
d
 s

ta
rt

 b
ri
n
g
in

g
 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

c
ro

s
s
 a

g
e
n
c
y
/ 
c
ro

s
s
 d

is
c
ip

lin
e
 w

o
rk

 t
h
e
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

.

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 T
W

O
 –

 W
e
 w

il
l 
c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 l
if

e
 c

h
a
n

c
e
s
 f

o
r 

lo
o

k
e
d

 a
ft

e
r 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 c

a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

. 
 S

p
e
c
if

ic
a
ll
y
 w

e
 

w
il
l:

Page 101



R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

L
E

A
D

(C
L

)P
2

.2

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 a
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
p

e
c
ia

l 

g
u

a
rd

ia
n

s
h

ip
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

th
o

s
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
 f

o
r 

w
h

o
m

 i
t 
is

 

in
 t
h

e
ir

 b
e

s
t 
in

te
re

s
ts

 -
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
g

io
n

 o
f 

2
0

 

c
h

ild
re

n
 e

a
c
h

 y
e

a
r.

R
a

c
h
e

l 

O
a

k
le

y

T
o
 d

a
te

 w
e
 h

a
v
e
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 p

e
rm

a
n
e
n
c
y
 f
o
r 

1
6
 c

h
ild

re
n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

d
o
p
ti
o
n
 (

4
) 

o
r 

s
p
e
c
ia

l 
g
u
a
rd

ia
n
s
h
ip

 (
1
2
).

  
It
 i
s
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

1
9
 

c
h
ild

re
n
 p

e
rm

a
n
e
n
tl
y
 p

la
c
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
. 
 T

h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 c
o
u
ld

 r
is

e
 a

s
 

s
p
e
c
ia

l 
g
u
a
rd

ia
n
s
h
ip

 i
s
 a

 l
e
s
s
 l
e
n
g
th

y
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 a

d
o
p
ti
o
n
. 

M
id

 w
a
y
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 1

5
 S

p
e
c
ia

l 
G

u
a
rd

ia
n
s
h
ip

s
 

O
rd

e
rs

 a
n
d
 4

 A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 O

rd
e
rs

 t
o
 s

e
c
u
re

 c
h
ild

re
n
's

 l
e
g
a
l 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
c
y
. 
 I
t 
is

 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

1
0
 c

h
ild

 i
n
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
o
rd

e
rs

 b
e
fo

re
 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

  
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 s
lig

h
t 
d
e
c
re

a
s
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
fi
g
u
re

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 

e
n
ti
re

ly
 d

u
e
 t
o
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 f
o
s
te

r 
c
a
re

rs
  
d
e
c
id

in
g
 t
h
a
t 
S

p
e
c
ia

l 
G

u
a
rd

ia
n
s
h
ip

 

is
 n

o
t 
ri
g
h
t 
fo

r 
th

e
m

 a
 t
h
is

 t
im

e
. 
 A

n
 i
n
v
e
s
t 
to

 s
a
v
e
 -

b
id

 t
o
 f
in

a
n
c
e
 t
h
is

 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 P

re
-B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 
 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
u

p
d

a
te

d
: 
 3

 x
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

- 
fi
rs

t 
re

v
ie

w
 i
n

 S
u

m
m

e
r;

 m
id

 y
e

a
r 

re
v
ie

w
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r,

 e
n

d
 o

f 
y
e

a
r 

re
v
ie

w
 A

p
ri

l.
  

Im
p

ro
v
e

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 c
h

e
c
k
s
 a

n
d

 h
e

a
lt
h

 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
th

is
 g

ro
u

p
 f

ro
m

 9
2

%
 i
n

 2
0

0
7

 t
o

 9
3

%
 

in
 2

0
0

8
 a

n
d

 9
5

%
 i
n

 2
0

0
9

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

e
x
u

a
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 

a
d

v
ic

e
.

M
a

ri
o

n
 

W
h
e

e
le

r

H
e
a
lt
h
 s

ta
ff
 a

n
d
 s

e
x
u
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

ta
ff
 a

re
 v

is
it
in

g
 o

u
r 

2
 c

a
re

 h
o
m

e
s
 r

o
u
ti
n
e
ly

 

a
n
d
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 d

ir
e
c
t 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 s

ta
ff
. 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 m

e
n
ta

l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 s

ta
ff
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 m

o
n
th

ly
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 c

lin
ic

s
 o

n
 s

it
e
 t
o
 s

o
c
ia

l 

w
o
rk

 s
ta

ff
. 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 h

e
a
lt
h
 s

ta
ff
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
L
A

C
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 s

c
re

e
n
in

g
 w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
ra

c
k
in

g
 o

f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
. 
P

C
P

T
 S

m
o
k
in

g
 c

e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 t
e
a
m

 t
o
 v

is
it
 a

n
d
 d

o
 d

ir
e
c
t 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 

c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 o

u
r 

c
a
re

 h
o
m

e
s
. 
N

e
w

 H
e
a
lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 

im
m

u
n
iz

a
ti
o
n
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 f
ro

m
 o

v
e
rs

e
a
s
 t
o
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 d

e
n
ta

l 
s
c
re

e
n
in

g
 n

o
w

 f
u
lly

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 o

n
 F

-I
 w

it
h
 r

e
m

in
d
e
r 

s
y
s
te

m
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
n
o
 c

h
ild

 g
e
ts

 o
v
e
rl
o
o
k
e
d
.

D
u
ri
n
g
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

/O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 w

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

o
o
k
 a

n
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
in

g
 

d
o
n
e
 w

it
h
 c

h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 t
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 f
o
c
u
s
s
in

g
 o

n
 ' 

b
e
 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
' o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
, 
th

e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 w
a
s
 g

o
o
d
 a

n
d
 w

e
 f
o
u
n
d
 

s
to

n
g
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

g
 g

o
o
d
 c

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 m

u
lt
i 
d
is

c
ip

lin
a
ry

 w
o
rk

in
g
 t
o
 b

o
th

 

re
s
o
lv

e
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
c
h
ild

re
n
 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
w

e
re

 b
e
in

g
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
s
ty

le
s
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 e

le
c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 l
a
te

r 
in

 t
h
e
 A

u
tu

m
n
. 
W

e
 a

c
h
e
iv

e
d
 e

x
c
e
lle

n
t 

re
s
u
lt
s
 i
n
 o

u
r 

w
o
rk

 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

to
 o

ff
e
r 

s
c
re

e
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
c
h
ild

re
n
 

in
 c

a
re

 a
ro

u
n
d
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 m

is
u
s
e
 w

it
h
 a

 h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 e

v
e
r 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 b

e
in

g
 o

ff
e
re

d
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
p
ti
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

(C
L

)P
2

.4

R
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 n

e
w

ly
 i
n

 c
a

re
, 

p
la

c
e

d
 2

0
 m

ile
s
 o

r 
m

o
re

 f
ro

m
 H

a
ri

n
g

e
y
 f

ro
m

 8
%

 

in
 2

0
0

7
/0

7
 t
o

 7
%

 i
n

 2
0

0
7

/0
8

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 s

u
p

p
ly

 a
n

d
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

R
a

c
h
e

l 

O
a

k
le

y

W
h
ils

t 
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
is

 a
 k

e
y
 d

e
te

rm
in

a
n
t,
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 o

n
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 

c
h
ild

re
n
/y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

s
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 
a
re

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
  
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 "

n
e
e
d
" 

a
n
d
  

a
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
. 
A

s
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 '0
7
 1

8
%

 (
4
 c

h
ild

re
n
) 

o
f 
n
e
w

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 2
0
 m

ile
s
 

a
w

a
y
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

's
 h

o
m

e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
, 
th

is
 i
s
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 s
m

a
ll 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

e
n
te

ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
. 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 w

ill
 

fa
ll 

a
s
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
e
s
. 

A
s
 o

f 
3
1
s
t 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 4

%
 o

f 
n
e
w

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 o

u
ts

id
e
 

th
e
 2

0
 m

ile
 l
im

it
. 
 D

is
ta

n
c
e
 i
s
 a

 c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

a
tc

h
in

g
 o

f 
a
ll 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
b
u
t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 o

v
e
rr

id
d
e
n
 b

y
 o

th
e
r 

n
e
e
d
s
.

(C
L

)P
2

.5

R
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
o

n
c
e

p
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
u

n
d

e
r 

1
8

 

lo
o

k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

, 
c
a

re
 l
e

a
v
e

rs
 a

n
d

 

u
n

a
c
c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
d

 m
in

o
rs

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 w
o

rk
 

w
it
h

 b
o

th
 t
h

e
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir

 f
o

s
te

r 

c
a

re
rs

 -
 s

e
e

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 7

 i
n

 B
e

 H
e

a
lt
h

y
.

R
o

g
e

r 

S
m

it
h

A
ll 

s
ta

ff
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
re

 t
ra

in
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 s

e
x
u
a
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 i
s
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 i
n
 a

ll 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

’s
 p

a
th

w
a
y
 p

la
n
s
. 
L
in

k
s
 a

re
 

a
ls

o
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 L

A
C

 n
u
rs

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

a
n
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 4

Y
P

. 
W

e
 a

ls
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 c
a
n
 g

iv
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

.

T
e
e
n
a
g
e
 P

re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 g

ra
n
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
h
e
 

a
c
c
re

d
it
e
d
 N

V
Q

2
 S

p
e
a
k
e
a
s
y
 t
ra

in
in

g
 f
o
r 

c
a
re

rs
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 N

V
Q

3
 a

c
c
re

d
it
e
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 c
a
re

rs
 t
o
 

b
e
c
o
m

e
 t
ra

in
e
rs

.

S
p
e
a
k
e
a
s
y
 t
ra

in
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

c
a
re

rs
 a

n
d
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
in

g
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 t
o
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 L

e
a
v
in

g
 c

a
re

 a
n
d
 a

s
y
lu

m
 s

e
rv

ic
e

Page 102



R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

L
E

A
D

(C
L

)P
2

.6

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 r
a

is
e

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t.
  

S
e

e
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 1
4

 i
n

 E
n

jo
y
 a

n
d

 A
c
h

ie
v
e

. 
 

M
a

ri
o

n
 

W
h
e

e
le

r

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
d
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
e
v
e
n
ts

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 g

e
t 
to

 k
n
o
w

 t
h
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c

a
re

rs
 a

n
d
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t
h
e
ir
 a

s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
u
tu

re
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
le

is
u
re

, 
c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
a
n
d
 s

p
o
rt

in
g
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 
 T

h
is

 h
a
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
:

�
S

p
o
rt

in
g
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

it
h
 T

o
tt
e
n
h
a
m

 H
o
ts

p
u
r 

fo
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 m

o
s
t 
k
e
y
 

s
ta

g
e
s
.

�
A

n
n
u
a
l 
A

w
a
rd

 e
v
e
n
ts

 h
o
s
te

d
 a

t 
T

o
tt
e
n
h
a
m

 H
o
ts

p
u
r.

�
T

h
e
a
tr

e
 a

n
d
 C

in
e
m

a
 e

v
e
n
ts

.

�
V

is
it
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 E

y
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

ft
e
rn

o
o
n
 t
e
a
 i
n
 a

 f
iv

e
 s

ta
r 

h
o
te

l.

F
o
rt

h
c
o
m

in
g
 e

v
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 w

o
rk

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
:

�
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
A

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
A

w
a
rd

s
 2

0
0
7
 f
o
r 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 

a
g
e
d
 C

h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 C

a
re

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 n

o
m

in
a
te

d
 b

y
 c

a
re

rs
, 
s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 

a
n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 S

u
m

m
e
r 

te
rm

 2
0
0
7
a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 g

a
in

e
d
 G

C
S

E
's

.

�
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 i
n
 Y

e
a
r 

9
 w

h
o
 a

re
 t
a
k
in

g
 S

A
T

S
 -

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S

p
ri
n
g
 

te
rm

 -
 5

 w
e
e
k
 s

tu
d
y
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

.

�
R

e
v
is

io
n
 g

u
id

e
s
 s

e
n
t 
to

 t
h
o
s
e
 i
n
 Y

e
a
r 

9
 w

h
o
 a

re
 t
a
k
in

g
 S

A
T

S
.

�
A

c
ti
v
it
y
 e

v
e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 i
n
 Y

e
a
rs

 7
-9

 w
o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 

T
o
tt
e
n
h
a
m

 H
o
ts

p
u
r 

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
.

�
T

ra
in

in
g
 f
o
r 

c
a
re

rs
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

in
g
 e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
, 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
 o

f 

Y
e
a
r 

9
 a

n
d
 k

e
y
 s

ta
g
e
 3

 S
A

T
S

.

O
u
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 e

x
c
e
lle

n
t 
G

C
S

E
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r,

 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
w

 c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 a

 s
e
c
o
n
d
 H

o
m

e
w

o
rk

 c
lu

b
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 f
o
r 

y
e
a
rs

 8
 &

 9
 i
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 y

e
a
rs

 1
0
 a

n
d
 1

1
. 
O

u
r 

fo
c
u
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

a
u
tu

m
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

t 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
fo

r 
a
ll 

c
h
ild

re
n
 

in
 c

a
re

.

(C
L

)P
3

.1

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 m

u
lt
i-

a
g

e
n

c
y
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 t
o

 d
ri

v
e

 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

w
it
h

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
. 

P
h
il 

D
iL

e
o

A
 m

u
lt
i-
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 s

te
e
ri
n
g
 g

ro
u
p
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
.

T
h
e
 S

te
e
ri
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
 h

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
h
e
 o

u
tl
in

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

th
e
 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

te
s
 a

g
e
d
 0

 -
5
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 w

ill
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

m
o
d
e
ls

 f
o
r 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
T

h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 h

a
s
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
d
 t
h
e
 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 d

a
te

 w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 p

a
re

n
ts

/c
a
re

rs
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 c

ri
ti
c
a
l 
fr

ie
n
d
 p

a
re

n
t/
c
a
re

r 
g
ro

u
p
. 
A

n
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
th

e
 2

0
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 r

e
tu

rn
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 s

h
o
w

s
 t
h
a
t 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 

w
e
lc

o
m

e
 t
h
e
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
a
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 

le
a
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
to

 w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 f
ro

m
 p

o
s
t 
d
ia

g
n
o
s
is

 s
ta

g
e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
, 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 t
o
 C

h
ild

re
n
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d
 

s
c
h
o
o
l.
 I
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

a
 m

u
lt
i 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
g
ro

u
p
 w

ill
 m

e
e
t 
w

e
e
k
ly

 t
o
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
 c

a
s
e
s
,o

u
tl
in

e
  
p
a
th

w
a
y
 p

la
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 l
e
a
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l.
 T

h
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 a

ls
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 t
h
e
 r

e
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 T

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 T

e
a
m

 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 D

C
T

 a
n
d
 A

d
u
lt
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

L
D

D
).

 T
h
is

  
e
n
a
b
le

s
 a

ll 
tr

a
n
s
it
io

n
 

w
o
rk

 p
o
s
t 
1
7
 y

e
a
rs

 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 a

d
u
lt
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 e

n
a
b
lin

g
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 p

la
n
in

g
 t
o
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 a

d
u
lt
s
 m

u
lt
i 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 t
e
a
m

.

A
 w

e
e
k
ly

 m
u
lt
i-
d
is

c
ip

lin
a
ry

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

 S
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

e
rv

c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

N
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 D

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 e

n
a
b
le

d
 t
h
e
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

P
a
e
d
ia

tr
ic

ia
n
, 
S

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 N

u
rs

in
g
 s

e
rv

c
ie

s
, 
T

h
e
ra

p
is

ts
, 

S
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
H

e
a
lt
h
 v

is
it
o
rs

, 
S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
rs

, 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
P

s
y
c
h
o
lo

g
is

ts
, 

H
IN

T
s
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
to

 d
is

c
u
s
s
 s

in
g
le

 r
e
fe

rr
a
l 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 f
ro

m
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 h

o
s
p
it
a
ls

 a
n
d
 G

P
, 
o
b
ta

in
in

g
 p

a
re

n
ta

l 
p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
 f
o
r 

m
u
lt
i 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

o
le

 w
it
h
in

 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 t
e
a
m

s
. 
T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
te

a
m

s
 a

n
d
 

w
o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
ra

in
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
. 
T

h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 

ta
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 n
e
tw

o
rk

s
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
ro

le
. 
T

h
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

/c
a
re

rs
 c

ri
ti
c
a
l 
fr

ie
n
d
s
 g

ro
u
p
 h

a
s
 

h
a
d
 i
ts

 s
e
c
o
n
d
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 h

a
s
 b

e
g
u
n
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 k

e
y
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

p
a
re

n
ts

 p
o
s
t 
d
ia

g
n
o
s
is

. 
 A

 t
ra

in
in

g
 d

a
y
 f
o
r 

s
ta

ff
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 f
o
r 

M
o
n
d
a
y
 1

4
th

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 a

n
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 f
o
r 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 t
o
 h

e
a
r 

fr
o
m

 a
 p

a
th

fi
n
d
e
r 

L
A

. 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 T
H

R
E

E
 –

 W
e
 w

il
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 d

is
a
b

il
it

ie
s
. 
S

p
e
c
if

ic
a
ll
y
 w

e
 w

il
l:

Page 103



R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

L
E

A
D

(C
L

)P
3

.2

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 l
o

n
g

-t
e

rm
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 f

o
r 

re
s
p

it
e

 c
a

re
 t
o

 

im
p

ro
v
e

 u
s
e

 a
n

d
 b

u
ild

 c
a

p
a

c
it
y
.

P
h
il 

D
iL

e
o

T
h
e
 F

a
m

ily
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 P
a
n
e
l 
h
a
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
m

p
e
te

d
 a

 f
u
ll 

y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 h

a
s
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 a

n
d
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
fo

rm
, 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

p
a
re

n
ts

/c
a
re

rs
, 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
ra

n
s
p
a
re

n
c
y
  
a
n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
. 
T

h
e
 p

a
n
e
l 
w

ill
 m

e
e
t 
fo

rt
n
ig

h
tl
y
 f
ro

m
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
. 
T

h
e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i
s
 n

o
w

 w
e
ll 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 r

o
b
u
s
t 
to

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 A

im
in

g
 H

ig
h
 f
o
r 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

fo
rt

h
c
o
m

in
g
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

s
h
o
rt

 s
ta

y
 p

a
c
k
a
g
e
s
. 

E
m

p
h
a
s
is

 i
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 p

la
c
e
d
 o

n
 u

s
in

g
 d

ir
e
c
t 
p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 l
ie

u
 o

f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 

p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 a

s
 t
h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
fl
e
x
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

u
ts

 t
h
e
m

 i
n
 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
o
f 
th

e
ir
 c

a
re

 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
. 
A

 b
a
la

n
c
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

s
o
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 h

ig
h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 w

h
o
 c

h
o
o
s
e
 t
h
is

 o
p
ti
o
n
.

T
h
e
 F

a
m

ily
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 P
a
n
e
l 
n
o
w

 m
e
e
ts

 e
v
e
ry

 t
w

o
 w

e
e
k
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

re
q
u
e
s
ts

 f
o
r 

re
s
p
it
e
 a

re
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 a

re
 m

a
d
e
 w

it
h
in

 

s
e
t 
ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s
. 
T

h
e
 C

&
Y

P
S

 h
a
s
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 a

n
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

 

P
a
th

fi
n
d
e
r 

fo
r 

S
h
o
rt

 B
re

a
k
s
 a

s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 D

C
F

S
. 
T

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 

k
o
w

n
 b

y
 m

id
 N

o
v
e
m

e
b
e
r.

(C
L

)P
3

.3

A
c
h

ie
v
e

 a
 y

e
a

r 
o

n
 y

e
a

r 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 

o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 A
u

ti
s
ti
c
 

S
p

e
c
tr

u
m

 D
is

o
rd

e
r 

(A
S

D
),

 A
s
p

e
rg

e
r'
s
 

S
y
n

d
ro

m
e

 a
n

d
 s

e
n

s
o

ry
 i
m

p
a

ir
m

e
n

t 
p

la
c
e

d
 o

u
t 

o
f 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 a
t 
R

e
c
e

p
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 S
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 

s
ta

g
e

s
.

P
h
il 

D
iL

e
o

N
e
w

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 f
o
r 

s
ix

 y
o
u
n
g
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 a

u
ti
s
m

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 C

a
m

p
s
b
o
u
rn

e
 a

n
d
 M

o
s
e
lle

 S
p
e
c
ia

l 
S

c
h
o
o
l.
 T

h
is

 h
a
s
 

re
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
s
 a

ll 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 a

d
d
it
io

p
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 i
n
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 f
o
r 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 .
 N

e
w

 p
la

c
e
s
 f
o
r 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 a
g
e
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
1
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 B

S
F

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 
In

 t
h
e
 m

e
a
n
ti
m

e
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 w

it
h
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 

a
n
d
 M

o
s
e
lle

 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 r

e
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 o

u
t 
b
o
ro

u
g
h
 p

la
c
e
s
 a

n
f 
in

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 o

n
ly

 o
n
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n
 i
s
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 t
o
 a

 s
p
e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

o
u
t 
o
f 
b
o
ro

u
g
h
. 
T

h
is

 c
o
m

p
a
re

s
 t
o
 f
iv

e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 o

u
t 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
. 
T

h
is

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 a

u
ti
s
m

 r
a
n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 t
o
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
ill

 b
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 

th
e
 n

e
w

ly
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 T

e
a
c
h
in

g
 A

s
s
it
a
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
A

u
ti
s
m

 A
d
v
is

o
ry

 

T
e
a
m

. 
T

h
e
 T

A
 w

ill
 m

o
d
e
l 
a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
b
a
s
e
d
 T

A
s
 w

it
h
 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
, 
s
e
tt
in

g
 u

p
 I
E

P
s
 a

n
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 

to
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 s

o
c
ia

l 
in

te
ra

c
ti
o
n
s
.

D
e
ta

ile
d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 i
s
 n

o
w

 u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 B

S
F

 T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 B

o
a
rd

 

o
n
 t
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 a

u
ti
s
m

 a
t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
, 
A

le
x
a
n
d
ra

 P
a
rk

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 I
n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 

C
a
m

p
u
s
. 
A

 v
e
ry

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
 s

ta
ff
 f
ro

m
 M

o
s
e
lle

, 
 

th
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
A

u
ti
s
m

 A
d
v
is

o
ry

 T
e
a
m

, 
A

rc
h
it
e
c
ts

 a
n
d
 B

S
F

 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 o
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
.

(C
L

)P
3

.4

E
n

s
u

re
 a

ll 
s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

it
h

 A
S

D
 p

u
p

ils
 t
o

 

m
e

e
t 
th

e
 a

u
ti
s
m

 f
ri

e
n

d
ly

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 b

y
 

2
0

0
9

P
h
il 

D
iL

e
o

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 g

o
o
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 w

it
h
in

 a
ll 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 a

u
ti
s
m

 a
n
d
 a

ll 
a
re

 m
a
k
in

g
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 o

r 
b
e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 
T

h
e
y
 

a
re

 w
e
ll 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 A

d
v
is

o
ry

 T
e
a
m

 f
o
r 

A
u
ti
s
m

 a
n
d
 t
h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 d

e
d
ic

a
te

d
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 

T
e
a
c
h
in

g
 A

s
s
is

ta
n
t.
 T

h
is

 p
la

n
 w

ill
 f
o
rm

a
lly

 r
e
c
o
g
n
is

e
 t
h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 s

h
a
re

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
 

p
a
re

n
ts

/c
a
re

rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
.

D
ra

ft
 a

u
ti
s
m

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 u

n
d
e
r 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 t
h
e
 B

S
F

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 
T

h
e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t
a
k
e
s
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
A

u
it
s
m

 P
la

n
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 A

u
ti
s
m

 

e
x
a
m

p
la

r,
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 

M
a
te

rn
it
y
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
. 
(D

C
F

S
/D

H
 2

0
0
4
).

Page 104



R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

L
E

A
D

(C
L

)P
3

.5

Im
p

ro
v
e

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

th
e

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
o

u
t 
o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

l 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 

d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 C
h

ild
re

n
's

 N
e

tw
o

rk
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
s
u

m
m

e
r 

p
la

y
 s

c
h

e
m

e
.

P
h
il 

D
iL

e
o

A
 'T

u
rn

in
g
 t
h
e
 C

u
rv

e
' e

x
e
rc

is
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

in
g
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
n
d
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

h
a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d

ra
ft
in

g
 o

f 
a
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
. 
T

h
is

 p
la

n
 w

ill
 b

u
ild

 o
n
 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 F

a
m

ily
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 P
a
n
e
l 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 a

 m
u
lt
i-

a
g
e
n
c
y
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 f
o
 r

e
s
p
it
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
 N

e
w

 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

p
a
re

n
ts

/c
a
re

rs
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 
T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 o

n
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 u

s
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
e
a
l 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 p

a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 3

3
 w

h
o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 H

a
s
le

m
e
re

 F
a
m

ily
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 C
e
n
tr

e
 f
o
r 

d
a
y
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
rn

ig
h
t 
s
ta

y
s
, 
7
1
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 F

a
m

ily
 L

in
k
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 3

1
 

re
c
e
iv

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
ro

m
 B

re
a
th

in
g
 S

p
a
c
e
. 
 T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 d

ir
e
c
t 
p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

, 
w

it
h
 4

5
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

p
u
rc

h
a
s
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 3

6
 i
n
 2

0
0
6
 a

n
d
 1

1
 i
n
 2

0
0
5
. 
T

h
is

 s
u
m

m
e
r 

T
h
e
 P

la
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
, 
T

h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
, 
H

a
s
le

m
e
re

, 
M

a
rk

fi
e
ld

, 
T

o
tt
e
n
h
a
m

 

H
o
ts

p
u
rs

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 F

a
m

ily
 L

in
k
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
la

y
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
/r

e
s
p
it
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
.

W
o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u
p
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 t
h
e
 'T

u
rn

in
g
 t
h
e
 

C
u
rv

e
' o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 
W

o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 t
o
 d

e
fi
n
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
n
e
e
d
s
 f
o
r 

p
la

y
 a

n
d
 

e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

it
h
in

 e
a
c
h
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 N
e
tw

o
rk

; 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
 

a
g
re

e
d
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 a

c
ro

s
s
 p

la
y
 a

n
d
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 d

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

s
e
tt
in

g
 u

p
 o

f 
a
 c

ri
ti
c
a
l 
fr

ie
n
d
s
 p

a
re

n
t 
/c

a
re

rs
 g

ro
u
p
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

f 

w
o
rk

.

(C
L

)P
3

.6

M
a

in
ta

in
 a

n
d

 e
x
te

n
d

 t
h

e
 g

o
o

d
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 

d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir

 p
a

re
n

ts
 i
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

a
n

d
 e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
, 
a

n
d

 i
n

 a
ll 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

th
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
p

e
n

 t
o

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

w
it
h

o
u

t 
d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
. 

P
h
il 

D
iL

e
o

A
lm

o
s
t 
a
ll 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 n
o
w

 c
h
o
o
s
e
 t
o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
h
e
ir
 

v
ie

w
s
 v

ia
 t
h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 
T

h
e
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
re

a
s
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 t
h
e
y
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
re

a
s
 f
o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
 M

a
n
y
 a

ls
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
o
s
e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
s
ta

ff
 w

h
o
m

 t
h
e
y
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

c
a
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
m

 

b
e
s
t.
 T

w
o
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

h
a
v
e
 r

e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
ir
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 

w
e
re

 c
e
a
s
e
d
 a

s
 t
h
e
y
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h
e
y
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 t
h
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

. 

T
h
e
s
e
 v

ie
w

s
 w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 p

a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
s
ta

ff
. 
T

h
e
 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

y
m

b
o
ls

 p
ro

fo
rm

a
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

 

g
a
in

in
g
 t
h
e
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

it
h
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 n

e
e
d
s
. 
S

p
e
c
ia

l 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 u

s
e
 a

 v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
 t
h
e
ir
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 P

e
rs

o
n
 C

e
n
tr

e
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

v
e
ry

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l.

T
h
is

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 a

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

 i
n
 a

ll 
a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 a

n
d
 o

n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
. 
T

h
e
 

V
a
le

 s
p
e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
h
a
s
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 t
h
e
ir
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
ta

ff
. 
S

p
e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
v
e
 u

s
e
d
 a

 v
a
ri
ty

 o
f 
m

e
d
ia

 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 l
e
a
v
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
to

 s
h
o
w

 t
h
e
ir
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
rs

, 
to

 

th
a
n
k
 a

n
d
 m

a
k
e
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 p

e
e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

ta
ff
. 
T

h
is

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

w
ill

 b
e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
le

n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 e

lc
tr

o
n
ic

 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 e

n
a
b
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 n

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 e

x
p
re

s
s
 t
h
e
ir
 v

ie
w

s
 m

o
re

 f
u
lly

 r
e
g
a
rd

in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 

n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 w

id
e
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
.

(C
L

)P
3

.7

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
a

ll 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 

d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 a
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 p

la
n

 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 t
h

e
m

 

to
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 a

d
u

lt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
.

P
h
il 

D
iL

e
o

A
ll 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

, 
w

it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
, 
w

h
o
 l
e
ft
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
in

 J
u
ly

 2
0
0
7
, 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

th
e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
o
f 
d
e
ta

ile
d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 t
ra

c
k
in

g
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 p

a
s
t 
a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 

T
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 P

la
n
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
  

C
h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 D

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 T

e
a
m

 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

b
in

e
d
 A

d
u
lt
s
 T

e
a
m

 f
o
r 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 

D
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

 s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

tr
a
n
s
it
io

n
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 L

D
D

. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 b

y
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
s
 a

re
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
in

 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 

a
re

 o
f 
g
o
o
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 f
u
tu

re
 p

la
n
n
in

g
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

tr
a
n
s
it
io

n
 s

ta
ff
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 D

is
a
b
ili

it
e
s
 T

e
a
m

 a
n
d
 A

d
u
lt
s
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 w

e
ll 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 w
ill

 e
n
a
b
le

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f
ro

m
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
to

 a
d
u
lt
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

Page 105



R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

L
E

A
D

(C
L

)P
3

.8

R
a

is
e

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t.
 S

e
e

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

4
 

in
 E

n
jo

y
 a

n
d

 A
c
h

ie
v
e

P
h
il 

D
iL

e
o

T
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 j
o
in

t 
w

o
rk

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
P

s
y
c
h
o
lo

g
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 L

it
e
ra

c
y
 T

e
a
m

 h
a
s
 s

e
e
n
 a

 y
e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 l
e
a
v
in

g
 K

S
2
 w

it
h
 l
it
e
ra

c
y
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
ts

 b
e
lo

w
 l
e
v
e
l 
3
; 
1
2
.6

%
 i
n
 

2
0
0
3
/4

, 
1
0
%

 i
n
 2

0
0
4
/0

5
 a

n
d
 8

.6
%

 i
n
 2

0
0
5
/0

6
. 
W

e
 a

re
 c

lo
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 w

it
h
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 f
ro

m
 7

%
 t
o
 6

.1
5
 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 

p
e
ri
o
d
.

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
w

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 L

D
D

, 
w

it
h
 l
o
w

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 n
e
e
d
s
, 
w

it
h
o
u
t 
 

re
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
n
e
w

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
6
 -

0
7
 h

a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 2

0
%

 a
n
d
 o

v
e
r 

3
0
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

e
a
s
e
d
 a

s
 t
h
e
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

e
t.
 T

h
is

 w
o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

in
 f
u
ll 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 p

a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
p
p
e
a
ls

 t
o
 S

E
N

D
IS

T

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

is
u
n
d
e
rw

a
y

o
n

th
e

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s

o
f

th
e

S
c
h
o
o
ls

'
F

o
ru

m

to
re

v
is

e
th

e
A

E
N

/
S

E
N

fo
rm

u
la

a
n
d

to
ra

is
e

th
e

fu
n
d
in

g
th

re
s
h
o
ld

fo
r

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

to
1
5

h
rs

T
e
a
c
h
in

g
A

s
s
is

ta
n
t

S
u
p
p
o
rt

o
r

th
e

e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t.

A

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

c
e
n
tr

a
l

a
n
d

s
c
h
o
o
l

b
a
s
e
d

b
ri
e
fi
n
g

s
e
s
s
io

n
s

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

h
e
ld

to

in
fo

rm
th

e
c
o
n
s
u
la

ta
ti
o
n

p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

T
h
e

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d

c
h
a
n
g
e
s

w
ill

b
e

fu
rt

h
e
r

d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 S

c
h
o
l's

 F
o
ru

m
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 o

n
 1

6
th

 N
o
v
e
m

e
b
e
r.

 

Page 106



T
h

e
 C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
: 

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g

B
E

 H
E

A
L

T
H

Y
 -

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 4

-7
O

U
T

C
O

M
E

 L
E

A
D

: 
J
A

N
 D

O
U

S
T

R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

(C
L

)P
4

.1

In
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
w

o
m

e
n

 w
h

o
 b

o
o

k
 e

a
rl

y
 

fo
r 

a
n

te
n

a
ta

l 
c
a

re
, 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 w

h
o

 

s
ta

rt
 b

re
a

s
t 
fe

e
d

in
g

 f
ro

m
 6

4
%

 i
n

 2
0

0
3

/0
4

 t
o

 8
1

%
 

in
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
 a

n
d

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 i
n

 

p
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 f

ro
m

 1
1

%
 i
n

 2
0

0
3

/0
4

 t
o

 5
%

 i
n

 

2
0

0
7

/0
8

.
C

la
ir
e

 W
ri
g
h
t

A
n
te

n
a
ta

l 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 -

 a
m

b
e
r,

 B
re

a
s
tf
e
e
d
in

g
 -

g
re

e
n
, 
S

m
o
k
in

g
 -

re
d

. 

A
c
ti

o
n

 -
 T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 I

n
fa

n
t 
M

o
rt

a
lit

y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 

C
Y

P
S

P
. 
 A

n
 I
n
fa

n
t 
F

e
e
d
in

g
 C

o
-o

rd
ia

n
to

r 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 p

la
n
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 b

re
a
s
t 
fe

e
d
in

g
 t
a
rg

e
t.
  
A

s
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 
C

Y
P

S
P

, 
th

e
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 t
a
rg

e
t 
is

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
, 
b
u
t 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 o

u
t 
o
f 
a
 H

e
a
lt
h
 

E
q
u
it
y
 A

u
d
it
 w

h
ic

h
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 c

e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 
b
y
 

p
re

g
n
a
n
t 
w

o
m

e
n
. 
 S

e
e
 b

e
lo

w
 f
o
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
w

o
m

e
n
 

w
h
o
 b

o
o
k
 e

a
rl
y
 f
o
r 

a
n
te

 n
a
ta

l 
c
a
re

.

A
n
te

n
a
ta

l 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 -

 a
m

b
e
r,

 B
re

a
s
tf
e
e
d
in

g
 -

g
re

e
n
, 
S

m
o
k
in

g
 -

 A
m

b
e
r
. 

A
c
ti

o
n

 -
 T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 I

n
fa

n
t 
M

o
rt

a
lit

y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 

C
Y

P
S

P
. 
 A

n
 I
n
fa

n
t 
F

e
e
d
in

g
 C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 p

la
n
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 b

re
a
s
t 
fe

e
d
in

g
 t
a
rg

e
t.
  
L
a
te

s
t 

d
a
ta

 s
h
o
w

s
 w

e
 a

re
 s

ta
rt

in
g
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
n
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 a

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 

s
m

o
k
in

g
 t
a
rg

e
t 
Q

1
 6

.7
%

 (
ta

rg
e
t 
5
%

),
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 o

u
t 
o
f 
a
 H

e
a
lt
h
 E

q
u
it
y
 A

u
d
it
 w

h
ic

h
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

t 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 c

e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 
b
y
 p

re
g
n
a
n
t 
w

o
m

e
n
. 
 S

e
e
 b

e
lo

w
 

fo
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
w

o
m

e
n
 w

h
o
 b

o
o
k
 e

a
rl
y
 f
o
r 

a
n
te

 n
a
ta

l 

c
a
re

.

(C
L

)P
4

.2

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
a

ll 
m

id
w

iv
e

s
, 
h

e
a

lt
h

 v
is

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 

c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 c
e

n
tr

e
 s

ta
ff

 a
re

 t
ra

in
e

d
 t
o

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 t
h

a
t 
im

p
ro

v
e

 h
e

a
lt
h

 e
q

u
a

lit
y
, 
fr

o
m

 

e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 s

m
o

k
in

g
 c

e
s
s
a

ti
o

n
 t
o

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 b

y
 p

re
g

n
a

n
t 
w

o
m

e
n

.
C

la
ir
e

 W
ri
g
h
t

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 g

o
o
d
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 c

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 

c
o
re

 o
ff
e
r 

in
to

 c
h
ild

re
n
's

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
. 
 A

c
ti

o
n

 -
 O

n
g
o
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

u
d
it
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 e
q
u
it
y
 o

f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
, 
w

it
h
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

ta
k
e
n
 -

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

ta
ff
 t
ra

in
in

g
 -

 i
f 
p
ro

b
le

m
s
 a

re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

A
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 A

u
g
u
s
t

(C
L

)P
4

.3

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
N

IC
E

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 o
n

 p
o

s
t 
n

a
ta

l 

c
a

re
, 
to

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
U

N
IC

E
F

 

b
a

b
y
-f

ri
e

n
d

ly
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 i
n

 m
a

te
rn

it
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
.

C
la

ir
e

 W
ri
g
h
t

G
o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ild

 

H
e
a
lt
h
 P

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 p
la

n
 o

f 
th

e
 I
n
fa

n
t 
F

e
e
d
in

g
 C

o
-

o
rd

in
a
to

r.
  
 A

c
ti

o
n

 -
 T

o
 a

g
re

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
T

ru
s
ts

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 

b
a
b
y
-f

ri
e
n
d
ly

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 (
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 u

n
d
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t)

, 
a
n
d
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 f
o
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

t 
re

g
u
la

r 
a
t 
in

te
rv

a
ls

.

G
o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 w

it
h
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ild

 

H
e
a
lt
h
 P

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 A
c
ti

o
n

 H
T

P
C

T
, 
a
n
d
 N

M
U

H
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

W
h
it
ti
n
g
to

n
, 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s

e
v
e
n
 s

te
p
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 B

a
b
y
 F

ri
e
n
d
ly

 a
c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 s

ta
ff
 t
ra

in
in

g
 i
s
 w

e
ll 

a
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
. 
 

(C
L

)P
4

.4

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 m

u
lt
i-

a
g

e
n

c
y
 p

la
n

 t
o

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 

w
o

m
e

n
 t
o

 b
o

o
k
 e

a
rl

y
 f

o
r 

a
n

te
n

a
ta

l 
c
a

re
, 

p
re

fe
ra

b
ly

 a
t 
8

-1
0

 w
e

e
k
s
 o

f 
p

re
g

n
a

n
c
y
 t
o

 g
iv

e
 

th
e

m
 t
im

e
 t
o

 p
la

n
 t
h

e
ir

 p
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

e
a

rl
y
 s

c
re

e
n

in
g

 o
p

ti
o

n
s
.

C
la

ir
e

 W
ri
g
h
t

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 -

 R
e
c
e
n
t 
a
u
d
it
s
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

t 
N

M
U

H
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 W

h
it
ti
n
g
to

n
 h

a
v
e
 

re
in

fo
rc

e
d
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
. 

 A
c
ti

o
n

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

a
 

M
id

w
iv

e
s
 a

s
 f
ir
s
t 
p
o
in

t 
o
f 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 
p
ilo

t 
a
t 
N

o
rt

h
u
m

b
e
rl
a
n
d
 P

a
rk

 C
h
ild

re
n
's

 

C
e
n
tr

e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 w

ill
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

lo
n
g
s
id

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
p
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 i
n
 g

e
tt
in

g
 w

o
m

e
n
 t
o
 b

o
o
k
 e

a
rl
y
. 

It
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
a
 H

e
a
lt
h
 E

q
u
it
y
 A

u
d
it
 o

n
 w

o
m

e
n
 w

h
o
 b

o
o
k
 

p
re

 1
2
 w

e
e
k
s
 a

n
d
 p

o
s
t 
2
2
 w

e
e
k
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 a

lo
n
g
s
id

e
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ilo
t 
to

 a
g
re

e
 f
u
tu

re
 a

c
ti
o
n
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 -

 P
la

n
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 s

ta
rt

 t
h
e
 m

id
w

iv
e
s
 a

s
 f
ir
s
t 
p
o
in

t 
o
f 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 

p
ilo

t 
a
t 
N

o
rt

h
u
m

b
e
rl
a
n
d
 P

a
rk

 C
h
ild

re
n
's

 C
e
n
tr

e
 f
ro

m
 3

rd
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
, 

a
n
d
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 t
h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 E

q
u
it
y
 A

u
d
it
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
. 
 A

c
ti

o
n

 D
e
p
e
n
d
in

g
 

o
n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
, 
to

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

te
rm

 p
la

n
s
, 
to

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t
o
 p

u
b
lic

is
e
 t
h
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 
b
o
o
k
in

g
 e

a
rl
y
 f
o
r 

a
n
te

n
a
ta

l 
c
a
re

.

(C
L

) 
P

4
.5

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
a

 F
a

m
ily

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t
h

a
t 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

le
v
e

ls
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
ll 

fa
m

ili
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 

o
n

e
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 m

u
lt
i-

a
g

e
n

c
y
 t
e

a
m

s
 w

o
rk

in
g

 

in
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

s
e

tt
in

g
s
 b

y
 

2
0

0
8

. 
 S

e
e

 a
ls

o
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 O
n

e
. 

J
a

n
 D

o
u
s
t

F
a
m

ily
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 i
n
 f
in

a
l 
d
ra

ft
in

g
 s

ta
g
e
. 
F

S
W

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

a
p
p
o
in

te
d
 u

s
in

g
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
ro

m
 D

S
G

 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 C

N
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

o
rg

a
n
is

e
d
 i
n
to

 t
e
a
m

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 C

C
 F

S
W

s
s
o
 t
h
a
t 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

c
o
h
e
re

n
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

. 
C

o
o
rd

in
a
to

rs
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 C

N
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 

th
e
s
e
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
rs

ig
h
t 
a
n
d
 a

re
 

lin
k
in

g
 w

it
h
 f
a
m

ily
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 N

L
C

s
.

M
o
d
e
ls

 f
o
r 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l-
b
a
s
e
d
 f
a
m

ily
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 h
a
v
e
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 

a
g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 a

re
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
in

 e
a
c
h
 N

L
C

. 
F

S
W

s
 b

a
s
e
d
 i
n
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 

C
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 

a
n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 v

is
it
o
rs

. 
R

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 t
o
 a

ll 
c
a
te

g
o
ri
e
s
 o

f 
F

S
W

s
 a

re
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

a
re

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 o

n
 a

n
 N

L
C

 b
a
s
is

. 
M

o
n
th

ly
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 

v
ia

 e
a
c
h
 N

L
C

 a
n
d
 a

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 d
u
ri
n
g
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r.

 

D
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 v

ia
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
d
 h

e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
rs

 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 N

L
C

 o
n
 t
h
e
 

fu
tu

re
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

is
 w

o
rk

 p
o
s
t 
A

u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
8
.

L
E

A
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 F
O

U
R

 –
 W

e
 w

il
l 
re

d
u

c
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
ti

ll
 b

ir
th

s
 a

n
d

 b
a
b

ie
s
 w

h
o

 d
ie

 b
e
fo

re
 t

h
e
ir

 f
ir

s
t 

b
ir

th
d

a
y
. 
 S

p
e
c
if

ic
a
ll
y
 w

e
 

w
il
l:

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 F
IV

E
 –

 W
e
 w

il
l 
p

ro
m

o
te

 h
e
a
lt

h
ie

r 
li
fe

s
ty

le
s
 t

o
 c

h
il
d

re
n

, 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 p

a
re

n
ts

. 
 S

p
e
c
if

ic
a
ll
y
 w

e
 w

il
l:

Page 107



R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

L
E

A
D

(C
L

)P
5

.1

E
n

a
b

le
 c

h
ild

re
n

, 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 p

a
re

n
ts

, 

e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 t
e

e
n

a
g

e
 p

a
re

n
ts

, 
to

 m
a

k
e

 b
e

tt
e

r 

c
h

o
ic

e
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
h

e
a

lt
h

ie
r 

lif
e

s
ty

le
s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 l
in

k
e

d
 t
o

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

fa
m

ily
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

. 
S

u
 S

h
a

w

G
o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
h
ild

 H
e
a
lt
h
 P

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 
a
n
d
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 

o
ld

e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

. 
 A

c
ti

o
n

 -
 N

e
e
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

T
e
e
n
 p

a
re

n
ts

 g
ro

u
p
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 a

t 
s
p
o
rt

s
 c

e
n
tr

e
 w

it
h
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 &

 

c
re

c
h
e
. 
 (

s
e
e
 a

ls
o
 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h
 2

1
).

 R
e
g
u
la

r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 b

y
 V

Y
P

W
 f
o
r 

te
e
n
 p

a
re

n
ts

. 
A

p
p
ro

x
 2

0
 t
e
e
n
 m

u
m

s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
s
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
. 

L
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 C

C
s
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 n

u
tr

it
io

n
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

te
e
n
 

p
a
re

n
ts

.

(C
L

)P
5

.2

R
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 o
b

e
s
it
y
 b

y
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 o

b
e

s
it
y
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 b
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 s
p

o
rt

, 
le

is
u

re
 a

n
d

 

re
c
re

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
. 
 S

e
e

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

3
 i
n

 

E
n

jo
y
 a

n
d

 A
c
h

ie
v
e

 a
ls

o
. 
.

C
la

ir
e

 W
ri
g
h
t

F
ig

u
re

s
 f
o
r 

0
7
/0

8
 a

re
 d

u
e
 s

h
o
rt

ly
, 
b
u
t 
re

c
e
n
t 
re

p
o
rt

s
 s

u
g
g
e
s
t 
th

a
t 
a
re

 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

b
o
u
t 
a
b
ili

ty
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

is
 t
a
rg

e
t.
  
L
o
c
a
lly

 a
n
 O

b
e
s
it
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 e

a
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 'm

o
d
u
le

s
' o

f 
th

e
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 
a
n
d
 'W

a
tc

h
 i
t',

 a
n
 N

R
F

 f
u
n
d
e
d
 f
a
m

ily
 b

a
s
e
d
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 s

ta
rt

 w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 o

b
e
s
e
 (

a
b
o
v
e
 9

8
th

 

c
e
n
ti
le

) 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
. 
 A

c
ti

o
n

 -
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 o

b
e
s
it
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

it
h
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 r

e
g
u
la

rl
y
.

T
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 f
o
r 

0
7
/0

8
 s

h
o
w

 a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 c

h
ild

h
o
o
d
 o

b
e
s
it
y
 i
n
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
, 

w
h
ic

h
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

b
o
u
t 
a
b
ili

ty
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

is
 t
a
rg

e
t,
 b

u
t 
is

 

c
le

a
rl
y
 a

 m
a
tt
e
r 

fo
r 

s
o
m

e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

. 
 A

n
 O

b
e
s
it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 e

a
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 'm

o
d
u
le

s
' o

f 
th

e
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 
a
n
d
 'W

a
tc

h
 i
t',

 a
n
 

N
R

F
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 f
a
m

ily
 b

a
s
e
d
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 j
u
s
t 
s
ta

rt
e
d
 

to
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 o

b
e
s
e
 (

a
b
o
v
e
 9

8
th

 c
e
n
ti
le

) 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 .
  

A
c
ti

o
n

 -
 I

n
 v

ie
w

 o
f 
th

e
 l
a
te

s
t 
d
a
ta

, 
to

 c
o
n
v
e
n
e
 a

 m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t
o
 

re
v
ie

w
 a

c
ti
o
n
.

(C
L

)P
5

.3

R
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 t
a

k
e

 u
p

 s
m

o
k
in

g
. 
 

C
la

ir
e

 W
ri
g
h
t

T
h
is

 f
o
rm

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 

to
 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
w

a
y
s
 o

f 
m

e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
. 
 A

c
ti

o
n

 A
re

 r
e
v
ie

w
in

g
 f
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

 s
m

o
k
in

g
 c

e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 p

ilo
t 
in

 a
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l

T
h
is

 f
o
rm

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 

to
 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
w

a
y
s
 o

f 
m

e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
. 
 A

c
ti

o
n

  
A

 s
m

o
k
in

g
 c

e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 p

ilo
t 

is
 d

u
e
 t
o
 s

ta
rt

 a
t 
H

o
rn

s
e
y
 G

ir
ls

 S
c
h
o
o
l.

(C
L

)P
5

.4

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
6

0
%

 o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 H
e

a
lt
h

y
 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 S

ta
tu

s
 i
n

 2
0

0
7

/0
8

; 
7

5
%

 i
n

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

; 
a

n
d

 

8
5

%
 b

y
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 l
e

d
 b

y
 a

 m
u

lt
i-

a
g

e
n

c
y
 a

c
ti
o

n
 

p
la

n
 (

L
A

A
 S

tr
e

tc
h

 T
a

rg
e

t)
. 

J
u
d

e
 C

le
m

e
n
t

3
6
%

 o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
v
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 H

S
S

 a
t 
J
u
ly

 2
0
0
7
 (

1
3
%

 D
e
c
 0

6
).

 N
B

 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
a
ta

b
a
s
e
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
rr

e
c
te

d
 t
o
 s

h
o
w

 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 d

a
ta

 a
t 
ti
m

e
 o

f 
w

ri
ti
n
g
. 

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 r

a
ti
n
g
 A

m
b
e
r 

a
s
 s

o
m

e
 L

e
v
e
l 
3
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 a
c
c
re

d
it
e
d
 

re
m

o
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
a
ta

b
a
s
e
. 
G

R
E

E
N

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
u

p
d

a
te

d
: 
 3

 x
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

- 
fi
rs

t 
re

v
ie

w
 i
n

 S
u

m
m

e
r;

 m
id

 y
e

a
r 

re
v
ie

w
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r,

 e
n

d
 o

f 
y
e

a
r 

re
v
ie

w
 A

p
ri

l.
  

A
c
h

ie
v
e

 9
0

%
 o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

it
h

 a
n

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 t
ra

v
e

l 

p
la

n
 (

S
T

P
) 

b
y
 2

0
0

7
/2

0
0

8
; 
9

5
%

 b
y
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
; 
a

n
d

 

1
0

0
%

 b
y
 2

0
0

9
/2

0
1

0
.

Ia
n
 B

a
ile

y

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 S

T
P

’s
 t
o
 d

a
te

: 
  
  
2
0
0
6
/2

0
0
7
 –

 8
7
.2

%

W
e
 a

re
 o

n
 t
ra

c
k
 t
o
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 2

0
0
7
/2

0
0
8
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 o
f 
9
0
%

 1
0
0
%

 b
y
 2

0
0
8
/2

0
0
9
 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 M

a
y
o
r’
s
 t
a
rg

e
t.
  
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 S

T
P

’s
 t
o
 d

a
te

: 
  
  
2
0
0
6
/2

0
0
7
 –

 8
7
.2

%

W
e
 a

re
 o

n
 t
ra

c
k
 t
o
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 2

0
0
7
/2

0
0
8
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 o
f 
9
0
%

 1
0
0
%

 b
y
 2

0
0
8
/2

0
0
9
 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 M

a
y
o
r’
s
 t
a
rg

e
t.
  
 

(C
L

)P
5

.6

R
e

d
u

c
e

 b
y
 5

0
%

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 l
iv

e
 i
n

 t
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 a

n
d

 

u
n

s
u

it
a

b
le

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 b

y
 2

0
1

0
 (

S
e

e
 a

ls
o

 

p
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

8
).

 
D

e
n
is

e
 G

a
n
d

y

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 o

u
r 

c
h
o
ic

e
 b

a
s
e
d
 l
e
tt
in

g
s
 s

y
s
te

m
, 
H

o
m

e
 C

o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
. 
 G

re
a
te

r 

c
h
o
ic

e
 e

n
a
b
le

s
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 n
e
a
r 

a
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
o
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 n
e
tw

o
rk

s
. 

 T
h
is

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
s
 l
e
t 
2
2
8
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
, 
p
re

v
e
n
te

d
 2

4
7
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 f
ro

m
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
, 
a
n
d
 

re
tu

rn
e
d
 4

8
 e

m
p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 t
o
 o

c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n

. 
T

h
e
s
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 a

ll 
p
a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 p

la
n
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

b
y
 5

0
%

 b
y
 2

0
1
0
.

(C
L

)P
6

.1

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 m

u
lt
i-

a
g

e
n

c
y
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 t
o

 d
ri

v
e

 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
C

la
ir
e

 W
ri
g
h
t

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 -

 M
u
lt
i 
A

g
e
n
c
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
6
 -

2
0
0
9
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

a
g
re

e
d
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
7
-2

0
0
8
. 

 A
c
ti

o
n

 -
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

A
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 A

u
g
u
s
t

(C
L

)P
6

.2

R
e

v
ie

w
 C

A
M

H
S

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

a
n

d
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a

re
, 
a

n
d

 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
w

a
y
s
 o

f 
o

p
ti
m

is
in

g
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

, 
to

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 p
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 

th
e

 p
re

s
s
u

re
 o

n
 T

ie
r 

3
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
.

C
la

ir
e

 W
ri
g
h
t

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 J

o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

G
ro

u
p
s
 h

a
v
e
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
. 
 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
T

ie
r 

1
 a

n
d
 2

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
, 

a
n
d
 a

 T
ie

r 
2
 I
n
fa

n
t 
M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 T

e
a
m

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 
 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 S
IX

 –
 W

e
 w

il
l 
p

re
v
e
n

t 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 b

y
 s

tr
e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g

 t
h

e
ir

 e
m

o
ti

o
n

a
l 

w
e
ll
b

e
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
e
lf

 e
s
te

e
m

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
o

s
e
 w

h
o

 h
a
v
e
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
 n

e
e
d

s
. 
 S

p
e
c
if

ic
a
ll
y
 w

e
 w

il
l:

Page 108



R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

L
E

A
D

(C
L

)P
6

.3

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 m
o

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 

s
c
h

o
o

l-
b

a
s
e

d
 p

re
v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 t
h

a
t 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 e
m

o
ti
o

n
a

l 
lit

e
ra

c
y
 a

n
d

 b
y
 s

tr
e

n
g

th
e

n
in

g
 

th
e

 w
o

rk
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t
o

 c
h

ild
re

n
 

a
n

d
 f

a
m

ili
e

s
.

C
h
ri
s
ta

 R
ip

p
o

n

4
5
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
v
e
 n

o
w

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 i
n
 S

E
A

L
 –

 S
o
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 

E
m

o
ti
o
n
a
l 
A

s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 
L
e
a
rn

in
g
 –

 a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
h
a
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
s
 e

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 

lit
e
ra

c
y
 s

k
ill

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

in
g
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 f
e
e
lin

g
s
, 
s
e
lf
-m

o
ti
v
a
ti
o
n
, 

e
m

p
a
th

y
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
fl
ic

t 
re

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
. 
 T

h
is

 c
a
n
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 w
h
o
le

-s
c
h
o
o
l 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

r 
ju

s
t 
to

 s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t 
o
th

e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
m

a
y
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
. 
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
P

s
y
c
h
o
lo

g
is

ts
 h

a
v
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
, 
s
ta

ff
 c

o
a
c
h
in

g
 

a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili

ta
te

 t
e
rm

ly
 ‘s

h
a
ri
n
g
 g

o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
’ 
d
a
y
s
.

T
ra

in
in

g
 f
o
r 

a
n
o
th

e
r 

1
2
 s

e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 f
ro

m
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 

‘L
e
a
d
 B

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

’ 
–
 i
.e

. 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 i
n
 t
h
e
 

a
re

a
 o

f 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 -

 w
a
s
 v

e
ry

 w
e
ll 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
. 
 E

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 

lit
e
ra

c
y
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
to

ra
ti
v
e
 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 w

e
re

 k
e
y
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
is

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 

re
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 f
o
u
r 

m
o
re

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
a
k
in

g
 o

n
 R

e
s
to

ra
ti
v
e
 J

u
s
ti
c
e
 (

R
J
) 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 a

n
d
 P

e
e
r 

M
e
d
ia

ti
o
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
. 
  
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 t
h
e
s
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 v

e
ry

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 

re
d
u
c
in

g
 b

u
lly

in
g
 a

n
d
 n

e
g
a
ti
v
e
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

in
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

.

F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 p

a
re

n
ts

 a
tt
e
n
d
in

g
 S

E
A

L
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 a

n
d
 p

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 g

ro
u
p
s
 h

a

T
o
 b

u
ild

 o
n
 a

ll 
th

e
s
e
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 w

e
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 t
o
 p

ilo
t 
a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

(C
L

)P
6

.4

Im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

fo
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 m
e

n
ta

l 

h
e

a
lt
h

 n
e

e
d

s
 b

y
 d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 b
e

tt
e

r 
fo

c
u

s
e

d
 

tr
e

a
tm

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 b
y
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 y

e
a

r 
o

n
 y

e
a

r 
th

e
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

w
h

o
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 i
n

-p
a

ti
e

n
t 
tr

e
a

tm
e

n
t.
 

C
la

ir
e

 W
ri
g
h
t

G
o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
. 
 T

h
e
 M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 T

ru
s
t 
a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 a

 p
ilo

t 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

re
fe

rr
a
ls

 t
o
 t
h
e
 S

t 
A

n
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 1
3
 w

e
e
k
s
, 
a
n
 E

a
rl
y
 I
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 i
n
 P

s
y
c
h
o
s
is

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 

b
e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 t
o
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 a

t 
T

ie
r 

1
 a

n
d
 T

ie
r 

2
 

w
ill

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
. 
 A

c
ti

o
n

 -
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
7
/2

0
0
8
, 

w
it
h
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 J

o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u
p
. 

A
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 A

u
g
u
s
t 
- 

g
o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 p

ilo
t

(C
L

)P
6

.5

Im
p

ro
v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

h
ild

 a
n

d
 A

d
o

le
s
c
e

n
t 

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 (

C
A

M
H

S
) 

th
ro

u
g

h
 a

 

s
in

g
le

 p
o

in
t 
o

f 
c
o

n
ta

c
t,
 a

n
d

 e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 d
if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
.

C
la

ir
e

 W
ri
g
h
t

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 

a
n
d
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 a

 s
in

g
le

 p
o
in

t 
o
f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 o

n
g
o
in

g
  

A
c
ti

o
n

 -
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

A
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 A

u
g
u
s
t 
- 

a
 w

o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u
p
 i
s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 f
o
rt

n
ig

h
tl
y
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 

s
in

g
le

 p
o
in

t 
o
f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 i
n
to

 s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
C

A
M

H
S

(C
L

)P
6

.6

A
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
 C

h
ild

 a
n

d
 A

d
o

le
s
c
e

n
t 
M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 o

f 
th

e
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 f

o
r 

C
h

ild
re

n
, 
Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 

M
a

te
rn

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 b

y
 2

0
1

0
.

C
la

ir
e

 W
ri
g
h
t

A
 m

u
lt
i 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
6
 -

2
0
0
9
  
is

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
7
-2

0
0
8
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d

. 
 A

c
ti

o
n

 -
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

A
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 A

u
g
u
s
t

(C
L

)P
7

.1

R
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 u

n
d

e
r 

1
8

 c
o

n
c
e

p
ti
o

n
 r

a
te

s
 t
o

 4
8

.3
 

p
e

r 
1

0
0

0
 i
n

 2
0

0
7

; 
4

1
.4

 p
e

r 
th

o
u

s
a

n
d

 i
n

 2
0

0
8

; 

3
4

.8
 p

e
r 

th
o

u
s
a

n
d

 i
n

 2
0

0
9

 a
n

d
 2

8
.0

 p
e

r 

th
o

u
s
a

n
d

 b
y
 2

0
1

0
 a

n
d

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 a
 d

o
w

n
w

a
rd

 

tr
e

n
d

 i
n

 u
n

d
e

r-
1

6
 r

a
te

s
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 m

u
lt
i-

a
g

e
n

c
y
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

. 
  
S

e
e

 a
ls

o
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 2
 i
n

 

V
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 C

h
ild

re
n

 &
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
.

S
u
 S

h
a

w

L
a
te

s
t 
d
a
ta

 -
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

1
, 
2
0
0
6
 r

a
te

s
 –

 5
3
.3

 p
e
r 

th
o
u
s
a
n
d
 –

 i
s
 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

e
v
e
r 

s
in

c
e
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

1
 1

9
9
9
. 

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

1
 ’
0
6
 (

5
0
) 

is
 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

A
N

Y
 q

u
a
rt

e
r,

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

1
 1

9
9
9
. 

T
h
e
 r

o
lli

n
g
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
6
1
.4

 p
e
r 

th
o
u
s
a
n
d
 i
s
 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 
e
v
e
r 

s
in

c
e
 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 o

f 
1
9
9
9
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 
fu

ll-
y
e
a
r 

d
a
ta

 s
h
o
w

s
 t
h
a
t 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

te
e
n
a
g
e
 p

re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 r

a
te

s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
h
e
 f
a
ll 

s
ta

rt
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
0
, 
th

e
y
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

0
.3

 

p
e
r 

th
o
u
s
a
n
d
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 1

9
9
8
 b

a
s
e
 r

a
te

, 
m

a
k
in

g
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

T
e
e
n
a
g
e
 p

re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

ro
s
s
-c

u
tt
in

g
 t
h
e
m

e
s
 

fo
r 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
. 

N
o
 l
a
te

r 
d
a
ta

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
s
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
ro

b
le

m
 w

it
h
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
a
ta

 s
y
s
te

m
s
. 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 G

O
L
 r

e
 d

a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
o
 s

ta
rt

 D
e
c
 0

7
. 
R

o
b
u
s
t 
m

u
lt
i-

a
g
e
n
c
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 r

e
c
o
n
s
ti
tu

te
d
 T

P
 S

P
B

. 
M

e
e
ti
n
g
 2

0
1
0
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 w
ill

 r
e
m

a
in

 a
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 r
a
ti
n
g
 a

t 
s
ti
ll 

re
d
.

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 S
E

V
E

N
 -

 W
e
 w

il
l 
w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 t

e
e
n

a
g

e
 c

o
n

c
e
p

ti
o

n
 r

a
te

s
 i
n

 H
a
ri

n
g

e
y
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 b

ro
a
d

e
r 

a
im

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

e
x
u

a
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
. 
 S

p
e
c
if

ic
a
ll
y
 w

e
 w

il
l:

Page 109



R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

L
E

A
D

(C
L

)P
7

.2

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 t
o

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
n

 s
e

x
 a

n
d

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

in
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
, 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
th

 s
e

tt
in

g
s
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 m

u
lt
i-

a
g

e
n

c
y
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
, 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 

b
y
 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 Y
P

’s
 w

e
b

s
it
e

. 
 

S
u
 S

h
a

w

N
e
w

ly
 d

e
v
is

e
d
 S

R
E

 t
e
a
c
h
in

g
 p

a
c
k
 i
n
 4

 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
ta

ff
 

tr
a
in

in
g
. 
F

u
ll 

d
a
y
 S

R
E

 t
ra

in
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
o
 N

o
rt

h
u
m

b
e
rl
a
n
d
 P

a
rk

 a
n
d
 

W
o
o
d
s
id

e
 t
e
a
c
h
e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 h

a
lf
 d

a
y
 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
o
 

G
la

d
e
s
m

o
re

. 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 i
n
 G

la
d
e
s
m

o
re

 -
 1

5
 t
e
a
c
h
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 

re
g
is

te
re

d
 f
o
r 

p
h
a
s
e
 5

. 
F

ir
s
t 
s
e
s
s
io

n
 1

8
.9

.0
7

S
e
x
F

M
 v

id
e
o
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 
T

e
e
n
s
 a

n
d
 T

o
d
d
le

rs
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 s

e
lf
 s

u
s
ta

in
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
a
rg

e
ti
n
g
 5

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 -
 h

ig
h
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 r

a
te

 f
ro

m
 p

ilo
t.
 T

e
e
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
e
p
ti
v
e
 n

u
rs

e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 

ru
n
 i
n
 C

C
s
, 
4
Y

P
 a

n
d
 t
e
e
n
 m

u
m

s
' g

ro
u
p
.

(C
L

)P
7

.3

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 w
o

rk
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 

T
e

e
n

a
g

e
 P

re
g

n
a

n
c
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 S

e
x
u

a
l 

H
e

a
lt
h

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 o

n
e

-t
o

-o
n

e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 

fo
r 

y
o

u
n

g
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
t 
ri

s
k
 a

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

t 
th

e
 4

Y
P

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 Y

o
u

th
 S

e
rv

ic
e

. 
 

S
u
 S

h
a

w
D

e
d
ic

a
te

d
 p

o
s
t 
o
f 
T

e
e
n
a
g
e
 P

re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r 
a
p
p
o
in

te
d
 w

e
f 
1
.9

.0
7

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
4
Y

P
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

g
re

e
d
. 
S

u
b
-g

ro
u
p
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 f
o
r 

L
A

C
/l
e
a
v
in

g
 c

a
re

 

a
n
d
 m

e
d
ia

 &
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 s

u
b
 g

ro
u
p
s
 

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
e
d
. 
C

o
m

m
it
te

d
 T

P
 S

P
B

. 
(s

e
e
 l
in

k
s
 a

ls
o
 w

it
h
 3

4
,3

5
)

(C
L

)P
7

.4

In
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 t
a

k
e

 u
p

 o
f 

C
h

la
m

y
d

ia
 s

c
re

e
n

in
g

 

a
m

o
n

g
s
t 
s
e

x
u

a
lly

 a
c
ti
v
e

 1
5

-2
4

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 t
o

 

2
,4

0
0

 b
y
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 b

ro
a

d
e

r 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 s
e

x
u

a
l 
a

n
d

 r
e

p
ro

d
u

c
ti
v
e

 h
e

a
lt
h

.
C

la
ir
e

 W
ri
g
h
t

N
u
m

b
e
rs

 s
c
re

e
n
e
d
 -

 

F
e
m

a
le

s
: 
1
8
4
 (

P
o
s
it
iv

e
s
 2

1
) 

M
a
le

s
  
  
  
 2

0
 (

P
o
s
it
iv

e
s
  
7
) 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 F

a
m

ily
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
. 

S
ti
ll 

w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 B

a
rn

e
t 
P

C
T

 t
o
 w

id
e
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

O
n
g
o
in

g
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 a

n
te

n
a
ta

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 u

p
ta

k
e
 

N
u
m

b
e
rs

 s
c
re

e
n
e
d
: 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

1
 (

A
p
r-

 J
u
n
e
):

  
2
1
7
; 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 (

J
u
ly

- 
S

e
p
t)

: 

1
7
4
; 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

4
5
. 
  
A

 s
e
s
s
io

n
a
l 
C

h
la

m
y
d
ia

 w
o
rk

e
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
d
 t
o
 

ta
rg

e
t 
A

fr
ic

a
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
; 
E

x
p
o
s
u
re

 i
s
 r

u
n
n
in

g
 a

 p
u
b
lic

it
y
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 u

n
ti
l 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
, 
a
n
d
 t
e
s
ts

 a
re

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 6
th

 F
o
rm

 C
e
n
tr

e
.

Page 110



T
h

e
 C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
: 

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g

S
T

A
Y

 S
A

F
E

 -
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

 8
-1

1
O

U
T

C
O

M
E

 L
E

A
D

: 
C

E
C

IL
IA

 H
IT

C
H

E
N

R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

(C
L

)P
8

.1

In
c
re

a
s
e

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 r
e

c
e

iv
in

g
 

D
U

S
T

 s
c
re

e
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
re

c
e

iv
in

g
 

tr
e

a
tm

e
n

t.
 

M
a

ri
o

n
 

W
h
e

e
le

r

P
la

n
 i
n
 P

la
c
e
. 
P

re
 S

c
re

e
n
in

g
 p

ro
m

p
t 
s
h
e
e
t 
d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
, 
s
ta

ff
 t
ra

in
e
d
 a

n
d
 

s
c
re

e
n
in

g
 w

o
rk

 w
e
ll 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
. 
S

te
p
 a

h
e
a
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 i
n
v
it
e
d
 t
o
 

d
o
 m

o
re

 o
u
tr

e
a
c
h
 b

a
s
e
d
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
re

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

A
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 w
e
re

 o
ff
e
re

d
 d

ru
g
 s

c
re

e
n
in

g
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 a

 h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 e

v
e
r 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

w
e
re

 o
ff
e
re

d
 a

n
d
 t
o
o
k
 u

p
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t/
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

(C
L

)P
8

.2

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 r
o

a
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 f
a

ta
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d

 

c
a

s
u

a
lt
ie

s
 i
n

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 u
n

d
e

r 

1
6

, 
a

n
d

 e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 f

o
r 

b
o

y
s
 a

g
e

d
 1

1
-1

5
 –

 t
h

e
 

a
g

e
 g

ro
u

p
 a

t 
g

re
a

te
s
t 
ri

s
k
.

T
e

re
s
a

 

W
a

ls
h
 

J
o

n
e

s

F
ig

u
re

s
 o

n
ly

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
ro

m
 T

fL
 o

n
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
b
a
s
is

.I
n
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
t 

th
a
t 
th

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
v
ic

ti
m

s
 o

f 
ro

a
d
 t
ra

ff
ic

 c
o
lli

s
io

n
s
 (

c
a
n
’t
 s

a
y
 a

c
c
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
y
 

m
o
re

 a
p
p
a
re

n
tl
y
) 

a
re

 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
rs

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

2
 a

n
d
 1

5
 y

e
a
rs

, 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
ro

a
d
 

s
a
fe

ty
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 t
ra

in
in

g
 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

h
e
lp

 o
f 
th

e
 S

a
fe

r 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 p
o
lic

e
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

.A
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

n
 r

o
a
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
b
is

h
e
d
 s

h
o
rt

ly
.

R
o
a
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 R

e
v
ie

w
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 0
7
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
ta

in
s
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o
 t
a
rg

e
t 
ro

a
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 m

o
re

 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 a
t 
te

e
n
a
g
e
rs

 w
h
ile

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 -

 g
re

a
te

r 
u
s
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 o

f 
s
a
fe

r 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 p
o
lic

e
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 i
n
 t
h
e
 

d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 
T

h
e
 L

S
C

B
 w

a
s
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 C
h
a
ir
. 
 F

ig
u
re

s
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 

h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
b
e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
ro

m
 T

fL
 d

u
e
 t
o
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
 b

e
d
d
in

g
 d

o
w

n
 

a
 n

e
w

 d
a
ta

b
a
s
e
. 

(C
L

)P
8

.3

R
a

is
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
b

e
lie

f-
c
e

n
tr

e
d

 a
b

u
s
e

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
m

o
n

g
 f

ro
n

t-
lin

e
 s

ta
ff

 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
. 

T
e

re
s
a

 

W
a

ls
h
 

J
o

n
e

s

A
 p

o
s
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 
u
p
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
d
 

s
h
o
rt

ly
. 
 B

e
lie

f 
c
e
n
tr

e
d
 a

b
u
s
e
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 i
n
to

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 

tr
a
in

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

A
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 a

w
a
it
in

g
 H

R
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. 

T
ra

in
in

g
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

/e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 s

e
tt
in

g
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

u
t 
w

it
h
 

th
e
 n

e
w

 a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 
a
 l
a
rg

e
r 

v
o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
. 
 

(C
L

)P
8

.4

W
e

 p
la

n
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 j
u

n
io

r 
M

A
P

P
A

 (
m

u
lt
i 

a
g

e
n

c
y
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 g

ro
u

p
) 

to
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
is

e
 o

n
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 c
o

n
v
ic

te
d

 o
r 

a
s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 a

s
 a

t 
ri

s
k
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

it
ti
n

g
 s

e
x
u

a
l 
a

b
u

s
e

 

a
g

a
in

s
t 
c
h

ild
re

n
 o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

.’

T
e

re
s
a

 

W
a

ls
h
 

J
o

n
e

s

T
h
e
 C

&
Y

P
S

 a
n
d
 Y

O
S

 a
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 r
is

k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
a
n
e
l 
to

 o
v
e
rs

e
e
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
 o

f 
w

o
rk

. 
 

T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
, 
a
n
d
 a

w
a
it
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l.
 W

o
rk

in
g
 

g
ro

u
p
 h

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 c

h
ild

 s
e
x
u
a
l 
a
b
u
s
e
. 
T

h
is

 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 i
n
c
o
rp

a
ra

te
s
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 s

e
x
u
a
l 
a
b
u
s
e
 o

th
e
rs

. 
It
 

is
 a

 m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 p

la
n
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 s

u
b
-g

ro
u
p

(C
L

)P
8

.5

R
e

d
u

c
e

 o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
, 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 

n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s
. 

J
a

n
 

D
o

u
s
t/
T

e
re

s

a
 W

a
ls

h
 

J
o

n
e

s

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 t
h
e
 N

o
e
l 
P

a
rk

 W
a
rd

, 
a
n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 p

o
lic

e
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 s
h
o
rt

ly
 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
.

M
o
re

 r
e
c
e
n
t 
p
o
lic

e
 i
n
te

lli
g
e
n
c
e
 s

h
o
w

s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 i
n
c
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
in

tr
a
fa

m
ili

a
l 

c
ri
m

e
 i
n
 N

o
e
l 
P

a
rk

 h
a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 b

u
t 
H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

s
h
o
w

in
g
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
 

c
ri
m

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e

a
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 
 W

e
 w

ill
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 

tw
o
 p

ro
n
g
e
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
h
a
t 
o
n
 o

n
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
tr

ie
s
 t
o
 r

e
fi
n
e
 t
h
e
 a

c
c
u
ra

c
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

d
a
ta

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 w
h
ile

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 p

u
b
lic

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 p
a
re

n
ti
n
g
 

is
s
u
e
s
. 
 T

h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

il 
b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 a
s
 l
it
e
ra

tu
re

 b
u
t 
w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 

re
la

y
e
d
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 p

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 g

ro
u
p
s
 i
n
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
. 
 I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

th
e
 a

c
c
u
ra

c
y
 o

f 
th

e
 d

a
ta

 w
ill

 e
n
a
b
le

 b
e
tt
e
r 

ta
rg

e
ti
n
g
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
.

(C
L

)P
8

.6

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 t
h

a
t 
e

n
a

b
le

s
 t
h

e
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f 

th
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 i
n

 c
a

s
e

s
 o

f 
c
h

ild
 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
.

T
e

re
s
a

 

W
a

ls
h
 

J
o

n
e

s

B
o
th

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 r

u
n
 f
ro

m
 A

u
g
u
s
t 
0
7
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 o

n
 C

P
R

 w
h
e
re

 D
V

 i
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
 

S
y
s
te

m
 n

o
w

 c
o
lle

c
ti
n
g
 d

a
ta

. 
In

 M
a
rc

h
 0

7
 f
o
r 

e
n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

d
a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 o

f 
p
re

s
e
n
ti
n
g
 f
a
c
to

rs
/ 
a
n
d
 r

is
k
 f
a
c
to

rs
 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 

c
h
ild

 w
it
h
 a

 c
h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
. 
 A

 m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 o

n
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

V
io

le
n
c
e
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 
 A

s
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 t
h
is

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
e
s
 i
t 
w

ill
 a

ls
o
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
 c

ri
m

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

. 
 T

h
e
 p

la
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 b

e
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 t
a
s
k
 g

ro
u
p
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
m

b
in

e
s
 L

S
C

B
 a

n
d
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

V
o
le

n
c
e
 F

o
ru

m
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
.

L
E

A
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 E
IG

H
T

 –
 W

e
 w

il
l 
re

d
u

c
e
 t

h
e
 i
n

c
id

e
n

c
e
 o

f 
s
p

e
c
if

ic
 d

a
n

g
e
rs

 a
ff

e
c
ti

n
g

 s
o

m
e
 o

r 
a
ll
 c

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 i
n

 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
, 
in

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it

h
 p

a
re

n
ts

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 w

id
e
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 P

a
n

-

L
o

n
d

o
n

 c
h

il
d

 p
ro

te
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
. 
 S

p
e
c
if

ic
a
ll
y
 w

e
 w

il
l:

Page 111



R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

L
E

A
D

(C
L

)P
8

.7

R
e

d
u

c
e

 r
is

k
 t
o

 t
h

o
s
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

a
t 
ri

s
k
 o

f 
s
e

x
u

a
l 
e

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
, 
th

o
s
e

 w
it
h

 

d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

o
s
e

 s
u

b
je

c
te

d
 t
o

 d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n

c
e

. 

T
e

re
s
a

 

W
a

ls
h
 

J
o

n
e

s

M
A

P
S

 h
e
ld

 o
n
 a

ll 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 o

f 
a
ll 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
t 
ri
s
k
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
. 
  

A
llo

c
a
te

d
 C

P
A

 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 t
e
a
m

 w
h
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 /
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 r

o
le

 a
n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
. 
 N

IA
 P

ro
je

c
t 
h
a
s
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 p

ro
je

c
t 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 m

o
th

e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 D

V
. 
H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 a

 

m
u
lt
i 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 g

ro
u
p
 M

A
R

C
E

 t
o
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
t 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s

T
h
e
 l
e
a
d
 c

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 a

d
v
is

o
r 

is
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 w
o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u
p
 o

f 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
ls

 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 c
o
re

 g
ro

u
p
 o

f 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 w
h
o
 w

ill
 l
e
a
d
 

o
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 f
o
r 

th
is

 g
ro

u
p
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

. 
A

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 

a
 c

o
re

 g
ro

u
p
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 w

h
o
 w

ill
 a

tt
e
n
d
 t
h
e
 M

A
P

S
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
in

 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
.

(C
L

)P
8

.8
 

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
m

u
lt
i-

a
g

e
n

c
y
 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 a

n
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 t
o

 s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
 c

h
ild

re
n

 

a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t
o

 b
e

 b
o

th
 

m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
. 
 

S
a

ra
h
 P

e
e

l

T
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 a

u
d
it
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
in

te
r-

a
g
e
n
c
y
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 S

.1
1
 C

h
ild

re
n
 A

c
t 

(J
u
l 
0
7
) 

s
h
o
w

s
 t
h
a
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 a

ll 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 i
n
 

te
rm

s
 o

f 
a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 k

e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
. 
W

e
 a

re
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 t
h
is

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
s
in

g
le

 a
g
e
n
c
y
 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

n
 c

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

ro
u
n
d
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 
w

it
h
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
. 
 T

w
o
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
ts

 o
f 
A

C
P

C
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 d

is
s
e
m

in
a
te

d
 (

J
u
l 
0
7
) 

- 
a
  
jo

in
t 
p
ro

to
c
o
l 
c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
p
a
re

n
ts

 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
 a

n
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 

a
ro

u
n
d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

p
re

-b
ir
th

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

. 
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 j
o
in

t 
p
ro

to
c
o
ls

 o
n
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

m
e
n
ta

lly
 i
ll 

p
a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d
 p

a
re

n
ts

 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
. 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 

o
n
 p

re
-b

ir
th

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 f
o
r 

d
o
w

n
lo

a
d
in

g
. 
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 c

o
re

 g
ro

u
p
s
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

b
e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 u

p
d
a
te

d
. 
 T

h
e
 n

e
w

 p
a
n
-L

o
n
d
o
n
 C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 w

e
re

 p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

0
7
 -

 c
o
p
ie

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 t
o
 a

ll 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

. 
 A

 w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
 o

n
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 

w
a
s
 r

u
n
 a

t 
th

e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 &

 Y
o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
n
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

a
n
d
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 b

ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

to
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
t 
th

e
 k

e
y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
e
d
it
io

n
. 
 T

h
e
 2

0
0
6
 L

S
C

B
 p

ro
to

c
o
l 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 p

o
lic

e
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

ll 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
u
n
it
s
) 

a
n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 

is
 a

b
o
u
t 
to

 b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
.

(C
L

)P
9

.1

C
re

a
te

 a
 m

u
lt
i-

a
g

e
n

c
y
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

, 
e

s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 S

a
fe

r 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
 P

o
lic

e
, 
to

 p
re

v
e

n
t 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
. 

J
a

n
 D

o
u
s
t

A
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 i
s
 n

e
a
ri
n
g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 P

o
lic

e
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

. 
T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
a
 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
, 
b
o
th

 w
it
h
in

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
, 
a
im

e
d
 a

t 

re
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
v
io

le
n
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 t
o
 d

iv
e
rt

  
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
w

a
y
 

fr
o
m

 v
io

le
n
c
e
.

T
h
is

 a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 r

e
g
u
la

rl
y
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
. 
It
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o
 f
o
rm

e
d
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 
d
e
ta

ile
d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 w

it
h
in

 

m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 g

ro
u
p
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 S
u
m

m
it
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

's
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

p
re

c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 s

a
fe

ty
.

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
u

p
d

a
te

d
: 
 3

 x
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

- 
fi
rs

t 
re

v
ie

w
 i
n

 S
u

m
m

e
r;

 m
id

 y
e

a
r 

re
v
ie

w
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r,

 e
n

d
 o

f 
y
e

a
r 

re
v
ie

w
 A

p
ri

l.
  

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
th

e
 a

n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g

 p
o

lic
y
 a

n
d

 m
o

n
it
o

r 

it
s
 e

ff
e

c
ts

 i
n

 r
e

d
u

c
in

g
 b

u
lly

in
g

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 

d
is

c
ri

m
in

a
to

ry
 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 –

 a
n

d
 t
o

 e
n

g
a

g
e

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 L

S
C

B
. 

J
a

n
 D

o
u
s
t

T
h
e
 a

n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g
 p

o
lic

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 

d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 w

id
e
ly

 a
t 
th

e
 b

e
g
in

n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 t
e
rm

. 
T

h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 v

e
rs

io
n
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
  
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

, 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 l
e
a
fl
e
ts

 o
n
 w

h
a
t 
to

 d
o
 i
f 
y
o
u
 a

re
 w

o
rr

ie
d
 a

b
o
u
t 
b
u
lly

in
g
. 
A

 

c
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
s
 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

in
v
o
lv

in
g
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 r
a
is

in
g
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
  

S
ta

y
 S

a
fe

 t
h
e
m

e
. 
A

n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g
 i
s
 a

 k
e
y
 e

le
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

is
. 
H

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 

is
 a

ls
o
 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 T

H
F

C
 f
o
r 

a
n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g
 w

e
e
k
 2

0
0
7
.

A
ll 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 f
in

a
lis

e
d
 a

n
d
 d

is
tr

ib
u
te

d
 a

n
d
 w

a
s
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 a

t 

S
ty

a
y
 S

a
fe

 c
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

 O
v
e
ra

ll 
fe

e
d
b
a
c
k
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 

w
a
s
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

. 
M

a
tc

h
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 o

n
 2

2
n
d
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
llo

w
e
d
 b

y
 e

v
e
n
t 
a
t 
T

H
F

C
 t
o
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

's
 d

e
s
ir
e
 t
o
 e

ra
d
ic

a
te

 b
u
lly

in
g
 a

n
d
 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 t
h
e
 

p
ro

fi
le

 o
f 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

b
a
t 
b
u
lly

in
g
. 
1
1
 o

u
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 

tw
e
lv

e
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
h
is

 e
v
e
n
t.

(C
L

)P
9

.3
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

’s
 o

w
n

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 t
o

 r
a

is
e

 

a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
a

n
ti
-v

io
le

n
c
e

 –
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 Y

o
u

th
 S

e
rv

ic
e

. 
B

e
lin

d
a

 

E
v
a

n
s

W
e
 a

re
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

's
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 p

re
d
o
m

in
a
n
tl
y
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

c
re

a
ti
v
it
y
 (

e
.g

. 
p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

V
D

 i
n
 C

a
m

p
s
b
o
u
rn

e
/p

ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
C

D
s
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
l)
. 
W

e
 a

re
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

in
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

 

y
o
u
th

 s
u
m

m
it
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o

f 
g
u
n
 a

n
d
 k

n
if
e
 c

ri
m

e

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 w

it
h
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
n
 

is
s
u
e
s
 o

f 
a
n
ti
 v

io
le

n
c
e
 -

 p
re

p
a
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 l
e
a
d
 o

n
 a

n
 a

n
ti
 

b
u
lly

in
g
 m

a
rc

h
 (

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
),

 u
s
in

g
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 E

x
te

n
d
e
d
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 c

o
lle

a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 P

a
rk

 V
ie

w
 A

c
a
d
e
m

y
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
 o

f 
g
u
n
 a

n
d
 k

n
if
e
 c

ri
m

e
, 
h
o
s
ti
n
g
 a

n
 

E
le

c
te

d
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

s
u
rg

e
ry

 w
h
e
re

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 c
a
n
 t
a
lk

 t
o
 t
h
e
 W

a
rd

 

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

a
b
o
u
t 
th

e
ir
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

b
o
u
t 
a
n
ti
 s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r.

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 N
IN

E
 –

 W
e
 w

il
l 
re

n
e
w

 o
u

r 
e
ff

o
rt

s
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 b

u
ll
y
in

g
, 
d

is
c
ri

m
in

a
to

ry
 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 g

a
n

g
 c

u
lt

u
re

 i
n

 l
in

e
 

w
it

h
 w

h
a
t 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 h
a
v
e
 t

o
ld

 u
s
 i
s
 m

o
s
t 

im
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
to

 t
h

e
m

. 
 S

p
e
c
if

ic
a
ll
y
 w

e
 w

il
l:

Page 112



R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

L
E

A
D

(C
L

)P
9

.4
 

W
o

rk
 w

it
h

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 r
a

is
e

 

a
n

d
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t
h

e
ir

 f
e

a
rs

 o
f 

c
ri

m
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 

c
o

o
rd

in
a

te
d

 w
o

rk
 o

f 
th

e
 S

a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

. 
J
a

n
 D

o
u
s
t

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 a

s
 a

p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
 

P
9
.1

. 
A

 w
id

e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

a
n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
s
to

ra
ti
v
e
 j
u
s
ti
c
e
, 
p
e
e
r 

m
e
d
ia

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

c
h
a
rt

e
r 

fo
r 

n
o
n
-v

io
le

n
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

.

T
h
is

 a
re

a
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 a

s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r

e
p
o
rt

. 
In

 

a
d
d
it
io

n
, 
w

e
 h

a
v
e
 j
u
s
t 
s
e
c
u
re

d
 a

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
1
5
0
k
 o

f 
e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 

fu
n
d
in

g
 t
o
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 v

io
le

n
t 
c
ri
m

e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 a

 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 a

re
a
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 u

s
e
d
 b

y
 o

n
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 a
n
d
 f
iv

e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 i
n
te

n
s
iv

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 a

n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 c

o
h
o
rt

 w
h
o
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

is
k
 a

n
d
 t
o
 s

tr
e
n
th

e
n
 p

re
v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

e
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

, 
re

s
to

ra
ti
v
e
 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

p
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
.

(C
L

)P
1

0
.1

Im
p

ro
v
e

fu
rt

h
e

r
th

e
q

u
a

lit
y

a
n

d
ra

n
g

e
o

f
y
o

u
th

p
ro

v
is

io
n

in
th

e
b

o
ro

u
g

h
,

e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
th

ro
u

g
h

u
n

a
tt
a

c
h

e
d

y
o

u
th

w
o

rk
e

rs
e

n
g

a
g

in
g

a
t

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 l
e

v
e

l 
a

n
d

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 t
a

rg
e

ts
. 

B
e

lin
d

a
 

E
v
a

n
s

C
ri
m

e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 W

o
o
d
 g

re
e
n
 S

h
o
p
p
in

g
 A

re
a
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
 p

a
rt

 

a
tt
ri
b
u
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 d

e
ta

c
h
e
d
 t
e
a
m

. 
T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 1

0
 a

re
a
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 

b
e
in

g
 "

h
o
ts

p
o
ts

".
 T

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 y

e
t 
to

 b
e
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

d
.

In
it
ia

l 
a
n
a
ly

s
is

 s
u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

ri
m

e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
. 
T

h
e
 d

e
ta

c
h
e
d
 t
e
a
m

 h
a
s
 a

 d
e
fi
n
e
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 i
n
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 
T

h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 c

h
e
c
k
 (

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
) 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
y
o
u
th

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 h

a
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d

(C
L

)P
1

0
.2

Im
p

ro
v
e

th
e

q
u

a
lit

y
a

n
d

ra
n

g
e

o
f

p
la

y
p

ro
v
is

io
n

in
th

e
b

o
ro

u
g

h
s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

b
y

a
n

e
w

P
la

y

S
tr

a
te

g
y

a
n

d
th

e
s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l
B

ig
L

o
tt
e

ry
F

u
n

d

b
id

.
J
a

n
 D

o
u
s
t

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 p

la
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
h
is

 t
e
rm

. 
T

h
e
 

in
te

n
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 p

la
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 i
s
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 a
lig

n
e
d
 t
o
 o

u
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

T
h
is

 r
e
v
ie

w
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

ta
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r.

 A
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 t
h
e
n
 b

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
T

h
e
 

w
o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 p

la
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 N
e
tw

o
rk

s
.

(C
L

)P
1

0
.3

W
o

rk
w

it
h

th
e

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
U

rb
a

n
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t
to

e
n

s
u

re
th

a
t

p
a

rk
s

a
n

d
o

p
e

n

s
p

a
c
e

s
 a

re
 a

s
 s

a
fe

 a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 

P
a

u
l 
E

ly

(C
L

)P
1

0
.4

In
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
ta

rg
e

te
d

 d
iv

e
rs

io
n

a
ry

 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 p
a

rk
s
 a

n
d

 o
p

e
n

 

s
p

a
c
e

s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
d

 w
o

rk
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il,

 t
h

e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

e
c
to

r 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
n

g
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

B
e

tt
e

r 
H

a
ri

n
g

e
y
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

. 
 

P
a

u
l 
E

ly

(C
L

)P
1

1
.1

R
e

d
u

c
e

 y
e

a
r 

o
n

 y
e

a
r 

th
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

fi
rs

t 
ti
m

e
 

e
n

tr
a

n
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 y

o
u

th
 j
u

s
ti
c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
 (

P
re

v
e

n
ti
n

g
 

o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
).

L
in

d
a

 

J
a

m
e

s

F
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 a

s
 f
o
llo

w
s
 -

 2
0
0
5
/0

6
 -

 4
5
0
 f
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 e

n
tr

a
n
ts

 a
s
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
; 

2
0
0
6
/7

 -
 3

7
3
 -

 s
o
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r;

 P
ro

je
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

0
7
/0

8
 i
s
 3

2
5
 a

n
d
 

fi
rs

t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

is
 6

7
. 
W

e
 e

x
p
e
c
t 
to

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
is

 t
a
rg

e
t.

F
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 a

s
 f
o
llo

w
s
 -

 2
0
0
5
/0

6
 -

 4
5
0
 f
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 e

n
tr

a
n
ts

 a
s
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
; 

T
a
rg

e
t 
is

 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
is

 b
y
 5

%
 o

v
e
r 

2
 y

e
a
rs

; 
2
0
0
6
/7

 -
 3

7
3
 -

 s
o
 t
a
rg

e
t 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r;

 P
ro

je
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

0
7
/0

8
 i
s
 3

2
5
 a

n
d
 f
ir
s
t 
tw

o
 q

u
a
rt

e
rs

 i
s
 1

3
9
. 

W
e
 e

x
p
e
c
t 
to

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
is

 t
a
rg

e
t.

(C
L

)P
1

1
.2

A
c
h

ie
v
e

 a
 5

%
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
-o

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 r
a

te
 

fo
r 

2
0

0
7

/0
8

, 
w

h
e

n
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 2

0
0

2
/0

3
 

c
o

h
o

rt
, 
w

it
h

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
to

: 
p

re
-c

o
u

rt
, 
fi
rs

t 
ti
e

r 

p
e

n
a

lt
ie

s
, 
c
u

s
to

d
ia

l 
p

e
n

a
lt
ie

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 f
re

q
u

e
n

c
y
 o

f 
re

-o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
.

L
in

d
a

 

J
a

m
e

s

T
h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 n

o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 L
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r'
s
 r

e
-

o
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 r

a
te

 w
a
s
 3

1
.5

%
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 e

x
a
c
tl
y
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 a

s
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 

y
e
a
r.

 I
t 
is

 u
n
lik

le
y
 w

e
 w

ill
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 5
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

T
h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 n

o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 L
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r'
s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
re

-

o
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 r

a
te

 w
a
s
 3

1
.5

%
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 e

x
a
c
tl
y
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 a

s
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 

y
e
a
r.

 I
t 
is

 u
n
lik

le
y
 w

e
 w

ill
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 5
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

(C
L

)P
1

1
.3

E
n

s
u

re
 v

ic
ti
m

s
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n

 r
e

s
to

ra
ti
v
e

 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 i
n

 2
5

%
 o

f 
c
a

s
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
c
o

m
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

a
tt
e

n
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
. 
 

L
in

d
a

 

J
a

m
e

s

F
ig

u
re

 f
o
r 

fi
rs

t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

(c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 b

y
 Y

o
u
th

 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 B

o
a
rd

) 
is

 1
8
.1

%
. 
W

e
 

e
x
p
e
c
t 
s
ta

ff
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 a

 h
ig

h
e
r 

re
tu

rn
 n

e
x
t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r.

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 n
e
w

 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
0
7
/8

. 
T

h
e
 f
ig

u
re

 f
o
r 

fi
rs

t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

(c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 b

y
 

Y
o
u
th

 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 B

o
a
rd

) 
is

 1
8
.1

%
 a

n
d
 7

.8
%

 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 q

u
a
rt

e
r.

 T
h
e
 d

a
ta

 

is
 c

a
p
tu

re
d
 o

n
 c

a
s
e
s
 c

lo
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

a
n
d
 s

o
m

e
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 u

p
 t
o
 2

 

y
e
a
rs

 o
ld

 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
s
y
s
te

m
 f
o
r 

d
e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 v

ic
ti
m

s
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 
in

 

p
la

c
e
, 
E

n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
ly

, 
th

e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
v
ic

ti
m

s
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 d

ir
e
c
t 
re

s
to

ra
ti
v
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r.

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 E
L

E
V

E
N

 –
 W

e
 w

il
l 
re

d
u

c
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 i
n

v
o

lv
e
d

 i
n

 c
ri

m
e
 o

r 
b

e
c
o

m
e
 

v
ic

ti
m

s
 o

f 
c
ri

m
e
. 
 S

p
e
c
if

ic
a
ll
y
 w

e
 w

il
l:

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 T
E

N
 –

 W
e
 w

il
l 
c
re

a
te

 m
o

re
 s

a
fe

 p
la

c
e
s
 f

o
r 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 t
o

 p
la

y
 a

n
d

 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 g
o

 b
y
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
, 
th

e
 p

o
li
c
e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r.
  
S

p
e
c
if

ic
a
ll
y
 w

e
 w

il
l:

Page 113



T
h

e
 C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
: 

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g

E
N

J
O

Y
 A

N
D

 A
C

H
IE

V
E

 -
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

 1
2

-1
4

O
U

T
C

O
M

E
 L

E
A

D
: 

J
A

N
E

T
T

E
 K

A
R

K
L

IN
S

R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

(C
L

)P
1

2
.1

E
n

s
u

re
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 F

o
u

n
d

a
ti
o

n
 S

ta
g

e
 s

o
 t
h

a
t 
b

y
 

2
0

0
9

 O
fs

te
d

 j
u

d
g

e
s
 1

0
0

%
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 a

n
d

 9
0

%
 

g
o

o
d

 o
r 

b
e

tt
e

r.
 

R
o

s
 C

o
o

k
e

T
h
e
 s

e
lf
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
e
tt
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

b
u
ilt

 u
p
o
n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 p

ilo
t 
(Q

U
IL

T
) 

a
n
d
 T

h
e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 
 W

e
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
in

g
 a

 n
e
w

 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

lin
k
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E

Y
 F

S
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

n
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

. 
T

h
is

 

w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 o

f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 

s
e
tt
in

g
s
 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
 p

ro
fi
le

.

B
e
tw

e
e
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 a

n
d
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 2

5
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

in
s
p
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 O

fs
te

d
. 
O

f 
th

e
s
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
h
e
 F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

ju
d
g
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 i
n
 7

, 
g
o
o
d
 i
n
 1

5
, 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 i
n
 2

 a
n
d
 i
n
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 

in
 1

. 
 9

6
%

 s
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 a

n
d
 8

8
%

 g
o
o
d
 o

r 
o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
. 
 T

h
e
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 L
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 T

e
a
c
h
in

g
 (

Q
U

IL
T

) 
p
ilo

t 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 C
e
n
tr

e
 h

a
v
e
 j
o
in

e
d
 t
h
is

 p
ilo

t.
  

A
ll 

m
o
d
u
le

s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 s

o
 f
a
r 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
 T

h
e
 

E
a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
 (

E
Y

F
S

) 
tr

a
in

in
g
 i
s
 g

o
in

g
 w

e
ll.

(C
L

)P
1

2
.2

Im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
th

e
 P

V
I 
s
e

c
to

r 
th

ro
u

g
h

 

v
e

ry
 f

o
c
u

s
e

d
 a

n
d

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
. 
 

R
o

s
 C

o
o

k
e

W
e
 a

re
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t
h
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 E

Y
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 t
e
a
m

 t
o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 i
n
te

n
s
iv

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 P

V
I 
s
e
c
to

r 
s
e
tt
in

g
s
 w

it
h
 

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 p

o
o
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

u
n
n
in

g
  
in

 c
lo

s
e
 l
ia

is
o
n
 w

it
h
  
th

e
 

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
  

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
, 
L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 L

it
e
ra

c
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
n
g
 M

a
tt
e
rs

.

N
e
tw

o
rk

 a
re

a
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 P

V
I 

s
e
tt
in

g
s
 w

it
h
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 p

o
o
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

E
Y

Q
&

I 
te

a
m

, 
th

e
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
 C

u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
to

rs
 (

C
C

C
C

).
  
R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
is

 u
n
d
e
r 

w
a
y
 t
o
 a

p
p
o
in

t 
a
n
 E

a
rl
y
 

Y
e
a
rs

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
O

ff
ic

e
r.

(C
L

)P
1

2
.3

A
t 
F

o
u

n
d

a
ti
o

n
 S

ta
g

e
 e

x
te

n
d

 t
h

e
 T

a
rg

e
te

d
 P

u
p

il 

In
it
ia

ti
v
e

 t
o

 b
e

tt
e

r 
id

e
n

ti
fy

 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 

le
a

rn
e

rs
 a

t 
th

e
 e

a
rl

ie
s
t 
s
ta

g
e

s
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

 t
h

e
ir

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 i
n

 w
id

e
r 

fa
m

ily
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
. 
 

R
o

s
 C

o
o

k
e

T
h
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
d
a
ta

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
 P

ro
fi
le

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

s
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

fo
r 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

. 
 S

p
e
c
if
ic

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 r

u
n
 w

it
h
in

 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 P

a
re

n
ts

 a
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
 E

a
rl
y
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 (

P
P

E
L
),

 t
h
e
 P

a
th

fi
n
d
e
rs

 

p
ilo

t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 T

w
o
 Y

e
a
r 

O
ld

 p
ilo

t.
  
A

lo
n
g
s
id

e
 

th
e
s
e
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 C
e
n
tr

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 o

u
tr

e
a
c
h
 a

n
d
 f
a
m

ily
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
s
 k

e
y
 f
e
a
tu

re
s
 t
o
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 l
e
a
rn

in
g
.

T
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 
 T

h
e
 P

a
re

n
ts

 a
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
 E

a
rl
y
 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 (

P
P

E
L
),

 t
h
e
 P

a
th

fi
n
d
e
rs

 p
ilo

t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

T
w

o
 Y

e
a
r 

O
ld

 p
ilo

t 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

. 
T

h
e
 

P
P

E
L
 p

ro
je

c
t 
is

 f
o
c
u
s
s
in

g
 o

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
, 
L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 

L
it
e
ra

c
y
 o

f 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
s
 n

a
m

e
ly

 T
u
rk

is
h
, 
K

u
rd

is
h
, 
S

o
m

a
li,

 

C
o
n
g
o
le

s
e
 a

n
d
 G

y
p
s
y
 R

o
m

a
. 
T

h
e
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 p

a
rt

 

o
f 
th

e
 T

w
o
 Y

e
a
r 

O
ld

 p
ilo

t 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d

o
 w

e
ll.

(C
L

)P
1

3
.1

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 C
e

n
tr

e
s
, 
p

la
y
, 
y
o

u
th

 a
n

d
 e

x
te

n
d

e
d

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t
o

 b
e

 m
a

p
p

e
d

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 s

in
g

le
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

it
h

in
 e

a
c
h

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 N
e

tw
o

rk
 t
o

 

e
n

a
b

le
 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t
o

 c
h

ild
re

n
 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
ir

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
, 
a

n
d

 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 t
h

e
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
th

e
 2

0
0

8
 t
a

rg
e

ts
 o

f 
5

0
%

 o
f 

a
ll 

s
p

e
c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 p
ri

m
a

ry
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 3
0

%
 o

f 

s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 e
x
te

n
d

e
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

c
o

re
 o

ff
e

r.

C
a

ro
l 

M
a

c
k
in

n
o

n
/

B
e

lin
d

a
 

E
v
a

n
s

P
la

n
s
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 t
o
 m

a
p
 a

ll 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 N
e
tw

o
rk

s
. 
 A

 

p
ro

je
c
t 
g
ro

u
p
 f
ro

m
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
, 
P

la
y
, 
Y

o
u
th

 a
n
d
 E

x
te

n
d
e
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

re
 b

u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 N

e
e
d
s
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
to

 

e
n
s
u
re

 b
e
s
t 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 i
n
fo

rm
 a

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 2

0
0
8
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

.
G

o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 d

e
ta

il 
a
ll 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 i
n
 N

e
tw

o
rk

s
.

(C
L

)P
1

3
.2

F
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

ic
u

lu
m

 

in
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 g

iv
e

n
 t
h

e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 l
o

w
 g

ra
d

e
s
 f

ro
m

 

O
fs

te
d

 w
it
h

 a
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

n
 g

re
a

te
r 

c
re

a
ti
v
it
y
 t
h

a
t 

e
x
p

a
n

d
s
 r

e
c
re

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 c

u
lt
u

ra
l 
a

n
d

 l
e

is
u

re
 

e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

s
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
 

S
e

e
 a

ls
o

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 S

ix
te

e
n

.
R

a
c
h
e

l 

S
in

g
e

r

S
c
h
o
o
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

(S
IM

) 
fo

r 
T

e
a
c
h
in

g
 a

n
d
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 i
s
 d

ra
w

in
g
 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

a
 w

o
rk

in
g
 p

a
rt

y
 f
ro

m
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t
h
e
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C

u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 J

o
u
rn

e
y
, 
b
u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 c

u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 m

a
p
 p

ro
je

c
t.
  
S

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 t
o
 b

e
g
in

 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

u
tu

m
n
 t
e
rm

 2
0
0
7
.

W
o
rk

in
g
 p

a
rt

y
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 h

a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 

c
u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 l
in

k
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 C
u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

. 

L
E

A
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 T
W

E
L

V
E

 –
 W

e
 w

il
l 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

im
p

ro
v
e
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 

e
a
rl

y
 y

e
a
rs

 e
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

. 
 S

p
e
c
if

ic
a
ll
y
 w

e
 w

il
l:

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 T
H

IR
T

E
E

N
 –

 W
e
 w

il
l 
e
n

a
b

le
 c

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 e
n

jo
y
 w

id
e
r 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

 b
ro

a
d

 

c
u

rr
ic

u
lu

m
 a

n
d

 o
u

t-
o

f-
s
c
h

o
o

l 
le

a
rn

in
g

 a
c
ti

v
it

ie
s
. 
 S

p
e
c
if

ic
a
ll
y
 w

e
 w

il
l:

Page 114



R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

L
E

A
D

(C
L

)P
1

3
.3

P
ro

m
o

te
 t
h

e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a

m
, 

s
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 l
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 B
la

c
k
 a

n
d

 M
in

o
ri

ty
 E

th
n

ic
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 b
e

tt
e

r 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 r
e

a
c
h

 

th
e

ir
 f

u
ll 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l.
 

R
a

c
h
e

l 

S
in

g
e

r

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w

it
h
 s

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
o
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 i
n
v
it
e
d
 

to
 j
o
in

 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 w

o
rk

in
g
 p

a
rt

y
. 
 C

P
D

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

ls
o
 t
o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
C

P
D

.

T
h
e
 n

e
w

 r
o
u
n
d
 o

f 
g
ra

n
t 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

fu
n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

c
h
o
o
o
ls

 h
a
s
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 a

n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 c

u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 p

la
n
s
 a

n
d
 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h
 r

a
is

in
g
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
le

v
e
ls

.

(C
L

)P
1

3
.4

T
a

rg
e

t 
y
o

u
th

 w
o

rk
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 s
p

e
c
ia

l 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 f
o

r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
n

d
/o

r 
a

re
 a

t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
b

e
c
o

m
in

g
 N

E
E

T
.

B
e

lin
d

a
 

E
v
a

n
s

A
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
y
o
u
th

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 t
o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 
N

E
E

T
,

A
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 r

a
n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

ta
rg

e
ti
n
g
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 

w
h
o
 w

e
re

 N
E

E
T

. 
8
5
%

 o
f 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 e
n
te

re
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
ft
e
r 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
e
n
d
e
d
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 a

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 A

d
u
lt
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d
 E

n
tr

y
 t
o
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

(C
L

)P
1

3
.5

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 b
e

tt
e

r 
lin

k
a

g
e

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 

th
e

 2
0

1
2

 O
ly

m
p

ic
s
.

R
a

c
h
e

l 

S
in

g
e

r/
J
o

h
n
 

E
d

w
a

rd
s

O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

s
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
 a

re
 

b
e
in

g
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
 b

u
t 
lim

it
e
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

.

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
 O

ly
m

p
ic

s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u
p
 w

it
h
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 

d
ra

w
n
 f
ro

m
 a

c
ro

s
s
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
. 
 A

 d
ra

ft
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 p

a
p
e
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 

fo
r 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
.

(C
L

)P
1

3
.6

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
m

o
re

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

ta
k
e

 u
p

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 r
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 l
e

is
u

re
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
u

s
in

g
 

th
e

 Y
o

u
th

 A
c
ti
v
e

 C
a

rd
 f

ro
m

 8
0

0
 i
n

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

 t
o

 

1
2

0
0

 i
n

 2
0

0
7

/0
8

. 

P
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 Y

o
u
th

 A
c
ti
v
e
 C

a
rd

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 

S
u
m

m
e
r 

U
n
i 
w

it
h
 e

a
c
h
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 b

e
in

g
 g

iv
e
n
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a

 c
a
rd

. 
 L

e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
ta

k
e
 u

p
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

d
 b

y
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
.

T
a
k
e
 u

p
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
th

e
 a

c
ti
v
e
 C

a
rd

 w
e
re

 h
ig

h
 a

s
 e

v
e
ry

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
e
re

 

g
iv

e
n
 c

a
rd

s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 S

u
m

m
e
r 

U
n
i 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
u

p
d

a
te

d
: 
 3

 x
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

- 
fi
rs

t 
re

v
ie

w
 i
n

 S
u

m
m

e
r;

 m
id

 y
e

a
r 

re
v
ie

w
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r,

 e
n

d
 o

f 
y
e

a
r 

re
v
ie

w
 A

p
ri

l.
  

B
u

ild
 o

n
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

V
P

I 
in

 2
0

0
7

 

a
n

d
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
 B

V
P

I 
re

la
ti
n

g
 t
o

 c
o

n
ta

c
t,
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
, 
re

c
o

rd
e

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
re

d
it
e

d
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 i
n

 2
0

0
8

.
B

e
lin

d
a

 

E
v
a

n
s

R
a
p
id

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
. 
 I
n
 

2
0
0
6
-7

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
d
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h
 2

7
6
7
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
g
e
d
 1

3
-1

9
 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 1

,3
8
4
 i
n
 2

0
0
5
-6

 a
 1

0
0
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
. 
 I
n
 2

0
0
6
-7

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

h
a
d
 2

,1
8
5
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g
 r

e
g
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 

1
,1

4
6
 i
n
 2

0
0
5
-6

, 
a
g
a
in

 a
lm

o
s
t 
a
 1

0
0
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
. 
 I
n
 2

0
0
6
-7

 1
,0

5
3
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 1
3
-1

9
 h

a
d
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 2

4
1
 i
n
 2

0
0
5
-6

 a
 3

0
%

 

in
c
re

a
s
e
. 
 7

3
2
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

n
 a

c
c
re

d
it
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 

w
it
h
 2

4
1
 i
n
 2

0
0
5
-6

 a
 2

0
0
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
. 
 T

h
e
s
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
t 
th

e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 t
o
 p

la
n
, 
re

c
o
rd

, 
c
o
lle

c
t 
a
n
d
 

a
n
a
ly

s
e
 d

a
ta

 i
n
 a

 s
y
s
te

m
a
ti
c
 w

a
y
 a

n
d
 t
o
 u

s
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 

fu
tu

re
 p

la
n
n
in

g
. 
 W

h
ils

t 
it
 i
s
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 h

a
v
e
 

n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 f
u
lly

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
m

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 f
a
s
t 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 e

v
e
ry

 e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
.

W
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 o

n
 t
a
rg

e
t 
to

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 o

u
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 i
n
 

2
0
0
7
/0

8
.

(C
L

)P
1

3
.8

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
8

5
%

 o
f 

5
-1

6
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s
 i
n

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 

e
n

g
a

g
e

 i
n

 a
 m

in
im

u
m

 o
f 

tw
o

 h
o

u
rs

 o
f 

h
ig

h
 

q
u

a
lit

y
 P

E
 a

n
d

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
s
p

o
rt

 e
v
e

ry
 w

e
e

k
 b

y
 2

0
0

8
 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 

in
 s

p
o

rt
s
 a

n
d

 f
it
n

e
s
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

s
p

o
rt

s
 a

n
d

 l
e

is
u

re
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
d

 

b
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e

 o
f 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
, 

c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 s
p

o
n

s
o

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 

B
e

tt
e

r 
P

la
c
e

s
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
.

R
a

c
h
e

l 

S
in

g
e

r/
J
o

h
n
 

E
d

w
a

rd
s

In
 2

0
0
6
-7

 8
0
%

 o
f 
s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 i
n
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 a

 m
in

im
u
m

 o
f 

tw
o
 h

o
u
rs

 o
f 
P

E
 a

n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
s
p
o
rt

. 
 O

u
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

S
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 P

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 (

F
e
b
 2

0
0
6
) 

a
n
d
 a

n
 O

p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 (

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
6
) 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

lin
k
e
d
 w

it
h
 o

u
r 

P
la

y
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
7
 t
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 

in
te

g
ra

te
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 o

u
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

. 
 T

h
e
s
e
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 l
in

k
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
S

p
o
rt

s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t
h
e
 l
in

k
 w

it
h
 

T
o
tt
e
n
h
a
m

 H
o
ts

p
u
r 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 S

tu
d
y
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 C
e
n
tr

e
 t
o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 b

e
 a

c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
.

T
h
e
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 m

o
re

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 i
n
 P

E
 a

n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
l 

s
p
o
rt

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
a
n
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 8

9
%

 o
f 
H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 

e
n
g
a
g
in

g
 i
n
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
2
 h

o
u
rs

. 
 T

h
e
 P

E
 a

n
d
 s

p
o
rt

s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

re
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 S

t 
T

h
o
m

a
s
 M

o
re

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 (
9
4
%

) 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 W

o
o
d
s
id

e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 (
8
5
%

).
 T

h
is

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 s

c
o
re

 i
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 a

n
d
 

e
x
c
e
e
d
s
 t
h
e
 P

S
A

 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
0
8
 o

f 
8
6
%

.

(C
L

)P
1

3
.9

A
ll 

s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 a
 n

a
m

e
d

 y
o

u
th

 

w
o

rk
e

r 
w

h
o

 i
s
 t
h

e
 l
in

k
 p

e
rs

o
n

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 y

o
u

th
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
/d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

, 

b
u

ild
in

g
 o

n
 t
h

e
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

is
 w

o
rk

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 a

c
c
re

d
it
e

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 l
ik

e
 t
h

o
s
e

 f
o

r 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 D

u
k
e

 o
f 

E
d

in
b

u
rg

h
 A

w
a

rd
s
.

B
e

lin
d

a
 

E
v
a

n
s

A
ll 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 a

 n
a
m

e
d
 y

o
u
th

 w
o
rk

e
r 

fr
o
m

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
. 
 A

re
a
 C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

rs
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 N
e
tw

o
rk

s
.

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

 r
e
c
ru

it
in

g
  
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 o

u
r 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
. 
T

h
e
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 p

ilo
te

d
 i
n
 

G
la

d
e
s
m

o
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 g
o
o
d
 m

o
d
e
l 
a
n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 o

ff
e
re

d
 t
o
 o

th
e
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

.

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 F
O

U
R

T
E

E
N

 –
 W

e
 w

il
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
 a

tt
e
n

d
a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 r
a
is

e
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
a
ll
 c

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 

p
e
o

p
le

 r
e
fl

e
c
te

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll
 s

e
c
ti

o
n

s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 
 S

p
e
c
if

ic
a
ll
y
 w

e
 w

il
l:

Page 115



R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

L
E

A
D

(C
L

)P
1

4
.1

R
e

d
u

c
e

 a
b

s
e

n
c
e

 i
n

 p
ri

m
a

ry
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 f

ro
m

 6
.6

3
%

 

in
 2

0
0

5
/6

 t
o

 5
.4

%
 i
n

 2
0

0
7

/8
 a

n
d

 i
n

 s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 f

ro
m

 8
.2

4
%

 i
n

 2
0

0
5

/6
 t
o

 7
.7

0
%

 i
n

 

2
0

0
7

/8
.

S
u
 S

h
a

w

S
c
h
o
o
l 
C

e
n
s
u
s
 d

a
ta

 f
o
r 

th
e
 A

u
tu

m
n
 a

n
d
 S

p
ri
n
g
 t
e
rm

 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 

a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 w

a
s
 9

4
.3

%
. 
 B

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
d
a
ta

 t
h
e
 L

A
 i
s
 o

n
 t
ra

c
k
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 S

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 0
6
/0

7
 t
a
rg

e
t 
(9

1
.8

%
) 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 0

7
/0

8
 t
a
rg

e
t 
(9

2
.3

%
) 

a
t 

9
2
.5

8
%

. 
C

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 d

a
ta

 f
o
r 

th
e
 w

h
o
le

 a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
.

F
in

a
l 
v
a
lid

a
te

d
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

2
0
0
6
-7

(C
L

)P
1

4
.2

R
e

d
u

c
e

 e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 (

fi
x
e

d
 t
e

rm
 a

n
d

 p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t)

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 m

a
in

ta
in

in
g

 t
h

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
d

 M
o

v
e

 

p
ro

to
c
o

l 
fo

r 
s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 i
t 
in

 

p
ri

m
a

ry
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 w

it
h

in
 e

a
c
h

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 N
e

tw
o

rk
. 

S
u
 S

h
a

w

M
a
n
a
g
e
d
 M

o
v
e
 p

ro
to

c
o
l 
a
g
re

e
d
 b

y
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
. 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 i
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
(p

ro
to

c
o
l 
n
o
t 
n
e
e
d
e
d
 

a
s
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 d
o
 t
h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
).

 N
e
e
d
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 

d
a
ta

 r
e
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
s
 r

e
tu

rn
s
 t
o
 L

A
 a

n
d
 D

C
F

S
 d

o
 n

o
t 
ta

lly
 a

n
d
 

re
lia

b
le

 d
a
ta

 i
s
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
to

 t
ra

c
k
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
. 

M
a
n
a
g
e
d
 m

o
v
e
s
 p

ro
to

c
o
l 
is

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
. 
 T

h
e
 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 v
e
rs

io
n
 i
s
 a

t 
a
 d

ra
ft
 s

ta
g
e
.

(C
L

)P
1

4
.3

A
t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 f
o

c
u

s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

n
 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 a
b

o
v
e

 t
h

e
 f

lo
o

r 
ta

rg
e

t 
o

f 
6

5
%

 

a
n

d
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
n

o
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

re
 b

e
lo

w
 5

0
%

 i
n

 

a
n

y
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 a
 m

u
lt
i-

a
g

e
n

c
y
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

.
R

a
c
h
e

l 

S
in

g
e

r

A
g
re

e
d
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

s
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
o
s
e
 K

S
2
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 

b
e
lo

w
 6

5
%

 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
K

S
2
 -

 n
o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 b

e
lo

w
 5

0
%

 a
t 
p
re

s
e
n
t.

N
o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 b
e
lo

w
 5

0
%

 i
n
 2

0
0
7
, 
1
2
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 b
e
lo

w
 6

5
%

 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 1

6
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 b
e
lo

w
 i
n
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
. 
 S

c
h
e
d
u
le

s
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

im
p
a
c
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r.

  
W

h
e
re

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 p
la

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

a
m

e
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

m
e
e
t 
th

e
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
n
e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

. 
 

(C
L

)P
1

4
.4

A
t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 3

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 f
o

c
u

s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

n
 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 5
0

%
 o

r 
a

b
o

v
e

 a
t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 

3
 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

re
 s

u
b

je
c
ts

.
J
o

h
n
 

E
d

w
a

rd
s

In
 2

0
0
7
, 
2
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 d
id

 n
o
t 
re

a
c
h
 t
h
e
 f
lo

o
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
o
f 
5
0
%

 o
f 
s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
L
e
v
e
l 
5
 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
. 
 O

n
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
d
id

 n
o
t 
re

a
c
h
 t
h
is

 t
a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

m
a
th

s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
re

e
 f
o
r 

s
c
ie

n
c
e
. 
 O

v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
tw

o
 y

e
a
rs

 t
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 

fo
c
u
s
 o

n
 r

a
is

in
g
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
in

 s
c
ie

n
c
e
 a

t 
K

S
3
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
f 
s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 a
tt
a
in

in
g
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
L
e
v
e
l 
5
 h

a
s
 r

is
e
n
 b

y
 9

%
. 
S

c
ie

n
c
e
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

 

fo
c
u
s
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

, 
a
n
d
 i
n
 s

e
v
e
ra

l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 

m
a
th

s
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
7
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
. 
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 m

o
s
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
v
e
 r

e
a
c
h
e
d
 t
h
e
 

fl
o
o
r 

ta
rg

e
t,
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 a

h
e
a
d
 i
t 
is

 t
h
e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
 w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
m

a
th

s
 a

t 
G

C
S

E
 

th
a
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 f
u
tu

re
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
o
f 
5
+

 g
o
o
d
 G

C
S

E
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

s
. 
R

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 

a
n
a
ly

s
e
d
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 G

C
S

E
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
. 
 a

n
 i
n
it
ia

l 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i
s
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 J

u
ly

 

th
a
t 
s
e
ts

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l 
a
re

a
s
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 y

e
a
r.

  
T

h
is

 i
s
 

fo
llo

w
e
d
 b

y
 a

n
o
th

e
r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

th
a
t 
fi
n
a
lis

e
s
 t
h
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

fo
ff
e
re

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 L

A
.

T
h
e
 a

u
tu

m
n
 t
e
rm

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
o
 f
in

a
lis

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
, 
to

 f
o
llo

w
 t
h
e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

te
rm

. 
 E

a
c
h
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
h
a
s
 a

 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
la

n
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
, 
k
e
y
 a

re
a
s
 f
o
r 

fo
c
u
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 l
in

k
e
d
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
re

 s
u
b
je

c
ts

, 
a
n
d
 i
s
 t
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 d

e
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 a

n
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 f
o
llo

w
e
d
 b

y
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 

in
 e

a
c
h
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
in

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

.

(C
L

)P
1

4
.5

 

A
t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 4

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
o

 

im
p

ro
v
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 a

t 
5

+
 A

*-
C

 g
ra

d
e

s
 a

t 
G

C
S

E
 w

it
h

 

a
n

d
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
E

n
g

lis
h

 a
n

d
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

n
d

 a
t 

o
n

e
 G

C
S

E
.

J
o

h
n
 

E
d

w
a

rd
s

In
 2

0
0
7
, 
5
7
.1

%
 o

f 
s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 i
n
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
tt
a
in

e
d
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
5
 g

o
o
d
 

G
C

S
E

 g
ra

d
e
s
, 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ti
n
g
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
5
%

 o
n
 2

0
0
6
 a

n
d
 9

%
 o

v
e
r 

tw
o
 y

e
a
rs

. 
 I
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

s
 t
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

 h
a
s
 r

is
e
n
 f
ro

m
 3

4
%

 t
o
 

3
8
%

. 
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 i
s
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 w

it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
lly

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
 i
n
it
ia

l 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
S

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 S

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r,

 f
o
llo

w
e
d
 b

y
 a

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

a
ft
e
r 

w
h
ic

h
 a

 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
la

n
 i
s
 d

ra
w

n
 u

p
 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 s

c
h
o
o
l.
  
T

h
is

 i
s
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 a
n
d
 

A
p
ri
l 
if
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 
 U

s
in

g
 t
h
is

 s
y
s
te

m
 i
t 
is

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

te
a
c
h
in

g
 a

n
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
ta

rg
e
te

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 c
a
u
s
in

g
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

 -
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 t
h
o
s
e
 w

h
e
re

 f
e
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 2

5
%

 o
f 
s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 a
tt
a
in

 a
t 
le

a
s
t 
5
 g

o
o
d
 

g
ra

d
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

s
.

T
h
e
 v

is
it
 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
a
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 a

b
o
v
e
 c

o
v
e
rs

 K
S

4
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 K

S
3
, 
a
s
 

d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

. 
 W

e
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
b
id

d
in

g
 t
o
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 C

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 f
o
r 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 f
o
c
u
s
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 o
n
 t
h
e
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

fi
v
e
 g

o
o
d
 G

C
S

E
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

s
.

(C
L

)P
1

4
.6

F
o

r 
1

4
-1

9
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
h

e
 s

tr
o

n
g

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

f 

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 
d

ip
lo

m
a

s
 w

it
h

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
1

9
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s
 w

it
h

 

le
v
e

l 
2

 a
n

d
 3

 q
u

a
lif

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

s
 (

s
e

e
 

p
ri

o
ri

ty
 2

0
).

S
e

a
n
 M

a
y

T
h
e
 p

ilo
t 
c
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
k
ill

s
 i
n
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

0
7
. 
T

h
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

f 
c
e
n
tr

e
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
g
u
n
. 
T

h
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 g
ro

u
p
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 o

n
 t
ra

c
k
 t
o
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
 f
o
r 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

 2
0
0
7
. 
D

ip
lo

m
a
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
g
ro

u
p
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 o

n
 t
ra

c
k
 

to
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 f
o
r 

G
a
te

w
a
y
 2

 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
. 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

to
 e

x
p
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
v
o
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
u
rs

e
s
 o

n
 o

ff
e
r.

W
id

e
r 

lin
k
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
s
 o

f 
W

a
lt
h
a
m

 F
o
re

s
t 

a
n
d
 E

n
fi
e
ld

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
 n

o
rt

h
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

D
ip

lo
m

a
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 
 

S
u
b
m

is
io

n
s
 f
o
r 

G
a
te

w
a
y
 2

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

ra
ft
e
d
 f
o
r 

s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

3
rd

. 
T

ra
in

in
g
 f
o
r 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
k
ill

s
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 i
s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 w

e
ll 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c

o
h
o
rt

 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 p

ilo
t 
c
e
n
tr

e
s
. 
 

Page 116



R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

L
E

A
D

(C
L

)P
1

4
.7

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 t
h

a
t 
fo

c
u

s
 o

n
 r

a
is

in
g

 t
h

e
 

a
s
p

ir
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
ir

 

s
e

lf
-e

s
te

e
m

, 
th

e
re

b
y
 i
m

p
a

c
ti
n

g
 o

n
 t
e

e
n

a
g

e
 

p
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 s
ta

y
in

g
 o

n
 r

a
te

s
 p

o
s
t-

1
6

. 
S

e
a

n
 M

a
y

F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

k
ill

s
 p

ilo
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 f
o
r 

S
e
p
t 
0
7
. 
E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ilo
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 f
o
r 

S
e
p
t 
0
7
. 
T

h
e
 S

tu
d
e
n
t 
P

a
th

w
a
y
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 f
ro

m
 

E
n
tr

y
 l
e
v
e
l.
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
C

o
N

E
L
 a

n
d
 W

B
L
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 

b
ro

a
d
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c

u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
. 
T

h
e
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 S

ix
th

 F
o
rm

 C
e
n
tr

e
 w

ill
 o

p
e
n
 

in
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

 2
0
0
7
 w

it
h
 a

 b
ro

a
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 c

u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 o

ff
e
r.

T
h
e
 e

n
g
a
g
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 r

e
c
ru

it
e
d
 5

0
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
N

E
E

T
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

le
a
rn

e
rs

 f
o
rm

 t
h
e
 P

S
C

. 
B

u
ilt

 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 r

o
u
te

s
. 
T

h
e
 1

4
-1

9
 T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u
p
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

m
is

o
n
e
d
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 

a
c
ti
v
it
e
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
-e

n
g
a
g
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 -

 m
e
n
to

ri
n
g
, 

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
p
ro

v
is

o
n
 a

n
d
 a

 c
a
re

e
rs

 d
a
y
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

y
r 

1
1
.

(C
L

)P
1

4
.8

F
o

r 
p

o
s
t 
-1

6
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 A

 

le
v
e

l 
p

o
in

t 
s
c
o

re
 p

e
r 

s
tu

d
e

n
t 
to

 2
3

2
 i
n

 A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

0
7

 f
ro

m
 2

2
7

 i
n

 A
u

g
u

s
t 
2

0
0

6
, 
re

a
c
h

in
g

 2
3

8
 i
n

 

A
u

g
u

s
t 
2

0
0

8
 a

n
d

 2
4

8
 i
n

 A
u

g
u

s
t 
2

0
0

9
 a

n
d

 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 p

o
in

t 
s
c
o

re
 p

e
r 

e
x
a

m
 

e
n

tr
y
 t
o

 7
9

 i
n

 A
u

g
u

s
t 
2

0
0

7
 f

ro
m

 7
6

.4
 i
n

 A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

0
6

 r
e

a
c
h

in
g

 8
1

 i
n

 A
u

g
u

s
t 
2

0
0

8
 a

n
d

 8
4

 i
n

 

A
u

g
u

s
t 
2

0
0

9
.

S
e

a
n
 M

a
y

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
c
ro

s
s
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 c

e
le

b
ra

te
d
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 b
e
s
t-

e
v
e
r 

A
 l
e
v
e
l 

re
s
u
lt
s
. 
T

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
A

 l
e
v
e
l 
b
o
ro

u
g
h
 p

a
s
s
 r

a
te

 w
e
n
t 
u
p
 f
ro

m
 9

6
.7

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 

in
 2

0
0
6
 t
o
 9

7
.1

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t,
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
s
s
 r

a
te

 o
f 
9
6
.9

 

p
e
r 

c
e
n
t.
 T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
A

 g
ra

d
e
s
 w

e
n
t 
u
p
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 f
iv

e
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t,
 t
o
 

2
2
.9

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t.
  
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 i
s
 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 o

n
c
e
 t
h
e
 A

v
e
ra

g
e
 P

o
in

ts
 S

c
o
re

s
 a

re
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d
. 
 

P
ro

v
is

o
n
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 s

h
o
w

 a
 r

is
e
 i
n
 %

 A
- 

E
 p

a
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 9

8
.1

%
. 

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 p

o
in

t 
s
c
o
re

 t
o
 5

6
6
.2

 (
2
2
6
.8

 o
ld

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 f
o
rm

 1
8
8
.8

).
  
A

v
e
ra

g
e
 

p
o
in

t 
s
c
o
re

 u
p
 t
o
 2

0
0
.7

 (
o
ld

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 7
6
.4

)

(C
L

)P
1

4
.9

F
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 m

in
o

ri
ty

 

e
th

n
ic

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 y
e

a
r 

o
n

 y
e

a
r 

th
e

 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 
a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
g

a
p

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 f
ro

m
 

A
fr

ic
a

n
, 
C

a
ri

b
b

e
a

n
, 
T

u
rk

is
h

 a
n

d
 K

u
rd

is
h

 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 w

it
h

 W
h

it
e

 U
K

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 b
y
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

a
n

o
th

e
r 

2
-4

%
 f

o
r 

e
a

c
h

 g
ro

u
p

. 

W
e
 a

re
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
a
n
a
ly

s
in

g
 t
h
e
  
2
0
0
7
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
. 
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 -
 2

0
0
7
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l 
d
a
ta

. 
 E

n
g
lis

h
 g

a
p
 f
o
r 

A
fr

ic
a
n
 C

a
ri
b
b
e
a
n
 p

u
p
ils

 h
a
s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 a

t 

1
9
%

. 
 T

u
rk

is
h
 g

a
p
 h

a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 4

%
, 
K

u
rd

is
h
 g

a
p
 h

a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 7

%
. 
 

M
a
th

s
 g

a
p
 A

fr
ic

a
n
 C

a
ri
b
b
e
a
n
 p

u
p
ils

 h
a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 7

%
, 
K

u
rd

is
h
 g

a
p
 h

a
s
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 1

1
%

. 
 S

IM
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d

e
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 u
s
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

o
u
r 

ta
rg

e
ts

.

T
h
e
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
g
a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 W

h
it
e
 U

K
 p

u
p
ils

 a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 f
ro

m
 e

th
n
ic

 

m
in

o
ri
ti
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 a

ll 
s
u
b
je

c
ts

 a
t 
L
4
+

 a
n
d
 t
o
 a

 l
e
s
s
e
r 

e
x
te

n
t 
a
t 
L
5
+

. 
 

T
u
rk

is
h
 a

n
d
 K

u
rd

is
h
 p

u
p
ils

 a
re

 t
h
e
 l
e
a
s
t 
w

e
ll 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 a

t 
L
5
+

.

(C
L

)P
1

4
.9

P
ri

m
a

ry
 -

 F
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 

m
in

o
ri

ty
 e

th
n

ic
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 y
e

a
r 

o
n

 

y
e

a
r 

th
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 
a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
g

a
p

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 

s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 f
ro

m
 A

fr
ic

a
n

, 
C

a
ri

b
b

e
a

n
, 
T

u
rk

is
h

 a
n

d
 

K
u

rd
is

h
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 w

it
h

 W
h

it
e

 U
K

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 b
y
 

a
t 
le

a
s
t 
a

n
o

th
e

r 
2

-4
%

 f
o

r 
e

a
c
h

 g
ro

u
p

. 

R
a

c
h
e

l 

S
in

g
e

r/
J
o

h
n
 

E
d

w
a

rd
s

In
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 c
h
ild

re
n
 f
ro

m
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

re
p
re

s
e
n
t 
th

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
th

e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
. 
 I
n
 r

e
c
o
g
n
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

is
, 
th

e
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 e
m

p
lo

y
s
 a

 t
e
a
m

 o
f 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
ts

, 
le

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r 
fo

r 
ta

rg
e
te

d
 

p
u
p
il 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
. 
 T

h
is

 p
e
rs

o
n
 i
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 a

 g
if
te

d
 a

n
d
 t
a
le

n
te

d
 c

o
-

o
rd

in
a
to

r,
 a

 T
u
rk

is
h
 l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t,
 a

n
d
 a

 c
o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r 
fo

r 
a
s
y
lu

m
 

s
e
e
k
e
rs

 a
n
d
 r

e
fu

g
e
e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 T

P
I 
c
o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r 
w

o
rk

s
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 t
w

o
 a

re
a
s
 

a
re

 l
in

k
e
d
. 
 R

e
s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

E
M

A
 p

u
p
ils

 a
re

 a
n
a
ly

s
e
d
 e

a
c
h
 s

u
m

m
e
r,

 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 i
s
 t
a
ilo

re
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 n
e
e
d
s
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 -
 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

in
g
le

 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
la

n
s
 d

ra
w

n
 u

p
 w

it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

.

R
a
te

s
 o

f 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 m

a
jo

r 
e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
in

 l
in

e
 

w
it
h
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 r

a
te

s
 a

t 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

, 
e
x
c
e
p
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
T

u
rk

is
h
 b

o
y
s
 

a
t 
K

S
3
.

(C
L

)P
1

4
.1

0

S
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 -
 F

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 c
a

re
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 1
0

0
%

 

P
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

s
 a

n
d

 1
4

%
 i
n

 c
a

re
 f

o
r 

1
2

+
 m

o
n

th
s
 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 5
+

A
*-

C
 G

C
S

E
s
 a

n
d

 1
1

%
 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 5
+

A
*-

C
 (

in
c
 E

n
g

lis
h

 a
n

d
 m

a
th

s
) 

a
n

d
 

5
7

%
 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 a
t 
le

a
s
t 
o

n
e

 G
C

S
E

 o
r 

e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t 

q
u

a
lif

ic
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 2
0

0
7

.
A

tt
ra

c
ta

 

C
ra

ig

F
ig

u
re

s
 t
o
 f
o
llo

w
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

 R
e
tu

rn
 o

n
 c

h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r.

 P
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l 
fi
g
u
re

s
 s

h
o
w

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 

th
is

 a
re

a
.

C
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 a
ll 

h
a
v
e
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 
 G

C
S

E
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 

a
t 
1
+

 A
*-

G
 f
e
ll 

b
y
 1

%
 t
o
 6

4
%

 b
u
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
5
7
%

, 
th

e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 

3
%

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 5
3
%

 o
n
 t
h
e
 5

+
 A

*-
G

 a
n
d
 5

+
 A

*-
C

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 1

0
%

 t
o
 

3
1
%

, 
1
3
%

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 5

+
 A

*-
C

 w
it
h
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 a
ll 

s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
lly

 

a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

. 
 

(C
L

)P
1

4
.1

1

F
o

r 
h

ig
h

 a
tt
a

in
e

rs
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
1

1
 

y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 i
n

 2
0

0
7

 a
tt
a

in
in

g
 L

e
v
e

l 
5

 i
n

 E
n

g
lis

h
 t
o

 

3
3

%
 a

n
d

 t
o

 3
4

%
 i
n

 2
0

0
9

 (
2

0
0

6
 r

e
s
u

lt
 3

0
%

) 
a

n
d

 

in
 M

a
th

s
 t
o

 3
0

%
 a

n
d

 t
o

 3
1

%
 i
n

 2
0

0
9

 (
2

0
0

6
 

re
s
u

lt
 2

8
%

).
 

R
a

c
h
e

l 

S
in

g
e

r

W
e
 a

re
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
fu

lly
 a

n
a
ly

s
in

g
  
th

e
 K

S
2
. 
 2

0
0
7
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
s
 -

 

E
n
g
lis

h
 l
o
o
k
s
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 d

ro
p
p
e
d
 t
o
 2

9
%

. 
 M

a
th

s
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
o
 2

9
%

. 
 

T
e
a
c
h
in

g
 a

n
d
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 u
n
d
e
r 

d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 S

IM
s
 t
o
 a

s
s
is

t 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
h
ig

h
 a

tt
a
in

in
g
 p

u
p
ils

. 

T
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

w
ill

 n
o
t 
b
e
 v

a
lid

a
te

d
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 

n
e
w

 y
e
a
r.

  
In

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 r

e
a
c
h
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fo

c
u
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 g

iv
e
n
 

to
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 h

ig
h
e
r 

a
tt
a
in

e
rs

. 

(C
L

)P
1

4
.1

2

In
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
p

u
p

ils
 a

tt
a

in
in

g
 3

 o
r 

m
o

re
 A

*/
A

 g
ra

d
e

s
 a

t 
G

C
S

E
 t
o

 1
8

%
 i
n

 2
0

0
7

 a
n

d
 

to
 1

9
%

 i
n

 2
0

0
9

 (
2

0
0

6
 r

e
s
u

lt
 1

6
%

).
 

J
o

h
n
 

E
d

w
a

rd
s

A
 g

if
te

d
 a

n
d
 t
a
le

n
te

d
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 i
s
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
d
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 r

a
is

e
 t
h
e
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
G

if
te

d
 a

n
d
 T

a
le

n
te

d
 p

u
p
ils

. 
 T

h
is

 p
e
rs

o
n
 

re
p
o
rt

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r 
fo

r 
ta

rg
e
te

d
 p

u
p
il 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
. 
 G

if
te

d
 a

n
d
 

T
a
le

n
te

d
  
p
u
p
ils

 a
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

. 
 R

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
d
 e

a
c
h
 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

b
y
 g

ro
u
p
, 
a
n
d
 f
e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
la

n
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 w

it
h
 

e
a
c
h
 s

c
h
o
o
l.

T
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 G

+
T

 c
o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r 
is

 m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 t
e
a
m

, 
a
n
d
 a

n
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 t
e
rm

ly
. 
 T

h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
s
e
, 
to

g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
th

e
 2

0
0
7
 

re
s
u
lt
s
, 
w

ill
 t
h
e
n
 f
e
e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 2

0
0
8
-0

9
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
  
 V

a
lid

a
te

d
 d

a
ta

 

n
o
t 
y
e
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

.

Page 117



R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

L
E

A
D

(C
L

)P
1

4
.1

3

F
o

r 
lo

w
 a

tt
a

in
e

rs
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
1

1
 

y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 i
n

 2
0

0
7

 a
tt
a

in
in

g
 L

e
v
e

l 
2

 o
r 

b
e

lo
w

 i
n

 

E
n

g
lis

h
 t
o

 7
.8

%
 (

2
0

0
6

 r
e

s
u

lt
 8

.6
%

),
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 a
tt
a

in
in

g
 L

e
v
e

l 
2

 o
r 

b
e

lo
w

 i
n

 M
a

th
s
 

to
 7

.8
%

 (
2

0
0

6
 r

e
s
u

lt
 8

.8
%

).
R

a
c
h
e

l 

S
in

g
e

r

W
e
 a

re
 i
n
 t
h
e
  
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 o

f 
fu

lly
 a

n
a
ly

s
in

g
 t
h
e
 K

S
2
 2

0
0
7
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
s
. 
 

L
o
w

 a
tt
a
in

e
rs

 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 h

a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 8

.3
%

. 
 M

a
th

s
 h

a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 l
o
w

 

a
tt
a
in

e
rs

 t
o
 7

.6
%

. 
 T

e
a
c
h
in

g
 a

n
d
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 u
n
d
e
r 

d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 S

IM
s
  
a
s
s
is

t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
lo

w
 a

tt
a
in

in
g
 p

u
p
ils

.

In
 2

0
0
7
 t
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

d
e
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
lo

w
 a

tt
a
in

in
g
 

p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
, 
m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

n
d
 s

c
ie

n
c
e
. 
In

 E
n
g
lis

h
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

a
tt
a
in

in
g
 L

2
 a

n
d
 b

e
lo

w
 h

a
s
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f
ro

m
 1

0
.1

%
 t
o
 8

.6
%

 (
n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 t
h
e
 

fi
g
u
re

 i
s
 8

.2
%

).
  
In

 m
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 t
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

 d
e
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f
ro

m
 1

0
.1

%
 t
o
 8

.2
%

 

(n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 6
%

).
  
In

 s
c
ie

n
c
e
 t
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

 h
a
s
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f
ro

m
 6

.8
%

 t
o
 6

%
 

(n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 5
.7

%
).

(C
L

)P
1

4
.1

4

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
b

y
 2

0
0

7
 9

6
%

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 l
e

a
v
e

 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
w

it
h

 a
t 
le

a
s
t 
o

n
e

 f
o

rm
a

l 
q

u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o

n
, 
a

n
d

 

a
t 
le

a
s
t 
9

9
%

 b
y
 2

0
0

9
 (

2
0

0
6

 r
e

s
u

lt
 9

4
.5

%
).

J
o

h
n
 

E
d

w
a

rd
s

S
tu

d
e
n
ts

 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
n
o
t 
a
tt
a
in

in
g
 a

n
y
 f
o
rm

a
l 
q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Y

e
a
r 

1
1
 a

re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
s
a
t 
th

e
 l
a
te

s
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
K

S
3
. 
  
T

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 i
s
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
d
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

th
e
s
e
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 i
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
h
a
t 
le

a
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
s
in

g
le

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
la

n
.

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 L

A
 p

la
n
, 
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 3

1
 a

n
d
 3

2
  
 P

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 

re
s
u
l;
ts

 f
o
r 

2
0
0
7
 a

re
 9

6
%

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 1

 A
* 

- 
C

 a
t 
G

C
S

E

(C
L

)P
1

4
.1

5

F
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 S
p

e
c
ia

l 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
N

e
e

d
s
 (

S
E

N
) 

e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
ir

 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
s
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 m
e

a
s
u

re
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 t
o

o
ls

 s
u

c
h

 a
s
 P

 S
c
a

le
s
.

K
ir
s
ti
e

 

W
a

tk
in

s
/J

o

h
n
 E

d
w

a
rd

s

A
E

N
 t
e
a
m

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 r
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
P

 

s
c
a
le

s
.

W
o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u
p
 s

e
t 
u
p
 i
n
v
o
lv

in
g
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 a
n
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 

m
o
d
e
ra

te
 P

 s
c
a
le

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 s
a
m

p
le

s
.

A
u
d
it
 o

f 
n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
m

a
p
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 a

lm
o
s
t 
a
ll 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

.

S
E

N
C

o
 f
o
ru

m
s
 f
o
c
u
s
s
in

g
 o

n
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 g

o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 r

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

ta
rg

e
t 
s
e
tt
in

g
 f
o
r 

p
u
p
ils

 w
o
rk

in
g
 a

t 
lo

w
e
r 

le
v
e
ls

.

A
lm

o
s
t 
a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 n
o
w

 r
e
c
o
rd

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 b

e
lo

w
 N

C
 

le
v
e
ls

 u
s
in

g
 P

 l
e
v
e
ls

 a
n
d
 t
ra

c
k
in

g
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
s
e
 p

u
p
ils

. 
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
s
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

t 
A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
s
 u

s
in

g
 P

 l
e
v
e
ls

 i
n
 a

p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
  
9
5
%

  
o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 
In

c
re

a
s
in

g
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 u
s
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 P

IV
A

T
s
 

a
n
d
 B

 S
q
u
a
re

d
 t
o
 b

re
a
k
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 d
o
w

n
 i
n
to

 s
m

a
ll 

s
te

p
s
. 
S

E
N

C
O

s
 a

n
d
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
s
ta

ff
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

n
 d

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 f
o
r 

p
u
p
ils

 w
it
h
 S

E
N

 a
n
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
in

te
rv

e
n
ti
o
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s

(C
L

)P
1

4
.1

6

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
 i
n

 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 

m
e

t.
  

K
ir
s
ti
e

 

W
a

tk
in

s
/J

o

h
n
 E

d
w

a
rd

s

S
E

N
 H

a
n
d
b
o
o
k
 u

p
d
a
te

 i
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
. 
 S

E
N

 n
e
w

s
 l
e
tt
e
r 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 f
o
r 

c
ir
c
u
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 a

ll 
S

E
N

C
o
s
 i
n
  
A

u
tu

m
n
 t
e
rm

. 
 S

E
N

C
o
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 s

h
a
re

 

g
o
o
d
 p

a
c
ti
c
e
 r

e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
e
rm

ly
 S

E
N

C
p
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 

fo
ru

m
s
 a

n
d
 S

E
N

C
o
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
. 
 A

E
N

 t
e
a
m

s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 

tr
a
in

n
g
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 r
e
. 
h
ig

h
 a

n
d
 l
o
w

 i
n
c
id

e
n
c
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 f
o
c
u
s
s
in

g
 o

n
 

d
if
fe

re
n
ti
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
W

a
v
e
 2

 a
n
d
 W

a
v
e
 3

 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

T
e
rm

ly
 "

In
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 g

ro
u
p
" 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
 c

o
lle

a
g
u
e
s
 f
ro

m
 A

E
N

, 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d
 E

P
s
 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
w

a
v
e
 2

 a
n
d
 3

 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
is

e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 o
n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

. 
 

S
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 t
e
rm

ly
 w

it
h
 H

T
s
 

a
n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 f
u
tu

re
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
p
u
p
ils

 a
re

 m
o
n
it
o
re

d
. 
 

Y
e
a
r 

6
 p

u
p
ils

 w
it
h
 S

p
e
e
c
h
, 
L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 N

e
e
d
s
 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 A

u
ti
s
m

) 
a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 g

ro
u
p
s
 t
o
 p

re
p
a
re

 t
h
e
m

 f
o
r 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r.
  

P
e
n
p
o
rt

ra
it
s
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 p

u
p
il 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 w

a
s
 c

ir
c
u
la

te
d
 t
o
 s

ta
ff
 i
n
 Y

7
 g

iv
in

g
 

b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in

e
 o

f 
n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
.

W
e
 a

re
 b

u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 S

E
N

C
o
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 f
o
ru

m
s
, 
n
e
w

s
le

tt
e
r 

a
n
d
 S

E
N

 c
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 b
u
ild

 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 

n
e
e
d
s
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 w
it
h
 S

E
N

 i
n
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 

m
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 c
la

s
s
e
s
. 
  
A

 h
ig

h
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
tt
e
n
d
in

g
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

io
n
 m

a
k
e
 b

e
tt
e
r 

th
a
n
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
y
 

re
tu

rn
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 w
it
h
o
u
t 
n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t.
 T

h
e
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 1

 

L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 a

t 
C

o
le

ra
in

e
 P

a
rk

 w
a
s
 j
u
d
g
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 O

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 b

y
 

O
F

S
T

E
D

. 
T

h
e
 W

e
s
t 
G

re
e
n
 L

a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 P

ro
v
is

io
n
 h

o
s
te

d
 t
h
e
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
a
rl
ia

m
e
n
ta

ry
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
S

L
C

N
 a

n
d
 w

a
s
 c

h
o
s
e
n
 a

s
 a

 c
e
n
tr

e
 o

f 
e
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 b

y
 t
h
e
 D

C
S

F
.

(C
L

)P
1

4
.1

7

 F
o

r 
p

re
g

n
a

n
t 
s
c
h

o
o

lg
ir

ls
 a

n
d

 s
c
h

o
o

l-
a

g
e

 

p
a

re
n

ts
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
1

0
0

%
 o

f 
a

ll 
s
c
h

o
o

lg
ir

ls
 a

n
d

 

s
c
h

o
o

l-
a

g
e

 m
o

th
e

rs
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
n

 o
ff

e
r 

th
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
n

n
e

x
io

n
s
 b

y
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
0

7
. 

S
u
 S

h
a

w

1
0
0
%

 h
a
v
e
 C

o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 P

A
 o

r 
re

fe
rr

a
l.
 N

e
e
d
 t
o
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
 a

t 
s
ta

rt
 

o
f 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

0
7
.

1
0
0
%

 P
A

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
la

n
n
e
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 C

o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 f
u
n
d
in

g
.

Page 118



R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

L
E

A
D

(C
L

)P
1

4
.1

8

F
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 m

o
v
e

 h
o

m
e

 

o
r 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 f

re
q

u
e

n
tl
y
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
o

 

p
ro

m
o

te
 g

o
o

d
 i
n

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 

m
o

n
it
o

r 
m

o
b

ili
ty

 l
e

v
e

ls
 i
n

 a
ll 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 

d
a

ta
 t
o

 i
n

fo
rm

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 F

u
n

d
 f

o
rm

u
la

 w
h

e
re

 

re
le

v
a

n
t.
 

R
a

c
h
e

l 

S
in

g
e

r/
J
o

h
n
 

E
d

w
a

rd
s

S
E

N
C

o
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 s

h
a
re

 g
o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 r

e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

te
rm

ly
 S

E
N

C
o
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 f
o
ru

m
s
 a

n
d
 S

E
N

c
o
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e

A
E

N
 t
e
a
m

s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 r
e
 h

ig
h
 a

n
d
 

lo
w

 i
n
c
id

e
n
c
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 f
o
c
u
s
s
in

g
 o

n
 d

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 

W
a
v
e
 2

 a
n
d
 W

a
v
e
 3

 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
. 
T

e
rm

ly
 “

In
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 g

ro
u
p
” 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

h
e
ld

 w
it
h
 c

o
lle

a
g
u
e
s
 f
ro

m
 A

E
N

, 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d
 E

P
s
 t
o
  
re

v
ie

w
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
w

a
v
e
 2

 a
n
d
 3

 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
is

e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 o
n
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

.

S
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
e
a
m

s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 a

ll 
H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 d

ir
e
c
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

, 
a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 f
o
r 

p
u
p
ils

 a
t 
S

c
h
o
o
l 
A

c
ti
o
n
 

p
lu

s
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
s
 a

re
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 b

y
 S

E
N

 p
a
n
e
l 
a
n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
is

s
u
e
s
 a

re
 

fo
llo

w
e
d
 u

p
 b

y
 S

IM
 –

In
c
lu

s
io

n
. 

S
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 t
e
rm

ly
 w

it
h
 H

T
s
 

a
n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 f
u
tu

re
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
p
u
p
ils

 a
re

 m
o
n
it
o
re

d

Y
e
a
r 

6
 p

u
p
ils

 w
it
h
 S

p
e
e
c
h
, 
L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 N

e
e
d
s
 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 A

u
ti
s
m

) 
a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 g

ro
u
p
s
 t
o
 p

re
p
a
re

 t
h
e
m

 f
o
r 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r.
  

P
e
n
 p

o
rt

ra
it
s
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 p

u
p
il 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 w

a
s
 c

ir
c
u
la

te
d
 t
o
 s

ta
ff
 i
n
 Y

7
 g

iv
in

g
 b

ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in

e
 o

f 
n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
.

Page 119



T
h

e
 C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
: 

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g

M
A

K
E

 A
 P

O
S

IT
IV

E
 C

O
N

T
R

IB
U

T
IO

N
 -

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 1

5
-1

7
O

U
T

C
O

M
E

 L
E

A
D

: 
J
E

N
N

IF
E

R
 J

A
M

E
S

R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

(C
L

)P
1

5
.1

B
u

ild
 u

p
o

n
 t
h

e
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 

lo
c
a

l 
d

e
m

o
c
ra

c
y
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e

 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 Y

o
u

th
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

(H
Y

C
).

 

M
ik

e
 D

a
v
is

, 

A
n
a

 

B
e

a
u
m

o
n
t

C
o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

d
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
H

Y
C

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 m

o
n
th

ly
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
, 
b
i-

m
o
n
th

ly
 H

Y
C

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 g

ro
u
p
s
. 
H

Y
C

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 t
w

o
 n

e
w

s
le

tt
e
rs

 

a
n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 y

o
u
th

 d
e
m

o
c
ra

c
y
 f
ilm

. 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 A

n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g
 e

v
e
n
t 
fo

r 
A

n
ti
 

B
u
lly

in
g
 W

e
e
k
. 
H

Y
C

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 a

t 
v
a
ri
o
u
s
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 e

v
e
n
ts

 e
.g

 

H
o
lo

c
a
u
s
t 
m

e
m

o
ri
a
l;
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 A

s
s
e
m

b
lie

s
. 
H

Y
C

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
ls

o
 

tr
a
in

e
d
 f
o
r 

m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 Y

o
u
th

 O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
F

u
n
d
.

T
h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

, 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o
 l
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

a
b
ili

ty
 t
o
 r

e
c
ru

it
 a

 w
id

e
r 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 

th
e
re

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

m
u
c
h
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 b

e
 d

o
n
e
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 c

la
ri
fy

in
g
 a

n
d
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 

th
e
ir
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

d
e
c
is

io
n
-m

a
k
in

g
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
. 
R

e
g
u
la

r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

Y
o
u
th

 C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 i
s
 n

o
w

 u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
, 
to

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
ir
 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 m
o
re

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
re

 e
n
a
b
le

d
 

to
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

. 
T

o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 E

x
p
o
s
u
re

, 
th

e
 Y

o
u
th

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 i
t's

 f
ir
s
t 
n
e
w

s
le

tt
e
r,

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 
H

Y
C

 

s
ta

g
e
d
 a

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
Q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
 T

im
e
 e

v
e
n
t 
in

 O
c
to

b
e
r 

w
it
h
 o

v
e
r 

6
0
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

.T
h
e
 H

Y
C

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
t's

 f
ilm

 o
n
 y

o
u
th

 d
e
m

o
c
ra

c
y
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
t 

is
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 t
o
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 
to

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 i
s
 o

n
 t
ra

c
k
 t
o
 h

o
ld

 i
t's

 A
n
ti
-B

u
lly

in
g
 

M
a
rc

h
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r.

 D
e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

H
Y

C
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 t
o
 f
u
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

p
la

n
n
e
d
. 

R
e
g
u
la

r 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 h

e
ld

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 l
e
a
d
 c

o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

fo
r 

C
h
ild

re
a
n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 H

Y
C

 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
.

(C
L

)P
1

5
.2

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 g

o
o

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 p
ro

to
c
o

l 
fo

r 
th

e
 

in
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

.
A

n
a

 

B
e

a
u
m

o
n
t

A
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 

th
e
 H

e
a
r 

b
y
 R

ig
h
ts

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

, 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

y
o
u
th

 f
o
ru

m
, 
w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
d
u
c
in

g
 a

 'd
o
's

 a
n
d
 d

o
n
’t
s
' o

f 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

y
o
u
th

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 b

e
 s

h
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

, 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 

in
 t
h
e
 a

u
tu

m
n
 t
e
rm

. 

T
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 
th

e
 P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 T

o
o
lk

it
, 
w

h
ic

h
 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 f
o
r 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

. 

G
o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t
h
e
 P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 g

o
in

g
 o

u
t 
to

 s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

A
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

, 
a
 v

e
rs

io
n
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 

d
is

s
e
m

m
in

a
te

d
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

, 
th

e
 Y

o
u
th

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 y

o
u
th

 g
ro

u
p
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 i
n
p
u
t;
 t
h
e
 c

o
re

 p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 f
ra

m
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 

fo
rm

 t
h
e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 
th

e
 'd

o
 a

n
d
 d

o
n
'ts

' d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t.
 

A
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 Y

o
u
th

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

a
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 B
o
a
rd

. 
  
A

 

Y
o
u
n
g
 c

a
re

rs
 c

h
a
rt

e
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 f
in

a
lis

e
d
 t
h
e
 p

la
n
 i
s
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 m
u
lt
i 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

w
o
rk

 s
h
o
p
 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 o

b
ta

in
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 

ta
k
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
a
rt

e
r 

fo
rw

a
rd

. 

(C
L

)P
1

5
.3

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 t
o

 m
o

re
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

tl
y
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
 

w
it
h

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
tt
e

n
d

in
g

 s
p

e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
.

A
n
a

 

B
e

a
u
m

o
n
t

T
o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
N

e
e
d
s
 T

e
a
m

, 
C

h
ild

re
n
's

 F
u
n
d
, 

S
p
e
c
ia

l 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 V

ie
w

p
o
in

t,
 t
h
e
 P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 h
a
v
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
 

o
n
lin

e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 e
n
a
b
le

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
 w

it
h
 p

u
p
ils

 o
n
 a

 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
to

p
ic

s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 n

e
e
d
s
. 
T

h
e
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ilo
te

d
 i
n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
h
is

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

a
n
d
 

th
e
n
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 
a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 
F

in
d
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

w
id

e
r 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

rs
. 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

 P
o
w

e
rf

u
l 
V

o
ic

e
s
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

J
u
n
e
 

2
0
0
8
, 
w

h
e
re

 K
S

2
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 p
u
p
ils

 w
ill

 b
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

im
e
d
 a

t 
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 t
h
e
ir
 a

c
ti
v
e
 i
n
p
u
t 
in

to
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
-m

a
k
in

g
. 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 s

h
a
re

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 

a
n
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
o
s
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 

T
h
e
 i
n
it
ia

l 
p
ilo

ts
 w

e
n
t 
a
h
e
a
d
 a

s
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

a
n
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 

th
e
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

, 
w

e
 a

re
 e

x
te

n
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

ilo
t 
to

 a
 

w
id

e
r 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 A

u
tu

m
n
 T

e
rm

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 e
n
a
b
le

 V
ie

w
p
o
in

t 

to
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 t
h
e
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
m

a
n
y
 m

o
re

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 a

re
 o

p
ti
m

a
lly

 s
u
it
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 n

e
e
d
s
. 
A

lo
n
g
s
id

e
 t
h
e
 p

ilo
t,
 w

e
 

a
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 c

le
a
r 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 h

o
w

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 c
a
n
 u

s
e
 t
h
e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 

in
 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
, 
a
s
 a

n
 O

fs
te

d
 t
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 b

e
tt
e
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

n
e
e
d
s
 o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u
a
l 
p
u
p
ils

. 

L
E

A
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 F
IF

T
E

E
N

 –
 W

e
 w

il
l 
e
m

p
o

w
e
r 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 h
a
v
e
 a

 m
o

re
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
 v

o
ic

e
 i
n

 d
e
c
is

io
n

 m
a
k
in

g
. 
 

S
p

e
c
if

ic
a
ll
y
 w

e
 w

il
l:

Page 120



R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

L
E

A
D

(C
L

)P
1

5
.4

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 e
q

u
ip

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 t
o

o
ls

 a
n

d
 s

k
ill

s
 t
h

e
y
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 

a
t 
a

ll 
le

v
e

ls
.

B
e

lin
d

a
 

E
v
a

n
s
, 
M

ik
e

 

D
a

v
is

, 
J
u
d

e
 

C
le

m
e

n
ts

, 

T
h
e
 g

ra
n
ts

 p
a
n
e
l 
o
f 
th

e
 Y

o
u
th

 O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 F

u
n
d
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 w

e
e
k
ly

 

tr
a
in

in
g
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
ir
 s

k
ill

s
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 a

n
d
 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
g
ra

n
t 
g
iv

in
g
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
. 
A

n
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 

tr
a
in

in
g
 i
s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
lic

it
y
 a

n
d
 i
n
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

n
e
w

 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

, 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

e
le

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

0
7
. 
  
A

 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 T

ra
in

in
g
 T

o
o
lk

it
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
  
fo

r 
u
s
e
 b

y
 a

n
d
 f
o
r 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 

w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

. 
T

ra
in

in
g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 H

Y
C

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 Y

o
u
th

 B
a
n
k
 U

K
 a

n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
. 
S

tu
d
e
n
t 
V

o
ic

e
 C

h
a
rt

e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 i
n
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

(L
o
c
a
l 
D

e
m

o
c
ra

c
y
 W

e
e
k
);

 P
e
e
r 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 G
u
id

a
n
c
e
 'g

o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
' 

re
p
o
rt

 p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

. 
O

n
g
o
in

g
 s

ta
ff
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

H
Y

C
.

T
ra

in
in

g
 o

ff
e
re

d
 t
o
 a

ll 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
b
o
u
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

. 

J
u
n
io

r 
C

it
iz

e
n
s
' d

e
b
a
te

 h
e
ld

 i
n
 J

u
ly

 0
7
 w

it
h
 s

ix
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 t
h
e
m

e
 t
h
a
t 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 a
g
e
 p

u
p
ils

 a
re

 t
o
o
 y

o
u
n
g
 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 s

e
x
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
.

Y
o
u
th

 F
u
n
d
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
P

a
n
e
l 
h
a
v
e
 m

e
t 
re

g
u
la

rl
y
 t
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

fo
r 

g
ra

n
ts

. 
W

e
 a

re
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 v

is
it
s
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 t
o
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
. 
P

a
n
e
l 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 w
ill

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
is

. 
N

e
w

 p
a
n
e
l 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
ru

it
e
d
. 
T

h
e
 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 T

o
o
lk

it
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
. 
A

 t
ra

in
in

g
 f
o
r 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 

(w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

) 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 f
o
rm

u
la

te
d
 

a
n
d
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t.
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 S

tu
d
e
n
t 
V

o
ic

e
 C

h
a
rt

e
r 

w
a
s
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 

la
u
n
c
h
e
d
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

w
it
h
 a

lm
o
s
t 
1
0
0
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 1

3
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 a
n
d
 

s
p
e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g
. 
C

o
p
ie

s
 d

is
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t
o
 a

ll 
1
1
-1

9
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

. 

S
p
e
c
if
ic

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 b
e
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t
e
a
c
h
in

g
 a

n
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 s

tu
d
e
n
t 
re

s
e
a
rc

h
. 
 J

u
n
io

r 
C

it
iz

e
n
s
 A

w
a
rd

 S
c
h
e
m

e
 p

a
c
k
 d

is
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t
o
 

2
0
+

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

.

(C
L

)P
1

5
.5

In
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

a
re

n
ti
n

g
 P

a
n

e
l,
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

b
o

th
 y

o
u

n
g

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 s

ti
ll 

w
it
h

in
 t
h

e
 “

c
a

re
 

s
y
s
te

m
” 

a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
. 

P
e

rm
in

d
e

r 

C
h
a

h
a

l

A
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 c

a
re

 t
o
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 a

 w
id

e
r 

g
ro

u
p
 i
n
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
. 
A

 S
e
n
io

r 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 g

iv
e
n
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

c
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
n
g
 a

ll 
C

IC
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 Y

P
 t
o
 d

ra
w

 u
p
 a

n
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 
T

h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
g
o
in

g
.

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 t
h
e
 V

ie
w

p
o
in

t 
p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 t
o
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

in
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 o

ff
e
ri
n
g
 o

u
r 

L
A

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
th

e
r 

m
e
a
n
s
 

fo
r 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
. 
 A

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 h

a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
 h

e
a
d
s
 o

f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
ir
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 a

 f
u
tu

re
 w

o
rk

 p
la

n
. 
 T

h
e
 L

A
C

 t
e
a
m

 i
s
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
 e

v
e
n
t 
in

v
o
lv

in
g
 a

ll 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 f
o
s
te

r 
c
a
re

 s
o
m

e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
ill

 f
o
rm

 p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 p

a
rt

y
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

a
t 
fo

r 

th
e
 d

a
y
. 
 T

h
e
 t
h
in

k
in

g
 b

e
h
in

d
 t
h
is

 i
s
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 

w
h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 f
o
rm

u
la

te
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 p

a
n
e
l 
a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 

g
iv

e
 a

n
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
 f
o
r 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
. 
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 s
ti
ll 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
e
a
d
s
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 v

is
it
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 f
o
rm

u
la

te
 t
h
e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

lo
n
g
e
r 

te
rm

. 
 T

h
is

 w
o
rk

 h
a
s
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 o

n
g
o
in

g
.

(C
L

)P
1

5
.6

R
e

c
ru

it
 m

o
re

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 c
a

re
 t
o

 b
e

 

in
v
o

lv
e

d
 w

it
h

 T
o

ta
l 
R

e
s
p

e
c
t 
T

ra
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o

 e
n

g
a

g
e

 s
ta

ff
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

tr
a

in
in

g
. 
 

R
o

g
e

r 

S
m

it
h
, 

M
a

rj
o

ri
e

 

L
e

e

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

 g
ro

u
p
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 i
n
te

re
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 w

it
h
 u

s

A
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
m

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
A

u
g
u
s
t 
w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 w

ill
 d

e
c
id

e
 

w
h
a
t 
a
re

a
s
 t
h
e
y
 w

a
n
t 
to

 w
o
rk

 o
n
, 
w

e
 a

re
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 t
o
 t
ra

in
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

to
ta

l 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
tr

a
in

e
rs

 a
n
d
 r

u
n
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

c
o
u
rs

e
s
 f
o
r 

s
ta

ff
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

in
g
 y

e
a
r,

 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 “
m

in
i2

 s
e
s
s
io

n
 f
o
r 

c
o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

. 

A
 s

e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 b

o
th

 f
o
rm

a
l 
a
n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
l 
is

 o
n
g
o
in

g
 t
o
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 m

o
re

 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 g

e
t 
th

e
m

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 p

a
n
e
l 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
n
 “

in
 c

a
re

” 
c
o
u
n
c
il

(C
L

)P
1

5
.7

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 

u
p

o
n

 a
ll 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 g

ro
u

p
s
. 

A
n
a

 

B
e

a
u
m

o
n
t

T
h
e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 
th

e
 P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u
p
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

s
ta

ff
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r,
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
, 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

p
o
lic

e
. 
T

h
is

 b
ro

a
d
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
m

e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
k
e
y
 s

ta
ff
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
t 

th
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 n
e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
h
e
y
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 a

n
d
 o

u
r 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 b

e
c
o
m

e
s
 a

n
 e

m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 a

s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
ir
 o

w
n
 t
e
a
m

 

p
la

n
s
. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

 r
a
is

in
g
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
s
 t
h
is

 b
ro

a
d
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

g
ro

u
p
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 r

u
n
 H

e
a
r 

b
y
 R

ig
h
ts

 

tr
a
in

in
g
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 a

re
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 t
o
 a

d
o
p
t 
a
t 
a
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

le
v
e
l.
 T

h
is

 f
o
ru

m
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

n
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 f
o
r 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 t
o
 s

h
a
re

 k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 a

n
d
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 a

 m
o
re

 j
o
in

e
d
-u

p
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
. 

Page 121



R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

L
E

A
D

(C
L

)P
1

5
.8

E
n

s
u

re
 a

ll 
g

ro
u

p
s
 a

re
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 b

y
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

 

“l
e

a
v
in

g
 c

a
re

 c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

” 
fo

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

, 
a

 

tr
a

in
in

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 f
o

r 
c
a

re
 l
e

a
v
e

r 
m

e
n

to
rs

. 
a

 

“P
o

w
e

rf
u

l 
V

o
ic

e
s
” 

c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
, 
a

n
d

 g
re

a
te

r 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

e
 A

u
ti
s
m

 Y
o

u
th

 C
lu

b
. 

R
o

g
e

r 

S
m

it
h
, 

L
u
c
ia

n
a

 

F
re

d
e

ri
c
k
, 

P
h
il 

D
ile

o

A
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
o
p
e
n
 d

a
y
 w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 J

u
ly

 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 a

lm
o
s
t 
1
0
0
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 t
h
is

 w
a
s
 a

n
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 s

e
e
k
 t
h
e
ir
 v

ie
w

s
 a

n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
o
s
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 w

e
re

 i
n
te

re
s
te

d
 i
n
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 o

th
e
r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
. 
T

h
e
re

 

w
ill

 b
e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

e
v
e
n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

in
g
 y

e
a
r

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

 m
e
n
to

ri
n
g
 p

ro
je

c
t 
fo

r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 c

a
re

 a
n
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
w

 l
e
ft
 c

a
re

 a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 t
o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 m

e
n
to

rs
. 
A

 

fu
ll 

tr
a
in

in
g
 c

o
u
rs

e
 i
n
 b

e
in

g
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
m

 a
n
d
 w

e
 a

re
 s

e
e
k
in

g
 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
a
c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 w

o
rk

 T
h
is

 s
u
m

m
e
r,

 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 b

id
 f
o
r 

R
a
in

e
r-

D
C

S
F

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 s

u
s
ta

in
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 m

e
n
to

ri
n
g
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 f
o
r 

1
0
-1

5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 i
n
 

it
s
 c

a
re

. 
O

u
r 

u
n
iq

u
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
in

v
o
lv

e
s
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

m
e
n
to

rs
 f
ro

m
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 &

 Y
o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 o

ld
e
r 

c
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 (
p
e
e
r 

m
e
n
to

rs
).

 

A
ll 

y
o
u
n
g
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 a
re

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

A
S

D
A

N
 C

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 o
f 
P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 C

O
P

E
, 
B

ri
ti
s
h
 Y

o
u
th

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

- 

Y
o
u
n
g
 T

ru
s
te

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 U

K
 Y

o
u
th

 P
e
e
r 

M
e
n
to

ri
n
g
 B

T
E

C
.T

h
e
 

m
e
n
to

ri
n
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
ru

it
e
rd

 a
s
 m

e
n
to

rs
 w

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 t
h
is

 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m

in
g
 y

e
a
r

(C
L

)P
1

5
.9

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

th
e

H
Y

C
b

y
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
y
o

u
th

fo
ru

m
s

in
e

a
c
h

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

N
e

tw
o

rk
a

n
d

s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g

th
e

ro
le

o
f

th
e

H
Y

C
in

th
e

w
o

rk
o

f

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
k
e

y
 s

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
. 

B
e

lin
d

a
 

E
v
a

n
s
, 
 A

n
a

 

B
e

a
u
m

o
n
t

Y
o
u
th

 F
o
ru

m
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
. 
W

e
 a

re
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

 a
p
p
ly

in
g
 

fo
r 

Y
O

F
 a

n
d
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 t
h
e
ir
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 y

o
u
th

 f
o
ra

 

n
e
tw

o
rk

s
. 
T

h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 F
o
rm

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 o

n
c
e
 t
h
e
 

n
e
w

ly
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 A

re
a
 C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

rs
 a

re
 i
n
 p

o
s
t.

W
o
rk

 o
n
 t
h
e
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 F
o
ru

m
s
 w

ill
 s

ta
rt

 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
0
8
 t
o
 c

o
in

c
id

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

Y
o
u
th

 M
P

 e
le

c
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
u

p
d

a
te

d
: 
 3

 x
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

- 
fi
rs

t 
re

v
ie

w
 i
n

 S
u

m
m

e
r;

 m
id

 y
e

a
r 

re
v
ie

w
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r,

 e
n

d
 o

f 
y
e

a
r 

re
v
ie

w
 A

p
ri

l.
  

E
n

s
u

re
g

re
a

te
r

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
fo

r
c
h

ild
re

n
a

n
d

y
o

u
n

g
p

e
o

p
le

to
b

e
n

e
fi
t

fr
o

m
a

n
in

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l

d
im

e
n

s
io

n
to

th
e

ir
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
v
is

it
s

to

o
th

e
r

c
o

u
n

tr
ie

s
a

n
d

e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

n
e

w
c
u

lt
u

re
s

w
it
h

a
n

in
c
re

a
s
e

in
th

e
n

u
m

b
e

r
o

f
s
c
h

o
o

ls

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t
h

e
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
 A

w
a

rd
.

B
h
a

v
a

n
i 

S
h
a

rm
a

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

 e
n
a
b
lin

g
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 a

re
a
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 w

it
h
 C

h
in

a
, 
S

o
u
th

 A
fr

ic
a
, 
In

d
ia

, 
A

fr
ic

a
, 
S

p
a
in

, 
F

ra
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

H
o
lla

n
d
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 r
e
g
is

te
ri
n
g
 f
o
r 

IS
A

. 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

n
 I
S

A
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
n
 N

o
v
 2

0
0
7
, 
m

o
re

 j
o
in

t 

c
u
rr

ic
u
la

r 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 g

lo
b
e
. 
W

e
 a

re
 b

u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 

lin
k
s
 b

y
 h

o
s
ti
n
g
 v

is
it
s
 b

y
 g

ro
u
p
s
 o

f 
h
e
a
d
 t
e
a
c
h
e
rs

 a
n
d
 i
n
s
p
e
c
to

rs
 f
ro

m
 

G
ro

n
in

g
e
n
-H

o
lla

n
d
, 
P

a
ri
s
 a

n
d
 G

u
a
n
g
d
o
n
g
-C

h
in

a
 t
o
 s

h
a
re

 g
o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

, 
in

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
. 
4
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

, 
6
 p

ri
m

a
ri
e
s
 

a
n
d
 1

 s
p
e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
re

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 i
n
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
. 

W
e
 n

o
w

 h
a
v
e
 2

5
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 r
e
g
is

te
re

d
 f
o
r 

IS
A

. 
T

h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
a
n
d
 4

 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
e
n
t 
to

 S
A

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

re
a
 l
in

k
s
 a

n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
to

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
lin

k
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

O
c
t 
h
a
lf
 t
e
rm

. 
W

e
 a

re
 n

o
w

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

 1
3
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 h
e
a
d
s
 I
P

H
 v

is
it
 f
o
r 

s
p
ri
n
g
 

. 
T

h
e
 h

e
a
d
 o

f 
C

P
D

 w
ill

 b
e
 v

is
it
in

g
 T

o
b
a
g
o
 i
n
 J

a
n
 0

8
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 1

0
-1

2
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

a
 c

lu
s
te

r 
v
is

it
 o

f 
1
1
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 

h
e
a
d
s
 i
n
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
8
.L

in
d
a
 S

a
rr

 a
n
d
 M

a
rk

 L
a
n
c
a
s
te

r,
 S

t 
A

n
n
's

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
h
a
d
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
lin

k
in

g
 v

is
it
 t
o
 U

g
a
n
d
a
 i
n
 O

c
t 
h
a
lf
 t
e
rm

 a
n
d
 

a
re

 n
o
w

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 r
e
c
ip

ro
c
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 
E

a
rl
s
m

e
a
d
, 
C

h
e
s
tn

u
ts

, 
S

t 

A
id

a
n
s
 a

n
d
 F

o
rt

is
m

e
re

 h
a
v
e
 a

 3
 y

e
a
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 U

K
IE

R
I 
w

it
h
 6

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 

fr
o
m

 D
e
lh

i,
 I
n
d
ia

. 

(C
L

)P
1

6
.2

C
it
iz

e
n

s
h

ip
c
u

rr
ic

u
lu

m
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

to
ta

k
e

a
c
c
o

u
n

t
o

f
th

e
re

v
is

e
d

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l
e

x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s

fo
r

s
c
h

o
o

ls
to

m
o

re
fu

lly
a

d
d

re
s
s

is
s
u

e
s

re
la

te
d

to

s
o

c
ia

l 
c
o

h
e

s
io

n
. 

M
ik

e
 D

a
v
is

S
c
h
o
o
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
A

d
v
is

o
r 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
l 

C
it
iz

e
n
s
h
ip

/P
S

H
E

 C
o
-o

rd
in

a
to

rs
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
o
c
ia

l 

c
o
h
e
s
io

n
 s

tr
a
n
d
 i
n
to

 c
u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
. 
 O

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

te
a
c
h
e
rs

 t
o
 g

a
in

 i
d
e
a
s
 

a
n
d
 s

k
ill

s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

h
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 

c
a
n
 b

e
tt
e
r 

 t
a
c
k
le

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o

f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
c
o
h
e
s
io

n
 e

.g
. 
a
n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
; 

s
la

v
e
 t
ra

d
e
 a

b
o
lit

io
n
 a

n
n
iv

e
rs

a
ry

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
.

O
n
g
o
in

g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
C

it
iz

e
n
s
h
ip

 c
o
o
rd

in
a
to

rs
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
ti
n
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
ty

 a
n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
A

n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 o
rg

a
n
is

e
d
 f
o
r 

1
s
t 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r.

 M
o
d
e
l 
U

N
 d

e
b
a
te

 b
e
in

g
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
d
 

w
it
h
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
c
o
o
rd

in
a
to

rs
  
in

 e
a
rl
y
 n

e
w

 y
e
a
r 

w
it
h
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 s

o
c
ia

l 

c
o
h
e
s
io

n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
 

(C
L

)P
1

6
.3

B
u

ild
in

g
c
h

ild
re

n
a

n
d

y
o

u
n

g
p

e
o

p
le

's
a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s

a
n

d
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
o

f
d

if
fe

re
n

t
c
u

lt
u

re
s

a
n

d
fa

it
h

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
.

B
a

rb
a

ra
 

B
re

e
d

S
a
c
re

 h
a
s
 w

o
rk

e
d
 w

it
h
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
a
ll 

re
le

v
a
n
t 
fa

it
h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 a

g
re

e
 

a
 n

e
w

 s
y
lla

b
u
s
 f
o
r 

R
e
lig

io
u
s
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 2

5
th

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

  
T

ra
in

in
g
 f
o
r 

te
a
c
h
e
rs

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 r

e
lig

io
u
s
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
ill

 b
e
 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

u
tu

m
n
 a

n
d
 s

p
ri
n
g
 t
e
rm

s
.

A
ll 

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
v
e
 n

o
w

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 a
g
re

e
d
 s

y
lla

b
u
s
 .
 T

ra
iin

g
 h

a
s
 

ta
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 

in
 t
h
e
 s

p
ri
n
g
 t
e
rm

. 
A

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 f
a
ir
 w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

e
b
r 

to
 e

n
a
b
le

 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 w

id
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

te
a
c
h
in

g
 R

E

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 S
IX

T
E

E
N

 –
 W

e
 w

il
l 
e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 H
a
ri

n
g

e
y
 a

re
 g

iv
e
n

 w
id

e
r 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
 t

o
 

b
ro

a
d

e
n

 t
h

e
ir

 e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e
s
 a

n
d

 e
q

u
ip

 t
h

e
m

 t
o

 l
iv

e
 i
n

 a
 g

lo
b

a
l 
s
o

c
ie

ty
. 
 S

p
e
c
if

ic
a
ll
y
 w

e
 w

il
l:

Page 122



R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

L
E

A
D

(C
L

)P
1

6
.4

O
ff

e
ri

n
g

 m
o

re
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 v
is

it
 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
s
id

e
 a

n
d

 e
n

jo
y
 

o
u

r 
o

u
td

o
o

r 
p

u
rs

u
it
s
 c

e
n

tr
e

 i
n

 W
a

le
s
.

M
a

rt
in

 

S
k
in

n
e

r

P
e
n
d
a
rr

e
n
 H

o
u
s
e
 O

u
td

o
o
r 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 h

a
s
 o

p
e
ra

te
d
 a

t 
fu

ll 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

fo
r 

m
a
n
y
 y

e
a
rs

, 
a
lw

a
y
s
 w

it
h
 a

 f
e
w

 (
n
o
rm

a
lly

 1
-4

) 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 o
n
 t
h
e
 w

a
it
in

g
 l
is

t 

e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

a
ft
e
r 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

n
d
 d

a
te

s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
. 
 

M
o
re

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 o

f 
a
 n

e
w

 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 S

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

, 
th

is
 i
s
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
t 
h
a
s
 e

n
a
b
le

d
 T

h
e
 V

a
le

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
to

 b
ri
n
g
 p

u
p
ils

 

to
 P

e
n
d
a
rr

e
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
. 
 T

h
e
 V

a
le

 h
a
v
e
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 m

a
d
e
 t
w

o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

b
o
o
k
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 2

0
0
7
/8

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
y
e
a
r.

  
W

ill
ia

m
 C

 H
a
rv

e
y
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
h
a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 

b
e
n
e
fi
tt
e
d
 b

y
 u

s
in

g
 t
h
is

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
 F

u
rt

h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 d

o
n
e
 t
o
 

e
x
te

n
d
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

is
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
 I
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r,
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
n
g
 

s
e
lf
-c

a
te

ri
n
g
 g

ro
u
p
s
 t
o
 u

s
e
 i
t 
w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
 c

a
te

re
d
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 f
u
ll.

  
T

h
e
 

ta
rg

e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

e
t 
b
u
t 
th

is
 c

a
n
 b

e
 b

u
ilt

 o
n
 a

n
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 c
a
n
 b

e
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 b

y
 e

x
te

n
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

e
n
tr

e
 i
n
to

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
h
o
lid

a
y
 p

e
ri
o
d
s
. 
 

In
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
is

 a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

.

(C
L

)P
1

6
.5

In
c
re

a
s
e

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
fo

r
c
h

ild
re

n
a

n
d

y
o

u
n

g

p
e

o
p

le
to

ta
k
e

p
a

rt
in

c
re

a
ti
v
e

p
u

rs
u

it
s
,
in

c
lu

d
in

g

p
la

y
in

g
a

m
u

s
ic

a
l

in
s
tr

u
m

e
n

t,
e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
in

g
th

e

A
rt

s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 a
rt

s
. 

P
e

te
r 

D
e

s
m

o
n
d

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 o

u
r 

v
e
ry

 p
o
p
u
la

r 
a
n
d
 o

v
e
rs

u
b
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u
a
l 

&
 p

a
ir
e
d
 t
u
it
io

n
 o

n
 m

u
s
ic

a
l 
in

s
tr

u
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
w

e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
o
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
g
ro

w
th

 i
n
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 f
o
r 

o
u
r 

W
h
o
le

 C
la

s
s
 I
n
s
tr

u
m

e
n
ta

l 

T
e
a
c
h
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 b
u
y
 i
n
 i
n
s
tr

u
m

e
n
ta

l 
tu

it
io

n
 f
o
r 

a
 

w
h
o
le

 c
la

s
s
 o

n
c
e
 a

 w
e
e
k
. 
 T

h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 g

e
n
e
ro

u
s
ly

 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 g

ra
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 b

o
th

 D
fE

S
 a

n
d
 T

o
tt
e
n
h
a
m

 G
ra

m
m

a
r 

S
c
h
o
o
l 

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
 L

a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

w
e
 w

o
rk

e
d
 w

it
h
 6

1
5
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 2

2
 c

la
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 

1
5
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 t
o
 b

ri
n
g
 t
h
e
m

 a
ll 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

fo
r 

a
 M

A
S

S
IV

E
 

(M
u
s
ic

a
lA

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t,
 S

h
a
ri
n
g
 S

u
c
c
e
s
s
, 
In

s
p
ir
in

g
 V

ib
ra

n
t 
E

x
c
e
lle

n
c
e
) 

c
o
n
c
e
rt

 i
n
 A

le
x
a
n
d
ra

 P
a
la

c
e
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 t
h
e
y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d
 w

it
h
 m

o
re

 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
m

u
s
ic

ia
n
s
. 
 F

ro
m

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 w

e
 w

ill
 

b
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 1

1
5
0
 c

h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 4

1
 c

la
s
s
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 2

2
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

. 
 F

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

fr
o
m

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
p
a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d
 p

u
p
ils

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
re

 f
a
r-

re
a
c
h
in

g
. 
 T

h
is

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
m

p
le

m
e
n
ts

 o
th

e
r 

s
tr

a
n
d
s
 o

f 

o
u
r 

w
o
rk

 w
h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
tu

it
io

n
, 
H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 Y

o
u
n
g
 M

u
s
ic

ia
n
s
 (

a
 

th
ri
v
in

g
 p

ro
g
a
m

m
e
 o

f 
1
8
 v

a
ri
e
d
 o

u
t-

o
f-

s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 S
a
tu

rd
a
y
 CW

e
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 W

h
o
le

 C
la

s
s
 I
n
s
tr

u
m

e
n
ta

l 
T

e
a
c
h
in

g
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
n
 4

2
 c

la
s
s
e
s
 a

t 
K

S
2
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
, 

e
n
a
b
lin

g
 a

n
o
th

e
r 

1
2
0
0
 c

h
ild

re
n
 t
o
 l
e
a
rn

 a
n
 i
n
s
tr

u
m

n
e
t 
fo

r 
th

is
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e
a
r.

  
W

e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 e

x
p
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
a
n
d
 p

a
ir
e
d
 t
u
it
io

n
 o

n
 m

u
s
ic

a
l 

in
s
tr

u
m

e
n
ts

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 a

ft
e
r 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
e
n
s
e
m

b
le

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 a

 

p
ro

je
c
t 
in

 c
o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 T

h
e
 R

o
u
n
d
h
o
u
s
e
 i
n
 C

a
m

d
e
n
 t
o
 c

re
a
te

 t
h
e
 

"H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 U

rb
a
n
 O

rc
h
e
s
tr

a
" 

fe
a
tu

ri
n
g
 c

o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
/p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 

fo
r 

5
0
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 G

re
ig

 C
it
y
 A

c
a
d
e
m

y
, 
A

le
x
a
n
d
ra

 P
a
rk

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 

W
ill

ia
m

 C
 H

a
rv

e
y
 S

c
h
o
o
l.
  
O

th
e
r 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 p
la

n
n
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
is

 y
e
a
r 

in
c
lu

d
e
 a

 

la
rg

e
 s

c
a
le

 v
o
c
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 T

o
tt
e
n
h
a
m

 a
n
d
 a

 m
u
s
ic

 f
e
s
ti
v
a
l 
in

 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
0
8
.

(C
L

)P
1

6
.6

In
c
re

a
s
e

th
e

ta
k
e

u
p

o
f

a
ra

n
g

e
o

f
o

u
t

o
f

s
c
h

o
o

l

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
th

e
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
a

n
d

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
o

ff
e

re
d

b
y

th
e

Y
o

u
th

S
e

rv
ic

e
a

n
d

th
e

a
c
c
e

s
s

g
iv

e
n

th
ro

u
g

h
th

e
n

e
w

w
e

b
s
it
e

a
n

d

a
n

n
u

a
l 
d

ir
e

c
to

ry
 o

f 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
.

C
a

ro
l 

M
a

c
In

n
o

n
, 

B
e

lin
d

a
 

E
v
a

n
s

T
h
e
 S

u
m

m
e
r 

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 u

p
ta

k
e
 i
n
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 b

y
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 (
2
,0

0
0
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
2
 w

e
e
k
s
).

 W
e
 a

re
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 t
o
 b

u
ild

 o
n
 t
h
is

 b
y
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
p
s
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
e
rm

 t
im

e
. 
 W

e
 a

re
 b

u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

’s
 W

e
b
s
it
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 
o
u
t 
o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

.

P
la

n
s
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 t
o
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
 a

ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
th

ro
u
g
h
 N

L
C

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 

N
e
tw

o
rk

s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i
n
fo

rm
 t
h
e
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 “
”

G
o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 a

ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
s
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 t
o
 

o
ff
e
r 

a
 v

a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 
o
u
t 
o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
h
o
u
rs

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 
b
e
fo

re
 a

n
d
 a

ft
e
r 

s
c
h
o
o
l,
 a

n
d
 

in
 h

o
lid

a
y
 t
im

e
s
. 
 7

5
%

 o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
v
e
 b

re
a
k
fa

s
t 
c
lu

b
s
 b

u
t 
th

e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 i
s
 n

o
t 
s
e
c
u
re

. 
P

la
n
s
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
c
h
ild

re
n
 

a
n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

ls
o
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
is

 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
.

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 S
E

V
E

N
T

E
E

N
 –

 W
e
 w

il
l 
w

o
rk

 t
o

g
e
th

e
r 

to
 g

iv
e
 a

 m
o

re
 p

o
s
it

iv
e
 p

ro
fi

le
 t

o
 c

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 d
ra

w
in

g
 

a
tt

e
n

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
ir

 p
o

s
it

iv
e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 c
e
le

b
ra

ti
n

g
 t

h
e
ir

 a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

ts
. 
 S

p
e
c
if

ic
a
ll
y
 w

e
 w

il
l:

Page 123



R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

L
E

A
D

(C
L

)P
1

7
.1

S
u

p
p

o
rt

,
e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

a
n

d
in

it
ia

te
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
a

n
d

e
v
e

n
ts

th
a

t
d

e
v
e

lo
p

p
o

s
it
iv

e
s
e

lf
e

s
te

e
m

in

c
h

ild
re

n
a

n
d

y
o

u
n

g
p

e
o

p
le

,
fo

r
e

x
a

m
p

le
,

fa
m

ily

le
a

rn
in

g
,

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

m
e

n
to

ri
n

g
,

p
e

e
r

m
e

n
to

ri
n

g

a
n

d
 e

m
o

ti
o

n
a

l 
lit

e
ra

c
y
. 
  
 

D
ia

n
a

 

E
d

m
u
n
d

s
, 

M
ik

e
 D

a
v
is

, 

J
u
d

e
 

C
le

m
e

n
ts

1
5
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 (
4
5
0
 c

h
ild

re
n
) 

a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 B

e
tt
e
r 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 G

re
e
n
 F

a
ir
 o

n
 

2
9
th

 J
u
n
e
. 
 2

5
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 s
ig

n
e
d
 u

p
 f
o
r 

E
c
o
-s

c
h
o
o
ls

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 
5
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 

h
a
v
e
 g

a
in

e
d
 B

ro
n
ze

 A
w

a
rd

 s
ta

tu
s
. 
J
u
n
io

r 
C

it
iz

e
n
s
 d

e
b
a
te

 h
a
d
 t
h
e
m

e
 o

f 

'A
re

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 a
g
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 t
o
o
 y

o
u
n
g
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 S

R
E

?
' P

e
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 d

is
s
e
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
'g

o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
' r

e
p
o
rt

. 

P
y
ra

m
id

 C
lu

b
s
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
  
in

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 s
e
lf
 e

s
te

e
m

 a
n
d
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

p
a
re

n
ti
n
g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

la
n
n
e
d
. 
 B

re
a
k
fa

s
t 
C

lu
b
s
  
s
u
s
ta

in
e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 
T

h
e
 F

o
w

le
r 

N
e
w

s
o
m

 H
a
ll 

c
o
u
n
s
e
lli

n
g
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 i
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 

P
e
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 d

is
s
e
m

in
a
te

d
 t
o
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 
 H

o
rn

s
e
y
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

' p
e
e
r 

m
e
n
to

rs
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 a

t 
S

a
fe

r 
T

o
g
e
th

e
r,

 

S
a
fe

r 
W

h
e
re

v
e
r 

A
n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 f
o
r 

Y
o
u
th

 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g
 e

v
e
n
t.
  
Y

o
u
th

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

o
rg

a
n
is

in
g
 A

n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g
 m

a
rc

h
 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
2
 (

d
u
ri
n
g
 A

n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g
 W

e
e
k
).

 A
im

 t
o
 

in
v
o
lv

e
 e

v
e
ry

 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 a
n
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
in

 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
. 
P

y
ra

m
id

 s
e
lf
-

e
s
te

e
m

 c
lu

b
s
 r

u
n
n
in

g
 i
n
 f
o
u
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 A
u
tu

m
n
 t
e
rm

. 
B

re
a
k
fa

s
t 
C

lu
b
s
 

s
u
s
ta

in
e
d
 i
n
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 
C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 P

e
e
r 

M
e
d
ia

ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
  
in

 1
5
+

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 
3
1
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 n
o
w

 s
ig

n
e
d
 u

p
 

to
 E

c
o
-S

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 t
w

o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 g
a
in

in
g
 b

ro
n
ze

 a
w

a
rd

. 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 E
n
v
io

ro
n
m

e
n
t 
A

w
a
rd

 d
is

ti
n
c
ti
o
n
 a

w
a
rd

e
d
 t
o
 M

u
lb

e
rr

y
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 w
it
h
 

1
1
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 s
ig

n
in

g
 u

p
 f
o
r 

th
is

 y
e
a
r'
s
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
a
w

a
rd

. 
A

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

A
w

a
rd

s
 e

v
e
n
t 
b
e
in

g
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
d
 f
o
r 

H
Y

C
, 
Y

o
u
th

 F
u
n
d
s
 P

a
n
e
l 
a
n
d
 Y

o
u
th

 

S
e
rv

iic
e
 i
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

.

(C
L

)P
1

7
.2

W
o

rk
s
y
s
te

m
a

ti
c
a

lly
to

c
re

a
te

p
o

s
it
iv

e
im

a
g

e
s

o
f

c
h

ild
re

n
a

n
d

y
o

u
n

g
p

e
o

p
le

fr
o

m
a

ll
e

th
n

ic

g
ro

u
p

s
e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
e

x
te

rn
a

l
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 p

re
s
s
, 
to

 c
e

le
b

ra
te

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t.

M
o

n
ic

a
 

K
o

u
c
h
a

r

T
h
e
 M

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 T

e
a
m

 h
a
v
e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 

p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
y
 i
n
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 s

e
tt
in

g
s
 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 i
m

a
g
e
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
s
. 
 I
n
 2

0
0
7
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
v
e
re

d
: 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
p
e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
b
a
s
e
s
),

 p
la

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 

c
h
ild

re
n
's

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
, 
y
o
u
th

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

u
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
. 
 T

h
e
s
e
 

im
a
g
e
s
 p

re
s
e
n
t 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

 v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 
s
e
tt
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 
a
n
d
 c

o
v
e
r:

 0
-2

0
 y

e
a
rs

, 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 
e
th

n
ic

it
ie

s
, 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 S

E
N

, 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

 c
ro

s
s
-s

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 e

x
tr

a
 

c
u
rr

ic
u
la

r 
s
e
tt
in

g
s
. 
 W

e
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
ti
v
e
ly

 w
o
rk

e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 p

re
s
s
 o

ff
ic

e
 t
o
 k

e
e
p
 

th
e
m

 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 o

f 
e
v
e
n
ts

 /
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
h
a
t 
c
e
le

b
ra

te
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 a
ll 

e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
s
, 
a
n
d
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 t
h
e
 P

a
re

n
t,
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

's
 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 t
o
 a

le
rt

 u
s
 o

f 
a
n
y
 p

re
s
s
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
is

 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 
 W

e
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
  
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

to
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 n
e
w

 a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
rm

 f
o
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 S

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 a

p
p
ly

 f
o
r 

g
ra

n
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
. 

A
 b

a
n
k
 o

f 
p
o
s
it
iv

e
 i
m

a
g
e
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
e
th

n
ic

 

g
ro

u
p
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 i
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 u

s
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
p
u
b
lic

it
y
 m

a
te

ri
a
l 
in

 t
h
e
 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

's
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 
 P

ro
a
c
ti
v
e
, 
p
o
s
it
iv

e
 n

e
w

s
 s

to
ri
e
s
 

e
m

p
h
a
s
is

in
g
 t
h
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
p
a
rt

s
 

o
f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

re
 r

e
le

a
s
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
n
e
w

s
p
a
p
e
rs

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
a
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
p
u
b
lic

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
s
.

(C
L

)P
1

7
.3

S
u

p
p

o
rt

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

o
f

y
o

u
th

g
ro

u
p

s
w

it
h

in

e
a

c
h

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

N
e

tw
o

rk
th

a
t

e
n

a
b

le
m

in
o

ri
ty

g
ro

u
p

s
to

h
a

v
e

g
re

a
te

r
e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
a

n
d

a
m

o
re

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 p

ro
fi
le

. 
B

e
lin

d
a

 

E
v
a

n
s

T
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 a

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
g
ro

u
p
s
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 F

u
n
d
. 

W
e
 a

re
 p

re
p
a
ri
n
g
 a

 v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 m

a
k
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

s
 t
o
 h

o
w

 w
e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 

g
a
p
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 

T
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 C

h
e
c
k
 (

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
) 

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
v
e
ry

 

fe
w

 w
h
it
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
e
re

 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 a

c
ti
v
it
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

, 
o
n
e
 o

f 

th
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 "

S
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 t
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
o
s
e
 g

e
o
g
ra

p
h
ic

a
l 
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
."

 W
e
 a

re
 p

re
p
a
ri
n
g
 a

 

p
o
s
t 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c

h
e
c
k
 p

la
n
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 h

o
w

 w
e
 w

ill
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
is

. 

(C
L

)P
1

7
.4

B
u

ild
u

p
o

n
th

is
y
e

a
r’

s
c
e

le
b

ra
ti
o

n
e

v
e

n
t

to

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
th

e
a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

o
f

a
ll

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
’s

c
h

ild
re

n
a

n
d

y
o

u
n

g
p

e
o

p
le

,
a

n
d

e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 t
o

 s
h

a
re

 i
ts

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y
. 

A
n
a

 

B
e

a
u
m

o
n
t

T
h
is

 y
e
a
rs

  
P

o
s
it
iv

e
 P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 C

e
le

b
ra

ti
o
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
ill

 b
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
 t
o
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
 m

o
re

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 y

o
u
th

 s
e
tt
in

g
s
, 
e
n
a
b
lin

g
 

th
e
m

 t
o
 s

h
a
re

 t
h
e
ir
 p

u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 a

 w
id

e
r 

a
u
d
ie

n
c
e
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 

c
u
lm

in
a
te

 i
n
 a

 b
o
ro

u
g
h
-w

id
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 &

 Y
o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

's
 A

w
a
rd

 

C
e
le

b
ra

ti
o
n
, 
w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 a

n
d
 n

o
n
-a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
's

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
re

 a
w

a
rd

e
d
 a

n
d
 w

id
e
ly

 p
u
b
lic

is
e
d
. 
 

W
e
 a

re
 o

n
 t
ra

c
k
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

's
 C

e
le

b
ra

ti
o
n
 

e
v
e
n
t 
in

 2
0
0
8
 i
s
 w

id
e
ly

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 i
m

a
g
e
s
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
re

 p
ro

m
o
te

d
. 
Im

p
ro

v
e
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 p

re
s
s
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
lic

it
y
 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

 h
a
s
 l
e
d
 t
o
 m

o
re

 t
im

e
ly

 p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

's
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, 
th

e
 Y

o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
th

 O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 F

u
n
d
 i
s
 

o
rg

a
n
is

in
g
 a

n
 e

v
e
n
t 
in

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
0
8
, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

im
s
 t
o
 c

e
le

b
ra

te
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
. 
  

Page 124



R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

L
E

A
D

(C
L

)P
1

7
.5

T
h

ro
u

g
h

th
e

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

a
n

d
p

a
re

n
ta

l

in
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
d

e
v
e

lo
p

w
o

rk
w

it
h

p
a

re
n

ts
to

e
n

g
a

g
e

th
e

m
in

fa
m

ily
le

a
rn

in
g

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
a

n
d

e
n

a
b

le
th

e
m

to
s
u

p
p

o
rt

th
e

ir

c
h

ild
re

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 ‘
d

if
fi
c
u

lt
 i
s
s
u

e
s
’.

L
e

o
n
 

J
o

s
e

p
h

A
 s

e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 w

e
re

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
 f
o
r 

p
a
re

n
ts

 (
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
) 

w
h
o
s
e
 

c
h
ild

re
n
 w

e
re

 s
it
ti
n
g
 S

A
T

s
 a

n
d
 G

C
S

E
s
. 
A

t 
le

a
s
t 
3
0
 p

a
re

n
ts

 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 e

a
c
h
 

s
e
s
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 w
e
lc

o
m

e
d
 t
h
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 e

x
a
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 p

a
p
e
rs

, 
e
x
p
lo

re
 e

x
a
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d
 t
o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 w

a
y
s
 o

f 
h
e
lp

in
g
 t
o
 p

re
p
a
re

 p
u
p
ils

 f
o
r 

e
x
a
m

s
. 

4
7
 p

a
re

n
ts

 w
h
o
s
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 h

a
v
e
 S

E
N

 w
e
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

t 
S

E
N

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
. 

O
ff
ic

e
rs

 e
n
s
u
re

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 w
e
re

 p
re

p
a
re

d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
c
a
s
e
w

o
rk

. 
1
2
7
 p

a
re

n
ts

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 

o
f 
te

rm
 p

a
re

n
ts

' e
v
e
n
in

g
s
 w

h
e
re

 o
ff
ic

e
rs

 w
e
re

 o
n
 h

a
n
d
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 t
o
 e

x
p
la

in
 

th
e
 c

o
n
te

n
ts

 o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
re

p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 t
o
 s

ig
n
p
o
s
t 
p
a
re

n
ts

 t
o
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 c

h
ild

re
n
.

A
 s

e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 w

e
re

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
 f
o
r 

p
a
re

n
ts

 w
h
o
s
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

e
re

 

s
it
ti
n
g
 S

A
T

s
 a

n
d
 G

C
S

E
s
. 
A

t 
le

a
s
t 
3
0
 p

a
re

n
ts

 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 e

a
c
h
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 w
e
lc

o
m

e
d
 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 e

x
a
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 p

a
p
e
rs

, 
e
x
p
lo

re
 e

x
a
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d
 t
o
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
 w

a
y
s
 o

f 
h
e
lp

in
g
 t
o
 p

re
p
a
re

 p
u
p
ils

 f
o
r 

e
x
a
m

s
. 

4
7
 p

a
re

n
ts

 w
h
o
s
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 h

a
v
e
 S

E
N

 w
e
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

t 
S

E
N

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
. 

O
ff
ic

e
rs

 e
n
s
u
re

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 w
e
re

 p
re

p
a
re

d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
c
a
s
e
w

o
rk

. 
1
2
7
 p

a
re

n
ts

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 

o
f 
te

rm
 p

a
re

n
ts

' e
v
e
n
in

g
s
 w

h
e
re

 o
ff
ic

e
rs

 w
e
re

 o
n
 h

a
n
d
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 t
o
 e

x
p
la

in
 

th
e
 c

o
n
te

n
ts

 o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
re

p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 t
o
 s

ig
n
p
o
s
t 
p
a
re

n
ts

 t
o
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 c

h
ild

re
n
.

"S
o
m

a
li 

P
a
re

n
t 
a
n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 F

o
ru

m
 m

e
t 
th

re
e
 t
im

e
s
 i
n
 l
a
s
t 
a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 f
o
ru

m
's

 a
im

 i
s
 p

u
rs

u
e
 a

n
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 d

ia
lo

g
u
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 S

o
m

a
li 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 C

Y
P

S
. 
T

h
e
 F

o
ru

m
 i
s
 t
o
  
p
la

y
 a

 k
e
y
 r

o
le

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
h
e
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 w

id
e
 S

o
m

a
li 

re
s
e
a
rc

h
 p

ro
je

c
t.

T
h
e
 P

C
I 
T

e
a
m

 h
a
s
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 ‘A

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
’ 
p
ro

je
c
t 
ta

rg
e
ti
n
g
 

K
u
rd

is
h
; 
S

o
m

a
li 

a
n
d
 P

o
lis

h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 
P

C
I 
p
ro

v
id

e
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p

a
re

n
ts

(C
L

)P
1

7
.6

E
m

p
o

w
e

r
p

a
re

n
ts

to
m

a
x
im

is
e

th
e

ir
p

iv
o

ta
l

ro
le

o
f

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

th
e

ir
c
h

ild
re

n
to

m
a

k
e

a
p

o
s
it
iv

e

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
a

n
d

s
u

p
p

o
rt

th
e

m
to

c
o

m
b

a
t

d
e

p
ri

v
a

ti
o

n
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
. 

J
a

n
 M

o
tt
ra

m

G
o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 

to
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 p

a
re

n
ts

/c
a
re

rs
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 C

Y
P

S
, 
it
s
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r.
  
M

o
re

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 s

u
p
o
rt

 i
s
 

b
e
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 f
o
r 

p
a
re

n
ts

/c
a
re

rs
 f
ro

m
 u

n
d
e
ra

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 e

th
n
ic

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 

g
ro

u
p
s
 e

.g
. 
S

o
m

a
li.

  
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 l
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 c

lo
s
e
r 

d
ia

lo
g
u
e
 

a
n
d
 a

 s
h
a
re

d
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 S

o
m

a
li 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 
T

h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 
th

e
 F

a
m

ily
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 W
o
rk

e
rs

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

la
ri
fi
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 

F
a
m

ily
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 f
o
rm

 p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 P

a
re

n
t 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 
 A

 b
o
ro

u
g
h
 w

id
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
to

 a
s
c
e
rt

a
in

 

le
v
e
ls

 o
f 
p
a
re

n
t/
c
a
re

r 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
p
e
rc

e
iv

e
d
 g

a
p
s
 i
n
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 e

tc
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 m
e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
p
a
re

n
ts

/c
a
re

rs
  
w

ill
 i
n
fo

rm
 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 P

a
re

n
t 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 
 A

 b
o
ro

u
g
h
 w

id
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
m

o
re

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

fa
th

e
rs

/m
a
le

 c
a
re

rs
 i
s
 

e
m

e
rg

in
g
 f
ro

m
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 k

e
y
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

. 
 T

w
o
 0

.5
 S

c
h
o
o
l 

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
A

d
v
is

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t,
 i
m

p
a
rt

ia
l 

a
d
v
ic

e
 t
o
 p

a
re

n
ts

 a
t 
th

e
 p

o
in

t 
o
f 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r.
  
F

o
u
rt

e
e
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 p
aG

o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 m
o
re

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
.T

h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 w

it
h
 p

a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 i
s
 o

n
 t
ra

c
k
 t
o
 

re
tu

rn
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
re

p
o
n
s
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 d

e
a
d
lin

e
. 
 A

 v
e
ry

 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
fo

c
u
s
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 g

ro
u
p
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 K

u
rd

is
h
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
rs

 w
ill

 s
h
o
rt

ly
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 S

o
m

a
li 

a
n
d
 A

fr
ic

a
n
-

C
a
ri
b
b
e
a
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 
S

o
m

e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
ill

 s
h
o
rt

ly
 o

b
ta

in
 t
h
e
 L

P
P

A
 

k
it
e
m

a
rk

;t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 e

x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 v
a
lu

a
b
le

 i
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 

th
e
ir
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 w

it
h
 p

a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
. 
A

 s
e
c
o
n
d
 c

o
h
o
rt

 o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
re

g
is

te
ri
n
g
. 
T

h
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
T

ra
n
s
fe

r 
A

d
v
is

e
r 

is
 i
n
 p

o
s
t 
a
n
d
 h

a
s
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
a
d
v
ic

e
, 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 

p
a
re

n
ts

 i
n
 s

e
v
e
ra

l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 b
e
fo

re
 t
h
e
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

d
e
a
d
lin

e
. 
T

h
e
 P

a
re

n
t 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 m
o
re

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

p
a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
.

Page 125



T
h

e
 C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
: 

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g

A
C

H
IE

V
E

 E
C

O
N

O
M

IC
 W

E
L

L
-B

E
IN

G
 -

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
 1

8
-2

0
O

U
T

C
O

M
E

 L
E

A
D

: 
IA

N
 B

A
IL

E
Y

R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

(C
L
)P

1
8
.1

In
c
re

a
s
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
c
a
p
a
b
ili

ty
 a

m
o
n
g
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 

d
is

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 i
n
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 l
o
n
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

’ 
w

o
rk

 &
 

fa
m

ily
 t
a
x
 c

re
d
it
s
, 
s
u
b
s
id

is
e
d
 c

h
ild

c
a
re

 p
la

c
e
s
, 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 a

llo
w

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

b
a
s
e
d
 c

re
d
it
 u

n
io

n
s
.

S
u
 S

h
a
w

E
le

c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
it
ia

l 
o
u
tl
in

e
 o

f 
p
la

n
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

T
e
e
n
 m

u
m

s
 

o
n
 C

a
re

 t
o
 L

e
a
rn

 G
ra

n
t,

 E
M

A
 e

tc
. 

R
a
ti
n
g
 R

E
D

 u
n
ti
l 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 f

in
a
lis

e
d
 

a
n
d
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 s
h
a
re

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 C

Y
P

S
 t

e
a
m

s
 t

o
 g

o
 i
n
 t

e
a
m

 p
la

n
s
.

H
a
v
e
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 a

n
y
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

h
a
t 

I 
a
m

 

a
w

a
re

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

le
a
d
 f

ro
m

 a
d
u
lt
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
F

S
M

 

fo
rm

s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
. 

(C
L
)P

1
8
.2

C
o
m

p
le

te
 o

u
r 

a
m

b
it
io

u
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
e
a
rl
y 

ye
a
rs

’ 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

h
ild

c
a
re

 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 1

8
 

c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
 b

y 
2
0
0
8
 t
h
a
t 
re

a
c
h
 a

lm
o
s
t 

1
5
,0

0
0
 c

h
ild

re
n
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
 

g
iv

in
g
 t
h
e
m

 a
 g

o
o
d
 s

ta
rt

 a
n
d
 e

n
a
b
lin

g
 p

a
re

n
ts

 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 l
a
b
o
u
r 

m
a
rk

e
t.
 S

e
e
 a

ls
o
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

 1
3
.

R
o
s
 C

o
o
k
e

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

1
0
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

o
w

 o
ff

e
ri
n
g
 a

 f
u
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
ir
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

. 
 S

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 f

o
r 

fa
m

ily
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

n
e
tw

o
rk

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 p

u
t 

in
to

 p
la

c
e
. 

 A
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

8
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

s
ta

g
e
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

b
y
 2

0
0
8
 w

e
 w

ill
 

h
a
v
e
 c

re
a
te

d
 1

8
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
. 

 W
e
 h

a
v
e
 w

o
rk

e
d
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 o

u
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

J
o
b
 C

e
n
tr

e
  

P
lu

s
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

u
ll 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 W
e
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 m

e
t 

o
u
r 

R
E

A
C

H
 t

a
rg

e
ts

. 
 

T
h
e
 l
a
s
t 

p
h
a
s
e
 I

 c
e
n
tr

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 o

ff
ic

ia
lly

 o
p
e
n
e
d
. 

 W
o
rk

 i
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 w

it
h
 

p
h
a
s
e
 2

. 
 I

n
ti
a
l 
w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 w

it
h
 p

h
a
s
e
 3

 w
h
ic

h
 s

h
o
u
ld

 

m
e
a
n
 t

h
a
t 

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 C
e
n
tr

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 a

ll 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
.

(C
L
)P

1
8
.3

E
n
s
u
re

 s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
c
h
ild

c
a
re

 p
la

c
e
s
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 i
n
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
p
la

c
e
s
 

to
 m

e
e
t 
c
h
ild

c
a
re

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

2
0
0
7
 a

n
d
 2

0
0
8
. 

R
o
s
 C

o
o
k
e
 

/C
o
ri
n
n
e
 

H
ilt

o
n

A
 a

u
d
it
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t

h
a
t 

w
ill

 f
e
e
d
 i
n
to

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 o

f 
fu

tu
re

 p
la

c
e
s
. 

 A
 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

re
a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

w
ill

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

g
o
o
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

c
h
ild

c
a
re

 p
la

c
e
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

h
e
re

 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 n

e
e
d
 t

h
e
m

 l
in

k
in

g
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 P

V
I 

s
e
c
to

rs
. 

 

T
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 h

a
s
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 -

 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
n
t 

o
u
t 

a
n
d
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

re
tu

rn
e
d
. 

(C
L
)P

1
8
.4

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
in

d
iv

id
u
a
l 
le

a
rn

in
g
 p

a
th

w
a
ys

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

C
o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
, 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 l
e
a
rn

e
r 

o
ff
e
r 

to
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

’s
 p

re
-e

n
tr

y 
a
n
d
 e

n
tr

y 
le

v
e
l 

tr
a
n
s
it
io

n
s
.

S
e
a
n
 M

a
y

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 S

ix
th

 F
o
rm

 C
e
n
tr

e
 (

H
S

F
C

) 
d
u
e
 t

o
 o

p
e
n
 i
n
 S

e
p
t.

 0
7
 w

it
h
 

d
e
d
ic

a
te

d
 p

a
th

w
a
y
s
. 

R
e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
o
n
 t

h
e
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 s

tu
d
e
n
t 

p
a
th

w
a
y
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

S
e
p
t 

0
7
 s

ta
rt

. 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 e

x
p
a
n
d
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
a
th

w
a
y
s
 o

n
 o

ff
e
r.

 T
h
e
 

tr
a
n
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
C

o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 t

o
 L

A
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
is

 o
n
 t

ra
c
k
. 

 

T
h
e
 e

n
g
a
g
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 r

e
c
ru

it
e
d
 5

0
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
N

E
E

T
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

le
a
rn

e
rs

 f
o
rm

 t
h
e
 P

S
C

. 
B

u
ilt

 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 r

o
u
te

s
. 

T
h
e
 1

4
-1

9
 T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u
p
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

fu
n
d
s
 

to
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

a
d
d
iio

n
a
l 
L
e
v
e
l 
1
 a

n
d
 e

n
tr

y
 l
e
v
e
l 
p
ro

v
s
io

n
 s

ta
rt

in
g
 S

e
p
t.

0
8

(C
L
)P

1
8
.5

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y 

S
ix

th
 F

o
rm

 C
e
n
tr

e
 

a
tt
ra

c
ts

 a
 h

ig
h
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
o
u
r 

yo
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y 

in
 t
h
e
 e

a
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 b
ro

a
d
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
o
s
t 
1
6
 s

tu
d
y 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
. 
 

J
u
n
e
 J

a
rr

e
tt

T
h
e
 S

ix
th

 F
o
rm

 C
e
n
tr

e
 i
s
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

to
 o

p
e
n
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
, 

o
ff

e
ri
n
g
 a

 

w
id

e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
o
u
rs

e
s
 f

o
r 

1
6
-1

9
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 f

ro
m

 p
re

-e
n
tr

y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

o
 l
e
v
e
l 
3
 

q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 I
t 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 o

v
e
r 

1
,1

0
0
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
, 

6
9
9
 f

ro
m

 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 5

6
0
 p

la
c
e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
. 

 R
e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

d
a
ta

 o
n
 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 e

v
e
n
tu

a
lly

 e
n
ro

lle
d
 a

t 
th

e
 S

ix
th

 F
o
rm

 C
e
n
tr

e
 i
n
 

la
te

 A
u
g
u
s
t/

e
a
rl
y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

a
c
tu

a
lly

 c
a
m

e
 f

ro
m

, 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 l
a
te

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

(C
L
)P

1
8
.6

E
x
te

n
d
 t
h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
v
o
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
th

w
a
ys

 f
o
r 

1
4
-

1
9
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 p

ilo
ti
n
g
 o

f 
F

u
n
c
ti
o
n
a
l 

S
k
ill

s
 f
ro

m
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
; 
D

ip
lo

m
a
s
 i
n
 

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 2

0
0
8
; 
a
n
d
 S

o
c
ie

ty
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 C

re
a
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 M

e
d
ia

 f
ro

m
 

2
0
0
9
; 
a
n
d
 a

p
p
ly

 f
o
r 

w
a
v
e
 2

 o
f 
th

e
 D

ip
lo

m
a
 p

ilo
ts

 

in
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
. 

S
e
a
n
 M

a
y

T
h
e
 p

ilo
t 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
k
ill

s
 i
n
 S

e
p
t 

0
7
. 

T
h
e
 t

ra
in

in
g
 o

f 
c
e
n
tr

e
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
g
u
n
. 

T
h
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 g
ro

u
p
 i
s
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 a

n
d
 o

n
 t

ra
c
k
 t

o
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
 f

o
r 

N
o
v
 0

7
. 

D
ip

lo
m

a
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

g
ro

u
p
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 o

n
 t

ra
c
k
 t

o
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 f

o
r 

G
a
te

w
a
y
 2

 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

0
7
. 

T
h
e
 F

u
n
c
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

k
ill

s
 c

o
h
o
rt

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 t

ra
in

in
g
 i
s
 

p
ro

g
re

s
in

g
 w

e
ll.

 D
ip

lo
m

a
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

ra
ft

e
d
 r

e
a
d
y
 f

o
r 

s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

3
rd

. 

L
E

A
D

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 E
IG

H
T

E
E

N
 –

 W
e

 w
il
l 
im

p
ro

v
e

 a
c

c
e

s
s

 t
o

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 p

a
re

n
ts

 t
h

a
t 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
m

 t
o

 b
e

 m
o

re
 

e
c

o
n

o
m

ic
a

ll
y
 a

c
ti

v
e

. 
 S

p
e

c
if

ic
a

ll
y
 w

e
 w

il
l:

 

Page 126



R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

L
E

A
D

(C
L
)P

1
8
.7

A
ll 

yo
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 

tr
a
n
s
it
io

n
 p

la
n
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
ro

m
 1

4
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 b

y 
1
8
 

ye
a
rs

 a
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 r
e
la

te
d
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 w

h
e
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 
P

h
il 

D
i 
L
e
o

A
ll 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

, 
w

it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
, 

w
h
o
 l
e
ft

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
in

 J
u
ly

 2
0
0
7
, 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

th
e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

o
f 

d
e
ta

ile
d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 t

ra
c
k
in

g
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 p

a
s
t 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 

T
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 P

la
n
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 f

o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 t

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 D

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 T

e
a
m

 t
o
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

b
in

e
d
 A

d
u
lt
s
 T

e
a
m

 f
o
r 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 

D
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
. 

S
p
e
c
ia

l 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
v
e
 w

e
ll 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 w

o
rk

 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 o

n
 a

n
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l,
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

n
d
 

g
ro

u
p
 b

a
s
is

.

T
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 L

D
D

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

tr
a
n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

th
e
 t

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 t

e
a
m

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 

D
is

a
b
le

d
 C

h
ild

re
n
 t

e
a
m

 t
o
 t

h
e
 A

d
u
lt
’s

 L
e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
A

 

n
e
w

 p
ro

to
c
o
l 
fo

r 
th

e
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

c
a
s
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 (

c
o
p
y
 

a
tt

a
c
h
e
d
).

 T
h
is

 w
ill

 e
n
s
u
re

 g
re

a
te

r 
c
o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

a
n
s
it
io

n
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 a

d
u
lt
s
’ m

u
lt
i 
d
is

c
ip

lin
a
ry

 t
e
a
m

.

(C
L
)P

1
8
.8

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 

d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 g

o
o
d
 q

u
a
lit

y 

e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 t
h
a
t 
e
n
a
b
le

s
 

th
e
m

 t
o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 t
h
e
ir
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
n
d
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
.

P
h
il 

D
i 
L
e
o

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 4
6
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

  
fr

o
m

 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 S

p
e
c
ia

l 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 t

o
 

th
e
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

S
E

N
 f

a
c
u
lt
y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 S
ix

th
 F

o
rm

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 o

p
e
n
 i
n
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
. 

A
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

1
0
  

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 a
re

 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 f

ro
m

 m
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

  
C

e
n
tr

e
. 

T
w

o
  

y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 p
la

c
e
d
 i
n
 o

u
t 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 t

ra
n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

s
ix

th
 f

o
rm

. 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 t

o
 L

S
C

 f
u
n
d
e
d
 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 (
G

iv
e
 t

h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
)

T
h
e
 m

o
n
th

ly
 T

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 P

a
n
e
l 
tr

a
c
k
s
 t

h
e
 t

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 p

la
n
s
 o

f 
a
ll 

y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 t

h
o
s
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
le

a
v
in

g
 a

g
e
. 

C
o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
A

d
v
is

o
rs

 h
a
v
e
 a

 k
e
y
 r

o
le

 i
n
 t

h
is

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

th
e
 a

s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
re

 s
h
a
re

d
, 

th
a
t 

c
h
o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 

a
re

 k
e
y
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

a
re

n
t/

c
a
re

rs
 a

re
 k

e
p
t 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 t

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

T
h
e
 T

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 P

a
n
e
l 
h
a
s
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
it
s
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

it
 i
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 f

u
tu

re
 

n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

. 

(C
L
)P

1
8
.9

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

yo
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 h
a
v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 

m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 c

h
o
ic

e
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

tr
a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 e

m
p
lo

ym
e
n
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
 C

o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

J
a
n
e
tt
e
 

K
a
rk

lin
s

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 I

A
G

 a
d
v
ic

e
 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 a

ll 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 a

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 

fo
c
u
s
 o

n
 t

h
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 a

re
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
b
e
c
o
m

in
g
 N

E
E

T
 o

r 
N

E
E

T
. 

 P
la

n
s
 a

re
 w

e
ll 

a
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 t

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
C

o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
 t

o
 r

e
-a

d
d
re

s
s
 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

C
o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 A
 m

a
jo

r 
c
a
re

e
rs

 e
v
e
n
t 

is
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 f

o
r 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 a

t 
A

le
x
a
n
d
ra

 P
a
la

c
e
 f

o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 

p
a
re

n
ts

/c
a
re

rs
 t

o
 l
e
a
rn

 m
o
re

 a
b
o
u
t 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

tr
a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 t

o
 f

u
lly

 u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 p

o
s
t 

1
6
. 

(C
L
)P

1
8
.1

0

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 b
a
s
e
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y 

a
p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

s
, 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 

E
m

p
lo

ye
r 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u
p
.

S
e
a
n
 M

a
y

T
h
e
 d

ra
ft

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 W

B
L
 p

la
c
e
s
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 

fi
n
a
lis

e
d
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

0
7
. 

It
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h
e
 L

S
C

 w
ill

 a
w

a
rd

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
E

2
E

 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 t
o
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 S

e
p
t 

0
7
. 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
v
e
 

a
g
re

e
d
 t

o
 p

ilo
t 

E
2
E

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 S

e
p
t 

fr
o
m

 H
A

L
s
.

T
h
e
 o

u
tl
in

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
v
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t.

 1
6
-1

8
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

A
p
p
re

n
ti
c
s
h
ip

s
 h

a
s
 r

is
e
n
 f

ro
m

 £
3
4
9
,4

7
3
 i
n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 t

o
 £

7
2
5
,5

7
0
 f

o
r 

2
0
0
7
/0

8
. 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

E
2
E

 h
a
s
 r

is
e
n
 f

ro
m

 

£
1
,0

8
0
,5

8
0
 t

o
 £

1
,3

5
5
,5

2
9
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
. 

N
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
n
 

a
p
p
re

n
ti
c
s
h
ip

s
 h

a
v
e
 r

is
e
n
 f

ro
m

 6
5
 t

o
 1

5
6
 a

n
d
 f

o
r 

E
2
E

 2
4
9
 s

ta
rt

s
 t

o
 3

5
9
 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
.

(C
L
)P

1
9
.1

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
le

a
rn

e
rs

 i
n
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y 

h
a
v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

a
 b

ro
a
d
 c

u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 v

o
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
, 

a
t 
th

e
 l
e
v
e
l 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 s

ta
g
e
 i
n
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 

- 
p
re

-e
n
tr

y,
 e

n
tr

y,
 f
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
, 
in

te
rm

e
d
ia

te
 o

r 

a
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 b

y 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 t
h
a
t 
m

e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 

P
a
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 L

e
a
rn

e
r 

O
ff
e
r 

1
4
-1

9
.

S
e
a
n
 M

a
y

F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

k
ill

s
 p

ilo
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

S
e
p
t 

0
7
. 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
ilo

t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 f

o
r 

S
e
p
t 

0
7
. 

T
h
e
 S

tu
d
e
n
t 

P
a
th

w
a
y
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 f

ro
m

 

E
n
tr

y
 l
e
v
e
l.
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
C

o
N

E
L
 a

n
d
 W

B
L
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 

b
ro

a
d
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c

u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
. 

T
h
e
 H

S
F

C
 w

ill
 o

p
e
n
 i
n
 S

e
p
t 

0
7
 w

it
h
 a

 

b
ro

a
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 c

u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 o

ff
e
r.

A
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
re

 a
n
d
 p

o
s
t 

1
6
 p

ro
v
is

o
n
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 

c
o
m

is
s
io

n
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 1

4
-1

9
 T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u
p
 s

o
m

e
 t

a
rg

e
ti
n
g
 N

E
E

T
s
 a

n
d
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
N

E
E

T
s
. 

T
h
is

 p
ro

v
is

o
n
 w

ill
 a

d
d
 t

o
 t

h
a
t 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 

e
n
g
a
g
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

s
tu

d
e
n
t 

p
a
th

w
a
y
s
, 

D
ip

lo
m

a
s
 a

n
d
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
k
ill

s
 

p
ilo

t.
 

(C
L
)P

1
9
.2

In
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 s

tr
e
tc

h
 t
a
rg

e
t 
in

 t
h
e
 L

A
A

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
, 
re

d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

yo
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 n
o
t 
in

 E
E

T
 f
ro

m
 1

1
.6

%
 i
n
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 

to
 1

1
%

 i
n
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 a

n
d
 t
o
 1

0
.4

%
 b

y 
2
0
1
0
 o

v
e
ra

ll 

a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 f
o
r 

c
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 f
ro

m
 6

8
%

 i
n
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
 t
o
 

7
5
%

 i
n
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

n
d
 8

0
%

 i
n
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
. 
 

J
a
n
e
tt
e
 

K
a
rk

lin
s

M
o
s
t 

re
c
e
n
t 

d
a
ta

 f
o
r 

J
u
ly

 2
0
0
7
 (

1
3
.2

%
) 

 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 a
 2

.5
%

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 

th
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

 I
f 

re
c
e
n
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 t

h
e
 0

7
/0

8
 L

A
A

 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 m

e
t.

 T
h
e
 t

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 L

A
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
is

 

o
n
 t

ra
c
k
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
 t

h
e
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 

o
f 

H
S

F
C

 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 f

ig
u
re

s
. 

T
h
e
 E

E
T

 f
ig

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

1
9
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 

c
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 r
e
m

a
in

 l
o
w

 a
t 

6
5
.2

%
 f

o
r 

J
u
ly

 0
7

T
h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0
0
7
-0

8
 i
s
 o

n
 t

ra
c
k
. 

N
E

E
T

 d
a
ta

 f
o
r 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

is
  

1
4
.1

%
 

d
o
w

n
 1

.8
%

 f
ro

m
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 (

1
5
.9

%
).

 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

u
p

d
a

te
d

: 
 3

 x
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

- 
fi

rs
t 

re
v
ie

w
 i
n

 S
u

m
m

e
r;

 m
id

 y
e

a
r 

re
v
ie

w
 D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r,
 e

n
d

 o
f 

y
e

a
r 

re
v
ie

w
 A

p
ri

l.
  

Page 127



R
E

F
T

A
R

G
E

T
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

F
IR

S
T

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 -
 D

U
E

 E
N

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 -
 D

U
E

 9
 N

O
V

 0
7

L
E

A
D

(C
L
)P

1
9
.3

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
7
0
%

 o
f 
yo

u
n
g
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 c
o
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

th
e
ir
 o

rd
e
rs

 a
re

 i
n
 f
u
ll 

ti
m

e
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 

o
r 

e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 
b
y 

2
0
0
8
 a

n
d
 9

0
%

 b
y 

2
0
0
9
. 

L
in

d
a
 

J
a
m

e
s

F
ig

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

o
f 

2
0
0
7
/8

 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t 

6
9
.1

%
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
  

c
o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 t

h
e
ir
 o

rd
e
rs

 w
e
re

 i
n
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 f
u
ll 

ti
m

e
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

tr
a
in

in
g
 o

r 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

(c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
fi
g
u
re

 o
f 

6
5
.8

%
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r)

. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 d

e
s
p
it
e
 c

a
rr

y
in

g
 a

 v
a
c
a
n
c
y
 f

o
r 

a
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

d
u
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

- 
w

e
 e

x
p
e
c
t 

to
 a

p
p
o
in

t 
o
n
e
 i
m

m
in

e
n
tl
y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 u

n
d
e
r 

1
6
's

. 
T

h
e
 

ro
le

 o
f 

th
e
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 m

e
n
to

r 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
s
tr

u
m

e
n
ta

l 
in

 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 -

 8
2
.1

%
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
to

ta
l 
o
f 

7
7
.1

%
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 K

Y
P

E
 w

o
rk

e
r 

( 
K

e
e
p
in

g
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
) 

h
a
s
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 

s
ta

rt
e
d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
ti
n
g
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

o
s
t 

1
6
's

 a
s
 t

h
e
y
 r

e
m

a
in

  
o
u
r 

m
a
jo

r 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 w

it
h
 o

n
ly

 5
1
.7

%
 i
n
 E

T
E

. 
T

h
e
s
e
 s

ta
ff

, 
to

g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 

C
o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 P

A
s
, 

n
o
w

 f
o
rm

 a
 d

is
c
re

e
t 

E
T

E
 t

e
a
m

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 Y

O
S

.

F
ig

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 

2
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

o
f 

2
0
0
7
/8

 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t 

7
3
.6

1
%

 o
f 

th
o
s
e
  

c
o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 t

h
e
ir
 o

rd
e
rs

 w
e
re

 i
n
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 f
u
ll 

ti
m

e
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

tr
a
in

in
g
 o

r 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

(c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
fi
g
u
re

 o
f 

6
5
.8

%
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r)

. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 d

e
s
p
it
e
 c

a
rr

y
in

g
 a

 v
a
c
a
n
c
y
 f

o
r 

a
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

d
u
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 

q
u
a
rt

e
r,

 b
u
t 

th
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 m

e
n
to

r 
w

a
s
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 t

o
 t

h
is

 

p
o
s
t 

a
t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

 W
e
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
w

  
re

p
la

c
e
d
 t

h
e
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 m

e
n
to

r,
 

b
u
t 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

fu
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
is

 p
o
s
t 

w
ill

 d
e
fi
n
it
e
ly

 c
e
a
s
e
 i
n
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
..

 T
h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

th
e
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 m

e
n
to

r 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
s
tr

u
m

e
n
ta

l 
in

 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 -

 8
2
.1

%
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
to

ta
l 

o
f 

7
7
.1

%
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 K

Y
P

E
 w

o
rk

e
r 

( 
K

e
e
p
in

g
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
) 

is
 

c
o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
ti
n
g
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

o
s
t 

1
6
's

 a
s
 t

h
e
y
 r

e
m

a
in

  
o
u
r 

m
a
jo

r 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 b

u
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 f

ig
u
re

 f
o
r 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 

2
 

q
u
a
rt

e
rs

 i
s
 6

7
.6

%
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 5

2
.1

%
 i
n
 E

T
E

 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r 

T
h
e
s
e
 s

ta
ff

, 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 C

o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 P

A
s
, 

n
o
w

 f
o
rm

 a
 d

is
c
re

e
t 

E
T

E
 t

e
a
m

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

Y
O

S
.

(C
L
)P

1
9
.4

In
c
re

a
s
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 1

4
-1

9
 v

o
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

tr
a
in

in
g
, 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
w

o
rk

 r
e
la

te
d
 

le
a
rn

in
g
, 
w

o
rk

 b
a
s
e
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 e

x
te

n
d
 t
h
e
 

S
te

p
 t
o
 E

m
p
lo

ya
b
ili

ty
 s

c
h
e
m

e
. 

S
e
a
n
 M

a
y

S
tu

d
e
n
t 

P
a
th

w
a
y
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 f

o
r 

S
e
p
t 

0
7
. 

T
h
e
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ilo
te

d
 i
n
 S

e
p
t 

0
7
. 

T
h
e
 L

S
C

 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

E
2
E

 p
la

c
e
s
 i
n
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 f

ro
m

 S
e
p
t.

 0
7
. 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
v
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

o
 t

ra
il 

E
2
E

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
n
 S

e
p
t 

0
7
. 

H
E

B
P

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 1

4
-1

9
 T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u
p
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 W

R
L
 a

n
d
 

e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
. 

(I
 d

o
n
't 

k
n
o
w

 w
h
a
t 

th
e
 s

te
p
 t

o
 e

m
p
lo

y
a
b
ili

ty
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
.)

T
h
e
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 r

e
c
ru

it
e
d
 5

0
 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

. 
A

n
 a

d
d
it
o
n
a
l 

re
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
ro

v
is

o
n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
m

m
is

o
n
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 1

4
-1

9
 T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u
p
 p

re
 a

n
d
 

p
o
s
t 

1
6
. 

N
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
n
 a

p
p
re

n
ti
c
s
h
ip

s
 h

a
v
e
 r

is
e
n
 f

ro
m

 6
5
 t

o
 1

5
6
 a

n
d
 f

o
r 

E
2
E

 2
4
9
 s

ta
rt

s
 t

o
 3

5
9
 f

ro
m

 2
0
0
6
-0

7
 t

o
 2

0
0
7
-0

8

(C
L
)P

2
0
.1

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 a

t 
L
e
v
e
l 
1
 f
o
r 

1
6
 -

1
8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 t
o
 6

3
%

 b
y 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
0
7
 a

n
d
 t
o
 7

5
%

 b
y 

2
0
0
9
 (

 6
1
%

 i
n
 2

0
0
5
).

 
J
a
n
e
tt
e
 

K
a
rk

lin
s

A
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
le

v
e
l 
1
 a

n
d
 p

re
 l
e
v
e
l 
1
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

t 
H

S
F

C
 

a
n
d
 C

o
N

E
L
. 

E
2
E

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 e

x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 f

ro
m

 S
e
p
t.

 

0
7
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 L

S
C

 f
u
n
d
in

g
. 

T
h
is

 t
a
rg

e
t 

n
e
e
d
s
 d

e
fi
n
in

g
 u

n
c
le

a
r 

w
h
a
t 

it
 r

e
la

te
s
 

to
 o

r 
w

h
e
re

 i
t 

is
 f

ro
m

. 

2
0
0
5
-0

6
 C

o
N

E
L
 d

a
ta

 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 1

6
-1

8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 d

a
ta

 a
t 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

ra
te

 7
2
%

 a
n
d
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

ra
te

 8
3
%

.

(C
L
)P

2
0
.2

In
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
tc

h
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 L

A
A

, 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
9
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 q

u
a
lif

ie
d
 t
o
 L

e
v
e
l 
2
 

b
y 

a
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

5
%

 b
y 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
9
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 q

u
a
lif

ie
d
 t
o
 L

e
v
e
l 
3
 

b
y 

a
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

5
%

 b
y 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
, 
a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 

b
y 

o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

tr
a
n
s
it
io

n
 f
ro

m
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
to

 

c
o
lle

g
e
 o

r 
w

o
rk

 b
a
s
e
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 w

it
h
 c

le
a
r 

p
a
th

w
a
ys

 f
o
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
.

J
a
n
e
tt
e
 

K
a
rk

lin
s

T
h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

is
 o

n
 t

ra
c
k
 t

o
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 b

y
 2

0
0
9
. 

L
2
 A

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 

a
t 

1
9
 i
n
 2

0
0
4
-

0
5
 w

a
s
 5

3
%

 a
n
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
5
-0

6
 5

7
%

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 r
is

e
 o

f 
4
%

. 
L
3
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 

a
t 

1
9
 

in
 2

0
0
4
-0

5
 w

a
s
 3

5
%

 a
n
d
 4

0
%

 i
n
 2

0
0
5
-0

6
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 r
is

e
 o

f 
5
%

. 
T

h
e
 

tr
a
n
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 L

A
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
is

 o
n
 t

ra
c
k
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

.

L
2
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 

fo
r 

2
0
0
6
-0

7
 h

a
s
 r

is
e
n
 t

o
 6

2
%

. 
L
3
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 

2
0
0
6
-0

7
 h

a
s
 

ri
s
e
n
 t

o
 4

3
%

 .
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 L
2
 i
s
 7

1
.4

%
 a

n
d
 L

3
 i
s
 4

6
.8

%
.

(C
L
)P

2
0
.3

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
m

o
d
e
ls

 o
f 
g
o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

m
o
ti
v
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
re

 e
x
p
lo

re
d
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
e
d
 

D
ip

lo
m

a
 s

ys
te

m
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 c

a
re

e
rs

 a
c
a
d
e
m

y 

m
o
d
e
l.
 

J
a
n
e
tt
e
 

K
a
rk

lin
s

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ilo
te

d
 i
n
 S

e
p
t 

2
0
0
7
. 

T
h
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 

a
p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 H

a
ir
 D

re
s
s
in

g
 i
n
 S

e
p
t 

2
0
0
7
. 

T
h
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 d

ip
lo

m
a
 i
s
 o

n
 t

ra
c
k
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ilo
te

d
 i
n
 S

e
p
t 

2
0
0
8
 a

n
d
 

G
a
te

w
a
y
 2

 d
ip

lo
m

a
s
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ilo
te

d
 i
n
 S

e
p
t 

2
0
0
9
. 

T
h
e
 e

n
g
a
g
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 r

e
c
ru

it
e
d
 5

0
 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

. 
A

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
ro

v
is

o
n
 

is
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
m

m
is

o
n
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 1

4
-1

9
 T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u
p
 i
n
c
lu

d
n
g
 m

e
n
to

ri
n
g
 f

o
r 

N
E

E
T

s
, 

jo
b
 b

ro
c
k
a
ra

g
e
 a

n
d
 p

re
 a

n
d
 p

o
s
t 

1
6
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
.

(C
L
)P

2
0
.4

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

t 
a
g
e
 1

8
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
 n

e
w

 i
n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y 

S
ix

th
 F

o
rm

 a
n
d
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t
h
a
t 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
N

E
L
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

, 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

yo
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 h
a
v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 t
o
 m

a
tc

h
 t
h
e
ir
 n

e
e
d
s
. 

S
e
a
n
 M

a
y

H
S

F
C

 t
o
 o

p
e
n
 i
n
 S

e
p
t 

0
7
 w

it
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 c

a
m

p
u
s
. 

A
ll 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 p

la
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 1

4
-1

9
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 1

4
-1

9
 t

a
s
k
 g

ro
u
p
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
r 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

g
ro

u
p
).

 

In
d
ic

a
ti
v
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 f

o
r 

A
u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
0
7
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 a
 r

is
e
 i
n
 P

o
s
t 

1
6
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
. 

T
h
e
 H

S
F

C
 h

a
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 o

v
e
r 

1
,1

0
0
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
, 

6
9
9
 f

ro
m

 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 5

6
0
 p

la
c
e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
. 

T
h
e
 1

4
-1

9
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 r

a
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
7
.

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 T
W

E
N

T
Y

 –
 A

t 
a

g
e

 1
9

 w
e

 w
il
l 
im

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 q
u

a
li
fi

e
d

 t
o

 L
e

v
e

l 
2

 a
n

d
 L

e
v
e

l 
3

. 
 

S
p

e
c

if
ic

a
ll
y
 w

e
 w

il
l:

Page 128



T
h

e
 C

h
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
: 

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g

B
E

 H
E

A
L

T
H

Y
: 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

rs

P
A

F
/B

V
/

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y

E
n

g
la

n
d

S
N

 D
a
ta

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y

T
a
rg

e
t

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
R

A
G

L
o

c
a
l 
R

e
f

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

1
0
4
7
S

C
/ 

B
V

1
9
7

L
A

A

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

m
o
n
g
s
t 
1
5
-1

7
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 p

e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

6
3

2
0
0
5

4
1

2
0
0
5

5
9

2
0
0
5

n
/a

n
/a

A
N

N
U

A
L

 C
O

L
L

E
C

T
IO

N

A

B
H

(L
A

C
)1

 /
 

P
A

F
 C

1
9

T
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

w
h
o
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
ly

 f
o
r 

a
t 
le

a
s
t 
1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
, 
a
n
d
 w

h
o
 

h
a
d
 t
h
e
ir
 t
e
e
th

 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 b

y 
a
 d

e
n
ti
s
t 
d
u
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
 a

n
d
 h

a
d
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 1

2
 

m
o
n
th

s
.

8
0

8
4

8
6

9
2

9
5

A
N

N
U

A
L
 C

O
L
L
E

C
T

IO
N

 -
 n

e
w

 

fi
g
u
re

s
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 e

n
d
 o

f 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r.

 T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 i
n
 

th
e
 t
o
p
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 b

a
n
d
in

g
.

G

1
0
4
3
S

C
 /
 

P
A

F
 A

7
0

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 a

 c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 

C
h
ild

 a
n
d
 A

d
o
le

s
c
e
n
t 
M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e

1
1

1
3

1
5

1
6

1
6

A
N

N
U

A
L
 C

A
L
C

U
L
A

T
IO

N
 -

 

T
h
is

 i
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

B
a
n
d
in

g
G

(C
L
) 

P
4
.1

 

L
A

A
S

m
o
k
in

g
 D

u
ri
n
g
 P

re
g
n
a
n
c
y

5
6
.7

 f
o
r 

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 L

A
A

 T
A

R
G

E
T

A

(C
L
) 

P
4
.1

L
A

A
 B

re
a
s
tf

e
e
d
in

g
8
1

8
7
.9

 f
o
r 

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 L

A
A

 

T
A

R
G

E
T

G

(C
L
) 

P
 5

.3
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 H

e
a
lt
h
y 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 S
ta

tu
s

4
7
 (

6
0
%

 

b
y 

D
e
c
 

0
7
)

2
1
 t
o
 d

a
te

A

B
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
y 

P
I

P
a
g
e
 3

1

Page 129



T
h

e
 C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
: 

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g

S
T

A
Y

 S
A

F
E

: 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs

P
A

F
/B

V
/

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
H

a
ri

n
g

e
y

E
n

g
la

n
d

S
N

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
O

c
t

T
a

rg
e

t
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

R
A

G

L
o

c
a

l 
R

e
f

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 
2

0
0

6
/0

7
2

0
0

6
/0

7
2

0
0

6
/0

7
2

0
0

7
2

0
0

7
/0

8

2
0

1
5

S
C

/ 

C
H

1
4

1
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 p

e
r 

1
0

,0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 u

n
d

e
r 

1
8

6
3

0
4

9
3

7
0

4
5

1
6

2
4

8
5

2
0

M
o

n
th

ly
 f

ig
u

re
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o

 

re
fe

rr
a

ls
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
n

th
A

2
0

1
6

S
C

 /
 

C
H

1
4

2

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 w

h
o

s
e

 r
e

fe
rr

a
l 

o
c
c
u

rr
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 1

2
 m

o
n

th
s
 o

f 
a

 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 r

e
fe

rr
a

l

2
6

.1
2

2
.7

1
8

.3
2

0
.6

2
0

A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

IN
G

 

(M
A

R
C

H
)

G

2
0

1
7

S
C

 /
 

C
H

1
4

3
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 

n
e

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
le

d
 t
o

 i
n

it
ia

l 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts

6
0

.6
5

6
5

8
.9

5
0

.2
5

0
A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
 

(M
A

R
C

H
)

G

2
0

1
9

S
C

 /
 

C
H

0
2

In
it
ia

l 
c
h

ild
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 c

o
n

fe
re

n
c
e

s
 p

e
r 

1
0

,0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

g
e

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

1
8

4
9

.6
3

5
.7

4
8

.2
4

2
.5

1
9

4
3

M
o

n
th

ly
 f

ig
u

re
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

in
it
ia

l 
c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 i
n

 

th
e

 m
o

n
th

 (
b

y
 c

h
ild

)

A

2
0

2
0

S
c
/ 

1
7

0
4

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
in

it
ia

l 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 

w
it
h

in
 7

 w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
l 

5
0

.1
6

8
.4

6
8

.3
7

6
.5

9
1

7
8

E
x
c
e

lle
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 

s
u

s
ta

in
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

G

2
0

2
1

S
C

 /
 

C
H

1
4

5

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
o

re
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 n
e

e
d

 p
e

r 
1

0
,0

0
0

 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

g
e

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

1
8

1
0

5
.5

8
4

.5
1

6
0

.4
9

3
.4

7
4

1
0

0

M
o

n
th

ly
 f

ig
u

re
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
o

re
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
n

th

A

2
0

2
2

S
C

/ 

P
A

F
C

6
4

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
c
o

re
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 

th
a

t 
w

e
re

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 w

it
h

in
 3

5
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

m
e

n
t

5
8

7
8

7
9

7
1

8
3

7
4

E
x
c
e

lle
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 

s
u

s
ta

in
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

G

2
0

2
3

S
C

/ 

C
H

0
1

C
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

C
h

ild
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
p

e
r 

1
0

,0
0

0
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

g
e

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

1
8

4
0

.3
2

5
.2

3
4

3
1

.5

(1
5

6
)

3
9

.4

(1
9

3
)

3
0

(1
5

0
)

M
o

n
th

ly
 f

ig
u

re
 i
n

 b
ra

c
k
e

ts
 i
s
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 C

P
R

 

a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 m
o

n
th

R

2
0

2
4

S
C

/ 

1
2

1
9

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 o

n
 t
h

e
 C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 

R
e

g
is

te
r 

w
h

o
 a

re
 n

o
t 
a

llo
c
a

te
d

 t
o

 a
 

s
o

c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
r 

0
0

.3
0

0
0

0
G

2
0

2
7

S
C

 /
 

C
H

0
3

R
e

g
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
s
 p

e
r 

1
0

,0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 

a
g

e
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
1

8

4
0

.1
3

0
.1

3
9

.2
3

3
.9

1
7

3
4

M
o

n
th

ly
 f

ig
u

re
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

re
g

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

m
o

n
th

A

2
0

2
8

S
C

 /
  

P
A

F
 A

3

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 C

h
ild

 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d

1
3

.6
1

3
.4

1
1

.7
9

.5
1

3
.5

1
0

A

2
0

2
9

S
C

/ 

C
H

0
4

/ 

K
IG

S

F
ir

s
t 
ti
m

e
 r

e
g

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

s
 %

 o
f 

a
ll 

re
g

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r

8
6

.4
8

6
.6

8
8

.3
9

0
.5

9
0

Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
L

Y
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
A

2
0

3
0

S
C

/ 

C
H

1
2

1
/ 

K
IG

S

%
 c

h
ild

re
n

 o
n

 C
P

R
 a

t 
3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 w

h
o

 

a
re

 w
h

it
e

4
9

.7
8

0
.7

4
6

.4
4

7
.3

4
5

Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
L

Y
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
G

S
ta

y
 S

a
fe

 P
I

P
a

g
e

 3
2

Page 130



P
A

F
/B

V
/

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
H

a
ri

n
g

e
y

E
n

g
la

n
d

S
N

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
O

c
t

T
a

rg
e

t
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

R
A

G

L
o

c
a

l 
R

e
f

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 
2

0
0

6
/0

7
2

0
0

6
/0

7
2

0
0

6
/0

7
2

0
0

7
2

0
0

7
/0

8

2
0

3
1

S
C

/ 

C
H

1
2

2
/ 

K
IG

S

%
 c

h
ild

re
n

 o
n

 C
P

R
 a

t 
3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 w

h
o

 

a
re

 o
f 

m
ix

e
d

 e
th

n
ic

 o
ri

g
in

1
3

.2
7

.3
1

6
.8

1
0

.1
1

1
Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

L
Y

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

G

2
0

3
2

S
C

/ 

C
H

1
2

3
/ 

K
IG

S

%
 c

h
ild

re
n

 o
n

 C
P

R
 a

t 
3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 w

h
o

 

a
re

 o
f 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

4
.6

5
.3

3
.9

2
.9

4
Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

L
Y

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

G

2
0

3
3

S
C

/ 

C
H

1
2

4
/ 

K
IG

S

%
 c

h
ild

re
n

 o
n

 C
P

R
 a

t 
3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 w

h
o

 

a
re

 o
f 

b
la

c
k
 o

r 
b

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h

3
0

.5
5

.3
2

9
.2

3
3

.8
3

0
Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

L
Y

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

G

2
0

3
4

S
C

 /
 

P
A

F
C

2
0

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

c
h

ild
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 c

a
s
e

s
 

w
h

ic
h

 s
h

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
th

a
t 
w

e
re

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d

9
9

9
9

.5
9

9
.8

1
0

0
1

0
0

1
0

0
E

x
c
e

lle
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 

s
u

s
ta

in
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

G

2
0

3
5

S
C

 /
 

C
H

1
0

/ 

K
IG

S

D
e

-r
e

g
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
s
 p

e
r 

1
0

,0
0

0
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

g
e

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

1
8

4
7

.8
2

8
.8

3
8

.6
4

2
.7

1
9

4
0

M
o

n
th

ly
 f

ig
u

re
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

d
e

re
g

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 

th
e

 m
o

n
th

A

2
0

3
6

S
C

/ 

P
A

F
C

2
1

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 d

e
-r

e
g

is
te

re
d

 

fr
o

m
 t
h

e
 C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
g

is
te

r 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
w

h
o

 h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

R
e

g
is

te
r 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
o

u
s
ly

 f
o

r 
tw

o
 y

e
a

rs
 o

r 

m
o

re
.

5
.5

5
.8

6
.4

1
1

.8
1

.2
8

A

2
0

2
9

S
C

/ 

S
S

1
9

T
h

e
 r

a
ti
o

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 C

P
R

 t
h

a
t 
w

e
re

 f
ro

m
 m

in
o

ri
ty

 

e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 t
h

a
t 

w
e

re
 f

ro
m

 m
in

o
ri

ty
 e

th
n

ic
 g

ro
u

p
s

1
.0

2
1

.4
1

.2
1

.1
1

A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

IN
G

 

(M
A

R
C

H
)

G

2
0

6
9

S
C

R
a

ti
o

 o
f 

th
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 

lo
o

k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
w

e
re

 f
ro

m
 e

th
n

ic
 

m
in

o
ri

ti
e

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 t
h

a
t 

w
e

re
 f

ro
m

 e
th

n
ic

 m
in

o
ri

ti
e

s

1
.4

1
.6

1
.3

1
.5

n
/a

A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

IN
G

 

(M
A

R
C

H
)

G

2
0

4
2

S
C

/ 

C
H

3
9

 
C

h
ild

re
n

 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
p

e
r 

1
0

,0
0

0
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

g
e

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

1
8

 

9
7

5
4

.3
9

5
.9

8
9

.3

(4
4

3
)

8
6

(4
2

1
)

8
5

(4
2

2
)

M
o

n
th

ly
 f

ig
u

re
 i
n

 b
ra

c
k
e

ts
 

re
la

te
s
 t
o

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 

lo
o

k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
a

t 
e

n
d

 o
f 

m
o

n
th

G

2
0

6
4

S
C

/ 

P
A

F
C

6
8

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 

c
a

s
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r

8
2

8
5

9
1

9
2

9
8

 (
S

e
p

)
9

4
M

o
n

it
o

re
d

 r
e

tr
o

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 b

y
 

o
n

e
 m

o
n

th
G

2
0

4
3

S
C

/ 

P
A

F
 A

1
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 

w
it
h

 t
h

re
e

 o
r 

m
o

re
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 d
u

ri
n

g
 

th
e

 y
e

a
r.

1
3

1
2

1
2

1
4

1
6

1
2

A

2
0

6
5

S
C

P
A

F
 D

7
8

L
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

g
e

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

1
6

 

w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
fo

r 
2

.5
 o

r 

m
o

re
 y

e
a

rs
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 

th
e

 s
a

m
e

 p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
fo

r 
a

t 
le

a
s
t 
2

 

y
e

a
r,

 o
r 

w
h

o
 a

re
 p

la
c
e

d
 f

o
r 

a
d

o
p

ti
o

n

6
9

.9
6

5
.9

6
6

.9
6

9
.2

6
2

7
2

R

S
ta

y
 S

a
fe

 P
I

P
a

g
e

 3
3

Page 131



P
A

F
/B

V
/

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
H

a
ri

n
g

e
y

E
n

g
la

n
d

S
N

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
O

c
t

T
a

rg
e

t
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

R
A

G

L
o

c
a

l 
R

e
f

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 
2

0
0

6
/0

7
2

0
0

6
/0

7
2

0
0

6
/0

7
2

0
0

7
2

0
0

7
/0

8

2
0

5
2

S
C

/ 

C
H

4
4

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
in

 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
2

4
.9

1
4

.9
1

9
.5

2
4

.2
2

4
2

0
A

2
0

5
4

S
C

/ 

D
IS

 1
1

1
1

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

lo
o

k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

fo
s
te

re
d

 b
y
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

s
 o

r 
fr

ie
n

d
s

8
.2

1
2

.7
8

.8
1

1
.4

8
9

A

2
0

6
8

S
C

/ 

P
A

F
B

7
9

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 

a
g

e
d

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 1
0

 a
n

d
 1

6
 i
n

 f
o

s
te

r 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
r 

p
la

c
e

d
 f

o
r 

a
d

o
p

ti
o

n

7
6

.2
8

0
.7

8
2

.4
8

0
.6

7
8

8
2

G

2
0

5
8

S
C

/ 

1
1

1
5

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
lo

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
w

h
o

 

w
e

re
 p

la
c
e

d
 f

o
r 

a
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

in
 1

2
 

m
o

n
th

s
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 b
e

s
t 
in

te
re

s
t 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 

b
e

in
g

 m
a

d
e

 

8
1

7
7

6
4

8
1

4
0

7
2

T
h

is
 f

ig
u

re
 w

ill
 f

lu
c
tu

a
te

 

th
o

ru
g

h
o

u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r
A

2
0

5
9

S
C

/ 

P
A

F
C

2
3

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

lo
o

k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

a
d

o
p

te
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
a

s
 a

 

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 

lo
o

k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
w

h
o

 h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 l
o

o
k
e

d
 

a
ft

e
r 

fo
r 

6
 m

o
n

th
s
 o

r 
m

o
re

6
.4

8
.3

7
.8

6
.8

6
.3

7

F
ig

u
re

 i
n

 b
ra

c
k
e

ts
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
d

o
p

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 

s
p

e
c
ia

l 
g

u
a

rd
ia

n
s
h

ip
 o

rd
e

rs
 

g
ra

n
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
to

 d
a

te

G

2
0

6
0

S
C

/ 

1
1

1
4

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

lo
o

k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

w
h

o
 a

re
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 t
o

 a
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
r

1
0

0
9

5
.5

9
9

.7
1

0
0

1
0

0
1

0
0

E
x
c
e

lle
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 

s
u

s
ta

in
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

G

5
0

2
6

S
C

W
h

a
t 
%

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 w

it
h

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 

a
g

e
d

 1
4

+
 h

a
d

 a
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 p

la
n

 t
o

 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
ir

 m
o

v
e

 f
ro

m
 c

h
ild

re
n

's
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n

to
 a

d
u

lt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s

2
 -

 u
p

 t
o

 

7
5

%

m
o

s
t 
o

v
e

r 

9
0

m
o

s
t 
o

v
e

r 

9
0

4
-O

v
e

r 

9
0

%
C

a
lc

u
la

te
d

 A
n

n
u

a
lly

G

(C
L

)P
8

.2
 

(l
o

c
a

l 
P

I)

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

C
h

ild
re

n
 a

g
e

d
 0

-1
5

 k
ill

e
d

 

o
r 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
ly

 i
n

ju
re

d
 i
n

 r
o

a
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 

a
c
c
id

e
n

ts

1
5

2
0

0
5

2
9

7
7

2
0

0
5

L
S

C
B

 

d
a

ta
s
e

t 

3
.3

 (
lo

c
a

l 

P
I)

P
ri

v
a

te
 f

o
s
te

ri
n

g
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts

n
o

 

b
a

s
e

lin
e

3
5

3
5

L
S

C
B

 

d
a

ta
s
e

t 

3
.4

 (
lo

c
a

l 

P
I)

A
lle

g
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

ls

6
7

L
S

C
B

 

d
a

ta
s
e

t 

6
.1

 (
lo

c
a

l 

P
I)

C
h

ild
re

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 C

P
R

 w
it
h

 a
 d

is
a

b
ili

ty

5
3

%
4

.3
A

L
A

A
S

c
h

o
o

l 
T

ra
v
e

l 
P

la
n

s
8

2
 (

8
6

%
)

9
5

 (
1

0
0

%
)

A

* 
fi
g

u
re

s
 h

e
re

 a
re

 y
e

a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
is

 p
e

ri
o

d
 u

n
le

s
s
 o

th
e

rw
is

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ie

d

S
ta

y
 S

a
fe

 P
I

P
a

g
e

 3
4

Page 132



T
h

e
 C

h
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

: 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

E
N

J
O

Y
 A

N
D

 A
C

H
IE

V
E

: 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs

P
A

F
/B

V
/

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y

E
n

g
la

n
d

S
ta

ti
s
ti

c
a
l 

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y

T
a
rg

e
t

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
R

A
G

L
o

c
a
l 

R
e
f

2
0
0
4

2
0
0
4

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rs
2
0
0
5

2
0
0
6

S
e
p

t 

2
0
0
6

S
e
p

t 

2
0
0
7
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l

2
0
0
8

3
0
0
2
O

F
K

S
1
 R

e
a
d
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 
2
+

7
8
%

8
5
%

8
0
.5

7
%

8
5
.5

0
%

8
4
.0

0
%

7
8
.0

%
8
1
.0

%
8
2
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
G

3
0
0
3
O

F
K

S
1
 W

ri
ti
n
g
 L

e
v
e
l 
2
+

7
4
%

8
2
%

7
6
.8

1
%

8
2
.7

5
%

8
0
.0

0
%

7
4
.0

%
7
6
.0

%
7
8
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
A

3
0
0
4
O

F
K

S
1
 M

a
th

s
 L

e
v
e
l 
2
+

8
5
%

9
0
%

8
7
.2

5
%

9
1
.3

9
%

9
0
.0

0
%

8
7
.0

0
%

8
8
.0

0
%

8
9
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
A

3
0
0
5
O

F
/B

V

4
1
/L

A
A

K
S

2
 E

n
g
lis

h
 L

e
v
e
l 
4
+

7
0
%

7
8
%

7
8
.1

9
%

7
9
.4

9
%

8
0
.0

0
%

7
5
.0

0
%

7
6
.0

0
%

7
8
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
G

3
0
0
6
O

F
/B

V

4
0
/L

A
A

K
S

2
 M

a
th

s
 L

e
v
e
l 
4
+

6
7
%

7
4
%

7
2
.4

5
%

7
5
.5

1
%

7
7
.0

0
%

7
0
.0

0
%

7
3
.0

0
%

7
6
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G

A

3
0
0
7
O

F
/L

A

A
K

S
2
 S

c
ie

n
c
e
 L

e
v
e
l 
4
+

7
7
%

8
6
%

8
3
.2

8
%

8
7
.1

7
%

8
8
.0

0
%

7
8
.0

0
%

8
3
.0

0
%

8
3
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
G

B
V

1
9
4
a

%
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
5
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 

K
S

2
 E

n
g
lis

h
2
5
%

2
7
%

2
5
.0

%
2
7
.0

%
3
3
.0

0
%

3
0
.0

0
%

2
9
.0

0
%

3
2
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
A

B
V

1
9
4
b

%
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
5
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 

K
S

2
 M

a
th

s
2
6
%

3
1
%

2
7
.0

%
3
1
.0

%
3
3
.0

0
%

2
8
.0

0
%

2
9
.0

0
%

3
2
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
A

3
0
0
8
O

F
V

a
lu

e
 A

d
d
e
d
 M

e
a
s
u
re

 K
S

1
 t

o
 K

S
2

1
0
0
.2

1
0
0
.0

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
A

L
o
c
a
l 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 

a
n
d
 L

P
S

A
1
i

T
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 p

o
in

t 
s
c
o
re

d
 o

f 
B

la
c
k
 

A
fr

ic
a
n
 p

u
p
ils

 a
t 

K
e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

2
5
.5

2
5
.8

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
A

L
o
c
a
l 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 

a
n
d
 L

P
S

A
1
ii

T
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 p

o
in

t 
s
c
o
re

d
 o

f 
B

la
c
k
 

C
a
ri
b
b
e
a
n
 p

u
p
ils

 a
t 

K
e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

2
5
.5

2
5
.8

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G

A

E
n
jo

y
 a

n
d
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 P

I
P

a
g
e
 3

5

Page 133



P
A

F
/B

V
/

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y

E
n

g
la

n
d

S
ta

ti
s
ti

c
a
l 

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y

T
a
rg

e
t

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
R

A
G

L
o

c
a
l 

R
e
f

2
0
0
4

2
0
0
4

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rs
2
0
0
5

2
0
0
6

S
e
p

t 

2
0
0
6

S
e
p

t 

2
0
0
7
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l

2
0
0
8

3
0
0
9
O

F
/B

V

1
8
1
A

K
S

3
 E

n
g
lis

h
 L

e
v
e
l 
5
+

5
9
%

7
1
%

7
1
.5

6
%

7
4
.8

7
%

7
3
.0

0
%

6
1
.0

0
%

6
6
.0

0
%

7
2
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
 

A

3
0
1
0
O

F
/B

V

1
8
1
B

K
S

3
 M

a
th

s
 L

e
v
e
l 
5
+

5
8
%

7
3
%

6
9
.2

4
%

7
4
.5

4
%

7
6
.0

0
%

6
4
.0

0
%

6
6
.0

0
%

7
0
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
 

A

3
0
1
1
O

F
/B

V

1
8
1
C

K
S

3
 S

c
ie

n
c
e
 L

e
v
e
l 
5
+

5
1
%

6
6
%

6
2
.2

0
%

7
0
.5

3
%

7
3
.0

0
%

5
6
.0

0
%

6
1
.0

0
%

6
5
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
 

A

B
V

1
8
1
D

K
S

3
 I

C
T

 L
e
v
e
l 
5
+

5
4
%

6
7
%

6
9
.0

%

N
o
t 

y
e
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

6
2
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
A

3
0
1
2
O

F
V

a
lu

e
 A

d
d
e
d
 M

e
a
s
u
re

 K
S

2
 t

o
 K

S
3

9
9
.6

9
9
.7

9
9
.5

0
A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
A

3
0
1
3
O

F
/B

V

3
8

%
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

+
 A

* 
- 

C
 

4
3
.7

%
5
3
.7

%
5
2
.7

6
%

5
7
.1

0
%

5
9
.2

0
%

5
2
.0

0
%

5
6
.0

0
%

5
9
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
G

%
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

+
 A

* 
- 

C
 (

in
c
 E

n
g
 a

n
d
 

m
a
th

s
)

3
1
.0

%
4
2
.6

0
%

4
4
.9

%
4
6
.0

%
3
4
.3

0
%

3
8
.0

0
%

4
4
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
G

%
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

+
 A

* 
- 

G
7
9
.7

0
%

9
0
%

9
0
.0

0
%

9
0
.0

%
9
0
.0

%
8
4
.0

0
%

8
6
.0

0
%

8
7
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
G

B
V

3
9

%
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

+
 A

* 
- 

G
 (

in
c
 E

n
g
 a

n
d
 

m
a
th

s
)

8
7
.0

%
8
8
.0

%
7
9
.0

0
%

7
9
.0

0
%

8
1
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G

3
0
1
4
O

F
%

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 1

+
 A

* 
- 

G
9
3
%

9
6
%

9
7
.1

6
%

9
7
.0

2
%

9
8
.0

0
%

9
4
.5

0
%

9
6
.0

0
%

9
6
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
A

3
0
1
5
O

F
A

v
e
ra

g
e
 p

o
in

t 
s
c
o
re

 a
t 

G
C

S
E

2
9
4
.4

3
4
0
.4

3
4
6
.2

1
3
5
5
.1

0
3
6
5
.0

0
3
1
3
.0

0
3
3
7
.0

0
3
4
6

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
G

3
0
1
6
O

F
C

a
p
p
e
d
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 p

o
in

t 
s
c
o
re

 a
t 

G
C

S
E

2
8
2
.6

8
2
8
8
.7

6
2
6
6
.5

0
A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G

3
0
1
7
O

F

V
a
lu

e
 A

d
d
e
d
 M

e
a
s
u
re

 K
S

2
 t

o
 

G
C

S
E

/E
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t

9
8
9
.1

0
1
0
1
1
.2

0
A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
G

E
n
jo

y
 a

n
d
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 P

I
P

a
g
e
 3

6

Page 134



P
A

F
/B

V
/

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y

E
n

g
la

n
d

S
ta

ti
s
ti

c
a
l 

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y

T
a
rg

e
t

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
R

A
G

L
o

c
a
l 

R
e
f

2
0
0
4

2
0
0
4

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rs
2
0
0
5

2
0
0
6

S
e
p

t 

2
0
0
6

S
e
p

t 

2
0
0
7
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l

2
0
0
8

3
0
1
8
O

F

V
a
lu

e
 A

d
d
e
d
 M

e
a
s
u
re

 K
S

3
 t

o
 

G
C

S
E

/E
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t

9
9
2
.9

0
1
0
0
1
.4

0
A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
G

3
0
3
4
O

F
/B

V

4
6

A
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 a

t 
p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l

5
.5

0
%

5
.1

0
%

5
.3

4
%

4
.9

9
%

5
.5

4
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G

3
0
3
4
O

F
/B

V

4
6

U
n
a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 a

t 
p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l

1
.1

3
%

0
.4

0
%

0
.7

8
%

0
.4

3
%

1
.0

9
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G

3
0
3
5
O

F
/B

V

4
5

A
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 a

t 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l

6
.8

7
%

6
.9

2
%

6
.3

3
%

6
.5

6
%

6
.3

6
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G

3
0
3
5
O

F
/B

V

4
5

U
n
a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 a

t 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 

s
c
h
o
o
l

1
.8

9
%

1
.1

3
%

1
.3

3
%

1
.2

5
%

1
.8

8
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
L
o
c
a
l 

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
 

L
P

S
A

 2

%
 h

a
lf
 d

a
y
s
 m

is
s
e
d
 -

 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

8
.7

6
%

7
.7

0
%

7
.8

%
8
.2

4
%

7
.8

0
%

8
.4

0
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
G

L
o
c
a
l 

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
 

L
P

S
A

 2

%
 h

a
lf
 d

a
y
s
 m

is
s
e
d
 -

 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

6
.6

3
%

6
.1

0
%

5
.4

%
6
.6

3
%

5
.7

0
%

5
.6

0
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
A

5
0
0
3
O

F

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 6

th
 f

o
rm

s
: 

 A
v
e
ra

g
e
 p

o
in

t 

s
c
o
re

 o
f 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 e
n
te

re
d
 f

o
r 

G
C

E
/V

C
E

 

A
/A

S
2
0
8
.7

2
6
9
.2

2
7
7
.8

5
6
6
.2

5
8
8

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
A

3
0
6
1
D

E

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 s

ta
g
e
 4

 P
S

A
 

ta
rg

e
t 

ie
. 

th
a
t 

b
y
 2

0
0
4
, 

in
 a

ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
a
t 

le
a
s
t 

2
0
%

 s
h
o
u
ld

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
e
 e

q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 

2
.7

8
%

2
.2

5
%

0
%

0
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
G

3
0
8
7
O

F

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 r
e
q
u
ir
in

g
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 s

in
c
e
 2

0
0
3
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 

3
 

y
e
a
rs

1
.4

9
%

1
.4

8
%

0
%

0
%

0
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
G

3
0
8
8
O

F

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 r
e
q
u
ir
in

g
 a

 n
o
ti
c
e
 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

in
c
e
 S

e
p
t 

2
0
0
5

0
.2

7
%

0
.5

4
%

2
.4

0
%

0
.0

0
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
A

3
0
9
1
D

E

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
fi
xe

d
 t

e
rm

 e
xc

lu
s
io

n
s
 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 

p
h
a
s
e

0
.0

3
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
G

3
0
9
2
D

E

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
fi
xe

d
 t

e
rm

 e
xc

lu
s
io

n
s
 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 p
h
a
s
e

7
.8

4
%

8
.6

6
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
A

E
n
jo

y
 a

n
d
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 P

I
P

a
g
e
 3

7

Page 135



P
A

F
/B

V
/

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y

E
n

g
la

n
d

S
ta

ti
s
ti

c
a
l 

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y

T
a
rg

e
t

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
R

A
G

L
o

c
a
l 

R
e
f

2
0
0
4

2
0
0
4

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rs
2
0
0
5

2
0
0
6

S
e
p

t 

2
0
0
6

S
e
p

t 

2
0
0
7
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l

2
0
0
8

3
0
6
7
A

C
/1

9
5

d

%
 o

f 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
tl
y
 e

xc
lu

d
e
d
 p

u
p
ils

 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 w

it
h
 2

0
 o

r 
m

o
re

 h
o
u
rs

 o
f 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

8
0
.3

%
A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
G

3
0
8
9
D

E

%
 o

f 
p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 2

5
%

 o
r 

m
o
re

 

s
u
rp

lu
s
 p

la
c
e
s
 a

s
 a

t 
E

a
s
te

r 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

re
tu

rn
 t

o
 t

h
e
 D

fE
S

1
1
.4

%
1
2
.4

%
A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
G

3
0
9
0
D

E

%
 o

f 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 2

5
%

 o
r 

m
o
re

 s
u
rp

lu
s
 p

la
c
e
s
 a

s
 a

t 
E

a
s
te

r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
tu

rn
 t

o
 t

h
e
 D

fE
S

0
.0

%
7
.4

%
A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G

3
0
9
7
D

E

%
 o

f 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

e
xc

lu
s
io

n
s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

0
.3

3
%

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
G

6
0
4
9
D

E

%
 o

f 
u
n
fi
lle

d
 f

u
ll 

ti
m

e
 v

a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

F
T

E
 t

e
a
c
h
e
rs

 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
d
 a

s
 a

t 
J
a
n
u
a
ry

1
.5

%
0
.7

%
A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G

E
n
jo

y
 a

n
d
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 P

I
P

a
g
e
 3

8

Page 136



T
h

e
 C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
: 

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g

E
N

J
O

Y
 A

N
D

 A
C

H
IE

V
E

: 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs

P
A

F
/B

V
/

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y

E
n

g
la

n
d

S
N

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y

O
c
t

T
a
rg

e
t

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
R

A
G

L
o

c
a
l 
R

e
f

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7

2
0
0
7
/0

8

3
0
8
5
S

C
/ 

P
A

F
C

6
9

D
is

ta
n
c
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 n

e
w

ly
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

p
la

c
e
d
 f

ro
m

 h
o
m

e
 (

p
la

c
e
d
 2

0
 m

ile
s
 o

r 

m
o
re

 f
ro

m
 h

o
m

e
)

9
.8

1
1
.7

1
0
.4

8
4

7
G

3
0
7
1
S

C
/ 

1
4
0
6

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

w
h
o
 w

e
re

 p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 y

e
a
r 

1
1
 w

h
o
 w

e
re

 

e
lig

ib
le

 f
o
r 

G
C

S
E

 (
o
r 

e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t)

 

e
x
a
m

in
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
o
 s

a
t 
a
t 
le

a
s
t 
o
n
e
 G

C
S

E
 

e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 
e
x
a
m

.

5
9
.7

6
5
.6

6
3
.9

6
5
.4

6
0

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
 

(M
A

R
C

H
)

G

3
0
7
2
S

C
/ 

P
A

F
A

2
 

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 l
e
a
v
in

g
 

c
a
re

 a
g
e
d
 1

6
 o

r 
o
v
e
r 

w
it
h
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
1
 

G
C

S
E

 g
ra

d
e
 A

*-
G

 

5
0

5
5
.1

5
3
.1

5
0

4
3

5
5

R

3
0
7
3
S

C
/ 

1
4
0
3

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 l
e
a
v
in

g
 

c
a
re

 a
g
e
d
 1

6
 o

r 
o
v
e
r 

w
it
h
 5

 o
r 

m
o
re

 

G
C

S
E

s
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 A

*-
C

 o
r 

a
 G

N
V

Q

7
.6

9
.8

1
0
.1

1
8
.2

9
.5

1
2

A

3
0
7
4
S

C
/ 

P
A

F
C

2
4

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
ly

 f
o
r 

a
t 
le

a
s
t 
1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
, 
o
f 

c
o
m

p
u
ls

o
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
g
e
, 
w

h
o
 m

is
s
e
d
 a

t 

le
a
s
t 
2
5
 d

a
y
s
 s

c
h
o
o
lin

g
 f

o
r 

a
n
y
 r

e
a
s
o
n
 

d
u
ri

n
g
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
y
e
a
r

1
3
.9

1
3
.3

1
4

1
9

1
5
 (

p
ro

v
)

9
.9

C
u
rr

e
n
t 
d
a
ta

 s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 a

t 
e
n
d
 

o
f 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

0
7

R

3
0
7
0
A

C
/4

3
a

%
 o

f 
n
e
w

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

S
E

N
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 

w
it
h
in

 1
8
 w

e
e
k
s
 e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 'e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
'

1
0
0

9
9
.4

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0
 (

S
e
p
)

9
9

G

3
0
7
0
A

C
/4

3
b

%
 o

f 
n
e
w

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

S
E

N
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 

w
it
h
in

 1
8
 w

e
e
k
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
  
'e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
'

8
5

8
5
.9

8
9

8
0

9
3
 (

S
e
p
)

9
0

G

E
n
jo

y
 a

n
d
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
 O

th
e
r 

P
I

P
a
g
e
 3

9

Page 137



%
 p

u
p
ils

 w
it
h
 a

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

S
E

N
2
.9

2
.8

3
.3

3
.1

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
 

O
C

2
/L

A
A

%
 c

h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

fo
r 

1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

r 

m
o
re

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 G
C

S
E

's
 A

*-
C

1
2
.2

2
1
.5

2
7
.5

G

O
C

2
/L

A
A

%
 c

h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

fo
r 

1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

r 

m
o
re

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 G
C

S
E

's
 A

*-
G

4
0
.3

5
0

5
0

G

* 
fi
g
u
re

s
 h

e
re

 a
re

 y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

is
 p

e
ri

o
d
 u

n
le

s
s
 o

th
e
rw

is
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ie

d

E
n
jo

y
 a

n
d
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
 O

th
e
r 

P
I

P
a
g
e
 4

0

Page 138



T
h

e
 C

h
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
: 

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g

M
A

K
E

 A
 P

O
S

IT
IV

E
 C

O
N

T
R

IB
U

T
IO

N
: 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

rs

P
A

F
/B

V
/

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y

E
n

g
la

n
d

S
N

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y

O
c
t

T
a
rg

e
t

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
R

A
G

L
o

c
a
l 
R

e
f

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7

2
0
0
7
/0

8

4
0
1
5
S

C
/ 

P
A

F
C

1
8

F
in

a
l 
w

a
rn

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
v
ic

ti
o
n
s
 o

f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

1
.7

2
.5

1
.6

2
.8

(1
0
%

)
2
.2

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 e

n
d
 o

f 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

0
7

F
ig

u
re

 i
n
 b

ra
c
k
e
ts

 r
e
la

te
s
 t
o
 

th
e
 %

 o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 o
v
e
r 

1
0
 w

h
o
 w

e
re

 g
iv

e
n
 a

 f
in

a
l 

w
a
rn

in
g
, 
c
a
u
ti
o
n
 o

r 
c
o
n
v
ic

ti
o
n
 

in
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r

R

4
0
1
6
S

C
/ 

P
A

F
C

6
3

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
 t
h
e
ir
 v

ie
w

s
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 l
a
te

s
t 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

re
v
ie

w
 

9
6

8
7

8
7

9
8

9
9

9
8

T
h
is

 i
s
 t
h
e
 m

o
n
th

ly
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 

c
a
lc

u
la

te
d
 o

n
e
 m

o
n
th

 i
n
 

a
rr

e
a
rs

G

M
a
k
e
 P

o
s
it
iv

e
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 P

I 
P

a
g
e
 4

1

Page 139



T
h

e
 C

h
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
: 

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g

A
C

H
IE

V
E

 E
C

O
N

O
M

IC
 W

E
L

L
 B

E
IN

G
: 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

rs

P
A

F
/B

V
/

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y

E
n

g
la

n
d

S
N

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y

O
c
t

T
a
rg

e
t

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
R

A
G

L
o

c
a
l 
R

e
f

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7

2
0
0
7
/0

8

5
0
2
2
S

C
/ 

P
A

F
A

4
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 i
n
 

e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t,
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 a

t 
a
g
e
 1

9

0
.9

1

(6
7
.2

)
0
.7

6
0
.8

5
0
.9

3

(6
8
.4

)
6
7

0
.9

5

(7
2
)

M
o
n
th

ly
 f

ig
u
re

 r
e
la

te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

ye
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 

th
o
s
e
 h

a
v
e
 t
u
rn

e
d
 1

9
 a

n
d
 w

e
re

 

in
 E

T
E

A
/G

5
0
3
7
S

C

%
 c

a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 a
t 
a
g
e
 1

9
 w

h
o
 

a
re

 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 (

a
s
 j
u
d
g
e
d
 b

y 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il)

8
5
.1

8
7
.3

9
1
.3

9
3
.4

9
5

Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
L
Y

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

G

(C
L
) 

P
1
9
.2

N
o
t 
in

 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
E

m
p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

o
r 

T
ra

in
in

g
 (

N
E

E
T

s
)

1
0
.3

 (
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l)

1
0
.8

 (
O

c
t)

1
2
.3

A

A
c
h
ie

v
e
 E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 W

e
ll 

B
e
in

g
 P

I
P

a
g
e
 4

2

Page 140



1 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM    
  
 

MEETING 
 

Children and Young People's Strategic Partnership Board 
10 December 2007 

 
  

TITLE 
NEETS UPDATE 

 
 

SUMMARY 
 
This report reviews the current NEET situation in Haringey and explores the range of 
approaches employed to reduce the numbers and any future developments likely to 
impact on progress towards achieving the 2010 PSA target. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

That the CYPSP note the contents of this report.  
 
 

LEAD OFFICER(S) 
 
Lenny Kinnear, Chief Executive Connexions 
 
 

 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The NEET PSA target for Haringey set by government is to reduce the numbers of 16-18 

year olds not in education, employment or training to 10.4% of the whole cohort by 2010. The 
glide path set out in Table 1 shows the year on year reductions that would be required to 
meet this target.   DCSF calculates the annual NEET figure by averaging the monthly NEET 
figures for November, December and January of the following year 

 

for children & young people 

Agenda Item 10Page 141



2 

 
Table 1.  Glide path to meet PSA target 
 
NEET % 13.7% 13.0% 12.3% 11.6% 11.0% 10.4% 
YEAR Jan 

05/06 
(Base) 

Jan  
06/07 

Jan  
07/08 

Jan 
08/09 

Jan 
09/10 

 Jan 
10/11 

(Target) 
 
1.2 Haringey under Local Area Agreement (LAA) arrangements selected the NEET target as one 

which could be achieved earlier than 2010 and thus attract additional funding. The glide path 
set out in Table 2 shows the year on year reductions that would be required to meet this 
target 

 
Table 2. Glide path to meet the LAA target 

 
NEET % 12.3% 11.6% 11.0% 10.4% 
YEAR Jan 

06/07 
Jan  

07/08 
Jan  

08/09 
Jan  

09/10 

 
 
2. Current Position 
 
2.1 At the end of October 2007 the Haringey NEET percentage was 10.8%.  At the same time 

last year it was 13.9%.  Figures during the period September – November must be viewed 
with some caution as it is a time of transition for young people and it takes a few months to 
confirm their destinations.  However, there is some indication of a downward trend and it 
seems that the borough maybe on track to meet the January 08 glide path target of 11.6%.  

 
2.2 There is a further indication of improvement in the figure for participation in employment, 

education or training (EET) which at the end of October 07 was 78.8% compared with 72.3% 
at the same time last year. 

 
2.3 Encouragingly, when analysing the data for the length of time a young person has been 

NEET, the number of long term NEET (6 months +) has reduced significantly in the last 
month from 104 in September to 79 at the end of October suggesting that real inroads are 
being made with this most challenging group.  

 
 
3. Activities to reduce NEET 
 
Activities can be grouped within the three key approaches to NEET reduction of prevention, 
intervention and sustainability. 

 
3.1  Prevention 
 
3.1.1 An audit of IAG provision in Haringey schools is being carried out in order to develop an IAG 

entitlement for all students.  This will improve KS3 and 4 transition as evidence shows that 
many 17 year olds disengage from learning due to making late or poorly informed decisions.  

 

Page 142



3 

3.1.2 A future opportunities event for year 11 pupils and their parents was held at Alexandra 
Palace on the 22nd November with exhibitors from schools, colleges, universities, training 
providers and local and national employers.   

 
3.1.3 To improve information on post 16 options, Choice, the pan London electronic prospectus of 

post 16 opportunities has been launched in the summer with information on all courses in 
colleges and sixth forms.  This is available on the internet and is promoted to all pupils.   

 
3.1.4 Connexions provides personal adviser time to every secondary school (a minimum of I day 

per week) and an agreed programme of activities including 1:1 interventions, group sessions 
and support for the schools IAG curriculum including teaching and learning materials for 
pupils in years 9-11. 

 
3.1.5 September Guarantee:  Connexions and the LSC deliver this initiative for all year 11 pupils.  

Their intended progression routes are recorded and tracked so that all young people are 
guaranteed suitable post 16 provision.  Young people identified as at risk are followed up by 
Connexions personal advisers to provide 1:1 support into EET opportunities. 

 
3.1.6 A September Guarantee Voucher scheme was introduced by the LSC in September to 

provide funding for personalised learning / training for school leavers who had not progressed 
into mainstream provision.  £2000 per person has been made available to personal advisers 
to purchase suitable training or specialist support to enable young people to re-engage with 
EET opportunities. 

 
3.1.7 Connexions funding has been used to develop bespoke job brokerage for Haringey NEET 

young people. It will run until the end of March 2008. The job broker runs employability 
workshops and makes links with local employers. 

 
3.1.8 Pre 16 NEET prevention projects at Gladesmore and Alexandra schools.  40 young people in 

years 10 and 11 identified as at risk of NEET have been selected by the schools and 
provided with individual mentors drawn from the business community.  The aim is to raise 
motivation, achievement and provide practical careers support. 

 
3.1.9 Pre 16 Business Enterprise at Woodside High School and Park View Academy.  This is 

aimed at young people in year 10 at risk of NEET who are supported to set up their own 
small businesses making and selling jewellery and accessories. 

 
3.1.10 In partnership with Action for Kids, a local disability charity, young people in year 11 at 

Gladesmore and Northumberland Park with a Statement of Educational Need or on the 
School Action Plus register are offered specialist work experience. 

 
3.2 Intervention 
 
Intervention involves 1:1 work with young people and systematic tracking of the whereabouts and 
current situation of the whole 16-18 cohort. 
 
3.2.1 A PA team is occupied full time in following up young people on the NEET register to keep 

track of where they are and to encourage them to accept support into employment education 
and training.  The NEET Forum has agreed to develop local performance indicators to closely 
monitor targeted NEET work. 

Page 143



4 

 
3.2.2 Young people who have been NEET for less than 3 months receive an agreed programme of 

interventions including testing their level of basic skills, help with creating a CV, job search 
and interview practice.  Those who have been NEET for more than three months or who have 
complex problems are offered intensive support to deal with the practical or social barriers 
impacting on their lives. This may include referral to specialist agencies such as counselling. 

 
3.2.3 Connexions advisers are working with schools and colleges to implement systems for early 

identification of young people dropping out of post 16 learning.  Through pan London links 
with other boroughs Haringey young people studying elsewhere can be tracked and provided 
with support.  This should be of particular benefit to Haringey where over 50% of young 
people remaining in education post 16 study in another area.  

 
3.2.4 Arrangements are in place at CONEL for all excluded learners or those who drop out to be 

referred to Connexions for immediate follow up. 
 
3.2.5 PAs work with colleagues in the YOS, CAMHS, Haringey homeless person’s unit, and the 

teenage pregnancy team to identify NEET young people and provide them with intensive 1:1 
support to help them manage the difficulties in their lives and to re-engage with employment, 
education or training. 

 
3.2.6 A recruitment fair was held for NEET young people at CONEL in July and another large event 

was held on November 22 at Alexandra Palace.  Exhibitors included schools, colleges, 
training providers and local and national employers.  Young people were individually invited 
to attend by letter, texts and phone calls. 

 
3.3 Sustainability 
 
For NEET reduction to be sustained there has to be a range of appropriate and appealing 
employment, education and training opportunities available to young people. 
 
3.3.1 The September Guarantee voucher scheme is currently filling gaps for those young people 

who want short term very specialist training. 
 
3.3.2 The specialised diplomas will provide a wider range of options at KS4 and will help to keep 

more young people engaged in learning.  
 
3.3.3 Connexions commissioned two work based learning programmes for Haringey young people, 

Motiv8, who were not eligible for current mainstream programmes. 
 
3.3.4 The NEET Forum now seeks evaluative reports on all work commissioned around NEET 

young people to identify what approaches are worthy of longer term investment. 
 
 
4. Future Trends 
 
4.1.  The opening of the new sixth form centre is likely to have some effect on NEET percentages 

in the long term as more Haringey young people remain in the borough to study post 16. 
 

Page 144



5 

4.2.  The specialised diplomas will provide a wider range of options at KS4 and will help to keep 
more young people engaged in learning.  

 
4.3.  The new ESF funding round is likely to provide some additional funding for specialist NEET 

projects. 
 
4.4.  An announcement this month from DCSF is also likely to contribute to the reduction of NEET 

in Haringey.  The Secretary of State announced that the new NEET strategy will be 
strengthened by: 

• Further strengthening the tracking system, by requiring all learning providers to notify 
the Connexions service as soon as any young person drops out. 

• Increasing the flexibility of provision, so that if any young person drops out, it will be 
easier for them quickly to access an alternative place in learning. 

• Extending Education Maintenance Allowance (EMA), so that young people on a wider 
range of courses can receive support; and so that all young people on Entry to 
Employment courses (which are particularly important for those at risk of being NEET) 
receive EMA. 

• Extending the September Guarantee, so that 17 as well as 16 year olds are covered. 
 

4.5.  The NEET figures in Haringey are slowly but steadily reducing and with these new 
developments and continuing to build on the work of the last three years the borough appears 
to be on track to meet both its 2010 PSA and LAA targets. 

 
 
Recommendation 
 
That the committee note the contents of this report. 
 
 
 
 
 
s:\cs\dirf\allf\delivery and performance\cypsp\supporting material\2007\neets update dec07.doc 

Page 145



Page 146

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	6 Primary Care Trust -Children and Young People's Health Service Commissioning: Priorities for Service Development
	8 Local Area Agreement (LAA) Development
	9 Monitoring of Changing Lives and the LAA
	Copy of CYPP 2007-08 Monitoring dec07 (2)

	10 NEETS: Update on Progress and Key Actions

